
TOWN OF FLORENCE 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
Mayor Tara Walter 
Vice-Mayor Vallarie Woolridge 
Councilmember Bill Hawkins 
Councilmember Becki Guilin 
Councilmember John Anderson 
Councilmember Karen Wall 
Councilmember Kristen Larsen 
 
 
Monday, August 20, 2018 
 

Florence Town Hall
775 N. Main Street

Florence, AZ 85132
(520) 868-7500

www.florenceaz.gov
Meet 1st and 3rd Mondays

6:00 PM

____________________________________________________________________________ 
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the Town of Florence Council and to 
the general public that a Regular Meeting of the Florence Town Council will be held on Monday, 
August 20, 2018, at 6:00 p.m., in the Florence Town Council Chambers, located at 775 N. Main 
Street, Florence, Arizona.  The agenda for this meeting is as follows:    
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL:     Walter __, Woolridge__, Hawkins__, Guilin__, Anderson__,  

Wall____, Larsen___. 
 
3. MOMENT OF SILENCE 

 
4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  

Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the Town Council.  
Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual Councilmembers may respond 
to criticism made by those commenting, may ask staff to review a matter raised or may ask 
that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, members of the Council shall not discuss 
or take action on any matter during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly 
noticed for discussion and legal action. 

 
6. PRESENTATIONS 
 

a. Presentation by Margaret Boone, P.E., Maricopa Association of Governments Project 
Manager, on the Florence K-8, and Anthem K-8, Safe Routes to Schools Studies. (Jennifer 
Evans) 

 
b. Active Transportation Plan Presentation. (Bryan Hughes) 

 
c. Recognition of Noah Rudko, Development Services Intern. (Chris Salas) 
 
d. Recognition of Matthew Fredette, Economic Development Intern. (Jennifer Evans) 

 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



e. Bruce Long, representing Five-Parks, presenting concerns on the Fire Code portion of the 
International Building Codes. 
 

f. Strategic Plan Update (Ben Bitter) 
 

7. CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as part of 
the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects at the 
time the agenda item is called.  

 
a. Acceptance of the Florence K-8, and Anthem K-8, Safe Routes to Schools (SRTS) Studies. 

(Jennifer Evans) 
 

b. Approval of a contract with Rottweiler Controls, LLC, to provide SCADA repairs and 
maintenance through the Cooperative Contract #31700019, with the City of Buckeye, 
through June 30, 2019, in an amount not to exceed $50,000.  (Chris Salas) 

 
c. Approval of the purchase of Insta-Valve 250 Patriot insertion valves through Hydra-Stop, 

through June 30, 2019, in an amount not to exceed $100,000.  (Chris Salas) 
 

d. Approval to contract with Pro-Tec Environmental Inc., to provide sewer line cleaning through 
June 30, 2019, in an amount not to exceed $100,000. (Chris Salas). 

 
e. Approval of the July 3, July 16, July 18, July 20, and July 30, 2018 Town Council Meeting 

minutes. 
 

f. Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 
i. April 25, 2018 Historic District Advisory Commission Minutes 
ii. May 3, 2018 Parks and Recreation Advisory Board Minutes  

 
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

a. Resolution No. 1675-18: Second reading and Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, ADOPTING 
SMALL WIRELESS FACILITIES IN TOWN RIGHTS OF WAY TERMS AND CONDITIONS. 
(Larry Harmer) 
 

b. Ordinance No. 662-18:  Second reading and Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE CODE OF ORDINANCES TITLE XV “LAND USAGE” 
CHAPTER 150 OF THE DEVELOPMENT CODE, EXISTING SECTIONS 150.031 
“DEFINITIONS” AND “PART 9 WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS FACILITIES” SECTIONS 
150.180 TO 150.184, (CASE PZ 18-21 ORD). (Larry Harmer) 

 
c. Ordinance No. 663-18: Second reading and Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of AN 

ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE CODE OF ORDINANCES TITLE XI “BUSINESS 
REGULATIONS”, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, NEW PROVISIONS REGARDING SMALL 
WIRELESS FACILITIES AND RATES AND FEES FOR USE OF THE PUBLIC RIGHT OF 
WAY AND TOWN STRUCTURES, (CASE PZ 18-22 ORD). (Larry Harmer) 
 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



d. Ordinance No. 664-18:  Second reading and Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING 
CHAPTER 32 OF THE FLORENCE TOWN CODE BY ADDING SECTION § 32.200 ET 
SEQ., ESTABLISHING A YOUTH COMMISSION IN THE TOWN OF FLORENCE. (John 
Nixon) 
 

9. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Resolution No. 1662-18:  Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A RESOLUTION OF THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF THE 
REMAINING PLOTS OF BLOCK 29 OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE CEMETERY TO THE 
TOHONO O’ODHAM NATION, RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 544-96, AND 
ESTABLISHING FUTURE RATES FOR CEMETERY SERVICES AT THE THEN 
PREVAILING RATE. (Benjamin Bitter) 

 
b. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to enter into a contract with Cactus Transportation, dba: 

Cactus Asphalt, using the Cooperative Contract, through Pinal County JOC Contract 
#173923 Asphalt Maintenance & Repair Services, which includes the application of Chip 
Seal Binder: Polymer Modified Asphalt Rubber and FOG Seal Binder for pavement 
preservation treatment, in an amount not to exceed $364,018.24 (Proposal $316,537.60 
with a 15% contingency, $47,480.64.) (Chris Salas) 
 

c. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of the 2018 American Medical Response (AMR) Non-
Exclusive Revocable License Agreement for temporary housing at Florence Fire Station 
542. (David Strayer) 
 

10. MANAGER’S REPORT 

11. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
12. CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY 

 
13. ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
Discussion and possible action to authorize the holding of an Executive Session during the 
Council Meeting for the purposes of discussions or consultations with designated 
representatives of the public body and/or legal counsel pursuant to A.R.S. Sections 38-431.03 
(A)(1), (A)(3), (A)(4) and (A)(7) to consider its position and instruct its representatives and/or 
attorneys regarding: 

 
a. Town’s position and instruct its attorneys regarding the Petition for Review of Underground 

Injection Control Permit, issued by USEPA Region 9, for the Florence Copper Project, UIC 
Appeal 17-03, and related proceedings, including Ninth Circuit appeals of the 1997 Aquifer 
Exemption (Case No. 17-73170), and the decision of the Environmental Appeals Board 
(Case No. 17-73168). 

b. Town’s position and instruct its attorneys regarding Arizona Department of Environmental 
Quality proceedings, related to Water Quality Appeals Board Case No. 16-002, including 
appellate proceedings to reviewing courts. 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



c. Town’s position and instruct its attorneys regarding pending litigation in Maricopa County 
Superior Court:  Town of Florence v. Florence Copper, Inc. CV2015 -000325. 

d. Discussion or consultations regarding the Town of Florence Intervention in the Matter of 
the Commission’s Investigation into the Billing Practices and Water Quality Issues of 
Johnson Utilities, LLC before the Arizona Corporation Commission (WS-02987A-18-0050). 

e. Discussion or consultations regarding the Town of Florence Intervention in the Matter of 
the Commission’s Investigation into the rate case of Johnson Utilities, LLC before the 
Arizona Corporation Commission (WS02987A-17-0392). 

f. Discussion or consultation regarding Southeast Valley Regional Cooperative 
Intergovernmental Agreement for the Management, Operations and Planning for Effluent, 
Water and Wastewater Treatment Services in the Region between the Town of Florence 
and the Town of Queen Creek.  

g. Possible discussions and contract negotiations with Artisan Acres for the proposed 
development agreement. 

h. Duties as assigned to the Town Manager. 
i. Discussion or consultations regarding the Town of Florence use of International Technical 

Codes including Fire Codes and Town Codes. 
 

14. ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

15.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the purpose of obtaining 
legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-
431.03(A)(3). 
 
POSTED ON AUGUST 16, 2018, BY LISA GARCIA, TOWN CLERK, AT 775 NORTH MAIN 
STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA, AND AT WWW.FLORENCEAZ.GOV. 
 
***PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF DISABILITY 
REGARDING ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS WITH A DISABILITY MAY 
REQUEST REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY CONTACTING THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE ADA COORDINATOR, AT (520) 868-7574 OR (520) 868-7502 TDD. REQUESTS 
SHOULD BE MADE AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE 
ACCOMMODATION.***  



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
6a.  

MEETING DATE: August 20, 2018   
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
Subject:  Florence K-8/Anthem K-8 Safe Routes to School Studies Presentation         Meeting Date: August 20, 2018   
Page 1 of 1 

STAFF PRESENTER:  Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst  
 
SUBJECT:  Presentation on the Florence K-8 and Anthem K-8 
Safe Routes to Schools Studies  

 Ordinance   
 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
None, for information only. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Margaret Boone, P.E., is the Maricopa Association of Governments project manager for 
the Safe Routes to Schools Program. Ms. Boone will provide an overview of the Safe 
Routes to Schools Study process for the Florence and Anthem K-8 Schools.   
  
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

Not applicable  
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

Not applicable 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
None 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
6b.  

MEETING DATE:  August 20, 2018 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Services 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Bryan Hughes, 
                                      Community Services Director 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  
Subject:  Active Transportation Plan  Meeting Date:  August 20, 2018 
Page 1 of 3 

 
SUBJECT:  Active Transportation Plan Presentation

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Presentation only, no action required. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
In July 2017, the Town of Florence submitted a grant application to the Maricopa 
Association of Government (MAG) for Fiscal Year 2018 Bicycle and Pedestrian Master 
Plans and First Time Updates On-Call.  The grant application requested funding to 
retain a consultant with expertise in the development of bicycle and pedestrian master 
plans to facilitate community outreach and engagement and prepare a Town Bicycle, 
Pedestrian, and Trails Active Transportation Plan (BPTATP or ATP). 
 
In December 2017, staff received preliminary notice from MAG that the Town had been 
awarded a grant for development of an ATP.  The maximum grant amount was up to 
$98,900 with a 20% Town match. 
 
The following elements are anticipated to be critical components of the required scope 
of work, and should provide prospective proposers with a starting point for developing a 
detailed project scope: 

 Review of existing Town bicycle and pedestrian related documents and 
initiatives, including General Plan, Safe Routes to Schools, etc. 

 Review of other agency bicycle and pedestrian policies and plans for 
coordination opportunities (Pinal County, neighboring cities and towns). 



Subject:  Active Transportation Plan  Meeting Date:  August 20, 2018 
Page 2 of 3 

 Guidance and recommendations to the Town regarding inclusion of Arizona 
Department of Transportation (ADOT), Maricopa Association of Government 
(MAG), Central Arizona Governments (CAG) and Pinal County Active 
Transportation Plan components in the Town’s ATP. 

 Review, and update as needed, the existing General Plan bikeway inventory. 
 Identification of gaps in existing bicycle and pedestrian network hindering safe 

and convenient access to key destinations (e.g. schools, parks, transit, major 
local and regional bicycle and pedestrian facilities). 

 Identification of additional opportunities to enhance the safety and accessibility of 
the bicycle and pedestrian network. 

 Bicycle and pedestrian collision analysis. 
 Bicycle and pedestrian counts at key locations. 
 Outreach including public workshops, commission presentations, social media 

presence. 
 Coordination with Town of Florence/ADOT Planning Assistance for Rural Areas 

(PARA) collaborative. 
 Coordination with “Safe Routes to Schools” collaborative. 
 Development of recommended policies and programs. 
 Identification of proposed capital projects. 
 Identify locations where additional right-of-way and/or plan line adjustments may 

be needed to accommodate improvements. 
 Development of preliminary project and program cost estimates. 
 Prioritization and phasing alternatives of projects and programs. 
 Identification of funding sources. 
 Environmental review (to be determined as additional services). 

 
Michael Baker International (MBI) was selected as the consultant for the study; the 
consultant team is led by Kevin Kugler.  MBI is also the consultant on the Florence 
Transportation Planning Study, part of the Planning Assistance for Rural Areas (PARA) 
grant program sponsored by the Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT), 
currently being conducted. 
 
A Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) was established to guide and coordinate the 
consultant’s efforts throughout the course of the Florence Transportation Planning 
Study process. The Active Transportation Plan will utilize many of the same TAC 
members.   
 
This will be the Town’s first ATP and significant community and Board and Commission 
engagement, and participation will be a major part of the plan development process. 
 
The Trails Active Transportation Plan must be completed by June 30, 2019 to comply 
with the grant. 
    
 



Subject:  Active Transportation Plan Meeting Date:  August 20, 2018 
Page 3 of 3 

A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

Not applicable 

A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

Not applicable 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

The Intergovernmental Agreement with MAG was for $94,943.67.  MAG funded 80%, or 
$75,954.94, and the Town funded a 20% match, or $18,988.73.  No other funding will 
be necessary to complete the Active Transportation Plan. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Presentation 



Florence Active Transportation Plan
Town Council

Project Briefing

August 20, 2018



Tonight’s Agenda
I. Welcome & Introductions
II. Project Introduction

A. Purpose & Need
B. How will the Active 

Transportation Plan help 
the Town of Florence?

C. Study Area

III. Work Plan & Schedule 
Snapshot

IV. Key Project Issues, Concerns 
& Objectives- Group 
Discussion

V. Next Steps



A. Purpose & Need
1) The Town of Florence competed for, and was awarded grant funding from the 

Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG) to assist in the preparation of this 
Active Transportation Plan (ATP). 

2) The Town of Florence has never had a bicycle and pedestrian master plan.

II.  Project Introduction



B. How will the Active Transportation Plan help the 
Town of Florence?

1)This ATP will develop policies and procedures necessary to create a system for 
bicycle and pedestrian traffic in an integrated, safe and efficient multi-modal 
transportation system for Florence. 

2)Policies will be supported by maps and other graphics to identify and promote 
enhanced mobility and connection in Town – including the locations of bicycle 
and pedestrian paths/trails to connect neighborhoods and other key locations in 
the community…. Heritage Park, Community Center, Aquatic Center, other 
activity/job centers.

II.  Project Introduction



B. How will the Active Transportation Plan help the 
Town of Florence?

3) Establish a formal inventory of existing bike and pedestrian facilities and 
identify critical gaps in the system. 

4) Conduct a survey of Florence residents on their walking and biking attitudes 
and behaviors to better understand community expectations on these issues. 

5) Identify safety concerns and recommend design solutions. 

6) Obtain community input to help evaluate and prioritize short, medium and 
long term improvements. 

II.  Project Introduction



C. Study Area

II. Project 
Introduction



III.  Project Work Plan & Schedule Snapshot

PROJECT 
INITIATION

EXISTING & 
FUTURE 

CONDITIONS 
ANALYSIS

EVALUATION 
CRITERIA & 

PLAN OF 
IMPROVEMENTS

Jun - Aug 
2018

Aug -
Oct 2018

Nov 2018 -
Jan 2019

Feb - Apr
2019

• Prepare Scope of Work
• Public Involvement Plan
• Data Collection
• TAC Meeting #1
• Parks Board/ Planning 

Commission Briefing #1
• Town Council 

Briefing #1

• Analyze Existing 
Plans & Studies

• Bike & Ped Counts
• Gap Analysis
• Bike & Ped Behaviors 

Survey
• Technical Memo #1
• TAC Meeting #2

• Technical Memo #2
• TAC Meeting #3
• Parks Board/ Planning 

Commission Briefing #2
• Town Council 

Briefing # 2
• Public Open  House #1

• Draft ATP
• Public Open 

House #2
• Final ATP

DRAFT & 
FINAL ATP

PHASE I PHASE II PHASE III PHASE IV



IV. Key Project Issues, Concerns & 
Objectives

Town Council Observations



ISSUES 
CONCERNS 
OBJECTIVES

PUBLIC
SAFETY BIKE/ PED 

COUNT 
LOCATIONS

TRANSIT 
STOP 

CONNECTIONS

ACTIVITY 
CENTER 

CONNECTIONS

ADA 
ACCESSIBILITY

EXISTING 
NEIGHBORHOOD 
CONNECTIONS

REGIONAL 
CONNECTIONS 

NEEDED

CAP CANAL
TRAIL

PUBLIC 
ENGAGEMENT

EXISTING/ 
PLANNED PARKS 
& OPEN SPACE 
CONNECTIONS



• Continue data collection process
• Field Investigations/Bike & Ped Counts
• Prepare Technical Memorandum #1

V. NEXT STEPS



THANK YOU 
FOR 

ATTENDING TODAY!

Bryan Hughes
Community Services Director
Town of Florence
(520) 868-7582
bryan.hughes@florenceaz.gov

Kevin Kugler
Project Manager
(602) 798-7521

kkugler@mbakerintl.com



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
7a.  

MEETING DATE: August 20, 2018   
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst  
 
SUBJECT:  Acceptance of the Florence K-8 and Anthem K-8 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
Subject:  Florence K-8 and Anthem K-8 Safe Routes to Schools Studies                  Meeting Date: August 20,2018   
Page 1 of 2 

Safe Routes to Schools Studies   Other 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to accept the Florence K-8 and Anthem K-8 Safe Routes to Schools (SRTS) 
Studies. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Town of Florence received Surface Transportation Block Grant funding through the 
Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG) to conduct Safe Route to Schools (SRTS) 
studies for Florence K-8 and Anthem K-8 schools.  The purpose of the studies is to 
encourage walking and biking to school, prioritize improvements, leverage funding, 
promote partnerships, identify effective solutions for each school, and streamline the 
improvement process.  MAG staff and their on-call consultant coordinated the SRTS 
study process that involved staff from the Town, Florence Unified School District, and 
both schools. This core SRTS team identified traffic issues and needed safety 
improvements for each school.  
 
Both schools have unique recommended strategies and improvements that are outlined 
in each action plan.  Strategies listed in the action plans range from providing safety 
equipment and training for crossing guards to moving specified crosswalks to improve 
student safety.  The action plans also list potential funding sources, timeframes, and 
evaluation methods for each project. Once the SRTS studies are approved, Town staff 
will work with the school district and schools to implement the plans.  
 
  



Subject:  Florence K-8 and Anthem K-8 Safe Routes to Schools Studies                  Meeting Date: August 20,2018   
Page 2 of 2 

A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 
 
A no vote means the Town Council does not accept the studies.  
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

A yes vote means the Town Council accepts the studies. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The financial impact in the short term will be the cost of re-striping crosswalks with 
reflective paint and the installation of new signage.  Long term projects will be budgeted 
in the Capital Improvement Plan budget.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Florence K-8 Safe Routes to School Study 
Anthem K-8 Safe Routes to School Study 



Florence K-8 School 
Safe Routes to School Study 

 
Final Report 

June 2018 
PREPARED FOR: 
Town of Florence 

 

 

 

Florence Unified School District 

 

PREPARED BY: 

  
In association with:  

 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Florence K-8 June 2018 Page |i 

 

Table of Contents 

Executive Summary ............................................................................................................................1 

Acknowledgements............................................................................................................................2 

Introduction ......................................................................................................................................2 

Safe Routes to School (SRTS) Study Background ..................................................................................2 

State and Federal Support ........................................................................................................................ 3 

SRTS Team ................................................................................................................................................. 4 

Kick-Off Meeting ....................................................................................................................................... 4 

Florence K-8 Location and Demographics ............................................................................................5 

Site Location .............................................................................................................................................. 5 

Demographics ........................................................................................................................................... 5 

Study Area ................................................................................................................................................. 5 

Adjacent Transportation Network ............................................................................................................ 7 

Roadways .............................................................................................................................................. 7 

Crosswalks ............................................................................................................................................. 9 

Existing School Conditions and Procedures .........................................................................................9 

Circulation and Signage ............................................................................................................................. 9 

Driveways and Parking .............................................................................................................................. 9 

Crash Analysis ......................................................................................................................................... 10 

Student Drop-Off and Pick-Up Procedures ............................................................................................. 11 

Buses ....................................................................................................................................................... 11 

Bicycling and Walking Procedures .......................................................................................................... 11 

School Safety Procedures ....................................................................................................................... 12 

Vehicle, Pedestrian and Bicycle Counts .................................................................................................. 12 

Student and Parent Surveys .................................................................................................................... 16 

Student Travel Survey ......................................................................................................................... 16 

Parent Survey ...................................................................................................................................... 16 

“Walkabouts” .......................................................................................................................................... 16 

Site Observations .................................................................................................................................... 17 

Walking and Bicycling Map ..................................................................................................................... 20 

Community Meetings.............................................................................................................................. 20 

Action Plan ...................................................................................................................................... 20 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Florence K-8 June 2018 Page |ii 

The 6Es .................................................................................................................................................... 20 

Action Plan, Implementation Steps and Evaluation ............................................................................... 21 

Funding Sources and Opportunities ....................................................................................................... 26 

Appendices ...................................................................................................................................... 28 

 

List of Figures 

Figure 1 : Florence K-8 Total Enrollment 2011-2016 .............................................................................5 

Figure 2: Florence K-8 Vicinity Map .....................................................................................................6 

Figure 3: Florence K-8 Transportation Boundary .................................................................................7 

Figure 4: School Driveway Locations ................................................................................................. 10 

Figure 5: Sample Crossing Agreement ............................................................................................... 13 

Figure 6: AM Turning Movement Counts ........................................................................................... 15 

Figure 7: PM Turning Movement Counts ........................................................................................... 16 

 

List of Tables 

Table 1: Florence K-8 SRTS Action Plan ............................................................................................. 23 

 

List of Appendices 

Appendix A – Kickoff Meeting Agenda and Minutes 
Appendix B – Traffic, Pedestrian and Bicycle Count Data 
Appendix C – Student and Parent Survey Sheets 
Appendix D – Walkability Checklist Results 
Appendix E - Walking and Biking Map 
 

 

 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Florence K-8 June 2018 Page |1 

Executive Summary 
Florence K-8 School (FK8) is located in the core of Florence, Arizona, at 460 S Park Street. The school is 
bounded by Park Street to the east, Orlando Street to the west, Brady Street to the north and Virginia 
Avenue to the south. FK8’s challenges deal mostly with infrastructure – specifically, the lack of bicycle 
facilities (lanes) and ADA-compliant sidewalks and curb ramps; and in some cases, wide streets, which can 
encourage higher vehicle speeds. 

The school conducted two surveys: The Student Travel Survey is an in-class, teacher-led ‘show of 
hands’ survey about students’ travel modes to and from school. The Parent Survey asks parents 
a variety of questions relating to their opinions and feelings about why they allow – or don’t allow 
– their child(ren) to walk or bike to school. The Student Survey results showed: 

15% walk to school 
2% bike/skateboard/scooter to school 
28% ride the school bus 
55% are driven to school (family vehicle/car pool) 

 
Based on observations of student pickup and drop-off activities, field reviews, and input from 
parents and school and Town personnel, the following recommendations were developed: 

Crossing guard training/procedures and safety gear 
Consider enhanced pedestrian crossings on Butte Avenue and on Main Street 
Conduct sign inventory and replace signs as needed 
Inventory curb ramps in the school vicinity to determine ADA needs 
Reconfigure parking on Orlando Street 
Install bike lanes on Orlando and Park Streets 
Install speed feedback signs on Butte Avenue and Main Street 
Pedestrian and bicycle education, including bicycle skills/rodeos 
Hold walking/biking competitions 
Walking school bus and bike trains 
Volunteer Police Officers 
Restripe crosswalks 
Evaluate Florence Heights Drive for need for pedestrian facilities 
Move crosswalk at Main Street to Duron Street 

  



Safe Routes to School Study 
Florence K-8 June 2018 Page |2 

Acknowledgements 
The following individuals were core team stakeholders for this planning effort: 

Jennifer Evans, Management Assistant, Town of Florence Manager’s Office 
Art Moncibaez, Assistant Principal, Florence K-8 School 
Mark Lamas, Transportation Director, Florence Unified School District 

Additional team stakeholders included: 
Brandi Turner, Crossing guard 
Lt. Terry Tryon, Florence Police Department 
Officer Jeff Palmer, Florence Police Department 
David Strayer, Florence Fire Department 
Chris Salas, Florence Public Works Department 
Christian Collins, Florence Public Works Department 
Dan Cisco, Florence Public Works Department 
John Pitts, Florence Public Works Department 
Patrick Miller, Florence Public Works Department 

Introduction 
Wood (Amec Foster Wheeler) and Greenlight Traffic Engineering have been retained by the Maricopa 
Association of Governments (MAG) to perform a Safe Routes to School (SRTS) study for two schools within 
the Florence Unified School District in Florence, Arizona (Town). Florence K-8 and Anthem K-8 were 
studied as part of this project and safety recommendations for each school were documented in separate 
reports. This report provides recommendations for the Florence K-8 school. 

Safe Routes to School (SRTS) Study Background 
As part of the 2015 Strategic Transportation Safety Plan, MAG established a regional goal to “promote 
and administer Safe Routes to School (SRTS) framework studies to identify school traffic issues”. SRTS 
studies are initiated by local agencies in partnership with schools and school districts to promote and 
encourage walking and biking to school.  Conducting SRTS studies is a proactive approach to identifying 
safety improvements for K-8 students walking and biking to and from school. The study team provides an 
independent assessment at each school and community. The recommendations from the studies can be 
prioritized into near-term and long-term implementation time frames and used as a tool by local agencies, 
schools, and school districts to leverage local, state, or federal-aid funding.  

Strategies and improvements recommended by a SRTS study can include roadway improvements in 
coordination with the Town, on-site improvements in coordination with the FUSD or safety strategies and 
education for students and parents. The recommendations fit into one or more of the “Six E” categories; 
Engineering, Education, Enforcement, Encouragement, Evaluation and Equity.  

According to the MAG SRTS Studies Fact Sheet published in July 2017, the purposes of SRTS studies are 
the following: 

Encourage walking and biking to school 
Prioritize improvements 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Florence K-8 June 2018 Page |3 

Leverage funding 
Promote partnerships 
Identify effective solutions unique to each school 
Streamline and expedite the improvement process 

MAG and the Town, in coordination with the school, have developed a list of tasks required to be 
completed for this SRTS study, including; 

Establish SRTS Stakeholders Group: Identify stakeholders that can provide input on safety 
concerns within the study area. Stakeholders for SRTS studies can include, but is not limited to, 
school and school district faculty, parents, crossing guards, law enforcement and community 
leaders. This core team will participate in study meetings and will aid in the development of 
effective and useful recommendations.  
Data Collection: Traffic, bicycle and pedestrian counts are to be performed at locations where 
vehicle ingress and egress and bicycle and pedestrian traffic are substantial.  
SRTS Survey Collection: Parents and students attending the school are distributed surveys 
prepared by the National Center for Safe Routes to School regarding the mode of transportation 
the student is using to travel to and from the school. Results from the surveys are summarized 
and used in the development of safety strategies.  
Existing Conditions Assessment: The study team will collect all relevant existing information for 
the study area. A review of documents, existing studies, crash data and school procedures will be 
conducted first. This will also include a review of existing school resources such as bike locker 
locations, crossing guard locations and pedestrian and bicycle access locations. An observation of 
student pick-up and drop-off procedures will be conducted to observe the interactions between 
vehicle, pedestrian and bicycle traffic.  
Walking and Biking Assessment: A “walk-about” is conducted to observe the routes that students 
take to access the school on foot or by bicycle. The study team and stakeholders are encouraged 
to participate in this exercise to help identify all potential safety concerns. Walking and biking 
route maps will be developed based on the observations and recommendations stemming from 
this assessment. 
Neighborhood Meeting: This meeting will be held during evening hours to solicit input from a 
larger audience on walking and biking issues. 
Prepare Study Report: This document will include an action plan, walking and biking route map, 
and recommendations to increase walking and biking to school. 

State and Federal Support 
The Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act authorized a set-aside of Surface Transportation 
Block Grant (STBG) program funding for Transportation alternatives (TA), which are used to support the 
SRTS Program. The MAG region receives an annual allocation of TA funding from the Arizona Department 
of Transportation (ADOT). MAG manages the funds with oversight from municipality staff representatives. 
MAG member agencies are eligible to submit SRTS applications for utilizing this funding to help schools 
and communities promote the health and safety of K-8 students, with the call for new projects occurring 
each August. Funding can be used to develop SRTS studies, infrastructure improvements that promote 
and encourage walking and biking to school, and educational materials. 
 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Florence K-8 June 2018 Page |4 

In 2018, MAG will administer 10 SRTS projects within member jurisdictions, equating to more than 
$460,000. Through fiscal year 2020, MAG will administer 27 SRTS projects equating to approximately $1.3 
million. 

SRTS Team 
The SRTS core team should consist of four or more of the following representatives: 

 SRTS Coordinator/Encourager 
 School Principal 
 Teachers 
 Parents 
 Students 
 Local Law Enforcement 
 Local Road Agency 
 Local Planner/Engineer 

 
For Florence K-8, the SRTS core team included the following representatives: 

Florence Unified School District 
Mark Lamas, Director of Transportation and Support Services, mlamas@fusdaz.org 
 
Florence K-8 School 
Deanna Potter, Principal, dpotter@fusdaz.org 
Art Moncibaez, Assistant Principal, amoncibaez@fusdaz.org 
 
Town of Florence 
Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst, Jennifer.Evans@florenceaz.gov, Stakeholders Team Leader 
 

Kick-Off Meeting 
A project kick-off meeting was held on Friday December 19, 2017 at the Florence Community Center. The 
purpose of the meeting was to review the scope and schedule for the SRTS studies for the Florence and 
Anthem K-8 schools. The project team also took time to emphasize the importance of involvement from 
safety stakeholders including teachers, parents and school administrators to the SRTS study. The agenda 
and minutes from the meeting are provided in Appendix A of this document.  

The following project team members were present at the kick-off meeting: 

Maricopa Association of Governments – Margaret Boone 
Town of Florence – Jennifer Evans 
Florence K-8 School – Art Moncibaez 
Greenlight Traffic Engineering – Mike Blankenship, Scott Kelley  



Safe Routes to School Study 
Florence K-8 June 2018 Page |5 

Florence K-8 Location and Demographics 
Site Location 
Florence K-8 is located at 460 S Park Street in Florence, Arizona. 
The school is bounded by Park Street to the east, Orlando Street 
to the west, Brady Street to the north and Virginia Avenue to the 
south. Butte Avenue and Main Street, which are both main 
thoroughfares for the area, are two blocks to the north and two 
blocks to the west of the school property, respectively. The 
school property is shown on Figure 2.  

Demographics 
Student demographics for Florence K-8 were obtained from the MAG Read On Arizona MapLIT Viewer 
interactive mapping tool. Total K-8 enrollment for 2016, the last reported year in the mapping tool, was 
709 students, with 306 students in Kindergarten through 3rd grade. Total enrollment from 2011-2016 is 
shown in Figure 1.  

 

Figure 1 : Florence K-8 Total Enrollment 2011-2016 

Study Area 
The study area for Florence K-8 is outlined by the walking boundary shown on Figure 2. The land use within 
the school enrollment area primarily is single-family homes, rather wide streets, but generally low-speed 
traffic. The exceptions to this are Butte Avenue (State Route 79B) and Main Street (State Route 79B), 
which, as wider roadways, have higher vehicle speeds and volumes and pose significant safety challenges 
to pedestrians and bicyclists. FK8’s challenges deal mostly with infrastructure – specifically, the lack of 
bicycle facilities (lanes) and ADA-compliant sidewalks and curb ramps; and in some cases, wide streets, 
which can encourage higher vehicle speeds. 

Florence K-8 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Florence K-8 June 2018 Page |6 

All boundaries in the Florence Unified School District are open and parents can request their student(s) 
attend any school in the district.  However, the FUSD will only provide transportation to the homeschool 
for a given student. Figure 3 shows the Florence K-8 transportation boundary for bussing. 

 

 

Figure 2: Florence K-8 Vicinity Map 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Florence K-8 June 2018 Page |7 

Figure 3: Florence K-8 Transportation Boundary 

Adjacent Transportation Network 
Roadways 
Park Street is a two-lane north-south collector roadway east of the school property. The posted speed 
limit on Park Street is 25 mph outside of school hours, and 15 mph during school hours. The current cross-
section of Park Street adjacent to the school property includes pavement, curb and gutter and sidewalk. 
The pavement is approximately 46 feet wide with no centerline, travel lane or bicycle lane markings. 
Crosswalks are present along Park Street at Brady Street and at Virginia Avenue. 

Orlando Street, is a two-lane north-south collector roadway west of the school property. Orlando Street 
is a two-way street outside of the school property; 
however, Orlando street allows only northbound traffic 
immediately adjacent to the school. The posted speed limit 
on Orlando Street is 25 mph outside of school hours, and 15 
mph during school hours. The current cross-section of 
Orlando Street adjacent to the school property includes 
pavement, curb and gutter and sidewalk. The pavement is 
approximately 34 feet wide with centerline and turning 
movement markings. There are no bicycle lanes or markings 
along Orlando Street. Crosswalks are present along Orlando 
Street at Virginia Avenue, Duron Street, Collingwood Street 
and Brady Street.  Orlando Street 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Florence K-8 June 2018 Page |8 

Brady Street is a two-lane east-west collector roadway north of the school property. Brady Street is a two-
way street outside of the school property; however, Brady Street allows only eastbound traffic 
immediately adjacent to the school. The posted speed limit on Brady Street is 15 mph during school hours, 
as indicated by a roll-out school sign. There are no posted speed limit signs on Brady Street. The current 
cross-section of Brady Street adjacent to the school property includes pavement, curb and gutter and 
sidewalk. The pavement is approximately 30 feet wide with centerline and turning movement markings. 
There are no bicycle lanes or markings along Brady Street. Crosswalks are present along Brady Street at 
Orlando Street, Matilda Street and Park Street. 

Virginia Avenue is a two-lane east-west collector roadway south of the school property. Virginia Avenue 
is a two-way street outside of the school property; however, 
Virginia Avenue allows only westbound traffic immediately 
adjacent to the school. The posted speed limit on Virginia 
Avenue is 15 mph during school hours, as indicated by a roll-
out school sign. There are no posted speed limit signs on 
Virginia Avenue. The current cross-section of Virginia Avenue 
adjacent to the school property includes pavement, curb and 
gutter and sidewalk. The pavement is approximately 30 feet 
wide with centerline and turning movement markings. There 
are no bicycle lanes or markings along Brady Street. 

Crosswalks are present along Brady Street at Orlando Street and 
Park Street. The figure above shows the yellow high-visibility crosswalk at the intersection of Park and 
Virginia. 

Main Street is a three-lane north-south arterial roadway approximately 650 feet west of the school 
property. The posted speed limit on Main Street is 35 mph outside of the school zone, and 15 mph inside 
of the school zone which extends from Butte Avenue to approximately 100 feet south of Aguilar Street. 
The current cross-section of Main Street includes pavement, curb and gutter and sidewalk. The pavement 
consists of two approximately 20-foot-wide travel lanes with an approximately 12-foot-wide two-way left 
turn lane (TWLTL).  There are no bicycle lanes or markings along Main Street.  

Butte Avenue is a five-lane east-west arterial 
roadway approximately 600 feet north of the 
school property. The posted speed limit on 
Butte Avenue is 35 mph outside of the school 
zone, and 15 mph inside of the school zone 
which extends from Main Street to Orlando 
Street. The current cross-section of Butte 
Avenue includes pavement, curb and gutter 
and sidewalk. The travel lanes vary from 
approximately 10 to 14 feet wide with an 
approximately 12-foot-wide TWLTL.  There are no 
bicycle lanes or markings along Butte Avenue. On-
street parking is permitted on the north and south sides of the roadway. 

Butte Avenue at Park Street 

Park Street and Virginia Avenue 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Florence K-8 June 2018 Page |9 

Crosswalks 
In addition to the crosswalks listed in the section above, there are crosswalks present at the following 
locations: 

Butte Avenue & Orlando Street 
Main Street & Aguilar Street 

These crosswalks are monitored by crossing guards during student ingress and egress times. A crossing 
guard is also present at the Duron Street & Orlando Street crosswalk. 

Existing School Conditions and Procedures 
Circulation and Signage 
Florence K-8 is located at 460 South Park Street in Florence, Arizona. The school property is bounded by 
Brady Street and Virginia Street to the north and south, respectively, and by Orlando Street and Park 
Street to the west and east, respectively. The major streets adjacent to the school are Main Street and 
Butte Avenue.  

Virginia Avenue, Orlando Street and Brady Street are all one-way streets immediately adjacent to the 
school property line. Outside of the school boundaries, these streets allow two-way traffic. Park Street 
allows two-way traffic adjacent to and outside of the school boundary. The speed limit on all adjacent 
roadways is 15 miles per hour (mph) while school is in session. 

Portable “roll out” signs that state “15 mph, No Passing” and “STOP When Children in Crosswalk”  
are utilized on the adjacent roadways during school hours. Crosswalks are present at all four corners of 
the school property and are located midblock on Orlando Street and on Brady Street.  
Driveways and Parking  
Street parking is available on Orlando, Brady and Park Streets. Parking is not permitted along Virginia 
Avenue. The figure below shows a common red curb 
violation. 

School driveways and parking lots are present on the 
northwest and southeast sides of the school property. The 
west driveway provides access to the school just south of 
Collingwood Street. This is a one-way driveway that serves 
a small parking lot and has exit points along Brady Street. 
This driveway is used for drop-off and pick-up of 1st through 
8th grade students.  

The east driveway provides access to the school at Duron 
Street. This driveway is a one-way driveway that serves the 
teacher and faculty parking lot and has one exit point onto Virginia Avenue. This driveway is used for 
parent parking for drop-off and pick-up of kindergarten grade students. The driveways are highlighted on 
Figure 4. There is offsite parking on the northwest quadrant of the Virginia Avenue/Orlando Street 
intersection. There were no bike racks. 

Red curb violation on Orlando Street 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Florence K-8 June 2018 Page |10 

Crash Analysis 
A review of the most recent 5 years of crash data using ADOT’s crash database showed no pedestrian or 
bicyclist crashes on the streets surrounding the FK8 boundaries.  

 

Figure 4: School Driveway Locations 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Florence K-8 June 2018 Page |11 

Student Drop-Off and Pick-Up Procedures 
The school opens for student arrival at 7:45 am with classes beginning at 8:10 am. Students are dismissed 
from school at 3:20 pm and almost all students have left campus by approximately 3:45 pm.  

1st through 8th grade students can be dropped off and picked up at the west driveway off Orlando Street, 
while kindergarten students must be dropped off and picked up at the Kindergarten playground adjacent 
to Virginia Avenue. This playground can be accessed by parking in the east driveway off Park Street. 
Signage is present at both driveway entrances that states “Parent Drop-Off Entrance”. There are 
crosswalks in both parking lots for students and parents to use 
during drop-off and pick-up operations. 

Buses 
School buses queue along Park Street to drop-off and pick up 
students. The school bus queue is identified by a pull-out lane 
and a chain link fence to separate the buses from adjacent 
traffic along Park Street. The designated bus loading zone is 
approximately 275 feet and is utilized by 5 bus routes that 
service the surrounding area. 

 

Bicycling and Walking Procedures 
Students in 1st through 8th grade have the option to walk or bike to and from school. Walking and biking 
students enter and exit the school at Park Street near the bus queue. Crossing guards are present at the 
following locations: 

Orlando Street & Duron Street 
Orlando Street & Butte Avenue 
Main Street & Aguilar Street 
Main Street & Duron Street 
Park Street & Virginia Avenue 

At school dismissal many students head south to Florence High School for after school sports activities, a 
handful of students visit the Circle K on Main Street and Aguilar Street while the remaining students walk 
or bike home.  

The school does not have a School Crossing Agreement with the Town of Florence. School Crossings on 
local roads should be authorized by the authority having jurisdiction over those roads to ensure the 
crossing location is appropriate, safe, and marked and signed properly.   

Bus loading zone on Park Street 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Florence K-8 June 2018 Page |12 

 Figure 5 is an example Crossing Agreement from ADOT’s Traffic Safety for School Areas Guidelines that 
can be utilized. These Guidelines can be found at: 

  https://www.azdot.gov/docs/business/adot-traffic-safety-for-school-area-guidelines.pdf 

It should be noted that the ADOT Traffic Safety for School Areas Guidelines is fully consistent with the 
MUTCD and the Arizona Supplement to the MUTCD.  

School Safety Procedures 
FK8 personnel give safety talks at the beginning of the school year on getting on and off the bus, when to 
arrive at school, and to follow directions of the crossing guards. Additionally, the FUSD Student Handbook 
lists safety guidelines for walkers, bicyclists, and students being dropped off by parents. The Handbook 
can be accessed at https://www.fusdaz.com/Page/586. The school also provides informal training to the 
crossing guards. 

Vehicle, Pedestrian and Bicycle Counts 
Turning movement counts were conducted by United Civil Group on Wednesday and Thursday, December 
6-7, 2017. Counts were conducted from 7:30-8:30 am and 3:00-4:00 pm to capture the student and parent 
ingress and egress times. The vehicle, pedestrian and bicycle counts were collected. The count values and 
locations are shown on Figure 6 and Figure 7 for the morning (AM) and afternoon (PM) peak times, 
respectively. Appendix B includes all traffic count data. 

  



Safe Routes to School Study 
Florence K-8 June 2018 Page |13 

Figure 5: Sample Crossing Agreement 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Florence K-8 June 2018 Page |14 

 

School 
Site 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Florence K-8 June 2018 Page |15 

Figure 6: AM Turning Movement Counts 

 

School 
Site 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Florence K-8 June 2018 Page |16 

Figure 7: PM Turning Movement Counts 

Student and Parent Surveys 
 

Student Travel Survey 
The school conducted the NCSRTS Student Travel Survey (STS) in their classrooms, the results which 
subsequently were entered into the NCSRTS’s data portal (www.saferoutesdata.org). The STS collects 
‘show of hand’ data from students about their travel modes to and from school. Teachers surveyed 
students to determine how many walk, ride a bicycle, and are driven to school. Twenty-seven classes 
participated in the surveys with the following results: 

15% walk to school 
2% bike/skateboard/scooter to school 
28% ride the school bus 
55% are driven to school (family vehicle/car pool) 

Parent Survey 
School staff also distributed the NCSRTS Parent Survey, which asks parents a variety of questions relating 
to their opinions and feelings about why they allow – or don’t allow – their child(ren) to walk or bike to 
school. Parent Surveys also were distributed by the SRTS Plan team at school/community meetings. 
Surveys were completed by 180 parents; findings from the survey include (numbers may add to more than 
100 percent due to multiple choices selected): 

56 to 61 percent travel to/from school via a family vehicle, 25 to 29 percent by bus, 11 percent by 
walking, and 2 percent by bike 

26 percent said their student had requested permission to walk or bike to/from school in the last year 
4 percent of parents reported that they would not allow their child at any grade level to walk or bike 

to/from school without an adult 
Of those parents who would allow their child to walk or bike to/from school without an adult, the 

majority indicated that by fifth grade or higher is when they would feel comfortable allowing their child 
to walk or bike to/from school without an adult 

The main reasons parents reported that their children do not walk to school are distance (54%) and 
concerns with speed of traffic along their route (33%), amount of traffic along route (33%), and safety of 
intersections and crossings along their route (32%) 
 
“Walkabouts” 

A “walkabout” is a site assessment conducted while walking. They are essential for identifying and 
understanding pedestrian and bicyclist travel/safety challenges. Conducting these assessments allows us 
to craft the right context-sensitive solutions for school areas. The SRTS Plan team conducted a walkabout 
at the school on February 13, 2018, and were very fortunate to have had strong participation from the 
following Stakeholders: 

Town of Florence Administration:  Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst 
Florence K-8 School:    Art Moncibaez, Vice Principal 
Florence K-8 School:    Brandi Turner, Crossing guard 
Florence Unified School District:   Mark Lamas    
Town of Florence Police Department:  Jeff Palmer     
Town of Florence Fire Department:  David Strayer 
Town of Florence Development Services: Chris Salas, Christian Collins, Dan Cisco                                       



Safe Routes to School Study 
Florence K-8 June 2018 Page |17 

We used the Walkability Checklist as our assessment instrument, which asks the users/respondents the 
following questions: 

Did you have room to walk? 
Was it easy to cross streets? 
Did drivers behave well? 
Was it easy to follow safety rules (for you and your 
child)? 
Was your walk pleasant? 

Each question is scored on a 1 to 6 scale, with 1 being 
“awful” and 6 being “excellent.” The average of the 
walkabout team scores was 21.8. This is a score that has no 
units and is used only to compile a snapshot of the opinions 
of the respondents and to calculate a baseline score for 
future comparison. Observations included: 

1) Rolled curbs allow for cars to park on sidewalk 
2) Several electric poles in the middle of the sidewalk 
3) Steep curb cuts along sidewalks in some areas 
4) Discussed redirecting drop-off traffic on Orlando Street through the parking lot across the street 

from the school 
5) Need to enforce no parking along the red curb on Orlando Street 
6) Remove pull-in parking on Orlando Street 
7) Change crosswalks from 4 way to 2 way 
8) General lack of signage around school 
9) The school zone may be too long on Park Street 

10) Possibly move or add a crosswalk on Park Street 

Appendix D has the individual Walkability Checklist forms. 

Site Observations 
Observations and discussions with crossing guards indicated: 

1) Per crossing guards: 
a. School administration expresses concern with the safety of students who cross the 

street at the bus loading zone on Park Street 
b. Some parents and students don’t use the marked crosswalks 
c. Crossing guards perceive speeding to be an issue 
d. The change to one-way flow seems to have improved safety 
e. An extra crossing guard is used during PM pick-up on Virginia Avenue for kindergarten 

pick-up 
f. Some vehicles turning left from Duron Street onto Orlando Street while students are 

using the Orlando Street crosswalks 
g. School roll-out signs are left out during school hours 
h. More kids walk home than walk to school  

Florence K8 “Walkabout” team 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Florence K-8 June 2018 Page |18 

i. More kids walk home on half days than normal days 
j. Most kids come to school from the north side of school (no bus zone). Kids that live 

south of school either bus or walk down Orlando or other (non-arterial) streets. 
k. Many kids walk to high school after school for sports 
l. Many kids walk to Circle K after school 
m. Kids exit school from the back (towards buses) 
n. Most crossing guards were not wearing their safety vests 

2) The current crosswalk on Main is very close to the Main/Butte intersection, which has a signal 
and crosswalk. The walkabout group suggested that his crosswalk be moved south to near 
Duron Street.  Was suggested that this will also extend the school zone which can double as a 
traffic calming measure. 

a. At existing crosswalk, cars can sometimes backup (north) through intersection at Butte 
as kids cross the street. Moving the crosswalk to Duron can help this. 

b. The two existing Circle K gas stations will be closing. One Circle K is being built at 
Collingwood and Main, and moving the crosswalk will put it closer to the pedestrian 
activity that will be generated by this new Circle K location. 

3) Approximately 7-8 kids cross at Florence Heights Drive near the school bus lot 
a. Busy intersection with people often speeding 
b. Many semi-trucks use this route 
c. No sidewalks or bike lanes; inadequate crosswalks 

4) 4-foot sidewalks in the residential areas 
5) Curb ramps not compliant with PROWAG 
6) Very little lighting on the residential streets 
7) Barking dogs in yards, some large and some small 
8) Nuisance drainage from adjacent properties and alleys is washing debris onto sidewalk. Could be 

an issue for bikes or scooters causing them to ride in the street. 
9) Stop sign very faded at Duron / Park 
10) Many signs have multiple regulatory signs on the same post (e.g., STOP and Lane Assignment 

signs) 
11) Several of the streets appeared to have recently been slurry sealed; however, the yellow 

crosswalk striping was not popping out. May be due to the oils soaking into the paint 
12) Crossing guard has kids walk behind her when entering intersection 
13) Some kids observed crossing Butte not at crosswalk. Mostly cross at Park Street 
14) Kids observed walking in street on Orlando/crossing Orlando slowly 
15) Car on Butte observed trying to pass stopped queue when crossing guard in crosswalk 

Signs that are not MUTCD compliant and curb ramps that are not ADA compliant can create both safety 
concerns for road users and liability concerns for the Town. Examples of signs that do not meet MUTCD 
guidance include STOP signs that were faded and may not meet retroreflectivity standards, STOP signs 
that do not meet the minimum 30-inch size, and multiple signs requiring separate decisions located on 
the same post. Many of the curb ramps do not have detectable warnings or landings, and some marked 
crosswalks lack curb ramps. The following photos show some of these issues. 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Florence K-8 June 2018 Page |19 

              

     

 

 

Non-MUTCD Compliant Signs and No Curb Ramp at Crosswalk 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Florence K-8 June 2018 Page |20 

Walking and Bicycling Map 
A Walking and Bicycling route map was developed for Florence K-8 based on observations from this 
study. This map is provided in Appendix E of this report. 

Community Meetings 

The SRTS Plan team participated in a 
school/community meeting on February 28, 2018 
at its Bingo for Books event. The Team provided 
general information to parents and school staff 
about the SRTS study and distributed Parent 
Surveys. An aerial map was used for discussion 
purposes.  The photo shows a group of students 
engaged in identifying their walking/biking 
routes. The flyer highlighting a Safe Schools 
presentation was distributed by the school to 
parents. 

 

Action Plan 
The 6Es 
The recommendations contained in this Plan follow the “6E’s” of traffic safety: education, enforcement, 
engineering, encouragement, evaluation, and equity. The 
6E’s are the cornerstone of the SRTS) Program and are 
endorsed by the National Center for Safe Routes To School 
(NCSRTS; www.saferoutesinfo.org), which is a division of 
the University of North Carolina Highway Safety Research 
Center. The goal of the Plan is to recommend proven 
solutions that make sense for the community and for the 
schools. 

Education: Teach students and community members 
about walking and biking safely. Education can happen 

Students at Florence K8 
‘Bingo for Books’ 

MAG Crossing Guard Training 

Flyer Announcing Safe Schools Presentation



Safe Routes to School Study 
Florence K-8 June 2018 Page |21 

through in-school curriculum, bike/pedestrian safety assemblies, newsletter blurbs, tip sheets, and 
send-home flyers. 

Encouragement: Get students and parents excited about 
walking and biking by hosting special events, walking 
school buses and bike trains, holding schoolwide 
competitions, or celebrating walking and biking with 
student art or other projects. 

Enforcement: Reduce negative behaviors such as speeding, 
double parking, or disobeying traffic signals by working 
with local law enforcement. Officers can attend walking 
events to monitor speeding activity or to build 
relationships with school children and neighbors. 

Engineering: Improve the physical walking and biking environment. Schools can work with local 
government agencies to determine if infrastructure 
improvements are needed to encourage students to walk or 
bike to school safely. 

Evaluation: Check to see if your strategies are working! Schools 
and local governments can record walking and biking rates, 
parent concerns, and traffic data to evaluate the success of a 
SRTS program. Evaluation activities can help set goals and 
establish baseline data for planning projects. 

Equity: Ensuring that SRTS initiatives are benefiting all 
demographic groups, with particular attention to ensuring 
safe, healthy, and fair outcomes for students with disabilities, 
low-income students, Native American students, students of color, female students, LGBTQ students, 
students whose families speak a language other than English, homeless students, and other demographic 
groups. MAG Crossing Guard training materials are available in English and Spanish, helping to address 
the Equity E. 

Action Plan, Implementation Steps and Evaluation 
Table 1 provides a SRTS Action Plan for Florence K-8 School that identifies the key issues and 
recommended SRTS strategies to address the issue. The Action Plan can be used by the school’s SRTS 
Stakeholders Team to identify strategies that the different partners can pursue to improve the safety of 
students walking and biking to/from the school. For each strategy, specific action steps are identified as 
well as the partner from the SRTS Stakeholders Team who would be responsible for leading 
implementation of the strategy, a potential funding source (if applicable), an implementation timeframe, 
and a method to evaluate the progress and effectiveness of the recommended strategy or set of 
strategies. Each issue has a recommended strategy or set of strategies that consider approaches 
related to education, encouragement, enforcement, or engineering; some strategies consider multiple 
approaches. 
 
 
 

A “Golden Sneaker” Trophy 

Bike Rodeo 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Florence K-8 June 2018 Page |22 

Strategy Implementation Lead 
The strategy implementation lead who is identified in the Action Plan is often dictated by the type of 
strategy being implemented and the location of the recommended strategy. Anything related to 
infrastructure on a public roadway around the school is the responsibility of the Town of Florence. Any 
infrastructure on school property, including school buses and associated infrastructure, is the 
responsibility of FUSD. Any school-specific procedures, policies and staff arrangements are the 
responsibility of the school.  
 
Implementation Timeframe 
The implementation timeframe of each strategy was identified based on the level of effort and/or funding 
that would be required to implement the strategy. Strategies identified as near-term 
are those that require minimal effort to implement. Strategies identified for long-term implementation 
are those that should go through a formal evaluation and planning process to implement and may require 
input from a larger stakeholder group than those identified in the SRTS Stakeholders Team; any strategy 
requiring a significant infrastructure investment is identified for long-term implementation. 
 
Evaluation 
The ‘Evaluation’ column in the Action Plan identifies a method that the SRTS Stakeholders Team can 
pursue to evaluate the progress and effectiveness of the recommended strategy or set of strategies. As 
noted in the implementation timeframe discussion, it will be important to evaluate the effectiveness of 
some strategies to know whether additional or more drastic strategies need to be pursued to address the 
issue. 
 
Two key tools to support evaluation are the Parent Survey and Student Travel Tally that were conducted 
during this study. These tools can help quantitatively track progress of SRTS efforts at the school by 
tracking actual student walking and biking numbers as well as parent perceptions of walking and biking 
over time. Ideally, as more SRTS strategies are implemented and a SRTS culture is built at the school, the 
Student Travel Tally should reflect positive results with a greater percentage of students reporting walking 
and biking to/from school. Similarly, positive results could be reflected in the Parent Survey by having 
fewer parents indicate that they would never be comfortable letting their students walk or bike to/from 
school and having fewer parents indicate concerns with safety of walking and biking on the survey. As 
such, the SRTS team should consider conducting these two surveys annually as strategies from the SRTS 
Action Plan are implemented. 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Florence K-8 June 2018 Page |23 

Table 1: Florence K-8 SRTS Action Plan 

Is
su

e 
# 

Issue 

Strategies 

Tasks Lead 
Potential 

Funding Source 

  

Evaluation Recommended Strategy 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 

En
co

ur
ag

em
en

t 

En
fo

rc
em

en
t 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

Timeframe 

1 

Crossing guards not properly 
outfitted; Observed improper 
crossing operations. 

Provide safety vests and crossing guard training. x       Standardize crossing guard training and utilize MAG 
training resources. The MAG training and material 
is provided at no charge to FUSD.  However, costs 
for travel, etc. would need to be programmed by 
FUSD. 

FUSD FUSD Near-term Observe guards for 
continued adherence to 
proper crossing guard 
tasks and rules. 

2 

Many students have to cross a 
multilane, high traffic volume 
state route (SR 79) at either 
Butte Avenue or Main Street 
going to and from school. 
Some students walk to the 
high school for after school 
activities (athletics), 
necessitating a crossing of 
Main Street in the afternoon. 

Consider enhanced pedestrian crossings on Butte 
Avenue and on Main Street. 

      x Coordinate with ADOT to evaluate the need for 
installation of:                                                                      
Raised medians with rectangular rapid flash 
beacons on Butte Avenue between Elizabeth Street 
and Park Street;                                                                   
Raised medians with rectangular rapid flash 
beacons on Main Street between Aguilar Street 
and Duron Street ;                                                              
Pedestrian Hybrid Beacon (“HAWK”) on South Main 
Street at Stewart Street;                                                    
Pedestrian Hybrid Beacon on Butte Avenue at Park 
Street.  

ADOT ADOT 
MAG DA 
MAG TA 

Town 

Long-term Observe crossings for 
motorist yielding 
compliance. 

3 

The existing crosswalk at Main 
Street and Aguilar Street is 
located less than 300 feet 
from the Main Street & Butte 
Avenue signalized 
intersection. Vehicle queues 
sometimes extend into the 
signalized intersection.  

Consider relocating this crosswalk south to Duron 
Street to better service the students that walk south. 
Relocating this crosswalk will have the added benefit of 
extending the school zone on Main Street, which will 
act as a traffic calming measure. 

      x Coordinate with ADOT to stripe a new crosswalk on 
Main Street at Duron Street; coordinate with FUSD 
to fund new curb cut at new crosswalk location 
using Adjacent Ways account. 

Town/ADOT ADOT/FUSD Near-term Observe crossing and 
approaches for reduced 
queues and improved 
behavior. 

4 

Approximately 8 students 
cross Florence Heights Drive 
near Desoto; this road is 
heavily used by large trucks 
and has high speeds. 

Pedestrian facilities including sidewalks, crosswalks and 
updated pedestrian signage should be considered for 
installation along Florence Heights Drive in the vicinity 
of the school bus lot and the intersection with Desoto.  

      x Evaluate the Florence Heights Drive corridor near 
the school bus lot and Desoto for student 
pedestrian needs (sidewalks, crosswalks, and 
signage). 

Town Town 
MAG DA 

Long-term Use annual Student Tally 
to measure increase in 
walking and biking to 
school from this area. 

5 

Some of the yellow crosswalks 
adjacent to the school are 
faded and/or covered with 
crack sealant. 

Refresh crosswalk markings; annual program to refresh 
all yellow school crosswalks. 

      x Crosswalks should be restriped with reflective paint 
to increase conspicuity to passing vehicles. 

Town Town Near-term Observe for motorist 
yielding compliance at 
crosswalks. 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Florence K-8 June 2018 Page |24 

Is
su

e 
# 

Issue 

Strategies 

Tasks Lead 
Potential 

Funding Source 

  

Evaluation Recommended Strategy 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 

En
co

ur
ag

em
en

t 

En
fo

rc
em

en
t 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

Timeframe 

6 

Some signage is faded, worn 
or is not MUTCD compliant. 

An inventory of signs on the streets adjacent to the 
school should be taken to determine all signs that need 
to be replaced. 

      x Conduct sign inventory and replace signs as 
needed. 

Town Town Long-term Conduct periodic reviews 
of sign legibility and 
MUTCD compliance. 

7 

Lack of ADA compliant curb 
ramps in the school vicinity - 
many lacked detectable 
warnings and landings. 

Inventory curb ramps in the school vicinity to 
determine ADA needs. 

      x Install/improve ADA curb ramps as needed on 
Orlando Street and Park Street between Butte 
Avenue and Virginia Avenue, and Brady Street 
between Orlando Street and Park Street. 

Town Town 
FUSD 

Long-term Use annual Student Tally 
to measure increase in 
walking and biking to 
school. 

8 

Orlando Street: Discussed 
redirecting drop-off traffic on 
Orlando Street through the 
parking lot across the street 
from the school; the need to 
enforce no parking along the 
red curb; and change/remove 
pull-in parking. 

Reconfigure parking on Orlando.       x Remove on-street parking and install back-in angle 
parking in the lot; stripe a new crosswalk across 
Orlando from the parking lot. 

FUSD FUSD Long-term Observe for reduction in 
undesirable behaviors 
inschool parking lot 
duringdrop-off and pick-
up. 

9 

No facilities for bicyclists. Evaluate Orlando Street and Park Street for bike lane 
installation. The presence of bike lanes also provides a 
safety buffer for people on sidewalks. 

      x Install bike lane striping (6-foot lanes) on Orlando 
Street and Park Street between Butte Avenue and 
Virginia Avenue.  

Town Town 
MAG TA 

Long-term Use annual Student Tally 
to measure increase in 
biking to school. 

10 

No bike racks for bicyclists. Install bike racks.     x Install bike racks at a suitable location on campus. FUSD FUSD Near-term Use annual Student Tally 
to measure increase in 
biking to school. 

11 

Speeding in school zones. Volunteer or off-duty police officers can be stationed in 
police cars at the crosswalks along Butte Avenue and 
Main Street. This can be a traffic calming measure as 
vehicles tend to slow down when they see a police car. 
The officer can also be utilized to enforce traffic laws 
through warnings and tickets.  

    x   Partner with Town Police to provide periodic speed 
enforcement, especially on Orlando Street. 

Town GOHS Near-term Observe for reduction in 
speeds in school zones. 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Florence K-8 June 2018 Page |25 

Is
su

e 
# 

Issue 

Strategies 

Tasks Lead 
Potential 

Funding Source 

  

Evaluation Recommended Strategy 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 

En
co

ur
ag

em
en

t 

En
fo

rc
em

en
t 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

Timeframe 
Utilize the Town's speed feedback trailer by 
periodically locating it on the approaches to the school 
zones. 

      x Install dynamic speed feedback signs on Main 
Street and Butte Avenue on the approaches to the 
school crosswalks that will display the drivers’ 
speeds as they approach the signs.  

Town 
ADOT 

Town 
MAG SRTS 
MAG TA 

Long-term 

Utilize the Town's speed feedback trailer by 
periodically locating it on the approaches to the school 
zones. 

    x   Coordinate with Town Police to utilize the speed 
feedback trailer. 

Town N/A Near-term 

12 

Encourage students to walk 
and bike to school. 

Provide incentives to walk/bike. x x     Organize a semi-annual walk/bike to school day 
where there is a celebration at the start of school 
(may include others in celebration such as elected 
officials, police, firefighters, etc.).  

School Town 
MAG SRTS  

Near-term Use annual Student Tally 
to measure increase in 
walking and biking to 
school. 

  x     Initiate a “Golden Sneaker” contest, with a trophy 
given to the classroom having the highest 
participation in walking/biking to school over a 
two-week period. 

School School 
MAG SRTS 

 

Long-term 

x x     
Conduct bicycle rodeos to teach bicyclists (and 
pedestrians) valuable safety skills; they can be 
combined with school fundraising events, too. 

Town 
FUSD 

MAG SRTS Long-term 

        Give out red "Gopher Paws" for safe crossing 
behaviors. 

School FUSD Near-term 

Organize ways to improve the perception of walking 
and biking safety and security. 

x x     Initiate a walking school bus or bike train program 
where groups of students who live in the same 
area are set up with a parent or an older student 
who will lead the group to and from school each 
day. 

Town 
School 

MAG SRTS Near-term 

x x     Host a SRTS National Course workshop: These 
daylong SRTS workshops are a good opportunity to 
educate school staff, district administrators, 
government officials, and the media about the 
benefits of pedestrian and bicycle safety. Partner 
with other nearby communities. 

Town 
FUSD  

MAG SRTS Long-term 

 
 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Florence K-8 June 2018 Page |26 

Funding Sources and Opportunities 
Some of the strategies – mainly those identified as education, encouragement and enforcement strategies 
– do not necessarily require funding to implement, as they are largely strategies related to processes, 
police coordination, and partnerships; however, some of the strategies, including most of the engineering 
strategies, will likely require some source of funding to implement. 
 
There are a variety of potential funding sources to support the implementation of the strategies identified 
in the Action Plan. Similar to the identification of the strategy lead for implementation, the identification 
of the potential funding source is largely driven by the location of the strategy; for example, any strategy 
involving a public roadway will have to be pursued by the Town of Florence while any strategy involving 
infrastructure within school property will be the responsibility of FUSD. Based on the identification of the 
‘Potential Funding Source’ in the Action Plan (Table 1), the following funding sources may be available and 
can be pursued by the SRTS Stakeholder Team partners when applicable. 
 
State 
Arizona Governor’s Office of Highway Safety (GOHS) 
The Arizona GOHS is a cabinet agency that focuses on highway safety issues and provides leadership by 
developing, promoting, and coordinating programs; influencing public and private policy; and increasing 
public awareness of highway safety. AGOHS grant funding is based on the Federal fiscal year calendar 
which begins on October 1, 2018and ends on September 30, 2019. Grants for the 2019 Federal fiscal year 
are awarded for a one-year period. Applying for a GOHS grant begins with submission of a proposal and 
signed cover letter. Grant applications are available for download in PDF format on the GOHS website 
beginning January 22, 2018. There are eight categories for grant programs funded by GOHS; of those eight, 
two of them may be relevant for SRTS – Pedestrian and Bicycle Safety (PS) and Police Traffic 
Services/Speed Control (PTS). The PS category funds traffic safety programs such as bicycle rodeos for 
schools or other programs that are designed to increase safety awareness and skills among pedestrians 
and bicyclists. There is also funding for bicycle helmets and helmet fittings for children in need. Programs 
funded in this category are required to include both education and enforcement elements to increase 
safety awareness and address driver behavior. The PTS program focuses on enforcing and encouraging 
compliance with traffic laws through selected enforcement and education. The grant funding can be used 
to pay overtime for officers and/or equipment (speed measuring devices, computers, and motorcycles) 
to conducted enhanced enforcement for a particular issue. 
 
Regional 
Design Assistance Program (MAG DA) 
Infrastructure projects related to bike, pedestrian, and shared-use facilities can be funded through the 
MAG Design Assistance Program. This program was initiated to encourage the development of pedestrian 
and bike facilities and stimulate integration of facilities into the planning and design of all types of projects. 
Projects using design assistance funds focus on developing preliminary scoping documents for a bike 
and/or pedestrian facility project. A request for projects for Design Assistance funding is released by MAG 
in May each year. Types of projects that are eligible for Design Assistance funding include: projects that 
facilitate safe crossings and access to bike/pedestrian facilities, bike and pedestrian access to transit, and 
bike and pedestrian facility construction and improvements (sidewalk improvements, bike lanes and 
shoulders, safety improvements, and signing, marking and wayfinding). 
 
 
 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Florence K-8 June 2018 Page |27 

Transportation Alternatives Funding (MAG TA)  
MAG receives an annual allocation of TA funding from ADOT that can be used to support SRTS projects. 
The Town of Florence, as a MAG member agency, is eligible to submit applications for this funding in 
partnerships with schools or school districts to use for infrastructure improvements that promote and 
encourage walking and biking to school as well as for non-infrastructure needs such as educational 
materials, trainings, data gathering and analysis, SRTS program support and others. The call for projects 
for TA funding occurs each August in conjunction with the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 
Modal programming process. 
 
Non-Infrastructure SRTS/Support Activity Projects (MAG SRTS) 
MAG identifies funding set-aside (equal to nine percent of the total TA funding) to fund qualifying SRTS 
projects that would involve ONLY non-infrastructure projects, or ‘Support Activity Projects.’ Support 
Activity Projects are those considered to fund specific activities with the goal of encouragement, 
education, enforcement and evaluation activities. Examples include: yellow school crossing roll-out signs, 
crossing guard safety apparel, modest volunteer incentives for encouragement activities, bike helmets, 
and agency police staff overtime to assist with SRTS activities, among others. 
 
Crossing Guard Training Workshops 
Crossing Guard Training Workshops provide basic education and training to school crossing guards, thus 
meeting a basic but essential step to ensure that crossing guards do not compromise their own safety nor 
that of K-8 school children while performing their duties. All K-8 schools may utilize this workshop to train 
their school crossing guards free of charge. Workshops are typically held one to two weeks before the 
start of the school year; in 2018, the workshop will be held in Phoenix on July 26, Peoria on July 31 and 
Mesa on August 2.  More information on the training workshops can be found at http://srts.azmag.gov. 
 
Local 
Town of Florence Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 
The Town CIP can be leveraged to support the implementation of some of the SRTS strategies identified 
that involve Town-owned roadways. The Town has an annual budgeting process that identifies the 
departmental budgets and the programs and projects that will be funded for the next fiscal year. The CIP 
may be a potential source of funding for capital projects on public roadways including intersections, 
sidewalks or ramps, striping (including crosswalks) and signage. 
 
Non-Transportation Funding 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) Grant 
The CDC’s Office of Financial Resources awards and administers grants and cooperative agreements to 
state and local governments, domestic non-profits/educational institutions, and domestic for-profit 
groups with projects that support the mission of promoting health and quality of life by preventing and 
controlling disease, injury, and disability. Grants and cooperative agreements provide the means to 
transfer money, technical assistance, and expertise to partners in exchange for their contributions to 
federal public health goals and objectives. 
 
  



Safe Routes to School Study 
Florence K-8 June 2018 Page |28 

Appendices 
 

Appendix A – Kickoff Meeting Agenda and Minutes 

Appendix B – Traffic, Pedestrian and Bicycle Count Data 

Appendix C – Student and Parent Survey Sheets 

Appendix D – Walkability Checklist Results 

Appendix E - Walking and Biking Map 



Appendix A – Kickoff Meeting Agenda and Minutes 



 
 

AGENDA 
 

Safe Routes to School Study 
For 

Florence K-8 & Anthem K-8 Elementary Schools, Florence Unified School District 
In the Town of Florence 

MAG Task Order No. 0735-0I.SR1803 
 

Subject: SRTS Study Kick-Off Meeting 
Location: Florence Community Center, 778 N. Main Street, Ruggles 2 Room 
Date/Time: Tuesday December 19, 2017, 10:00 to 11:30 A.M. 

 

 
1. Introductions      Jennifer Evans, Town of Florence 

2. Purpose of the Study     Mike Blankenship, Greenlight TE 

3. SRTS – What it is and why it is important  Mike Blankenship, Greenlight TE 

4. Roles and Responsibilities     Margaret Boone, MAG Project Manager  

5. Key Action Items and Events   Mike Blankenship 
Data Collection 
Surveys 
Existing Information (see attachment) 
Observations 
Walking/Biking Assessment 
Neighborhood Meeting 
Document Review 
Comment Resolution Meeting 

6. Stakeholder Discussion    Principal, School Staff, District Staff, 
Parents, Town 

7. Next Steps      Mike Blankenship 

8. Questions      All 

 

 

  



 
 

Stakeholders Group Contact Information 
 

Safe Routes to School Study 
For 

Florence K-8 & Anthem K-8, Florence Unified School District 
In the Town of Florence 

 
Town of Florence 

Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst; Town of Florence, Stakeholder Team Leader 
jennifer.evans@florenceaz.gov, 520-868-7549 
Sgt. Renee Klix, Florence Police Department renee.klix@florenceaz.gov 
 

Florence Unified 
Mark Lamas, Director of Transportation and Support Services, Florence Unified School District 
mlamas@fusdaz.org 
 

Florence K-8 
Art Moncibaez, Florence K-8 Administration, School Team Leader amoncibaez@fusdaz.org 
Deanna Potter, Florence K-8 Principal dpotter@fusdaz.org 
Betty Stoupa, Florence K-8 Crossing Guard 
 

Anthem K-8 
Elwin Longnion, Anthem K-8 Administration, School Team Leader elongnion@fusdaz.org 
Carla Foss, Anthem K-8 Crossing Guard 

Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG) 
Margaret Boone, PE, ITS & Safety Engineer mboone@azmag.gov, 602-452-6300 

MAG Consultant: Wood, Greenlight Traffic Engineering & United Civil Group 
Mike Blankenship, PE mikeb@greenlightte.com, 623-308-6523 
Scott Kelly, PE, PTOE scottk@greenlightte.com, 602-499-1339 
Brian Fellows brian.fellows@woodplc.com, 602-502-2904 
Sarah Simpson, PE sarah@unitedcivilgroup.com, 602-643-0028 
 

  



 
 

Attachment  
Task 5a: Compile Existing Information  

 
Safe Routes to School Study 

For 

Florence K-8 & Anthem K-8 Elementary Schools, Florence Unified School District  

In the Town of Florence 

Existing School policies and programs related to SRTS (School) 
School site plans (District) 
School arrival and dismissal times (School, District) 
Locations of building entrances and exits (School) for; pick-up and drop-off, students walking, 
and students biking (bike rack locations)  
Walking/Bicycling boundaries (District, School) 
Number of buses picking up or dropping off students and locations of loading/unloading zones 
Number, locations, and duration of school crossing guards (School) 
Existing School Crossing Agreement (Town Traffic Engineer, School District) 
Established parking regulations and pick-up/drop-off procedures (Town, School Administration) 
Pedestrian/vehicle and bicycle/vehicle crash data, if available (Town)  
 

  



   

Attachment  
Schedule 

 
Safe Routes to School Study 

For 
Anthem K-8 and Florence K-8, Florence Unified School District 

In the Town of Florence 

 
 
d – Deliver data
M – Meeting
P – Progress Report
R – Review by Team
D – Draft document, memo, or meeting materials
F – Final SRTS Study Report document 

Anticipated NTP: (11/20/2017)

School Breaks/Starts/Ends
Task 1: Project Management & Progress Reports P P P P P
Task 2: Establish Stakeholders Group, Kick-off meeting

Task 2a: Establish SRTS Stakeholders Group

Task 2b: Conduct SRTS Study Kick-off Meetings (#1) M
Task 3: Data Collection d
Task 4: Surveys & SRTS Tools D D
Task 5: Assessment of Issues and Barriers - Existing Conditions Memo D R R

Task 5a: Compile Existing Information D
Task 5b: Study Area Inventories D
Task 5c: Pick-up and Drop-off Site Observations

Task 6: Walking/Biking Assessment (#2) & Meeting #3 D
Task 6a: Walking/Biking Assessment (Meeting #2) M D
Task 6b: Neighborhood Meeting (#3) M

Task 7: Develop Draft Study and Route Maps D
Task 8: Draft SRTS Study Review and Meeting #4 R R R M
Task 9: Finalize SRTS Study Document F

Months From NTP
Apr-18Feb-18Nov-17 Dec-17 Jan-18 Mar-18



   

Safe Routes to School Study for
Florence K-8 & Anthem K-8 Elementary Schools in the Town of Florence

MAG Task Order No. 0735-0I.SR1803

Kickoff Meeting Minutes

Date of Meeting Tuesday December 19, 2017 – 10:00 to 11:30 AM

Location Florence Community Center, Ruggles 2 Room 
778 N. Main Street, Florence

Subject Project Kickoff Meeting

Participants Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG) – Margaret Boone 
Town of Florence – Jennifer Evans
Florence K-8 School – Art Moncibaez
Greenlight Traffic Engineering – Mike Blankenship, Scott Kelley

Date of Issue December 21, 2017

The purpose of the meeting was to kickoff this Safe Routes to School (SRTS) project by reviewing 
scope of work and preliminary schedule. 

1. Purpose of the SRTS Study 
The overall goal of this study is to develop recommendations to improve the safety of 
students walking and biking to school. Generally, when safety is improved, more students 
will walk and bike to school, which has several benefits: 

o Improved children’s health
o Less traffic congestion near the school
o Improved air quality

Recommendations can include improvements in the public right-of-way by the Town, 
school site improvements, and recommendations for parents. Recommendations from 
SRTS studies can be used in applying for funding from various sources, including MAG’s 
SRTS program. This funding can be used for infrastructure projects such as school 
crosswalks and roll-out signs, and non-infrastructure projects like crossing guard safety 
vests and stop paddles.

2. Roles and Responsibilities                         
Margaret Boone will serve as the MAG project manager, guiding the consultant team 
which includes:
o Greenlight Traffic Engineering
o Amec Foster Wheeler
o United Civil Group



 
 

While the study is being led by MAG and its consultant team, it is ultimately a Town and 
Schools project. As such, an objective of the study is to foster communication and 
coordination between the Town and Schools. Communications to and from the
Consultant should be copied to Margaret Boone at MAG. The Town and Schools are the 
project champions that will be responsible for implementing recommendations, so it is 
crucial that these key stakeholders stay involved during the 5-month study to provide 
input. The following stakeholders have been identified; we would like the names of 
additional stakeholders that should be included in this process, including key parent 
champions:

Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst; Town of Florence, Stakeholder Team Leader 
Jess Knudson, Assistant Town Manager, Town of Florence (will be replaced)
Sgt. Renee Klix, Florence Police Department 

Mark Lamas, Director of Transportation and Support Services, FUSD 
Art Moncibaez, Florence K-8 Administration, School Team Leader
Betty Stoupa, Florence K-8 Crossing Guard
Elwin Longnion, Anthem K-8 Administration, School Team Leader (will be replaced)
Carla Foss, Anthem K-8 Crossing Guard
Town Public Works contact (to be determined)

Jennifer Evans from the Town will contact the school and district stakeholders not in
attendance to provide information discussed at the kick off meeting.

5. Key Action Items and Events                        
a. Data Collection

UCG has collected video for AM and PM counts of vehicles, pedestrians, and 
bicyclists at locations highlighted on the attached maps. This data is being analyzed 
and summarized. Mark indicated crossing concerns at the Main Street/Aguilar Street 
intersection where no crossing guards are stationed. 

b. Surveys
Student tally sheets will be distributed to the schools for teachers to ask students 
questions and record the numbers on a Tuesday, Wednesday, and/or Thursday. A 
Parent Survey will be distributed to the schools to be sent home with students, 
asking for 1 survey per family to be completed, either online or using the printed 
copy. Surveys are to be completed by the end of February (see attached Surveys). 
Notification and distribution options include the weekly email blast that the schools 
send, and at parent-teacher conferences in February.

c. Existing Information - This information has been requested to be delivered to the 
Consultant team via e-mail, copied to the MAG project manager no later than 
January 12, 2018
Information that needs to be captured includes:

Existing School policies and programs related to SRTS (School)
School site plans (District)
School arrival and dismissal times (School, District)
Locations of building entrances and exits (School) for; pick-up and drop-off, 
students walking, and students biking (bike rack locations) 
Walking/Bicycling boundaries (District, School)



 
 

Number of buses picking up or dropping off students and locations of 
loading/unloading zones
Number, locations, and duration of school crossing guards (School)
Existing School Crossing Agreement (Town Traffic Engineer, School District)
Established parking regulations and pick-up/drop-off procedures (Town, School 
Administration)
Pedestrian/vehicle and bicycle/vehicle crash data, if available (Town Police may 
have crash reports) 

Jennifer will communicate these needs to Mark Lamas, and Greenlight and/or MAG 
will follow-up with Mark to discuss these needs.

d. Observations
Greenlight will have a team observing during the school site arrivals and departures. 
The team will call the schools 1 day before the scheduled observations to make them 
aware of our presence, and the team will check-in at the schools on the observation 
days. Tentative schedule is the last week of January/first week of February.

e. Walking/Biking Assessment
The consultant team will assess transportation routes within the study boundary of 
the schools to assess the walking and biking friendliness. Parents are welcomed and 
encouraged to join the team to provide input on safety concerns. 1 mile is typically 
the walking/biking boundary around the schools, but this can vary due to other 
barriers (arterials, highways, other). Tentative schedule is February into the first 
week of March. 

f. Neighborhood Meeting
The consultant team will present findings from the school site observations and the 
walking/biking assessments to parents, school staff, and the Town to solicit 
feedback. This meeting is typically held at the schools during evening hours. 
Tentative schedule is early March.

g. Document Development 
A draft study report will be developed to identify strategies to increase the number of 
children who walk and bike to school. The report will include a school walking and 
biking route map. Stakeholders will review the report for adjustments and revisions.

h. Comment Resolution Meeting
This meeting of the study team will address how to resolve issues voiced by 
stakeholders, parents, etc. to finalize the study document. Tentative schedule is to 
hold this meeting on an early release day (Wednesday, April 11 at 2:00 PM), with the 
Town, School Principals, and other key School staff participating. 

6. Additional Discussion                                
Margaret highlighted the MAG school crossing guard training and resources. School 
children start arriving at campus at 7:15 AM, even though the campus does not open until 
7:50 AM. There is a before and after school program that parents are not utilizing, possibly 
due to cost. School lets out at 3:20 PM, with kindergarten and 1st grade bus dismissal is at 
3:10 PM. Buses arrive at 7:45 AM, even though campus doesn’t open until 7:50 AM. The 
bus area is not enclosed, which creates safety concerns.



 
 

Appendix B – Traffic, Pedestrian and Bicycle Count Data 



  

 

Lt Lt\T Thru T/Rt Rt Lt/T/Rt Lt/Rt

Northbound 1 1
Southbound 1

Location: Main Street Eastbound 1
and School Access Westbound

Intersection Configuration: Unsignalized

####
13 179 0 340

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes
0 7:30 AM 2 79 0 0 0 0 40 2 2 0 4 0 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 130

24 0 7:45 AM 4 110 0 0 0 0 48 3 2 0 5 0 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 171

18 0 8:00 AM 3 80 0 0 0 0 53 4 0 0 2 0 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 144
0 0 8:15 AM 2 53 0 0 0 0 38 4 0 0 7 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 105 550
7 Peak Hour Total 11 322 0 0 0 0 179 13 4 0 18 0 7 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 550

N
186 11 322 0

####
25 349 0 248

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes
0 3:00 PM 3 62 0 0 0 0 85 4 0 0 5 0 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 169

48 0 3:15 PM 3 72 0 0 0 0 92 2 1 0 6 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 180

21 0 3:30 PM 4 50 0 5 0 0 87 13 0 0 6 0 7 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 167
0 2 3:45 PM 13 43 2 0 0 0 85 6 1 0 4 0 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 162 678

31 Peak Hour Total 23 227 2 5 0 0 349 25 2 0 21 0 31 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 678

N
380 23 227 2

Peak 
Hour

Total Peak 
Hour

Northbound
South 

Crosswalk Southbound
North 

Crosswalk Eastbound
West 

Crosswalk Westbound
East 

Crosswalk

East 
Crosswalk

Total

Main Street Main Street School Access School Access

Northbound
South 

Crosswalk Southbound
3:00 PM

678

252

52

374

0

North 
Crosswalk Eastbound

West 
Crosswalk Westbound

25

192

0

550

333

Turning Movement Count

December 7, 2017 (Thursday)
Speed Limit

35
35

Project No: TC17070

7:30 AM

25

Main Street Main Street School Access School Access



Lt Lt\T Thru T/Rt Rt Lt/T/Rt Lt/Rt

Northbound 1 1
Southbound 1

Location: Orlando Street Eastbound 1
and Brady Street Westbound

Intersection Configuration: Unsignalized

####
1 0 4 64

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes
0 7:30 AM 0 5 2 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10

8 0 7:45 AM 2 17 7 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 3 0 2 0 0 0 0 3 2 30

1 0 8:00 AM 4 31 7 4 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 46
8 32 8:15 AM 1 10 4 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 18 104
0 Peak Hour Total 7 63 20 6 0 4 0 1 0 0 1 8 0 2 0 0 0 0 3 2 104

N
0 7 63 20

####
1 0 1 27

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes
0 3:00 PM 0 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 4 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9

6 0 3:15 PM 5 13 5 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 12 0 25

5 0 3:30 PM 0 4 1 2 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 3 6
4 12 3:45 PM 0 3 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 45
0 Peak Hour Total 5 22 7 7 0 1 0 1 1 0 5 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 17 3 45

N
0 5 22 7

7:30 AM

25

Orlando Street Orlando Street Brady Street Brady Street

Turning Movement Count

December 6, 2017 (Wednesday)
Speed Limit

25/15
25

Project No: TC17070

9

5

0

104

90

0

North 
Crosswalk Eastbound

West 
Crosswalk Westbound

3:00 PM

45

34

9

2
Orlando Street Orlando Street Brady Street Brady Street

Northbound
South 

Crosswalk Southbound

Total Peak 
Hour

Northbound
South 

Crosswalk Southbound
North 

Crosswalk Eastbound
West 

Crosswalk Westbound
East 

Crosswalk

East 
Crosswalk

Total
Peak 
Hour



 

Lt Lt\T Thru T/Rt Rt Lt/T/Rt Lt/Rt

Northbound 1
Southbound

Location: Orlando Street Eastbound 1 1
and Butte Avenue Westbound 1 2

Intersection Configuration: Unsignalized

####
0 0 0 0

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes
0 7:30 AM 0 0 7 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 58 2 0 0 0 50 0 0 0 117

161 155 7:45 AM 2 0 30 3 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 66 0 1 0 1 33 0 0 0 132

0 5 8:00 AM 2 0 21 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 50 1 0 0 2 33 0 0 0 109
225 287 8:15 AM 2 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 51 1 0 0 2 39 0 0 0 99 457

4 Peak Hour Total 6 0 62 4 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 225 4 1 0 5 155 0 0 0 457

N
9 6 0 62

####
0 0 0 0

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes
0 3:00 PM 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 38 2 0 0 1 71 0 0 0 113

245 244 3:15 PM 1 0 11 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 48 0 0 0 0 61 0 0 0 121

0 3 3:30 PM 0 0 11 12 2 0 0 0 1 1 0 59 0 1 2 1 52 0 0 0 123
185 211 3:45 PM 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 40 0 0 0 1 60 0 0 0 104 461

2 Peak Hour Total 1 0 26 14 2 0 0 0 1 1 0 185 2 1 2 3 244 0 0 0 461

N
5 1 0 26

7:30 AM

35/15
35/15

Orlando Street Orlando Street Butte Avenue Butte Avenue

Turning Movement Count

December 6, 2017 (Wednesday)
Speed Limit

25Project No: TC17070

229

0

160

457

68

247

North 
Crosswalk Eastbound

West 
Crosswalk Westbound

3:00 PM

461

27

187

0
Orlando Street Orlando Street Butte Avenue Butte Avenue

Northbound
South 

Crosswalk Southbound

Total Peak 
Hour

Northbound
South 

Crosswalk Southbound
North 

Crosswalk Eastbound
West 

Crosswalk Westbound
East 

Crosswalk

East 
Crosswalk

Total
Peak 
Hour



 

Lt Lt\T Thru T/Rt Rt Lt/T/Rt Lt/Rt

Northbound 1 1
Southbound

Location: Orlando Street Eastbound 1
and Duron Street Westbound

Intersection Configuration: Unsignalized

####
0 0 0 111

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes
0 7:30 AM 1 10 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14

49 0 7:45 AM 18 36 0 31 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 62

21 0 8:00 AM 26 34 0 14 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 69
0 0 8:15 AM 4 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 160
0 Peak Hour Total 49 90 0 47 0 0 0 0 0 0 21 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 160

N
0 49 90 0

####
0 0 0 54

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes
0 3:00 PM 4 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9

33 0 3:15 PM 14 20 0 61 0 0 0 0 2 4 6 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 40

12 0 3:30 PM 14 12 0 25 0 0 0 0 2 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 29
0 0 3:45 PM 1 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 87
0 Peak Hour Total 33 42 0 86 0 0 0 0 4 4 12 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 87

N
0 33 42 0

7:30 AM

25

Orlando Street Orlando Street Duron Street Duron Street

Turning Movement Count

December 6, 2017 (Wednesday)
Speed Limit

25/15Project No: TC17070

21

0

0

160

139

0

North 
Crosswalk Eastbound

West 
Crosswalk Westbound

3:00 PM

87

75

12

0
Orlando Street Orlando Street Duron Street Duron Street

Northbound
South 

Crosswalk Southbound

Total Peak 
Hour

Northbound
South 

Crosswalk Southbound
North 

Crosswalk Eastbound
West 

Crosswalk Westbound
East 

Crosswalk

East 
Crosswalk

Total
Peak 
Hour



 

Lt Lt\T Thru T/Rt Rt Lt/T/Rt Lt/Rt

Northbound 1
Southbound

Location: Orlando Street Eastbound 1
and Virginia Street Westbound 1 1

Intersection Configuration: Unsignalized

####
0 0 0 145

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes
58 7:30 AM 2 7 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 4 0 3 1 0 1 7 7 6 0 31

48 42 7:45 AM 3 19 0 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 0 4 0 0 2 8 28 3 1 79

37 6 8:00 AM 1 20 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 17 0 7 0 0 2 15 17 0 0 79
0 0 8:15 AM 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 3 0 0 1 12 6 1 0 27 216

17 Peak Hour Total 6 50 0 20 0 0 0 0 1 0 37 0 17 1 0 6 42 58 10 1 216

N
23 6 50 0

####
0 0 0 63

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes
30 3:00 PM 3 5 0 1 0 0 0 0 3 0 4 0 2 0 0 0 8 5 0 0 27

40 34 3:15 PM 2 5 0 38 0 0 0 0 1 0 9 0 6 3 0 2 11 13 18 0 48

15 4 3:30 PM 1 5 0 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 13 2 0 1 10 9 3 0 41
0 0 3:45 PM 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 5 3 2 0 12 128

21 Peak Hour Total 6 18 0 49 0 0 0 0 4 0 15 0 21 5 0 4 34 30 23 0 128

N
25 6 18 0

7:30 AM

25
25/15

Orlando Street Orlando Street Virginia Street Virginia Street

December 7, 2017 (Thursday)
Speed Limit

25Project No: TC17070

54

0

106

216

56

68

North 
Crosswalk Eastbound

West 
Crosswalk Westbound

3:00 PM

128

24

36

0
Orlando Street Orlando Street Virginia Street Virginia Street

Northbound
South 

Crosswalk Southbound

Total Peak 
Hour

Northbound
South 

Crosswalk Southbound
North 

Crosswalk Eastbound
West 

Crosswalk Westbound
East 

Crosswalk

East 
Crosswalk

Total
Peak 
Hour



 

Lt Lt\T Thru T/Rt Rt Lt/T/Rt Lt/Rt

Northbound 1
Southbound 1

Location: Park Street Eastbound
and Duron Street Westbound 1

Intersection Configuration: Unsignalized

####
34 39 1 9

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes
1 7:30 AM 5 0 0 0 0 0 3 9 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 19

70 8 7:45 AM 5 4 0 0 0 1 20 6 5 0 0 0 0 2 0 3 1 0 3 0 40

0 4 8:00 AM 7 2 0 0 0 0 14 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 5 1 0 0 40
0 1 8:15 AM 11 2 0 0 0 0 2 9 3 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 24 123
0 Peak Hour Total 28 8 0 0 0 1 39 34 10 0 0 0 0 5 0 4 8 1 3 0 123

N
43 28 8 0

####
21 33 1 13

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes
3 3:00 PM 6 1 0 0 0 0 5 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 2 0 0 24

43 2 3:15 PM 5 4 0 0 0 0 17 8 4 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 1 0 2 0 35

0 4 3:30 PM 3 2 0 0 1 1 10 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 0 0 23
0 1 3:45 PM 6 3 0 0 1 0 1 2 4 1 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 12 94
0 Peak Hour Total 20 10 0 0 2 1 33 21 8 1 0 0 0 8 0 4 2 3 2 0 94

N
37 20 10 0

7:30 AM

25

Park Street Park Street Duron Street Duron Street

Turning Movement Count

December 7, 2017 (Thursday)
Speed Limit

25/15
25/15

Project No: TC17070

0

74

13

123

36

9

North 
Crosswalk Eastbound

West 
Crosswalk Westbound

3:00 PM

94

30

0

55
Park Street Park Street Duron Street Duron Street

Northbound
South 

Crosswalk Southbound

Total Peak 
Hour

Northbound
South 

Crosswalk Southbound
North 

Crosswalk Eastbound
West 

Crosswalk Westbound
East 

Crosswalk

East 
Crosswalk

Total
Peak 
Hour



 

Lt Lt\T Thru T/Rt Rt Lt/T/Rt Lt/Rt

Northbound
Southbound 1

Location: Driveway 3 Eastbound
and Virginia Street Westbound 2

Intersection Configuration: Unsignalized

####
58 0 0 0

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes
0 7:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 16

122 64 7:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25 0 0 0 34

0 0 8:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 16 28 2 0 0 0 4 0 0 30 0 0 0 46
0 0 8:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 26 122
0 Peak Hour Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 58 55 2 0 0 0 4 0 0 64 0 0 0 122

N
0 0 0 0

####
40 0 1 0

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes
0 3:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10 0 0 0 14

73 33 3:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 15 34 2 0 0 0 9 0 0 16 0 0 0 32

0 0 3:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 13 21 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 6 0 0 0 19
0 1 3:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 9 74
0 Peak Hour Total 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 40 59 3 0 0 0 10 0 0 33 0 0 0 74

N
0 0 0 0

7:30 AM

25/15

Driveway 3 Driveway 3 Virginia Street Virginia Street

Turning Movement Count

December 7, 2017 (Thursday)
Speed Limit

15
Project No: TC17070

0

58

64

122

0

33

North 
Crosswalk Eastbound

West 
Crosswalk Westbound

3:00 PM

74

0

0

41
Driveway 3 Driveway 3 Virginia Street Virginia Street

Northbound
South 

Crosswalk Southbound

Total Peak 
Hour

Northbound
South 

Crosswalk Southbound
North 

Crosswalk Eastbound
West 

Crosswalk Westbound
East 

Crosswalk

East 
Crosswalk

Total
Peak 
Hour



   

Appendix C – Student and Parent Survey Sheets 

  



 
 



 
 

 



   

 



 
 

Appendix D – Walkability Checklist Results 

 



 
 

  



 
 

 



 
 

 



 
 

 



 
 

 



 
 

 



 
 

 



 
 

 



 
 

 



 
 

 



 
 

 



   

Appendix E - Walking and Biking Map 

 

 



   

 

 



Anthem K-8
Safe Routes to School Study

 
 

Final Report
June 2018

PREPARED FOR: 
Town of Florence 

 

 

Florence Unified School District 

 

PREPARED BY: 

 

In association with:  



Safe Routes to School Study 
Anthem K-8 June 2018 Page |i 

 
Table of Contents 

Executive Summary ............................................................................................................................1 

Acknowledgements............................................................................................................................2 

Introduction ......................................................................................................................................3 

Safe Routes to School (SRTS) Study Background ..................................................................................3 

State and Federal Support ........................................................................................................................ 4 

SRTS Team ................................................................................................................................................. 4 

Kick-Off Meeting ....................................................................................................................................... 5 

Anthem K-8 Location and Demographics ............................................................................................5 

Site Location .............................................................................................................................................. 5 

Site Location .............................................................................................................................................. 5 

Study Area ................................................................................................................................................. 6 

Adjacent Transportation Network ............................................................................................................ 8 

Roadways .............................................................................................................................................. 8 

Crosswalks ............................................................................................................................................. 8 

Existing School Conditions and Procedures .........................................................................................8 

Circulation and Signage ............................................................................................................................. 8 

Driveways and Parking .............................................................................................................................. 9 

Student Drop-Off and Pick-Up .................................................................................................................. 9 

Bicycling and Walking Procedures .......................................................................................................... 10 

School Safety Procedures ....................................................................................................................... 12 

Vehicle, Pedestrian and Bicycle Counts .................................................................................................. 12 

Student and Parent Surveys .................................................................................................................... 15 

Student Travel Survey ......................................................................................................................... 15 

Parent Survey ...................................................................................................................................... 15 

“Walkabouts” .......................................................................................................................................... 16 

Site Observations .................................................................................................................................... 16 

Walking and Bicycling Map ..................................................................................................................... 18 

Community Meetings.............................................................................................................................. 18 

Action Plan ...................................................................................................................................... 18 

The 6Es .................................................................................................................................................... 18 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Anthem K-8 June 2018 Page |ii 

Funding Sources and Opportunities ....................................................................................................... 24 

Appendices ...................................................................................................................................... 26 

 

List of Figures 

Figure 1: Anthem K-8 Total Enrollment 2011-2016 ..............................................................................6 

Figure 2: Anthem K-8 Vicinity Map .....................................................................................................7 

Figure 3: Anthem K-8 Transportation Boundary ..................................................................................7 

Figure 4: Anthem K-8 Transportation Boundary ..................................................................................9 

Figure 5: Sample Crossing Agreement ............................................................................................... 11 

Figure 6: AM Turning Movement Counts ........................................................................................... 13 

Figure 7: PM Turning Movement Counts ........................................................................................... 14 

 

List of Tables 

Table 1: Student Survey Results – Transportation To/From School .................................................... 15 

Table 2: Parent Survey Results – Transportation To/From School ...................................................... 15 

Table 3: Anthem K-8 SRTS Action Plan .............................................................................................. 21 

 

List of Appendices 

Appendix A – Kickoff Meeting Agenda and Minutes 
Appendix B – Traffic, Pedestrian and Bicycle Count Data 
Appendix C – Student and Parent Survey Sheets 
Appendix D – Walkability Checklist Results 
Appendix E – Walking and Biking Map



Safe Routes to School Study 
Anthem K-8 June 2018 Page |1 

 

Executive Summary 
Anthem Elementary School is located at 2700 N Anthem Way in Florence, Arizona. The school is 
bounded by Anthem Way to the west and American Way to the South. Hunt Highway and Merrill Ranch 
Parkway, which are both main thoroughfares for the area, are 0.5 miles to the west and 0.2 miles to the 
north of the school property, respectively. There are ample wide sidewalks, trails, and bike lanes that 
connect neighborhoods and the school. Anthem Way and American Way experience high-speed traffic 
and the intersection of these roadways is a concern to the school and parents. 

The school conducted two surveys: The Student Travel Survey is an in-class, teacher-led ‘show 
of hands’ survey about students’ travel modes to and from school. The Parent Survey asks 
parents a variety of questions relating to their opinions and feelings about why they allow – or 
don’t allow – their child(ren) to walk or bike to school. The Student Survey yielded the following 
results: 

Direction of Travel 
Transportation Mode To School From School 

Walk 12% 14% 
Bicycle 5% 6% 
Ride the Bus 50% 52% 
Are Driven - Family Vehicle 30% 25% 
Are Driven - Carpool 1% 1% 
Ride a Scooter or Skateboard 2% 2% 

 
Based on observations of student pickup and drop-off activities, field reviews, and input from 
parents and school and Town personnel, the following recommendations were developed: 

Crossing guard training/procedures and safety gear 
Crossing guard safety gear 
Pedestrian and bicycle education, including bicycle skills/rodeos: 
Hold walking/biking competitions 
Walking school bus and bike trains 
Volunteer Police Officers 
Speed Feedback Trailer 
Add times to school speed limit signage 
Restripe lane markings 
Install stop bars at crosswalk approaches 
Update signage  
Restripe crosswalks 

  



Safe Routes to School Study 
Anthem K-8 June 2018 Page |2 

Acknowledgements 
The following individuals were core team stakeholders for this planning effort: 

Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst, Town of Florence 
Leah Alisa, Principal, Anthem K-8 School 
Elwin Longnion, Assistant Principal, Anthem K-8 School 
Mark Lamas, Transportation Director, Florence Unified School District 

Additional team stakeholders included: 
Lt. Terry Tryon, Florence Police Department 
Officer Jeff Palmer, Florence Police Department 
Chris Salas, Florence Town Engineer 
Christian Collins, Florence Public Works Department 
Dan Cisco, Florence Public Works Department 

  



Safe Routes to School Study 
Anthem K-8 June 2018 Page |3 

Introduction 
Wood (Amec Foster Wheeler) and Greenlight Traffic Engineering have been retained by the Maricopa 
Association of Governments (MAG) to perform a Safe Routes to School (SRTS) study for two schools within 
the Florence Unified School District (FUSD) in Florence, Arizona (Town). Florence K-8 and Anthem K-8 were 
studied as part of this project and safety recommendations for each school were documented in separate 
reports. This report provides recommendations for the Anthem K-8 school. 

Safe Routes to School (SRTS) Study Background 
As part of the 2015 Strategic Transportation Safety Plan, MAG established a regional goal to “promote 
and administer Safe Routes to School (SRTS) framework studies to identify school traffic issues”. SRTS 
studies are initiated by local agencies in partnership with schools and school districts to promote and 
encourage walking and biking to school.  Conducting SRTS studies is a proactive approach to identifying 
safety improvements for K-8 students walking and biking to and from school. The study team provides an 
independent assessment at each school and community. The recommendations from the studies can be 
prioritized into near-term and long-term implementation time frames and used as a tool by local agencies, 
schools, and school districts to leverage local, state, or federal-aid funding.  

Strategies and improvements recommended by a SRTS study can include roadway improvements in 
coordination with the Town, on-site improvements in coordination with the FUSD or safety strategies and 
education for students and parents. The recommendations fit into one or more of the “Six E” categories; 
Engineering, Education, Enforcement, Encouragement, Evaluation and Equity.  

According to the MAG SRTS Studies Fact Sheet published in July 2017, the purposes of SRTS studies are 
the following: 

Encourage walking and biking to school 
Prioritize improvements 
Leverage funding 
Promote partnerships 
Identify effective solutions unique to each school 
Streamline and expedite the improvement process 

MAG and the Town, in coordination with the school, have developed a list of tasks required to be 
completed for this SRTS study, including; 

Establish SRTS Stakeholders Group: Identify stakeholders that can provide input on safety 
concerns within the study area. Stakeholders for SRTS studies can include, but is not limited to, 
school and school district faculty, parents, crossing guards, law enforcement and community 
leaders. This core team will participate in study meetings and will aid in the development of 
effective and useful recommendations.  
Data Collection: Traffic, bicycle and pedestrian counts are to be performed at locations where 
vehicle ingress and egress and bicycle and pedestrian traffic are substantial.  
SRTS Survey Collection: Parents and students attending the school are distributed surveys 
prepared by the National Center for Safe Routes to School regarding the mode of transportation 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Anthem K-8 June 2018 Page |4 

the student is using to travel to and from the school. Results from the surveys are summarized 
and used in the development of safety strategies.  
Existing Conditions Assessment: The study team will collect all relevant existing information for 
the study area. A review of documents, existing studies, crash data and school procedures will be 
conducted first. This will also include a review of existing school resources such as bike locker 
locations, crossing guard locations and pedestrian and bicycle access locations. An observation of 
student pick-up and drop-off procedures will be conducted to observe the interactions between 
vehicle, pedestrian and bicycle traffic.  
Walking and Biking Assessment: A “walk-about” is conducted to observe the routes that students 
take to access the school on foot or by bicycle. The study team and stakeholders are encouraged 
to participate in this exercise to help identify all potential safety concerns. Walking and biking 
route maps will be developed based on the observations and recommendations stemming from 
this assessment. 
Neighborhood Meeting: This meeting will be held during evening hours to solicit input from a 
larger audience on walking and biking issues. 
Prepare Study Report: This document will include an action plan, walking and biking route map, 
and recommendations to increase walking and biking to school. 

State and Federal Support 
The Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act authorized a set-aside of Surface Transportation 
Block Grant (STBG) program funding for Transportation alternatives (TA), which are used to support the 
SRTS Program. The MAG region receives an annual allocation of TA funding from the Arizona Department 
of Transportation (ADOT). MAG manages the funds with oversight from municipality staff representatives. 
MAG member agencies are eligible to submit SRTS applications for utilizing this funding to help schools 
and communities promote the health and safety of K-8 students, with the call for new projects occurring 
each August. Funding can be used to develop SRTS studies, infrastructure improvements that promote 
and encourage walking and biking to school, and educational materials. 
 
In 2018, MAG will administer 10 SRTS projects within member jurisdictions, equating to more than 
$460,000. Through fiscal year 2020, MAG will administer 27 SRTS projects equating to approximately $1.3 
million. 

SRTS Team 
The SRTS core team should consist of four or more of the following representatives: 

 SRTS Coordinator/Encourager 
 School Principal 
 Teachers 
 Parents 
 Students 
 Local Law Enforcement 
 Local Road Agency 
 Local Planner/Engineer 

 
For Anthem K-8, the SRTS core team included the following representatives: 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Anthem K-8 June 2018 Page |5 

Florence Unified School District 
Mark Lamas, Director of Transportation and Support Services, mlamas@fusdaz.org 
  
Anthem K-8 School 
Leah Alisa, Principal, lalisa@fusdaz.org, School Team Leader 
Elwin Longnion, Assistant Principal, elongnion@fusdaz.org 
 
Town of Florence 
Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst, Jennifer.Evans@florenceaz.gov, Stakeholders Team Leader 
 

Kick-Off Meeting 
A project kick-off meeting was held on Friday December 19, 2017 at the Florence Community Center. The 
purpose of the meeting was to review the scope and schedule for the SRTS studies for the Florence and 
Anthem K-8 schools. The project team also took time to emphasize the importance of involvement from 
safety stakeholders including teachers, parents and school administrators to the SRTS study. The complete 
minutes from the meeting are provided in Appendix A of this document.  

The following project team members were present at the kick-off meeting: 

Maricopa Association of Governments: Margaret Boone 
Town of Florence – Jennifer Evans 
Greenlight Traffic Engineering – Mike Blankenship, Scott Kelley  

Anthem K-8 Location and Demographics 
Site Location 
Anthem K-8  is located at 2700 N Anthem Way in Florence, Arizona. The school is bounded by Anthem 
Way to the west and American Way to the South. Hunt Highway 
and Merrill Ranch Parkway, which are both main thoroughfares for 
the area, are 0.5 miles to the west and 0.2 miles to the north of 
the school property, respectively. The study area (outlined by the 
walking boundary) and school property are shown on Figure 2. 

 

Site Location 
Student demographics for Anthem K-8 were obtained from the 
MAG Read On Arizona MapLIT Viewer interactive mapping tool. 
Total K-8 enrollment for 2016, the last reported year in the mapping 
tool, was 778 students, with 311 students in Kindergarten through 3rd 
grade. Total enrollment from 2011-2016 is shown in Figure 1. 

Anthem K-8 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Anthem K-8 June 2018 Page |6 

 

Figure 1: Anthem K-8 Total Enrollment 2011-2016 

Study Area 
The study area for Anthem K-8 is outlined by the walking boundary shown on Figure 2. Anthem K-8’s 
enrollment area is dominated by master-planned suburban development. There are ample wide 
sidewalks, trails, and bike lanes that connect neighborhoods and the school. Anthem Way and American 
Way experience high-speed traffic and the intersection of these roadways is a concern to the school and 
parents. AK8’s challenges deal primarily with the intersection of Anthem Way and American Way -- 
specifically, vehicle speeds and conflicts with student pedestrians during the morning arrival and 
afternoon dismissal times. 

 

All boundaries in the Florence Unified School District are open and parents can request their student(s) 
attend any school in the district.  However, the FUSD will only provide transportation to the homeschool 
for a given student. Figure 3 shows the Anthem K-8 transportation boundary for bussing. 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Anthem K-8 June 2018 Page |7 

 

Figure 2: Anthem K-8 Vicinity Map 

 

Figure 3: Anthem K-8 Transportation Boundary 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Anthem K-8 June 2018 Page |8 

Adjacent Transportation Network 
Roadways 
American Way is a three-lane east-west roadway south of the school property. The posted speed limit on 
American Way is 35 mph outside of the school zone, and 15 mph within the school zone. The current 
cross-section of American Way includes pavement, bike lane, curb and gutter and sidewalk. The pavement 
is approximately 45 feet wide with travel lane and bike lane markings. Sidewalks are approximately 8 feet 
wide. Crosswalks are present along American Way at Anthem Way. 

Anthem Way is a three-lane north-south roadway west of the 
school property. The posted speed limit on Anthem Way is 35 
mph outside of the school zone, and 15 mph within the school 
zone. The current cross-section of Anthem Way includes 
pavement, bike lane, curb and gutter and sidewalk. The 
pavement is approximately 48 feet wide with travel lane and 
bike lane markings. Sidewalks are approximately 8 feet wide. 
Crosswalks are present along Anthem Way at American Way, 
the school driveway entrance and at Congressional Way. 

Crosswalks 
In addition to the crosswalks listed in the section above, there 
are crosswalks present at the following locations: 

American Way at Potomac Drive 
South School Driveway (bus queue) entrance and exit 

The Anthem Way and American Way and the Anthem Way and Congressional Way crosswalks are 
monitored by crossing guards during student ingress and egress times. Many students, as well as other 
users, travel through these intersections daily.  

Existing School Conditions and Procedures 
Circulation and Signage 
Anthem Elementary School is located at 2700 N Anthem Way in Florence, Arizona. The school property is 
bounded by Anthem Way and American Way to the west and south, respectively.  The posted speed limit 
on American Way and Anthem Way is 35 mph outside of the school zones and 15 mph within the school 
zones. 

Portable “roll out” signs that state “STOP When Children in Crosswalk” are utilized on American Way at 
Anthem Way and on Anthem Way at Congressional Way. Rollout signs were observed along the Anthem 
Way driveway entrance to the school indicating where student drop-off is permitted.  

Crosswalks with school crossing signs (Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices Sign S1-1) are present 
on American Way at Anthem Way and at Potomac Drive, and on Anthem Way at Congressional Way. 
Crosswalks are also present on school property along the Anthem Way driveway entrance to the school, 
as shown in the adjacent figure. No pedestrian signage was observed at these crosswalks. 

Pedestrians at Anthem Way & 
American Way Intersection 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Anthem K-8 June 2018 Page |9 

Driveways and Parking  
The main driveway entrance and parking lot for the school is accessible off Anthem Way between 
Congressional Way and American Way. The parking lot is used by both parents and school faculty. The 
driveway is used for student drop-off and pick-up. An additional driveway and parking lot is located off 
American Way at Potomac Drive. This parking lot is used primarily by school faculty, while the driveway is 
used almost exclusively for bus loading and unloading. The two driveways are highlighted on Figure 4. 

Street parking is not permitted along American Way or Anthem Way and is enforced by “No Parking” 
signage. 

 

Figure 4: Anthem K-8 Transportation Boundary 

Crash Analysis 

A review of the most recent 5 years of crash data using ADOT’s crash database showed no pedestrian or 
bicyclist crashes on the streets surrounding the Anthem K-8 boundaries.  

Student Drop-Off and Pick-Up 
The school opens for student arrival at 7:55 am with classes beginning at 8:15 am. Crossing guards monitor 
the crosswalks between 7:45 and 8:15 am. Students are dismissed from school at 3:20 pm and the 
crosswalks are monitored between 2:55 and 3:25 pm. 
Students who walk or ride their bike home are released prior to students who ride the bus or are picked 
up by parents. The bicycle racks are located on the north side of the school near the main entrance.  



Safe Routes to School Study 
Anthem K-8 June 2018 Page |10 

Students can be dropped off and picked up at the main 
driveway off Anthem Way. The adjacent figure shows a 
typical afternoon pick-up line. Signage is present at the 
driveway entrances that states “No Parking / No Student 
Drop-Off”. Further along the driveway, the signage states 
“Student Drop-Off Only” to indicate the acceptable location 
for student drop-off and pick-up. There is a crosswalk in the 
parking lot for faculty, students and parents to use during 
drop-off and pick-up operations. 
School buses queue along the south driveway to drop off and 
pick up students. The designated bus loading zone is 
approximately 400 feet and is utilized by 7 bus routes that 
service the surrounding area. 
Observations and discussions with school personnel indicated 
that vehicles queue in both directions on Anthem Way at the 
school driveway/Congressional Way intersection.  
 
Bicycling and Walking Procedures 
AK8 has done a great job of encouraging students to ride their bikes to school. Students who walk or ride 
their bike home are released prior to students who ride the bus or are picked up by parents. Walking and 
biking students enter and exit the school at the main school entrance on the north side of the property. 
The bicycle racks are located on the north side of the school near the main entrance. Crossing guards are 
present at: 

Anthem Way & American Way 
Anthem Way & Congressional Way 

The school does not have a School Crossing Agreement with the Town of Florence. School Crossings on 
local roads should be authorized by the authority having jurisdiction over those roads to ensure the 
crossing location is appropriate, safe, and marked and signed properly.   Figure 5. is an example Crossing 
Agreement from ADOT’s Traffic Safety for School Areas Guidelines that can be utilized. These Guidelines 
can be found at: 

https://www.azdot.gov/docs/business/adot-traffic-safety-for-school-area-guidelines.pdf 

Afternoon pick-up line 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Anthem K-8 June 2018 Page |11 

Figure 5: Sample Crossing Agreement 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Anthem K-8 June 2018 Page |12 

School Safety Procedures 
AK8 personnel give safety talks at the beginning of the school year on getting on and off the bus, when to 
arrive at school, and to follow directions of the crossing guards. Additionally, the FUSD Student Handbook 
lists safety guidelines for walkers, bicyclists, and students being dropped off by parents. The Handbook 
can be accessed at https://www.fusdaz.com/Page/586. The school also provides informal training to the 
crossing guards. 

Vehicle, Pedestrian and Bicycle Counts 
Turning movement counts were conducted by United Civil Group on Tuesday December 5, 2017. Counts 
were conducted from 7:30-8:30 am and 3:00-4:00 pm to capture the student and parent ingress and 
egress times. The vehicle, pedestrian and bicycle counts were collected. The count values and locations 
are shown on Figure 6 and Figure 7 for the morning (AM) and afternoon (PM) peak times, respectively. 
Appendix B includes all traffic count data. 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Anthem K-8 June 2018 Page |13 

 

Figure 6: AM Turning Movement Counts 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Anthem K-8 June 2018 Page |14 

 

Figure 7: PM Turning Movement Counts 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Anthem K-8 June 2018 Page |15 

Student and Parent Surveys 
 

Student Travel Survey 
The school conducted the NCSRTS Student Travel Survey (STS) in their classrooms, the results which 
subsequently were entered into the NCSRTS’s data portal (www.saferoutesdata.org). The STS collects 
‘show of hand’ data from students about their travel modes to and from school. Teachers surveyed 
students across 29 classes to determine how many walk, ride a bicycle, and are driven to school. The 
results of those surveys are shown in Table 1. 

Table 1: Student Survey Results – Transportation To/From School 

Direction of Travel 
Transportation Mode To School From School 

Walk 12% 14% 
Bicycle 5% 6% 
Ride the Bus 50% 52% 
Are Driven - Family Vehicle 30% 25% 
Are Driven - Carpool 1% 1% 
Ride a Scooter or Skateboard 2% 2% 

 

Parent Survey 
School staff also distributed the NCSRTS Parent Survey, which asks parents a variety of questions relating 
to their opinions and feelings about why they allow – or don’t allow – their child(ren) to walk or bike to 
school. Parent Surveys also were distributed by the SRTS Plan team at school/community meetings. Eleven 
parents representing children from kindergarten through 3rd grade completed the parent survey for AK8. 
Findings from the survey include (numbers may add to more than 100 percent due to multiple choices 
selected): 
 

Table 2: Parent Survey Results – Transportation To/From School 

Student Transportation Mode Parent Response 
Walk 36% to 45% 
Bicycle 18% 
Ride the Bus 18% 
Are Driven - Family Vehicle 45% to 72% 

 
 percent said their student had requested permission to walk or bike to/from school in the last year. 
 percent of parents reported that they would not allow their child at any grade level to walk or bike 

to/from school without an adult. 
Of those parents who would allow their child to walk or bike to/from school without an adult, the 

majority indicated that by sixth grade or higher is when they would feel comfortable allowing their child 
to walk or bike to/from school without an adult. 

The main reasons parents reported that their children do not walk to school are concerns with lack of 
sidewalks/pathways (55%), safety of intersections and crossings along their route (45%), distance (45%), 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Anthem K-8 June 2018 Page |16 

the speed of traffic along their route (45%), oncerns about violence or crime (27%), and amount of 
traffic along route (27%). 
 
“Walkabouts” 

A “walkabout” is a site assessment conducted while walking. They are essential for identifying and 
understanding pedestrian and bicyclist travel/safety challenges. Conducting these assessments allows us 
to craft the right context-sensitive solutions for school areas. The SRTS Plan team conducted a walkabout 
at the school on February 13, 2018, and were very fortunate to have had strong participation from the 
following Stakeholders: 

Anthem K-8 School:    Leah Alisa 
American Leadership Academy:   Matthew Daniel 
Town of Florence:    Jennifer Evans 
Florence Unified School District:   Mark Lamas  
Town of Florence Police Department:  Jeff Palmer  
Town of Florence Development Services: Christian Collins, Dan Cisco 
 
We used the Walkability Checklist as our assessment instrument, which asks the users/ respondents the 
following questions: 

1. Did you have room to walk? 
2. Was it easy to cross streets? 
3. Did drivers behave well? 
4. Was it easy to follow safety rules (for you and your child)? 
5. Was your walk pleasant? 

Each question is scored on a 1 to 6 scale, with 1 being “awful” and 6 being “excellent.” The average of 
the walkabout team scores was 25.2, with 30 being an “excellent” score. This is a score that has no units 
and is used only to compile a snapshot of the opinions of the respondents and to calculate a baseline 
score for future comparison. The lowest rankings were given to “Did drivers behave well” and “Was it 
easy to cross streets” with scores of 4.4 and 4.5, respectively. 

Appendix D has the individual Walkability Checklist forms. 

Site Observations 
Observations and discussions with crossing guards indicated: 

1)  Crossing guard mentioned that the intersection did 
not get too busy with students and that the 
students were good at waiting for the guard and 
following crossing rules (e.g., dismounting bikes 
when crossing). 

2) Bike racks were full and well secured 
3) None of the crossing guards were observed wearing 

reflective vests, some wore dark colors 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Anthem K-8 June 2018 Page |17 

4) Most students that biked and walked appeared to be coming from the south 
5) Lane line striping is fading and needs to be refreshed. 

Suggest using thermoplastic within the school zones. 
Yellow crosswalks could also use a striping refresh. 

6) 12 inch to 24 inch stop bars might be appropriate for all crosswalk approaches, possibly set back 
further than 4 feet 

7) Sidewalk was generally wide (8 foot) within the vicinity of the school. Trees for shade were 
planted adjacent to the sidewalk 

8) Bike lanes were provided for both directions of travel on the primary roadways 
9) Good use of portable signs along the primary roadways 
10) Golf carts were observed commuting to the school for drop offs  
11) The crossing guard at the school ingress was directing northbound right and southbound left 

turning vehicles. The crossing guard mentioned that there is a bus that picks up high school 
students just north of the ingress during the AM peak. Vehicles have previously been observed 
passing the school bus on the left while students are loading onto the bus while the bus STOP 
sign and flashers are activated. 

12) 3 to 4 cars queued for the northbound right and 6 to 7 
cars queued for the southbound left at the project 
ingress 

13) Many of the school zone and other signs in the area are 
faded and need to be replaced. Some signs are not 
MUTCD compliant. 

14) Crossing guards indicated that there is a police 
presence approximately once per month 

15) Heavy ingress traffic ended at approximately 8:15 
16) School zones were not well delineated, and signage did 

not indicate the times that the school zone speed limit 
should be observed (signs show “Mon – Fri” only) 

17) Limited street lighting in the residential areas to the 
west 

18) At parent drop off entrance driveway: 
a. Principal stated that there are conflicts with 

parents wanting to make lefts/right turns into the driveway (coming from opposite 
directions on Anthem Way). She instructs her crossing guard not to direct traffic, but to 
focus on crossing kids safely.  

b. Queue along northbound Anthem Way waiting to make right turn into driveway can 
sometimes back up to American Way intersection  

c. Sometimes parents drop off along Anthem way to avoid turning into driveway.  
19) At parent drop off exit driveway: 

a. Traffic turning right out of driveway will proceed even if crossing guard is stopping 
north/south traffic along Anthem Way for kids to cross  

b. Pedestrians come from dog park to cross at crosswalk – not a concern except during 
pick-up and drop-off when cars are using driveway 

20) Unused crosswalk near bus drop-off 

Crossing guard without safety vest 

American Way speed limit sign 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Anthem K-8 June 2018 Page |18 

a. Police officer informed that it should be painted white if not manned by crossing guard. 
Principal said that it is not manned, and kids are not supposed to enter school from 
there – have to cross at Anthem/American crosswalk to enter in front of school. 

21) Anthem Way/American Way intersection 
a. Suggestions were made to move the crosswalk on American Way to the east side of 

Anthem Way so kids walking on the south sidewalk of American Way only have to cross 
a street once. There may be some utilities to deal with to accommodate a new curb 
ramp if this new crosswalk is provided. 

b. The speed feedback trailer on westbound American Way could be moved closer to the 
school 

 

Walking and Bicycling Map 
A Walking and Bicycling route map was developed for 
Anthem K-8 based on observations from this study. This 
map is provided in Appendix E of this report. 

Community Meetings 

The SRTS Plan team participated in school/community 
meetings on February 27, 2018 at its Bingo for Books 
event. The Team provided general information to parents 
and school staff about the SRTS study and distributed 
Parent Surveys. An aerial map was used for discussion 
purposes.  The adjacent figure shows a SRTS team 
member at this event. 

Action Plan 
The 6Es 
The recommendations contained in this Plan follow the 
“6E’s” of traffic safety: education, enforcement, 
engineering, encouragement, evaluation, and equity. The 
6E’s are the cornerstone of the Safe Routes to School 
(SRTS) Program and are endorsed by the National Center 
For Safe Routes To School (NCSRTS; 
www.saferoutesinfo.org), which is a division of the 
University of North Carolina Highway Safety Research 
Center. The goal of the Plan is to recommend proven 
solutions that make sense for the community and for the 
school. 

Education: Teach students and community members about walking and biking safely. Train crossing 
guards in safe traffic control techniques. Education can happen through in-school curriculum, bike/ped 
safety assemblies, newsletter blurbs, tips sheets, and send-home flyers. 

Florence SRTS team member at 
Anthem’s “Bingo for Books” event 

A bike rodeo 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Anthem K-8 June 2018 Page |19 

Encouragement: Get students and parents excited about walking and biking by hosting special events, 
walking school buses and bike trains, holding schoolwide 
competitions, or celebrating walking and biking with 
student art or other projects. 

Enforcement: Reduce negative behaviors such as 
speeding, double parking, or disobeying traffic signals by 
working with local law enforcement. Officers can attend 
walking events to monitor speeding activity or to build 
relationships with school children and neighbors. 

Engineering: Improve the physical walking and biking 
environment. Schools can work with local government 
agencies to determine if infrastructure improvements are 
needed to encourage students to walk or bike to school safely. 

Evaluation: Check to see if your strategies are working! Schools and local governments can record walking 
and biking rates, parent concerns, and traffic data to evaluate the success of a SRTS program. Evaluation 
activities can help set goals and establish baseline data for planning projects. 

Equity: Ensuring that Safe Routes to School initiatives are benefiting all demographic groups, with 
particular attention to ensuring safe, healthy, and fair outcomes for students with disabilities, low-income 
students, Native American students, students of color, female students, LGBTQ students, students whose 
families speak a language other than English, homeless students, and other demographic groups.  MAG 
Crossing Guard training materials are available in English and Spanish, helping to address the Equity E. 

Table 1 provides a SRTS Action Plan for Anthem K-8 School that identifies the key issues and 
recommended SRTS strategies to address the issue. The Action Plan can be used by the school’s SRTS 
Stakeholders Team to identify strategies that the different partners can pursue to improve the safety of 
students walking and biking to/from the school. For each strategy, specific action steps are identified as 
well as the partner from the SRTS Stakeholders Team who would be responsible for leading 
implementation of the strategy, a potential funding source (if applicable), an implementation timeframe, 
and a method to evaluate the progress and effectiveness of the recommended strategy or set of 
strategies. Each issue has a recommended strategy or set of strategies that consider approaches related 
to education, encouragement, enforcement, or engineering; some strategies consider multiple 
approaches. 
 
Strategy Implementation Lead 
The strategy implementation lead who is identified in the Action Plan is often dictated by the type of 
strategy being implemented and the location of the recommended strategy. Anything related to 
infrastructure on a public roadway around the school is the responsibility of the Town of Florence. Any 
infrastructure on school property, including school buses and associated infrastructure, is the 
responsibility of FUSD. Any school-specific procedures, policies and staff arrangements are the 
responsibility of the school.  
 
Implementation Timeframe 
The implementation timeframe of each strategy was identified based on the level of effort and/or funding 
that would be required to implement the strategy. Strategies identified as near-term 

A “Golden Sneaker” trophy



Safe Routes to School Study 
Anthem K-8 June 2018 Page |20 

are those that require minimal effort to implement. Strategies identified for long-term implementation 
are those that should go through a formal evaluation and planning process to implement and may require 
input from a larger stakeholder group than those identified in the SRTS Stakeholders Team; any strategy 
requiring a significant infrastructure investment is identified for long-term implementation. 
 
Evaluation 
The ‘Evaluation’ column in the Action Plan identifies a method that the SRTS Stakeholders Team can 
pursue to evaluate the progress and effectiveness of the recommended strategy or set of strategies. As 
noted in the implementation timeframe discussion, it will be important to evaluate the effectiveness of 
some strategies to know whether additional or more drastic strategies need to be pursued to address the 
issue. 
 
Two key tools to support evaluation are the Parent Survey and Student Travel Tally that were conducted 
during this study. These tools can help quantitatively track progress of SRTS efforts at the school by 
tracking actual student walking and biking numbers as well as parent perceptions of walking and biking 
over time. Ideally, as more SRTS strategies are implemented and a SRTS culture is built at the school, the 
Student Travel Tally should reflect positive results with a greater percentage of students reporting walking 
and biking to/from school. Similarly, positive results could be reflected in the Parent Survey by having 
fewer parents indicate that they would never be comfortable letting their students walk or bike to/from 
school and having fewer parents indicate concerns with safety of walking and biking on the survey. As 
such, the SRTS team should consider conducting these two surveys annually as strategies from the SRTS 
Action Plan are implemented.



Safe Routes to School Study 
Anthem K-8 June 2018 Page |21 

Table 3: Anthem K-8 SRTS Action Plan 

 

Is
su

e 
# 

Issue 

Strategies 

Tasks Lead 

Potential 
Funding 
Source 

  

Evaluation Recommended Strategy 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 

En
co

ur
ag

em
en

t 

En
fo

rc
em

en
t 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

Timeframe 

1 

Crossing guards not properly 
outfitted; Observed improper 
crossing operations. 

Provide safety vests and crossing guard training. x       Standardize crossing guard training and utilize MAG 
training resources. The MAG training and material is 
provided at no charge to FUSD.  However, costs for 
travel, etc. would need to be programmed by FUSD. 

FUSD FUSD Near-term Observe guards for 
continued adherence to 
proper crossing guard tasks 
and rules. 

2 

One crossing guard controlled 
the intersection of Anthem 
Way/American Way, which 
has two crosswalks. A 
question was raised by the 
Town regarding the number 
of crossing guards required. A 
suggestion was made to move 
the crosswalk to the east side 
of Anthem Way, since most of 
the pedestrian traffic comes 
from east of this intersection. 
Utilities are a definite issue in 
that location because of the 
APS transformer, cable 
junction box, telephone 
junction box and other 
utilities. It was also suggested 
that a flashing beacon may be 
needed here.    

Utilities may be an issue in moving the crosswalk to the 
east side of the intersection, where a new curb ramp 
would need to be installed. Two crossing guards are 
recommended for complex crossings or crossings with 
four or more lanes. Flashing beacons are not 
recommended as there is already adequate signage, 
both fixed and roll-out signs. Over signage can create 
confusion and disregard for traffic control devices. 

      x Coordinate with Town Engineering staff to assess 
the feasibility of relocating the American Way 
crosswalk to the east side of the intersection. If the 
school considers this a complex crossing, two 
crossing guards should be considered for this 
location. 

Town, School, 
FUSD 

Town/FUSD Long-term Observe for reduction in 
number of pedestrian-
vehicle conflicts. 

3 

The crossing guard mentioned 
that there is a bus that picks 
up high school students just 
north of school driveway, and 
vehicles have been observed 
passing the school bus on the 
left while the bus STOP sign 
and flashers are activated. 

Enforce school bus no passing law.     x   Partner with Town Police to provide periodic 
enforcement at this bus stop. 

School, Town N/A Near-term Observe for reduction in 
passing school buses. 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Anthem K-8 June 2018 Page |22 

Is
su

e 
# 

Issue 

Strategies 

Tasks Lead 

Potential 
Funding 
Source 

  

Evaluation Recommended Strategy 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 

En
co

ur
ag

em
en

t 

En
fo

rc
em

en
t 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

Timeframe 

4 

Pavement markings are faded. 
Lane line striping is fading and 
needs to be refreshed.  

Refresh pavement markings, including lane lines and 
crosswalk markings.  Use thermoplastic within the 
school zones.  

      x Refresh pavement markings on a regular cycle. Town Town Near-term Conduct periodic reviews 
of pavement marking 
visibility. 

5 

Some signage is faded and 
worn.  In addition, current 
school zone speed limit signs 
on Anthem Way and American 
Way show “Mon-Fri” only.  

An inventory of signs on the streets adjacent to the 
school should be taken to determine all signs that need 
to be replaced. 

      x Conduct sign inventory and replace signs as needed. Town Town  Long-term Conduct periodic reviews 
of sign legibility and 
MUTCD compliance. 

Install school zone signs that identify specific times 
when school is in session and the times the reduced 
speed limit is enforced. 

      x Replace school speed zone signs. Town Town Near-term 

6 

Observed motorists 
encroaching into the 
crosswalks. 

Install stop bars at crosswalk approaches to alert 
drivers of an upcoming crosswalk and encourage them 
to stop/yield for pedestrians prior to entering the 
crosswalk.  

      x Install stop bars in advance of crosswalks. Town Town Near-term Observe for yielding 
compliance. 

7 

Appropriateness of marked 
crossing at Potomac Drive and 
American Way. 

Remove crosswalk marking with next overlay project 
or other project to completely remove markings.   

      x Review Town CIP or other funding opportunity for 
future overlay project.   

Town Town  Long-term Observe pedestrians are 
crossing at the appropriate 
location at Anthem Way 
and American Way. 

Provide a crossing guard in the interim condition. x    Review of staff resources and training of staff 
utilizing MAG training resources. 

School/FUSD FUSD Near-term Observe use of crossing 
guard staff this location 
until such time markings 
can be removed.  Monitor 
numbers utilizing this 
crossing in the interim 
condition. 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Anthem K-8 June 2018 Page |23 

Is
su

e 
# 

Issue 

Strategies 

Tasks Lead 

Potential 
Funding 
Source 

  

Evaluation Recommended Strategy 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 

En
co

ur
ag

em
en

t 

En
fo

rc
em

en
t 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

Timeframe 

8 

Speeding in school zones. Volunteer or off-duty police officers can be stationed 
in police cars at the crosswalks along American Way 
and Anthem Way. This can be a traffic calming 
measure as vehicles tend to slow down when they see 
a police car. The officer can also be utilized to enforce 
traffic laws through warnings and tickets.  

    x   Partner with Town Police to provide periodic speed 
enforcement. 

Town GOHS Near-term Observe for reduction in 
speeds in school zones. 

Utilize the Town's speed feedback trailer by 
periodically locating it on the approaches to the school 
zones. 

    x   Coordinate with Town Police to utilize the speed 
feedback trailer. 

Town GOHS Near-term 

9 

Encourage students to walk 
and bike to school. 

Provide incentives to walk/bike. x x     Organize a semi-annual walk/bike to school day 
where there is a celebration at the start of school 
(may include others in celebration such as elected 
officials, police, firefighters, etc.).  

School Town 
MAG SRTS 

Near-term Use annual Student Tally to 
measure increase in 
walking and biking to 
school. 

  x     Initiate a “Golden Sneaker” contest, with a trophy 
given to the classroom having the highest 
participation in walking/biking to school over a two-
week period. 

School FUSD 
MAG SRTS 

Near-term Use annual Student Tally to 
measure increase in 
walking and biking to 
school. 

x x     Conduct bicycle rodeos to teach bicyclists (and 
pedestrians) valuable safety skills; they can be 
combined with school fundraising events, too. 

FUSD FUSD 
MAG SRTS 

Long-term Use annual Student Tally to 
measure increase in 
walking and biking to 
school. 

Organize ways to improve the perception of walking 
and biking safety and security. 

x x     Initiate a walking school bus or bike train program 
where groups of students who live in the same area 
are set up with a parent or an older student who 
will lead the group to and from school each day. 

School School 
MAG SRTS 

Near-term Use annual Parent Survey 
to measure increase in 
parent perception of level 
of safety during 
walking/biking. 

x x     Host a SRTS National Course workshop: These 
daylong SRTS workshops are a good opportunity to 
educate school staff, district administrators, 
government officials, and the media about the 
benefits of pedestrian and bicycle safety.  Partner 
with neighboring communities schools. 

FUSD  MAG SRTS Long-term Use annual Parent Survey 
to measure increase in 
parent perception of level 
of safety during 
walking/biking. 

 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Anthem K-8 June 2018 Page |24 

Funding Sources and Opportunities 
Some of the strategies – mainly those identified as education, encouragement and enforcement strategies 
– do not necessarily require funding to implement, as they are largely strategies related to processes, 
police coordination, and partnerships; however, some of the strategies, including most of the engineering 
strategies, will likely require some source of funding to implement. 
 
There are a variety of potential funding sources to support the implementation of the strategies identified 
in the Action Plan. Similar to the identification of the strategy lead for implementation, the identification 
of the potential funding source is largely driven by the location of the strategy; for example, any strategy 
involving a public roadway will have to be pursued by the Town of Florence while any strategy involving 
infrastructure within school property will be the responsibility of FUSD. Based on the identification of the 
‘Potential Funding Source’ in the Action Plan (Table 1), the following funding sources may be available and 
can be pursued by the SRTS Stakeholder Team partners when applicable. 
 
State 
Arizona Governor’s Office of Highway Safety (GOHS) 
The Arizona GOHS is a cabinet agency that focuses on highway safety issues and provides leadership by 
developing, promoting, and coordinating programs; influencing public and private policy; and increasing 
public awareness of highway safety. GOHS grant funding is based on the Federal fiscal year calendar which 
begins on October 1st of each year and ends on September 30th.  Grants for the Federal fiscal year are 
awarded for a one-year period. Applying for a GOHS grant begins with submission of a proposal and signed 
cover letter. Grant applications are available for download in PDF format on the GOHS website beginning 
in January. There are eight categories for grant programs funded by GOHS; of those eight, two of them 
may be relevant for SRTS – Pedestrian and Bicycle Safety (PS) and Police Traffic Services/Speed Control 
(PTS). The PS category funds traffic safety programs such as bicycle rodeos for schools or other programs 
that are designed to increase safety awareness and skills among pedestrians and bicyclists. There is also 
funding for bicycle helmets and helmet fittings for children in need. Programs funded in this category are 
required to include both education and enforcement elements to increase safety awareness and address 
driver behavior. The PTS program focuses on enforcing and encouraging compliance with traffic laws 
through selected enforcement and education. The grant funding can be used to pay overtime for officers 
and/or equipment (speed measuring devices, computers, and motorcycles) to conducted enhanced 
enforcement for a particular issue. 
 
Regional 
Design Assistance Program (MAG DA) 
Infrastructure projects related to bike, pedestrian, and shared-use facilities can be funded through the 
MAG Design Assistance Program. This program was initiated to encourage the development of pedestrian 
and bike facilities and stimulate integration of facilities into the planning and design of all types of projects. 
Projects using design assistance funds focus on developing preliminary scoping documents for a bike 
and/or pedestrian facility project. A request for projects for Design Assistance funding is released by MAG 
in May each year. Types of projects that are eligible for Design Assistance funding include: projects that 
facilitate safe crossings and access to bike/pedestrian facilities, bike and pedestrian access to transit, and 
bike and pedestrian facility construction and improvements (sidewalk improvements, bike lanes and 
shoulders, safety improvements, and signing, marking and wayfinding). 
 
 
 



Safe Routes to School Study 
Anthem K-8 June 2018 Page |25 

Transportation Alternatives Funding (MAG TA)  
MAG receives an annual allocation of TA funding from ADOT that can be used to support SRTS projects. 
The Town of Florence, as a MAG member agency, is eligible to submit applications for this funding in 
partnerships with schools or school districts to use for infrastructure improvements that promote and 
encourage walking and biking to school as well as for non-infrastructure needs such as educational 
materials, trainings, data gathering and analysis, SRTS program support and others. The call for projects 
for TA funding typically begins in August in conjunction with the Transportation Improvement Program 
(TIP) Modal programming process.   
 
Non-Infrastructure SRTS/Support Activity Projects (MAG SRTS) 
MAG identifies funding set-aside (equal to nine percent of the total TA funding) to fund qualifying SRTS 
projects that would involve ONLY non-infrastructure projects, or ‘Support Activity Projects.’ Support 
Activity Projects are those considered to fund specific activities with the goal of encouragement, 
education, enforcement and evaluation activities. Examples include: yellow school crossing roll-out signs, 
crossing guard safety apparel, modest volunteer incentives for encouragement activities, bike helmets, 
and agency police staff overtime to assist with SRTS activities, among others. 
 
Crossing Guard Training Workshops 
Crossing Guard Training Workshops provide basic education and training to school crossing guards, thus 
meeting a basic but essential step to ensure that crossing guards do not compromise their own safety nor 
that of K-8 school children while performing their duties. All K-8 schools may utilize this workshop to train 
their school crossing guards free of charge. Workshops are typically held one to two weeks before the 
start of the school year; in 2018, the workshop will be held in Phoenix on July 26, Peoria on July 31 and 
Mesa on August 2.  More information on the annual training workshops can be found at srts.azmag.gov. 
 
 
Local 
Town of Florence Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 
The Town CIP can be leveraged to support the implementation of some of the SRTS strategies identified 
that involve Town-owned roadways. The Town has an annual budgeting process that identifies the 
departmental budgets and the programs and projects that will be funded for the next fiscal year. The CIP 
may be a potential source of funding for capital projects on public roadways including intersections, 
sidewalks or ramps, striping (including crosswalks) and signage. 
 
Non-Transportation Funding 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) Grant 
The CDC’s Office of Financial Resources awards and administers grants and cooperative agreements to 
state and local governments, domestic non-profits/educational institutions, and domestic for-profit 
groups with projects that support the mission of promoting health and quality of life by preventing and 
controlling disease, injury, and disability. Grants and cooperative agreements provide the means to 
transfer money, technical assistance, and expertise to partners in exchange for their contributions to 
federal public health goals and objectives. 
 
 
  



Safe Routes to School Study 
Anthem K-8 June 2018 Page |26 

Appendices 
 

Appendix A – Kickoff Meeting Agenda and Minutes 

Appendix B – Traffic, Pedestrian and Bicycle Count Data 

Appendix C – Student and Parent Survey Sheets 

Appendix D – Walkability Checklist Results 

Appendix E – Walking and Biking Map



Appendix A – Kickoff Meeting Agenda and Minutes 



   

AGENDA 
 

Safe Routes to School Study 
For 

Florence K-8 & Anthem K-8 Elementary Schools, Florence Unified School District 
In the Town of Florence 

MAG Task Order No. 0735-0I.SR1803 
 

Subject: SRTS Study Kick-Off Meeting 
Location: Florence Community Center, 778 N. Main Street, Ruggles 2 Room 
Date/Time: Tuesday December 19, 2017, 10:00 to 11:30 A.M. 

 

 
1. Introductions      Jennifer Evans, Town of Florence 

2. Purpose of the Study     Mike Blankenship, Greenlight TE 

3. SRTS – What it is and why it is important  Mike Blankenship, Greenlight TE 

4. Roles and Responsibilities     Margaret Boone, MAG Project Manager  

5. Key Action Items and Events   Mike Blankenship 
Data Collection 
Surveys 
Existing Information (see attachment) 
Observations 
Walking/Biking Assessment 
Neighborhood Meeting 
Document Review 
Comment Resolution Meeting 

6. Stakeholder Discussion    Principal, School Staff, District Staff, 
Parents, Town 

7. Next Steps      Mike Blankenship 

8. Questions      All 

 

 

  



 

Stakeholders Group Contact Information 
 

Safe Routes to School Study 
For 

Florence K-8 & Anthem K-8, Florence Unified School District 
In the Town of Florence 

 
Town of Florence 

Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst; Town of Florence, Stakeholder Team Leader 
jennifer.evans@florenceaz.gov, 520-868-7549 
Sgt. Renee Klix, Florence Police Department renee.klix@florenceaz.gov 
 

Florence Unified 
Mark Lamas, Director of Transportation and Support Services, Florence Unified School District 
mlamas@fusdaz.org 
 

Florence K-8 
Art Moncibaez, Florence K-8 Administration, School Team Leader amoncibaez@fusdaz.org 
Deanna Potter, Florence K-8 Principal dpotter@fusdaz.org 
Betty Stoupa, Florence K-8 Crossing Guard 
 

Anthem K-8 
Elwin Longnion, Anthem K-8 Administration, School Team Leader elongnion@fusdaz.org 
Carla Foss, Anthem K-8 Crossing Guard 

Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG) 
Margaret Boone, PE, ITS & Safety Engineer mboone@azmag.gov, 602-452-6300 

MAG Consultant: Wood, Greenlight Traffic Engineering & United Civil Group 
Mike Blankenship, PE mikeb@greenlightte.com, 623-308-6523 
Scott Kelly, PE, PTOE scottk@greenlightte.com, 602-499-1339 
Brian Fellows brian.fellows@woodplc.com, 602-502-2904 
Sarah Simpson, PE sarah@unitedcivilgroup.com, 602-643-0028 

  



 

Attachment  
Task 5a: Compile Existing Information  

 
Safe Routes to School Study 

For 

Florence K-8 & Anthem K-8 Elementary Schools, Florence Unified School District  

In the Town of Florence 

Existing School policies and programs related to SRTS (School) 
School site plans (District) 
School arrival and dismissal times (School, District) 
Locations of building entrances and exits (School) for; pick-up and drop-off, students walking, 
and students biking (bike rack locations)  
Walking/Bicycling boundaries (District, School) 
Number of buses picking up or dropping off students and locations of loading/unloading zones 
Number, locations, and duration of school crossing guards (School) 
Existing School Crossing Agreement (Town Traffic Engineer, School District) 
Established parking regulations and pick-up/drop-off procedures (Town, School Administration) 
Pedestrian/vehicle and bicycle/vehicle crash data, if available (Town)  
 

  



   

Attachment  
Schedule 

 
Safe Routes to School Study 

For 
Anthem K-8 and Florence K-8, Florence Unified School District 

In the Town of Florence 

 
 
d – Deliver data
M – Meeting
P – Progress Report
R – Review by Team
D – Draft document, memo, or meeting materials
F – Final SRTS Study Report document 

Anticipated NTP: (11/20/2017)

School Breaks/Starts/Ends
Task 1: Project Management & Progress Reports P P P P P
Task 2: Establish Stakeholders Group, Kick-off meeting

Task 2a: Establish SRTS Stakeholders Group

Task 2b: Conduct SRTS Study Kick-off Meetings (#1) M
Task 3: Data Collection d
Task 4: Surveys & SRTS Tools D D
Task 5: Assessment of Issues and Barriers - Existing Conditions Memo D R R

Task 5a: Compile Existing Information D
Task 5b: Study Area Inventories D
Task 5c: Pick-up and Drop-off Site Observations

Task 6: Walking/Biking Assessment (#2) & Meeting #3 D
Task 6a: Walking/Biking Assessment (Meeting #2) M D
Task 6b: Neighborhood Meeting (#3) M

Task 7: Develop Draft Study and Route Maps D
Task 8: Draft SRTS Study Review and Meeting #4 R R R M
Task 9: Finalize SRTS Study Document F

Months From NTP
Apr-18Feb-18Nov-17 Dec-17 Jan-18 Mar-18



   

Safe Routes to School Study for
Florence K-8 & Anthem K-8 Elementary Schools in the Town of Florence

MAG Task Order No. 0735-0I.SR1803

Kickoff Meeting Minutes

Date of Meeting Tuesday December 19, 2017 – 10:00 to 11:30 AM

Location Florence Community Center, Ruggles 2 Room 
778 N. Main Street, Florence

Subject Project Kickoff Meeting

Participants Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG) – Margaret Boone 
Town of Florence – Jennifer Evans
Florence K-8 School – Art Moncibaez
Greenlight Traffic Engineering – Mike Blankenship, Scott Kelley

Date of Issue December 21, 2017

The purpose of the meeting was to kickoff this Safe Routes to School (SRTS) project by reviewing 
scope of work and preliminary schedule. 

1. Purpose of the SRTS Study 
The overall goal of this study is to develop recommendations to improve the safety of 
students walking and biking to school. Generally, when safety is improved, more students 
will walk and bike to school, which has several benefits: 

o Improved children’s health
o Less traffic congestion near the school
o Improved air quality

Recommendations can include improvements in the public right-of-way by the Town, 
school site improvements, and recommendations for parents. Recommendations from 
SRTS studies can be used in applying for funding from various sources, including MAG’s 
SRTS program. This funding can be used for infrastructure projects such as school 
crosswalks and roll-out signs, and non-infrastructure projects like crossing guard safety 
vests and stop paddles.

2. Roles and Responsibilities                         
Margaret Boone will serve as the MAG project manager, guiding the consultant team 
which includes:
o Greenlight Traffic Engineering
o Amec Foster Wheeler
o United Civil Group



 

While the study is being led by MAG and its consultant team, it is ultimately a Town and 
Schools project. As such, an objective of the study is to foster communication and 
coordination between the Town and Schools. Communications to and from the
Consultant should be copied to Margaret Boone at MAG. The Town and Schools are the 
project champions that will be responsible for implementing recommendations, so it is 
crucial that these key stakeholders stay involved during the 5-month study to provide 
input. The following stakeholders have been identified; we would like the names of 
additional stakeholders that should be included in this process, including key parent 
champions:

Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst; Town of Florence, Stakeholder Team Leader 
Jess Knudson, Assistant Town Manager, Town of Florence (will be replaced)
Sgt. Renee Klix, Florence Police Department 
Mark Lamas, Director of Transportation and Support Services, FUSD 
Art Moncibaez, Florence K-8 Administration, School Team Leader
Betty Stoupa, Florence K-8 Crossing Guard
Elwin Longnion, Anthem K-8 Administration, School Team Leader (will be replaced)
Carla Foss, Anthem K-8 Crossing Guard
Town Public Works contact (to be determined)

Jennifer Evans from the Town will contact the school and district stakeholders not in
attendance to provide information discussed at the kick off meeting.

5. Key Action Items and Events                        
a. Data Collection

UCG has collected video for AM and PM counts of vehicles, pedestrians, and 
bicyclists at locations highlighted on the attached maps. This data is being analyzed 
and summarized. Mark indicated crossing concerns at the Main Street/Aguilar Street 
intersection where no crossing guards are stationed. 

b. Surveys
Student tally sheets will be distributed to the schools for teachers to ask students 
questions and record the numbers on a Tuesday, Wednesday, and/or Thursday. A 
Parent Survey will be distributed to the schools to be sent home with students, 
asking for 1 survey per family to be completed, either online or using the printed 
copy. Surveys are to be completed by the end of February (see attached Surveys). 
Notification and distribution options include the weekly email blast that the schools 
send, and at parent-teacher conferences in February.

c. Existing Information - This information has been requested to be delivered to the 
Consultant team via e-mail, copied to the MAG project manager no later than 
January 12, 2018
Information that needs to be captured includes:

Existing School policies and programs related to SRTS (School)
School site plans (District)
School arrival and dismissal times (School, District)
Locations of building entrances and exits (School) for; pick-up and drop-off, 
students walking, and students biking (bike rack locations) 
Walking/Bicycling boundaries (District, School)



 

Number of buses picking up or dropping off students and locations of 
loading/unloading zones
Number, locations, and duration of school crossing guards (School)
Existing School Crossing Agreement (Town Traffic Engineer, School District)
Established parking regulations and pick-up/drop-off procedures (Town, School 
Administration)
Pedestrian/vehicle and bicycle/vehicle crash data, if available (Town Police may 
have crash reports) 

Jennifer will communicate these needs to Mark Lamas, and Greenlight and/or MAG 
will follow-up with Mark to discuss these needs.

d. Observations
Greenlight will have a team observing during the school site arrivals and departures. 
The team will call the schools 1 day before the scheduled observations to make them 
aware of our presence, and the team will check-in at the schools on the observation 
days. Tentative schedule is the last week of January/first week of February.

e. Walking/Biking Assessment
The consultant team will assess transportation routes within the study boundary of 
the schools to assess the walking and biking friendliness. Parents are welcomed and 
encouraged to join the team to provide input on safety concerns. 1 mile is typically 
the walking/biking boundary around the schools, but this can vary due to other 
barriers (arterials, highways, other). Tentative schedule is February into the first 
week of March. 

f. Neighborhood Meeting
The consultant team will present findings from the school site observations and the 
walking/biking assessments to parents, school staff, and the Town to solicit 
feedback. This meeting is typically held at the schools during evening hours. 
Tentative schedule is early March. 

g. Document Development 
A draft study report will be developed to identify strategies to increase the number of 
children who walk and bike to school. The report will include a school walking and 
biking route map. Stakeholders will review the report for adjustments and revisions.

h. Comment Resolution Meeting
This meeting of the study team will address how to resolve issues voiced by 
stakeholders, parents, etc. to finalize the study document. Tentative schedule is to 
hold this meeting on an early release day (Wednesday, April 11 at 2:00 PM), with the 
Town, School Principals, and other key School staff participating. 

6. Additional Discussion                                
Margaret highlighted the MAG school crossing guard training and resources. School 
children start arriving at campus at 7:15 AM, even though the campus does not open until 
7:50 AM. There is a before and after school program that parents are not utilizing, possibly 
due to cost. School lets out at 3:20 PM, with kindergarten and 1st grade bus dismissal is at 
3:10 PM. Buses arrive at 7:45 AM, even though campus doesn’t open until 7:50 AM. The 
bus area is not enclosed, which creates safety concerns.



 

 

Appendix B – Traffic, Pedestrian and Bicycle Count Data



  

  

Lt Lt\T Thru T/Rt Rt Lt/T/Rt Lt/Rt

Northbound 1
Southbound 1

Location: Driveway 1 Eastbound 1 1
and American Way Westbound 1 1

Intersection Configuration: Unsignalized

####
12 0 1 0

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes
0 7:30 AM 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 1 0 2 0 6 0 0 0 2 11 0 0 0 23

70 38 7:45 AM 7 0 3 6 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 14 1 0 0 2 9 0 1 0 36

0 5 8:00 AM 10 0 0 2 1 1 0 8 2 1 0 13 5 0 0 0 15 0 0 2 52
41 49 8:15 AM 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 3 2 0 0 8 3 0 0 1 3 0 1 0 22 133
9 Peak Hour Total 20 0 7 8 2 1 0 12 5 3 0 41 9 0 0 5 38 0 2 2 133

N
14 20 0 7

####
8 0 3 0

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes
0 3:00 PM 3 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12 5 0 0 4 5 0 0 2 30

53 34 3:15 PM 7 0 1 2 1 2 0 1 1 0 0 8 1 0 0 2 8 0 1 0 30

0 12 3:30 PM 1 0 1 2 4 1 0 6 3 0 0 9 7 0 0 3 10 0 1 0 38
38 46 3:45 PM 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 9 3 0 0 3 11 0 0 0 29 127
16 Peak Hour Total 11 0 5 5 5 3 0 8 5 0 0 38 16 0 0 12 34 0 2 2 127

N
28 11 0 5

Peak 
Hour

Total Peak 
Hour

Northbound
South 

Crosswalk Southbound
North 

Crosswalk Eastbound
West 

Crosswalk Westbound
East 

Crosswalk

East 
Crosswalk

Total

Driveway 1 Driveway 1 American Way American Way

Northbound
South 

Crosswalk Southbound
3:00 PM

127

16

54

11

46

North 
Crosswalk Eastbound

West 
Crosswalk Westbound

50

13

43

133

27

Turning Movement Count

December 5, 2017 (Tuesday)
Speed Limit

25
15

Project No: TC17070

7:30 AM

35/15
35/15

Driveway 1 Driveway 1 American Way American Way



 

Lt Lt\T Thru T/Rt Rt Lt/T/Rt Lt/Rt

Northbound
Southbound 1 1

Location: Anthem Way Eastbound 1 1
and American Way Westbound 1

Intersection Configuration: Unsignalized

####
27 0 18 88

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes
37 7:30 AM 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 5 3 0 2 4 0 0 0 0 11 2 2 4 24

60 33 7:45 AM 0 0 0 2 0 4 0 4 21 13 17 15 0 0 0 0 6 10 25 19 56

51 0 8:00 AM 0 0 0 1 0 9 0 15 5 6 30 8 0 0 0 0 12 23 12 10 97
32 50 8:15 AM 0 0 0 1 0 5 0 3 1 0 2 5 0 0 0 0 4 2 4 0 21 198
0 Peak Hour Total 0 0 0 5 0 18 0 27 30 19 51 32 0 0 0 0 33 37 43 33 198

N
0 0 0 0

####
25 0 26 53

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes
22 3:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 6 0 2 0 0 8 10 0 1 0 0 1 7 0 0 34

55 30 3:15 PM 0 0 0 1 0 4 0 5 12 3 14 7 0 0 0 0 7 8 34 9 45

31 0 3:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 9 0 16 15 11 7 6 0 0 0 0 11 6 19 18 55
32 58 3:45 PM 0 0 0 2 0 7 0 2 0 1 2 9 0 0 0 0 11 1 0 1 32 166
0 Peak Hour Total 0 0 0 3 0 26 0 25 27 15 31 32 0 1 0 0 30 22 53 28 166

N
0 0 0 0

7:30 AM

35/15
35/15

Anthem Way Anthem Way American Way American Way

Turning Movement Count

December 5, 2017 (Tuesday)
Speed Limit

35/15
Project No: TC17070

83

45

70

198

0

52

North 
Crosswalk Eastbound

West 
Crosswalk Westbound

3:00 PM

166

0

63

51
Anthem Way Anthem Way American Way American Way

Northbound
South 

Crosswalk Southbound

Total Peak 
Hour

Northbound
South 

Crosswalk Southbound
North 

Crosswalk Eastbound
West 

Crosswalk Westbound
East 

Crosswalk

East 
Crosswalk

Total
Peak 
Hour



 

Lt Lt\T Thru T/Rt Rt Lt/T/Rt Lt/Rt

Northbound 1 1
Southbound 1 1

Location: Anthem Way Eastbound 1
and Congressional Way Westbound 1 1

Intersection Configuration: Unsignalized

####
6 113 0 144

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes
114 7:30 AM 0 2 0 0 0 0 18 3 1 0 4 0 0 1 0 2 0 7 0 0 36

15 8 7:45 AM 0 6 0 2 0 0 39 1 1 0 3 0 0 4 1 3 0 22 3 1 74

12 32 8:00 AM 1 8 0 1 2 0 42 2 3 0 3 0 1 10 1 22 5 60 0 0 144
0 0 8:15 AM 0 2 0 0 0 0 14 0 2 0 2 0 1 1 0 5 3 25 0 0 52 306
2 Peak Hour Total 1 18 0 3 2 0 113 6 7 0 12 0 2 16 2 32 8 114 3 1 306

N
147 1 18 0

####
15 68 0 94

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes
66 3:00 PM 0 7 0 0 0 0 22 6 1 0 3 0 0 1 0 2 0 4 0 0 44

20 4 3:15 PM 1 4 0 0 0 0 16 3 0 0 5 0 0 10 0 11 2 24 0 0 66

11 25 3:30 PM 0 5 0 0 1 0 18 5 0 0 2 0 1 16 1 10 2 28 0 0 71
0 0 3:45 PM 0 1 0 2 0 0 12 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 2 0 10 0 1 27 208
1 Peak Hour Total 1 17 0 2 1 0 68 15 1 0 11 0 1 27 1 25 4 66 0 1 208

N
94 1 17 0

7:30 AM

25
15

Anthem Way Anthem Way Congressional Way Congressional Way

Turning Movement Count

December 5, 2017 (Tuesday)
Speed Limit

35/15
35/15

Project No: TC17070

14

119

154

306

19

95

North 
Crosswalk Eastbound

West 
Crosswalk Westbound

3:00 PM

208

18

12

83
Anthem Way Anthem Way Congressional Way Congressional Way

Northbound
South 

Crosswalk Southbound

Total Peak 
Hour

Northbound
South 

Crosswalk Southbound
North 

Crosswalk Eastbound
West 

Crosswalk Westbound
East 

Crosswalk

East 
Crosswalk

Total
Peak 
Hour



Lt Lt\T Thru T/Rt Rt Lt/T/Rt Lt/Rt

Northbound 1
Southbound 1 1

Location: Anthem Way Eastbound
and Driveway 3 Westbound 1

Intersection Configuration: Unsignalized

####
0 44 118 16

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes
0 7:30 AM 0 2 6 0 0 17 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 29

0 0 7:45 AM 0 2 11 0 0 29 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 1 47

0 0 8:00 AM 0 8 42 0 0 42 21 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 2 113
0 195 8:15 AM 0 4 18 0 0 30 14 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 66 255
0 Peak Hour Total 0 16 77 0 0 118 44 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 21 3 255

N
44 0 16 77

####
0 45 42 16

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes Left Thru Right Peds Bikes
0 3:00 PM 0 7 12 2 0 17 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 39

0 0 3:15 PM 0 2 17 0 0 13 19 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 20 1 51

0 0 3:30 PM 0 5 5 0 0 7 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 29
0 78 3:45 PM 0 2 2 0 0 5 11 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 20 139
0 Peak Hour Total 0 16 36 2 0 42 45 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 22 1 139

N
45 0 16 36

Peak 
Hour

Total Peak 
Hour

Northbound
South 

Crosswalk Southbound
North 

Crosswalk Eastbound
West 

Crosswalk Westbound
East 

Crosswalk

East 
Crosswalk

Total

Anthem Way Anthem Way Driveway 3 Driveway 3

Northbound
South 

Crosswalk Southbound
3:00 PM

139

52

0

87

0

North 
Crosswalk Eastbound

West 
Crosswalk Westbound

0

162

0

255

93

Turning Movement Count

December 5, 2017 (Tuesday)
Speed Limit

35/15
35/15

Project No: TC17070

7:30 AM

15

Anthem Way Anthem Way Driveway 3 Driveway 3



   

Appendix C – Student and Parent Survey Sheets 

  



 

 



 

 



 



   

Appendix D – Walkability Checklist Results 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

Appendix E - Walking and Biking Map



 

 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
7b. 

MEETING DATE:  August 20, 2018 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Development Services 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Christopher A. Salas,  
                                      Development Services Director 
                                      Town Engineer 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   
         Subject:  Contract with Rottweiler Controls for SCADA upgrade                                        Meeting Date:  August 20, 2018  
Page 1 of 2             

 
SUBJECT:  Contract with Rottweiler Controls, LLC, to provide 
SCADA repairs and maintenance, in an amount not to exceed 
$50,000.00 through June 30, 2019.    
 

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality        Economic Prosperity   Leadership and Governance     

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to contract with Rottweiler Controls, LLC, to provide SCADA repairs and 
maintenance through the Cooperative Contract #31700019, with the City of Buckeye, 
through June 30, 2019, in an amount not to exceed $50,000.   
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Town’s water distribution system utilizes SCADA system for operation and monitoring 
of well sites and the distribution system pressure.  The current system has limited features 
that does not allow Water Operators to see and control various pieces of equipment in the 
system. 
 
An upgrade to the current SCADA system would allow the Town’s water utility to be more 
efficient regarding operations and customer service. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 
 
A vote of no would mean the Town operates under the current outdated system. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 
 
A vote of yes would improve our operations, avoid future issues and improve customer 
service. 



         Subject:  Contract with Rottweiler Controls for SCADA upgrade                                        Meeting Date:  August 20, 
2018  

Page 2 of 2             

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The cost to provide parts will not exceed $50,000.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 Exhibit A – Scope of Work 
 Approved Bid Tab 
 City of Buckeye RFQ 417007 SCADA Improvements On-Call List 
 Rottweiler Controls, LLC Response to RFQ 417007 
 Approved City of Buckeye Contract #31700019 Expires June 30, 2019 
 Professional Services Contract 
 
 

 







 

 
CITY OF BUCKEYE 

 
 

 
REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 

RFQ: 417007 
 
 

SCADA IMPROVEMENTS ON-CALL LIST 
 
 
 

CONTACT PERSON 
Erin Gilbert 

Purchasing Agent 
Construction and Contracting Division 

623.349.6173 
egilbert@buckeyeaz.gov  

 
 

Date Issued:  Tuesday, March 28, 2017 
Pre-Submittal Conference:  Thursday, April 13,2017 at 10:30am 
Last Day for Inquires:  Thursday, April 20, 2017 at 5:00pm 
RFQ Due Date:  Thursday, April 27, 2017at 4:00pm 

 
 
 

PLEASE NOTE:  IF DOCUMENTS WERE DOWNLOADED FROM THE CITY OF BUCKEYE WEBSITE, 
BIDDER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING ANY ADDENDA EITHER THROUGH UPDATES ON THE 
WEBSITE, OR BY CONTACTING THE CITY CONTACT PERSON LISTED ABOVE.  

mailto:egilbert@buckeyeaz.gov


 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
SECTION 1 Introduction ........................................................................................................ 1 
SECTION 2 Project Summary/Scope of Work ....................................................................... 1 
SECTION 3 Pre-Submittal Conference .................................................................................. 2 
SECTION 4 Submittal Requirements ..................................................................................... 2 
 TAB A – Firm Information/Cover Letter ........................................................................... 4 
 TAB B – Experience of Firm .............................................................................................. 4 
 TAB C – Experience of Key Personnel .............................................................................. 5 
 TAB D – Qualifications of Key Personnel ......................................................................... 5 
SECTION 5 Selection Process ................................................................................................ 5 
SECTION 6 General Information ........................................................................................... 6 

City Rights ........................................................................................................................ 6 
Acceptance of Evaluation Methodology .......................................................................... 6 
Release of Project Information ........................................................................................ 6 
Contact with City Employees ........................................................................................... 6 
Data Confidentiality ......................................................................................................... 7 
Legal Worker Requirements ............................................................................................ 7 
Lawful Presence Requirement ......................................................................................... 7 
Protest Procedures .......................................................................................................... 7 
Suspension/Debarment ................................................................................................... 7 
Questions ......................................................................................................................... 7 

 
EXHIBITS 
A SCADA Program Document ................................................................................ 8 
 
 

RFQ 417007 
SCADA IMPROVEMENTS ON-CALL LIST

i



1 
 

SECTION 1 - INTRODUCTION  
 
The City of Buckeye is seeking qualified Instrumentations and Controls (I&C) and 
Supervisory Controls and Data Acquisition (SCADA) Firms to provide I&C and SCADA 
design and construction services related to implementation of the City of Buckeye SCADA 
Improvements Program for the City of Buckeye water services department. 
 
The City of Buckeye SCADA Improvements Program includes upgrades and improvements 
to SCADA systems at Water Facilities within the City of Buckeye, as well as evaluation and 
development of costs and detailed designs of improvements at Wastewater Facilities. 
Relevant portions of the SCADA Program document are included as EXHIBIT A. The SCADA 
Program document provides key information and must be reviewed prior to submitting. 
 
The SCADA Improvements Program on-call list will be in effect for one (1) year, with an 
option of renewal for four (4) additional one-year periods, if determined to be in the City’s 
best interest. 
 
The City reserves the right to award in whole or in part, by item or group of items, or 
make multiple awards, where such action serves the City’s best interest. 
The City reserves the right to add additional firms, at the City’s sole discretion, in cases 
where the currently listed firms are of an insufficient number or skill-set to satisfy the 
City’s needs or to ensure adequate competition on any project or task order work. 
 
Any Contract resulting from this solicitation shall be for the use of the City of Buckeye. In 
addition, specific eligible political subdivisions and nonprofit educational or public health 
institutions may also participate at their discretion. In order to participate in any resultant 
contract, a political subdivision or nonprofit educational or public health institution must 
have been invited to participate in this specific solicitation and the contractor must be in 
agreement with the cooperative transaction. In addition to cooperative purchasing, any 
eligible agency may elect to participate (piggyback) on any resultant contract; the specific 
eligible political subdivision, nonprofit educational or public health institution and the 
contractor must be in agreement.  
 
Any Task Order placed to the successful contractor will be placed by the specific agencies 
participating in this purchase. Payment for purchases made under this agreement will be the 
sole responsibility of each participating agency. The City of Buckeye shall not be responsible 
for any disputes arising out of transactions made by others. 
 
SECTION 2 - ON-CALL CONSULTING SERVICE CATEGORIES/SCOPE(s) OF WORK: 
 
The following is a list of the types of projects that the City anticipates over the life of the 
SCADA Improvements Program. This list of project categories is not comprehensive and the 
City reserves the right to add related services as necessary. 
 

RFQ 417007 
SCADA IMPROVEMENTS ON-CALL LIST



2 
 

Category 1: Control Panel Design, Build and Installation - May include the following 
services: 
• Design of new control panels 
• Design of control panels retrofits or replacements, including site visits to develop 

documentation of existing conditions as required 
• Participate in design review meetings 
• Development of detailed control panel cost estimates 
• Development of control panel shop drawings 
• Development of detailed delivery schedule for control panel assembly 
• Build control panels 
• Perform Factory Acceptance Test, including loading basic PLC program for testing 

purposes 
• Development of final “As-Built” drawings 
• Installation of new control panels 
• Removal of existing control panel components 
• Installation of control panel components in retrofitted panels 
• Perform site acceptance testing  
• Provide startup/cutover support 
 
Note: The City anticipates design, build and installation of up to 20 control panels as part of 
the SCADA Improvements Program. 
 
Category 2: SCADA System Programming – May include the following services: 
• Development of new SCADA screens or updates to existing SCADA screens including 

monitor and control, alarming and reporting 
• Development of new or updates to existing Programmable Logic Controller (PLC) 

code 
 
SECTION 3 – PRE-SUBMITTAL CONFERENCE 
 
The Mandatory pre-submittal conference has been scheduled for April 13 at 10:30 AM at 
Buckeye City Hall, 530 East Monroe Avenue, Buckeye, AZ 85326, 1st Floor Executive 
Conference Room. Attendance is Mandatory. 
 
SECTION 4 – SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
In a one page cover letter, submitted with your Statement of Qualifications (SOQ) 
packet, indicate which category(s) of services your firm wishes to be considered for. 
  
A separate SOQ shall be submitted for each category of services that the firm wishes to 
be considered for. The SOQ will be submitted on a separate FLASH DRIVE, in PDF format. 
Each FLASH DRIVE will be labeled with the RFQ title above, the firm name and the 
category the firm wishes to be considered for. Firms are to submit their individual 

RFQ 417007 
SCADA IMPROVEMENTS ON-CALL LIST



3 
 

qualifications and experience for each category. No team submittals will be accepted. 
 
Interested firms should submit a qualifications packet addressing the specified Request for 
Qualifications (SOQ) criteria. On the submittal packet, please display the firm name and 
RFQ title. In the SOQ packet include the one page cover letter and ONE FLASH DRIVE for 
each category the firm wishes to be considered for, no later than 4:00 p.m., Thursday, April 
27, 2017, to: 
 
Construction and Contracting Division 
Second Floor, City Hall 
530 East Monroe Ave. 
Buckeye, Arizona 85326 
Attention: ERIN GILBERT 
 
Please be advised that failure to comply with the following criteria will be grounds for 
disqualification and will be strictly enforced: 

• Receipt of submittal by the specified date and time. 
• Six (6) Computer Disks for each category that the firm wishes to be considered for. 
• Adherence to maximum page requirement. 
• Deposit of submittal in correct location. 
• Acknowledgement in the cover letter that the City’s Professional Services Agreement 

has been reviewed by the firm submitting the SOQ packet(s) and the firm’s assurance 
to execute this agreement as written. 

 
Adherence to the maximum page criterion is critical. Submittals are not returnable and will 
become the property of the City of Buckeye. 
 
All questions regarding this Statement of Qualifications are to be addressed in writing or by 
e-mail to: 
 
Erin Gilbert 
Construction and Contracting Division 
Second Floor, City Hall 
530 East Monroe Ave. 
Buckeye, Arizona 85326 
E-Mail: Tvogel@buckeyeaz.gov 
 
A separate Statement of Qualifications (SOQ) shall be submitted for each category of 
services that the firm wishes to be considered for. Firms are to submit their individual 
qualifications and experience for each category. No team submittals will be accepted. 
 
NOTE: For the convenience of the Review Committee; All responses to the RFQ items A 
through C shall be formatted for each category as follows:  

RFQ 417007 
SCADA IMPROVEMENTS ON-CALL LIST



4 
 

• All page limits in accordance with each paragraph A-C. 
• Pages are designated as 8.5” x 11” with 1” Margins using Times New Roman, 10 point 

font or larger. 
• Firms shall provide responses to items A through C, in alphabetical order for each 

SOQ. 
• Appendices with additional information shall not be included and are not allowed. 
 
Firms interested in being selected for the City of Buckeye On-Call Consulting services list 
should submit a response addressing the specified SOQ criteria, as listed below. Parties 
interested in being selected for the On-Call list must address the following issues: 
 
A. FIRM INFORMATION (1 Page Limit): General information of Firm 
1. Provide the following information, which will serve as the cover page of your SOQ. 

• Name of Firm 
• Brief description of firm 
• Categories your firm wishes to be considered for 
• Home office location and the location of the office that will be performing the 

majority of the work 
• Number of employees in the office that will be performing the majority of the work 
• Name of Primary contact and title, including phone number and email 
• Legal organization of the firm 
• Arizona business and/or professional licenses/registrations held by the firm 
• Contract(s) or subcontract(s) which have been terminated within the last five years. 
• Any litigation or arbitration actions within the last three years.  Briefly describe the 

circumstances and the outcomes. 
 

2. Describe how your firm will support the team and project in the following ways. 
• Financial and leadership resources 
• Project management systems and tools 

 
3. List the category elements that will be performed in-house and elements that require 
the services of a sub- consultant. For any sub-consultant services provide the name (only) of 
one firm. 
 
B.   EXPERIENCE OF FIRM (1 Page Limit): 

• List only projects awarded to your firm in the last two years per the following: 
• Should include similar elements as the category you want to be considered for. 
• Must be in Arizona 
• Contracts must be under $400,000. State if contract was for design services only or if 

CA services were also included 
• One sentence project description 
• Contract amount 
• Completion or estimated completion date 

RFQ 417007 
SCADA IMPROVEMENTS ON-CALL LIST



5 
 

• Procurement method (direct select, selected by RFQ, On-Call list) 
• Provide at least two general references, with contact information include full name, 

location, phone number and/or email address. 
 
C.   EXPERIENCE OF KEY PERSONNEL: (Page limits indicated in paragraph 1-3) 
 
1. ORGANIZATIONAL CHART: (1 page limit) 
Provide an organization chart showing all key personnel that could be performing work 
under this On-Call consultant services contract. Include lines of authority and their home 
office location. 
 
2.    RESUMES OF KEY PERSONNEL IDENTIFIED ABOVE: (1 page per person) 

• Industry and firm tenure 
• License/registrations 
• Their primary role and duties in 30 words or less. 
• Two general references (outside of firm), with contact information (phone number 

and/or email). 
 
D.   QUALIFICATIONS OF KEY PERSONNEL: (1 page per person) 
 
For each key personnel identified above provide two projects with similar elements as the 
category you want to be considered for. If a project selected for a key person is the same as 
one selected for the firm, provide just the project name and the role of the key person. 
For projects other than one selected for the firm provide the following: 
 

• One sentence project description 
• Role and responsibility of the key person 
• Contract amount 
• Completion or estimated completion date 
• Procurement method (direct select, selected by RFQ, On-Call list) 

 
SECTION 5 - SELECTION PROCESS AND SCHEDULE 
 
Your SOQ will be evaluated based on your firm’s responses to the SOQ criteria and the 
quality of the SOQ. 
 
A Selection Committee organized for this On-Call RFQ will review and evaluate the 
submittals and will use a forced ranking system. No individual points will be assigned to 
the criteria above. The results of the individual rankings will be submitted to a City 
Management Team for final review and selection. There will be no oral interviews as part of 
the selection process.  The qualifying Consultants, as determined by the City Management 
Team, will be notified in writing within four to five weeks of the submittal deadline. 
 

RFQ 417007 
SCADA IMPROVEMENTS ON-CALL LIST



6 
 

The City intends to select up to 4 qualified firms for each category. 
 
The city will maintain an assignment list and will assign projects based on city needs and 
selected firm’s experience. Staffing substitutions must be approved by the city in writing 
prior to execution of a Task Order. 
 
The intent of this process is to provide an opportunity for qualified firms wishing to work for 
the City and to provide for equitable distribution of work for those selected firms.  Firms 
selected for the on-call list are free to pursue any other RFQ/RFP publicly advertised by the 
City without jeopardizing their on-call status. It is not the City’s intention to discontinue 
requesting RFQs/RFPs for projects, if determined to be in the City’s best interest. 
 
No reimbursement will be made by the City for any costs incurred for this SOQ submittal 
process. The City also reserves the right to reject any and all proposals and re-solicit or 
cancel this procurement if deemed by the City to be in its best interest. 
 
SECTION 6 - GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Sample Contract. An example of the City’s Professional Services Agreement is attached as 
Exhibit 2. 
 
City Rights. The City of Buckeye reserves the right to reject any or all Statements of 
Qualifications, to waive any informality or irregularity in any Statement of Qualifications 
received, and to be the sole judge of the merits of the respective Statements of 
Qualifications received. 
 
Acceptance of Evaluation Methodology. By submitting its Qualifications in response to this 
SOQ, respondent acknowledges and accepts the evaluation process, the established criteria 
and associated forced ranking system, and that determination of the “most qualified” firm(s) 
will require subjective judgments by the City. 
 
Release of Project Information. The City shall provide the release of all public information 
concerning this project, including selection announcements and contract award. Those 
desiring to release information to the public must receive prior written approval from the 
City. 
 
Contact with City Employees. All firms interested in this project (including the firm’s 
employees, representatives, agents, lobbyists, attorneys, and subcontractors) will refrain, 
under penalty of disqualification, from direct or indirect contact for the purpose of 
influencing the selection or creating bias in the selection process with any person who may 
play a part in the selection process, including the evaluation panel, the City Manager, 
Department Heads and other City staff. This policy is intended to create a level playing field 
for all potential firms, assure that contract decisions are made in public and to protect the 

RFQ 417007 
SCADA IMPROVEMENTS ON-CALL LIST



7 
 

integrity of the selection process. All contact on this selection process should be addressed 
to the authorized representative identified in Section 4 above. 
 
Data Confidentiality. Except as specifically provided in the Contract, the Contractor or its 
subcontractors shall not divulge data to any third party without prior written consent of the 
City. 
 
Legal Worker Requirements. The City of Buckeye is prohibited by A.R.S. § 41-4401 from 
awarding a contract to any contractor who fails, or whose subcontractors fail, to comply with 
A.R.S. § 23-214(A). The contractor and each subcontractor shall comply with all federal 
immigration laws and regulations related to their employees and compliance with the stated 
law. The City of Buckeye retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any contractor or 
subcontractor employee who is awarded a contract to ensure that the firm or subcontractor 
is complying with the law. 
 
Lawful Presence Requirement. Pursuant to A.R.S. §§ 1-501 and 1-502, the City of Buckeye is 
prohibited from awarding a contract to any natural person who cannot establish that such 
person is lawfully present in the United States. To establish lawful presence, a person must 
produce qualifying identification and sign a City-provided affidavit affirming that the 
identification provided is genuine. This requirement will be imposed at the time of contract 
award. This requirement does not apply to business organizations such as corporations, 
partnerships or limited liability companies. 
 
Protest Procedures. Firms wishing to respond to disqualification or a procurement outcome 
may refer to The Procurement Code of the City of Buckeye, Section 24-3-16 which governs 
protest procedures utilized throughout the selection process.  
 
Suspension/Debarment. By submitting a proposal in response to this solicitation, the 
respondent is certifying that it is neither debarred nor suspended nor under consideration 
for suspension or debarment by any federal, state or local government or agency. If a 
respondent is not able to so certify, the respondent must submit a letter that identifies the 
agency involved and a contact and explains why respondent is suspended or debarred or 
being considered for suspension or debarment.  
 
Questions. Questions pertaining to this selection process or contract issues should be 
directed to Erin Gilbert, Purchasing Agent, Construction and Contracting Division at (623) 
349-6173. All questions must be received no later than seven (7) days in advance of the SOQ 
due date. Responses to questions that materially change the scope or intent of this SOQ will 
be issued via addendum on the City of Buckeye website. The City will not notify Respondents 
of posting of addenda. Therefore, it is the Respondents’ sole responsibility to check the 
website periodically for all issued addenda. Failure to include acknowledgement of all 
addenda may be cause for rejection of the proposal. 
 
 

RFQ 417007 
SCADA IMPROVEMENTS ON-CALL LIST



8 
 

EXHIBIT A 
TO 

RFQ NO. 417007 
SCADA IMPROVEMENTS ON CALL LIST 

 
 
 

SCADA PROGRAM DOCUMENT 
 
 

(See following pages) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RFQ 417007 
SCADA IMPROVEMENTS ON-CALL LIST



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

SCADA Program 

 

 
 

Prepared for 

City of Buckeye 
 

November 2016 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

672-22-16-03 
 
 

 





 
 
Table of Contents  

 

November 2016 i City of Buckeye  

n\c\672\22-16-03 City of Buckeye\WP\102116_Buckeye  SCADA Program 

Executive Summary ...................................................................................................................................... 1 

1.0 Program Scope ....................................................................................................................................... 1 

2.0 Program Inputs and Assumptions ........................................................................................................... 2 

2.1 City of Buckeye IT Involvement ........................................................................................................ 2 

2.2 Facilities Excluded from the Program ............................................................................................... 2 

2.3 Program Delivery Approach ............................................................................................................. 2 

2.4 SCADA Software and Hardware Selection ...................................................................................... 2 

3.0 Background ............................................................................................................................................. 3 

3.1 SCADA Software .............................................................................................................................. 3 

3.2 Programmable Logic Controller Hardware ....................................................................................... 3 

3.3 Communications Network ................................................................................................................. 3 

3.4 Current System Status – SCADA Software ...................................................................................... 3 

3.5 Current System Status – PLC Hardware .......................................................................................... 3 

3.6 Current System Status – Communications Network ........................................................................ 4 

4.0 Program Drivers ...................................................................................................................................... 4 

5.0 Recommendations .................................................................................................................................. 4 

5.1 SCADA Software .............................................................................................................................. 4 

5.2 PLC Hardware .................................................................................................................................. 5 

5.3 Communications Network ................................................................................................................. 5 

5.4 Project Delivery ................................................................................................................................ 6 

5.5 Project Grouping ............................................................................................................................... 6 

5.6 Engineering Budget Analysis ............................................................................................................ 7 

5.7 Program Progress Reporting ............................................................................................................ 8 
5.7.1 Gantt Chart .............................................................................................................................. 8 
5.7.2 Task Cost Overview ................................................................................................................ 8 

 

List of Tables 

Table 1. Project Grouping by Status....................................................................................................... 7 

Table 2. Project Cost Inputs ................................................................................................................... 8 

 

  



 
 
Table of Contents  

 

November 2016 ii City of Buckeye  

n\c\672\22-16-03 City of Buckeye\WP\102116_Buckeye  SCADA Program 

List of Appendices 

Appendix A: Facilities List 

Appendix B: Program Manager Scope of Work Outline 

Appendix C: SCADA Software List 

Appendix D: PLC List 

Appendix E: E1: Current Network System Architecture, E2: Proposed System Architecture 

Appendix F: F1: Program Schedule (ANSI D size), F2: Program Schedule (ANSI B size) 

Appendix G: Engineering Budget Analysis 

Appendix H: Gantt Chart 

Appendix I: Task Cost Overview (Template) 

 

  



 

 

November 2016 1 City of Buckeye 

n\c\672\22-16-03 City of Buckeye\WP\102116_Buckeye  SCADA Program 

SCADA Program  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The City of Buckeye (City) owns and operates over 47 water treatment, wastewater reclamation, 
water distribution, and office sites throughout the City. These systems are monitored and 
controlled by Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) systems. Many of the facilities 
were acquired by the City over time and have inconsistencies. These facilities and systems need 
to be integrated into the overall City SCADA system. 

The Program intent is to integrate Water SCADA systems into a single City SCADA system, with 
consistency and standardization. Wastewater SCADA systems are not included in the Program, 
but will be addressed in a separate effort. 

Key decisions and inputs from the City informed the Program development, including the City’s 
Information Technology (IT) department involvement for communications, network and 
cybersecurity; prior selection of SCADA hardware and software and previous efforts led by the 
City relative to the SCADA system; City-preferred project delivery approaches and key facilities 
that are excluded from the Program. 

One of the key recommendations for the Program is for the City to execute all SCADA related 
projects as a single program with a Program Manager (PgM) providing key services for the City, 
and prequalified contractors providing construction and field related services. 

The Program has been organized into eight projects with a planned duration of approximately 
24 months, including current ongoing projects being executed by the City. An engineering budget 
analysis recommends a planning budget of $2.9M, including a recommended 30 percent 
Owner’s Contingency. 

1.0 PROGRAM SCOPE 

The Program includes upgrades to SCADA hardware, software and network communications at 
47 water treatment, water distribution, and office sites throughout the City. Appendix A - Facilities 
List includes a list of all facilities evaluated for the Program and identifies facilities included and 
excluded from the Program.  

City infrastructure excluded from the Program includes water reclamation facilities (WRFs) and 
other facilities that are either currently offline or require significant physical rehabilitation. These 
facilities are not included in the Program due to the significant equipment, process and 
instrumentation upgrade requirements that would limit the value of a SCADA system. While 
SCADA system upgrades to the WRFs are not included in the Program scope of work, the scope 
does include sufficient evaluation of the WRFs to develop scope, schedule and budget for a future, 
separate WRF Upgrade Program. 

  



SCADA Program  

 

November 2016 2 City of Buckeye 

n\c\672\22-16-03 City of Buckeye\WP\102116_Buckeye  SCADA Program 

2.0 PROGRAM INPUTS AND ASSUMPTIONS 

This section summarizes inputs and decisions from the City that provided the basis for 
development of the Program. It is important to note that any changes to these decisions made by 
the City may have significant impact to the scope, schedule and budget of the Program. 

2.1  City of Buc ke ye IT Inv o lvemen t 

The City has decided that all network communications for the program will be provided by the 
City’s IT group (CoBIT). CoBIT has completed a significant portion of the network 
communications design and has developed budgetary costs for hardware required at each site 
(approximately $3,000 per site for network hardware). 

In order to meet the Program schedule, CoBIT may utilize staff augmentation services and 
contracts to deliver network communications to different sites. CoBIT will also be responsible for 
all SCADA computer hardware and base operating system software. CoBIT will not be responsible 
for SCADA system software configuration or Programmable Logic Controllers (PLC) 
programming. Costs for CoBIT labor have not been included in the Program budget, however, 
costs for network equipment associated with each site have been included in the Program budget. 

2.2  Fa cil ities  Exc lud ed  fro m the Prog ram  

As discussed earlier, certain facilities have been excluded from the Program for various reasons. No 
allowances for schedule or costs for these facilities have been included in the Program. If the status 
of these facilities change, the Program scope, schedule and budget will be need to be adjusted to 
accommodate inclusion of these facilities. The Program budget includes Owner’s Contingencies 
(30 percent) that may be used for some additional facilities, but it is not sufficient to address issues 
at all facilities excluded from the Program. 

2.3  Prog ram  Delivery  App roac h  

The City has decided to procure the services of a PgM firm to assist in delivering this Program. 
The City will also prequalify up to three contractors to execute the work. The PgM will assist the 
City in selecting and managing multiple contractors that will be simultaneously delivering multiple 
projects in the Program.  

A preliminary outline of a PgM scope of work has been included in Appendix B—Program 
Manager Scope of Work Outline. Additional details on the recommended program delivery 
approach are included in Section 1.6.4. 

2.4  SCADA Soft ware  an d Hard ware  Selec tion  

The City has decided to make maximum use of its existing investment in Allen Bradley PLCs and 
Wonderware software, and stay with those technologies. Therefore, no hardware or software 
selection process has been included in the Program. In other words, the City has decided to 
sole-source the hardware and software to match existing equipment and systems for compatibility 
and long-term maintainability. 



SCADA Program  

 

November 2016 3 City of Buckeye 

n\c\672\22-16-03 City of Buckeye\WP\102116_Buckeye  SCADA Program 

3.0 BACKGROUND 

The City operates water treatment, water distribution, wastewater reclamation and lift stations 
throughout the City. The system controlling these facilities is referred to as the “SCADA System.” 

3.1  SCADA Soft ware   

SCADA software functions as the operator interface, providing monitoring and control of key 
processes/systems and alarming capability. SCADA software generally runs on standard IT-type 
hardware and is especially vulnerable to cyber attack incidents due to the way many systems are 
designed and implemented, as well as inherent weaknesses in the way the software communicates 
with PLCs. 

Modern SCADA software, including the Wonderware System Platform, supports key functionality 
including code reuse and computer hardware virtualization, which is currently being used by CoBIT. 

3.2  Program mable  Logic  Con trol ler  Hard ware  

PLCs are industrial controllers usually located in the field near the equipment being monitored and 
controlled. These controllers house the “logic” that operates the field equipment based on control 
strategies as defined by the engineer designing the facility or the equipment manufacturer. PLCs 
are programmed using PLC software. Newer PLCs, such as the Allen Bradley Logix family of 
controllers, use programming software RsLogix5000, which enables key features such as 
code-reuse, that can provide significant reductions in programming efforts for large system 
deployments, such as the planned Program.  

3.3  Communica tion s  Net work  

Network equipment provides communication between the PLCs in the field and the SCADA 
software. Older network equipment utilizes communications methods known as “serial” or other 
proprietary protocols. Most modern SCADA equipment and PLCs use modern communications 
protocols, including Ethernet (IEEE 802.3). These modern protocols can be routed and managed 
by standard IT-type network devices, and monitored and protected using standard IT cybersecurity 
equipment and software. 

3.4  Current System Status  – SCADA Soft ware  

The City’s SCADA system consists of several systems more recently purchased, along with 
systems and equipment historically part of the City. The majority of the SCADA system uses 
Wonderware software, provided by Schneider Electric. The SCADA software versions vary 
significantly from area to area and are not currently integrated. Appendix C—SCADA Software 
List includes locations and current software versions.  

3.5  Current System Status  – PLC Hard ware  

The current SCADA system contains over 50 PLCs located throughout the City facilities. Many 
PLCs in the field are Allen Bradley models, manufactured by Rockwell Automation. There are a 
few PLCs in the field made by other manufacturers, including Modicon (manufactured by 
Schneider). Many PLCs are outdated or lack proper documentation both for field wiring and 
programming. In the past, PLC programming implementations lacked standardization, and some 



SCADA Program  

 

November 2016 4 City of Buckeye 

n\c\672\22-16-03 City of Buckeye\WP\102116_Buckeye  SCADA Program 

PLCs have very complex code implemented that is inconsistent with physical system complexity. 
Appendix D—PLC List includes a list of all PLCs that will be replaced as part of the Program. 
Replacement of PLC hardware will also include rewrite of the PLC code using standardized code. 

3.6  Current System Status  – Commun ica tion s Ne twork 

The current communications network has been documented based on interviews and discussions 
with CoBIT, operations and SCADA personnel. Appendix E1—Network System Architecture 
shows the current system as of publication of this report. The system is currently a mixture of 
standard City IT network equipment, existing serial communications and some proprietary 
communications methods. 

4.0 PROGRAM DRIVERS 

The recommendations outlined in this section were based upon the assumptions and decisions 
described above. Additionally, the following key City goals provided context and direction for 
the recommendations: 

 Schedule – Prioritize implementation of projects at facilities with significant 
operations and maintenance issues, and remainder of projects as soon as practicable. 

 Contracting Mechanism – Implement the Program with multiple contracts to 
minimize impact of individual contractor stability on the overall Program. Provide 
competition for each construction project, while maintaining minimum qualifications 
for construction contractors. 

 Consistency and Standardization – Implement the SCADA system consistently 
across all components including SCADA software, PLC hardware, and programming 
and communications network, including cybersecurity standards. 

 Operational Impacts – Implement the upgrades while minimizing operational 
impacts especially during high demand periods (summer), due to limited spare 
capacity within several systems. 

 City of Buckeye IT Involvement – Implement the Program utilizing standard City 
communications equipment and configuration to allow for support of the system 
by CoBIT. 

5.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

Previously, the City had considered alternatives to upgrading the SCADA software, sometimes 
referred to as a choice between “managed” and “distributed.” upgrades. Consultant recommends 
that the City move forward with the “distributed” approach and the SCADA Software 
recommendations documented in Appendix E2—Proposed System Architecture. The following 
sections are key elements of the recommendation. 

5.1  SCADA Soft ware  

Consultant recommends the City upgrade all SCADA software to the latest stable version of the 
Wonderware System Platform implementing standardized programming objects to promote 
consistency of look/feel and operations. 



SCADA Program  

 

November 2016 5 City of Buckeye 

n\c\672\22-16-03 City of Buckeye\WP\102116_Buckeye  SCADA Program 

5.2  PLC Hard ware  

Consultant recommends the City continue to standardize on the Allen Bradley Logix family of 
PLC hardware to preserve the existing investment in both hardware and programming software. 
This approach also allows the City to develop standard programming objects in the RsLogix5000 
software to be used in programing all PLCs throughout the City. 

5.3  Communica tion s  Net work  

Consultant recommends the City work with CoBIT to implement a network based on industry best 
practices for an industrial control system, including National Institute of Standards and 
Technology (NIST) Special Publication (SP) 800-82, Revision 2 - Guide to Industrial Control 
Systems (ICS) Security. The following are a few specific recommendations based on review of 
the CoBIT design: 

 IP Address/VLAN Scheme for SCADA Network Devices – The current IP 
addresses have been randomly set over time and are not well defined. A defined 
IP address space should be allocated for all SCADA devices and virtual local area 
networks (VLANs) established to segment the control network. This helps with 
management and security controls. (reference NIST SP800-82r2 Section 5.1) 

 Separate Virtual Private Network (VPN) Communications for SCADA Data – 
The City has VPN encryption implemented between sites that have firewalls; 
however, all traffic traverses a single VPN tunnel. SCADA traffic should be isolated 
on separate VPN tunnels to allow specific control over the traffic that is allowed to 
traverse those tunnels. Additional firewalls may be required as the network upgrades 
are rolled out. (reference NIST SP800-82 Section 5.4) 

 Implement a SCADA Demilitarized Zone (DMZ) – It is common practice to 
deploy a DMZ at the perimeter of a business network to support services that are 
being exposed to the Internet. Any security domain connected to the SCADA network 
should also be separated by a DMZ. This DMZ should host services supporting the 
SCADA network such as historian data sharing, anti-virus updates, application 
updates, remote access, etc. The SCADA DMZ is one zone defined in the Purdue 
Model for Control Hierarchy (reference ISBN 1-55617-265-6) and this model should 
be reviewed for overall network design. (reference NIST SP800-82 Sections 5.2; 
5.5.4) 

 Dedicated Hardware for SCADA Services (HMI, Historian, etc.) – The City has 
deployed VMWare virtualization technology to host its numerous servers. Currently, 
the SCADA servers (HMI, Historian, etc.) are running on the same virtual hosts 
without any isolation. SCADA servers should be placed in the segregated SCADA 
network behind the SCADA DMZ. At a minimum, the SCADA guests should be 
segregated using vSwitch technology and physical network connections, but this 
depends on the skill level of IT resources available to maintain this level of isolation. 
The securest design would be to deploy a physically separate virtual host for the 
SCADA servers. (reference NIST SP800-82 Section 5.1) 

  



SCADA Program  

 

November 2016 6 City of Buckeye 

n\c\672\22-16-03 City of Buckeye\WP\102116_Buckeye  SCADA Program 

 Implement a Defense-in-Depth Architecture – Consultant recommends that the 
City implement a defense-in-depth architecture. This is a multi-layer strategy 
involving overlapping security mechanisms. When one of the security mechanisms is 
compromised, the remaining layers will continue to provide protection. This involves 
the use of firewalls, zone based designs, intrusion detection technologies, Security 
Information and Event Management technologies, physical security, policies and 
procedures, incident response capabilities, and a thorough understanding of the 
potential attack vectors. The investment made in this effort is based on network 
complexity, internal skills, and the level of risk acceptance by the City. (reference 
NIST SP800-82 Sections 5.6; 5.16; 5.17; 6.2.8; 6.2.11) 

 Develop a SCADA Cybersecurity Program – Consultant recommends that the City 
develop a SCADA cybersecurity program. It should include the development of 
specific control system policies and procedures, and building and training a cross-
functional team to support the SCADA network. This program will improve control 
system safety, reliability, availability, and overall security posture. (reference NIST 
SP800-82 Section 4) 

5.4  Proj ec t Del iver y 

Consultant recommends that the City select a Program Manager to manage the Program on behalf 
of the City. Additionally, Consultant recommends that the City prequalify up to three contractors 
with applicable skills and capability for delivery of the projects within the Program, through a 
Request for Qualifications (RFQ).  

The Program Manager, in coordination with the City, should develop a specific scope of work for 
each Project with input on costing and approach from one or more of the selected Contractors. 
Once the final scope for the project is complete, the City should issue a Request for Proposal (RFP) 
for the finalized scope of work for each Project. 

Once the RFP responses are complete, the City may then select the most responsive bid from one 
of the prequalified Contractors. This approach would be repeated for each of the projects listed, 
rotating through the list of prequalified Contractors. Appendix B—Program Manager Scope of 
Work Outline provides an overview of the services provided to the City by the Program Manager.  

5.5  Proj ec t Group ing  

Through extensive discussions with City staff, project groupings have been developed to organize 
the system upgrades based on criticality, system functionality and operational impact, see Table 1. 
Appendix F—Program Schedule, provides an overview of the proposed project elements and 
dependencies. 

  



SCADA Program  

 

November 2016 7 City of Buckeye 

n\c\672\22-16-03 City of Buckeye\WP\102116_Buckeye  SCADA Program 

Tab le 1. Proj ec t Group ing  by  Status  

Project Title Status Description 
GWIC—Global Water 
Integration 

Critical  Time-sensitive and critical to system operations.  
 Due to the complexity of the PLC code implemented 

at the wells and a significant programming issue at 
the Sonora Vista Water Treatment Plant (WTP), this 
project implements a temporary PLC to control the 
wells and allow for a phased transition of the WTP 
functionality. 

GWINC—Global Water 
Integration 

Noncritical  This project completes the integration of the 
remainder of the former Global Water sites into the 
system. City Operations has more flexibility related 
to these sites than the sites included in the previous 
project. 

SSU—Sundance System Upgrades  This project provides upgrades required for all 
facilities associated with the Sundance system. 

TSU—Tartesso System Upgrades  This project provides upgrades required for all 
facilities associated with the Tartesso System. 

FSU—Festival System Upgrades  This project provides upgrades required for all 
facilities associated with the Festival System. 

NARSU—North Airport 
Road 

Upgrades  This project provides upgrades for the North Airport 
Road System. 

MHSU—Miscellaneous 
Hardware/Software 

Upgrades  This project addresses miscellaneous hardware and 
software upgrades at the remaining sites. This 
project may be subdivided as required to address 
timing and/or operation impacts. 

WRFE—Water Reclamation 
Facility 

Evaluations  This project conducts a SCADA system assessment 
and alternatives development to address ongoing 
operations, instrumentation and SCADA-related 
issues at each of the Water Reclamation Facilities. 
This project leverages input from one or more of the 
prequalified Contractors for detailed system 
evaluation, costs estimates, and construction 
methods. 

 The deliverable for this project will be a 
recommended Program for upgrades to the Water 
Reclamation Facilities. 

 

5.6  Eng ine eri ng  Bud ge t Analy sis  

The Engineering Budget Analysis is provided as Appendix G. The budget was developed 
consistent with a Class 3 cost estimate as defined by the AACE® International Recommended 
Practice No. 18R‐97, with an expected accuracy range of -20 percent to +30 percent. A 
recommended contingency of +30 percent is recommended for budgeting and planning purposes. 

  



SCADA Program  

 

November 2016 8 City of Buckeye 

n\c\672\22-16-03 City of Buckeye\WP\102116_Buckeye  SCADA Program 

The budget uses the assumptions shown in Table 2 for calculations of project costs. 

Tab le 2. Proj ec t Cos t Inpu ts  

Resource Cost, dollars Notes 
CoBIT, CoB Ops 0/hr City staff 
Program Manager – Lead 254/hr  
Program Manager – Field 165/hr  
Technician – Control Wiring  75/hr Pre-qualified Contractor 
Senior Programmer 122/hr Pre-qualified Contractor 
PLC Panel – Small 45,000 Equipment and installation 
PLC Panel – Large 75,000 Equipment and installation 

Networking Equipment 3,000 Cost per site, provided by CoBIT, 
charged to Program Budget 

 

5.7  Program  Progres s  Rep ort ing  

The SCADA Program schedule and budget was developed using Microsoft Project 2016. 
Microsoft Project includes several reporting templates that can be used throughout the duration of 
the Program. The following reports are recommended as templates for use during regular Program 
meetings and updates provided to City management. 

5.7.1 Gantt Chart 

The Gantt Chart provides an overview of the project baseline schedule. As the Program progresses, 
the Tracking Gantt chart provides updates on overall project progress against the original baseline 
schedule. See Appendix H—Gantt Chart. 

5.7.2 Task Cost Overview 

The Task Cost Overview provides an overview of the Actual Costs, Remaining Costs and Cost 
Variance at the Project Level. This overview provides a summary of project costs as the Program 
progresses. See Appendix I—Task Cost Overview (Template). 

 



 

 

 

APPENDIX A 
Facilities List 

 
  



Project
Facility 

ISO Name Facility Type Facility Name
Included in 
Program? Notes

FSU FRBS Booster Festival Ranch Distribution Yes
FSU FRW1 Well Festival Ranch Well 1 Yes
FSU FRW2 Well Festival Ranch Well 2 Yes
FSU FRW3 Well Festival Ranch Well 3 Yes
FSU FRW4 Well Festival Ranch Well 4 - FUTURE Yes
GWIC EVW2 Well Evergreen Well 2 Yes
GWIC NEW1 Well North East Well Yes
GWIC RIW1 Well Riata West 2 Well Yes
GWIC 4BBS Well/Booster 4th & Baseline Well/Booster Yes
GWIC 4CBS Well/Booster 4th & Central Well/Booster Yes
GWIC BABS Well/Booster Bales Well/Booster Yes
GWIC SoVWT WTP Sonoran Vista WTP Yes
GWIC LOBU Booster Lower Buckeye Booster Yes
GWINC BNBS Booster Buckeye North Booster Yes
GWINC RVBS Booster Rancho Vista Booster Yes
GWINC TABS Booster Sundance Community Park Booster Yes
GWINC WPBS Booster Westpark Booster Yes
GWINC R2PRV PRV Reach 2 PRV Yes
GWINC APW2 Well Buckeye Airport Well 2 Yes
GWINC SuVBS Well/Booster Sun Valley Yes
GWINC BULF Well/Booster Bulfer Well Yes
GWINC HOPE Well/Booster Hopeville Well Yes
GWINC HIST Booster Historic Booster Yes Programming changes only
MHSU APW1 Well Buckeye Airport Well 1 Yes
MHSU FW2 Well Farallon Well Yes
MHSU NELS Lift Station Northeast Lift Station Yes Software upgrades
MHSU P7LS Lift Station Parcel 7 Lift Station Yes Software upgrades
N/A SRBS WTF Sonoran Ridge No Facility TBD
N/A XMAS Well Christmas Well No Facility Offline
N/A ALBS Well/Booster Alarcon Well/Booster No Facility Offline
N/A BHW1 Well/Booster Blue Hills Well/Booster No Facility Offline
N/A MRBS Booster Miller Road Booster No Facility Offline
N/A N/A Office Buckeye Main Office Yes No Upgrades Required
N/A GWARE Office Global Office No Facility to be Abandoned
NARU NAW1 Well North Airport Road Well 1 Yes
NARU NAW2 Well North Airport Road Well 2 Yes
NARU NAWT WTF North Airport Road Yes
SSU SuBS Booster Sundance Distribution Yes
SSU SuGC Valve/Meter Sundance Golf Yes
SSU SW1 Well Sundance Well 1 Yes
SSU SW2 Well Sundance Well 2 Yes
SSU SW3 Well Sundance Well 3 Yes
SSU SW4 Well Sundance Well 4 Yes
SSU SW7 Well Sundance Well 7 Yes
SSU SW8 Well Sundance Well 8 Yes
SSU SW9 Well Sundance Well 9 Yes
TSU TBS Booster Tartesso Distribution Yes
TSU TW1 Well Tartesso Well 1 Yes
TSU TW2 Well Tartesso Well 2 Yes
TSU TW3 Well Tartesso Well 3 - FUTURE Yes
TSU TWRFW Well Tartesso WRF Well Yes
TSU W12 Well Well 12 Yes
TSU W14 Well Well 14 Yes
WRFE FWRF WRF Festival Ranch WRF Evaluation Only
WRFE CWRF WRF Central WRF Evaluation Only
WRFE SWRF WRF Sundance WRF Evaluation Only
WRFE TWRF WRF Tartesso WRF Evaluation Only

Facilities Included In Program 47
Facilities Evaluated In Program 4
Facilities Excluded from Program 6

Appendix A. Facility List

n\c\672\22-16-03\wp\102116_Attachments
Last Revised: 10-25-16

City of Buckeye
SCADA Program



 

 

 

APPENDIX B 
Program Manager Scope of Work Outline 

 

 

 

  



 CITY OF BUCKEYE SCADA PROGRAM 
 PROGRAM MANAGER SCOPE OF WORK OUTLINE 

 

November 2016 1 City of Buckeye  

n\c\672\22-16-03 City of Buckeye\WP\Att B  SCADA Program 

 BACKGROUND 

The City of Buckeye is planning to execute a multi-year program to integrate and upgrade the 
SCADA system throughout the City. The City intends to engage services of one or more 
Contractors for services including Programmable Logic Controller (PLC) programming, Human 
Machine Interface (HMI) software development as well as data collection and reporting. It is 
understood that the City will execute multiple projects in the program simultaneously and will 
require assistance of more than one Contractor. Additionally, the City intends to have the systems 
implemented with consistency across multiple projects with different Contractors. 

The City is enlisting the services of a Program Manager (PgM) to assist the City in managing 
the program. 

 SCOPE OF WORK 

Work Breakdown Structure (WBS) Numbers reference the WBS in the Program Schedule, see 
Attachment F: 

1. WBS 1.3.1 - Develop Request for Qualifications (RFQ)/Request for Proposal (RFP) 
for System Integrator(s) – Assist the City to develop and advertise a two-step process 
for qualification of System Integrators and a subsequent methodology to execute 
multiple task orders to Contractors throughout the duration of the project. 

2. WBS 1.3.2 - Issue RFQ/RFP – Assist the City to advertise the RFQ/RFP  
3. WBS 1.3.3 - Assist the City to Evaluate System Integrator responses and develop a 

qualified list of Contractors. 
4. WBS 1.3.4 (Summary Task) - Contractor Scope of Work Development, Contract/Fee 

Review and Project Assignment for each project, including coordination of site visits 
for each project. 

 Develop scopes of work for all Contractor work in coordination with City staff 
and Layer 8.  

 Recommend project assignments based an evaluation of System Integrator 
strengths based on RFQ response.  

 Assist the City to evaluate costs proposals from qualified Contractors 
5. WBS 1.3.5 (Summary Task) – Conduct system inspections and oversee testing to 

verify the system has been implemented based on the scope of work and in adherence 
to City standards. 

6. WBS 1.4 - Standards Development – Assist the City to gather existing City standards 
and develop standard documentation for delivery to Contractors for implementation 
in all projects executed in the program. Standards development includes PLC and 
HMI software and Cybersecurity for SCADA. 

7. WBS 1.5.1, 1.6.1, 1.7.1, 1.8.1 – Prepare and lead project kickoff meetings for 
each project. 

8. WBS 1.3.7 – Prepare and lead bi-weekly progress meetings with key staff members 
during entirety of program. PgM will provide updates and coordination for project 



 CITY OF BUCKEYE SCADA PROGRAM 
 PROGRAM MANAGER SCOPE OF WORK OUTLINE 

 

November 2016 2 City of Buckeye  

n\c\672\22-16-03 City of Buckeye\WP\Att B  SCADA Program 

and overall program schedule, address project schedule and budget issues, and make 
recommendations to the City regarding payment requests from Contractors. 

9. WBS 1.5.4 - Develop Control Strategies for Sonora Vista – Work with City WR 
Operations staff to develop control strategies for Sonoran Vista site and provide to 
Contractors for programming. 

10. WBS 1.5.6 – Provide technical oversight during system transition and cutover. 
11. WBS 1.5.8, 1.6.7, 1.7.7, 1.8.7 – Testing and Validation – Assist the City to verify 

functionality of systems as they are brought online by the Contractor. Includes 
development of system checkout documentation and receipt and review of final 
programming files and any updates to City standards. 

12. Factory Acceptance Testing – Attend Factory Acceptance testing for any new PLC 
equipment from Contractors. 

13. Technical Oversight – Provide technical oversight over Contractors on behalf of the 
City. 

14. Onsite Coordination – Provide onsite coordination on behalf of the City including 
answering questions, schedule coordination, notifications and coordination with 
operations and provide a single-point of communication throughout the project. 

15. WBS 1.3.6 – Program Closeout – Verify the City has received all deliverables and 
documentation required by the Contractors contracts and provide recommendations 
for final payment of retentions, if required. 

 



 

 

 

APPENDIX C 
SCADA Software List 

 

 

 

  



 Facility ISO Name Facility Type Facility Name  Included in Program? Existing Software
CWRF WRF Central WRF Evaluation Only Wonderware System Platform
FRBS Booster Festival Ranch Distribution Yes Wonderware InTouch
FW2 Well Farallon Well Yes Wonderware System Platform

FWRF WRF Festival Ranch WRF Evaluation Only Wonderware System Platform
GWARE Office Global Office No Wonderware System Platform

HIST Booster Historic Booster Yes Wonderware System Platform
N/A Office Buckeye Main Office Yes Wonderware System Platform

NELS Lift Station Northeast Lift Station Yes Wonderware System Platform
SuBS Booster Sundance Distribution Yes Wonderware InTouch
SWRF WRF Sundance WRF Evaluation Only Wonderware System Platform
TBS Booster Tartesso Distribution Yes Wonderware InTouch

TWRF WRF Tartesso WRF Evaluation Only Wonderware System Platform

Appendix C. Software List

n\c\672\22-16-03\wp\102116_Attachments
Last Revised: 10-25-16

City of Buckeye
SCADA Program



 

 

 

APPENDIX D 
PLC List 

  



Facility 
ISO Name Facility Type Facility Name

Included in 
Program?

Replace PLC 
Panel PLC Size

4BBS Well/Booster 4th & Baseline Well/Booster Yes No Small
4CBS Well/Booster 4th & Central Well/Booster Yes No Small
ALBS Well/Booster Alarcon Well/Booster No Yes Small
APW1 Well Buckeye Airport Well 1 Yes Yes Small
APW2 Well Buckeye Airport Well 2 Yes No Small
BABS Well/Booster Bales Well/Booster Yes No Small
BHW1 Well/Booster Blue Hills Well/Booster No Yes Small
BNBS Booster Buckeye North Booster Yes Yes Small
BULF Well/Booster Bulfer Well Yes Yes Large
CWRF WRF Central WRF Evaluation Only No Large
EVW2 Well Evergreen Well 2 Yes No Small
FRBS Booster Festival Ranch Distribution Yes Yes Large
FRW1 Well Festival Ranch Well 1 Yes No Small
FRW2 Well Festival Ranch Well 2 Yes No Small
FRW3 Well Festival Ranch Well 3 Yes No Small
FRW4 Well Festival Ranch Well 4 - FUTURE Yes No Small
FW2 Well Farallon Well Yes Yes Large
FWRF WRF Festival Ranch WRF Evaluation Only No Large
GWARE Office Global Office No No N/A
HIST Booster Historic Booster Yes No Small
HOPE Well/Booster Hopeville Well Yes Yes Large
LOBU Booster Lower Buckeye Booster Yes Yes Small
MRBS Booster Miller Road Booster No Yes Small
N/A Office Buckeye Main Office Yes No N/A
NAW1 Well North Airport Road Well 1 Yes No Small
NAW2 Well North Airport Road Well 2 Yes No Small
NAWT WTF North Airport Road Yes No Large
NELS Lift Station Northeast Lift Station Yes No Small
NEW1 Well North East Well Yes Yes Small
P7LS Lift Station Parcel 7 Lift Station Yes No Large
R2PRV PRV Reach 2 PRV Yes No Small
RIW1 Well Riata West 2 Well Yes Yes Small
RVBS Booster Rancho Vista Booster Yes No Small
SoVWT WTP Sonoran Vista WTP Yes Yes Large
SRBS WTF Sonoran Ridge No Yes Large
SuBS Booster Sundance Distribution Yes Yes Large
SuGC Valve/Meter Sundance Golf Yes Yes Large
SuVBS Well/Booster Sun Valley Yes Yes Large
SW1 Well Sundance Well 1 Yes No Small
SW2 Well Sundance Well 2 Yes No Small
SW3 Well Sundance Well 3 Yes Yes Small
SW4 Well Sundance Well 4 Yes No Small
SW7 Well Sundance Well 7 Yes No Small
SW8 Well Sundance Well 8 Yes No Small
SW9 Well Sundance Well 9 Yes No Small
SWRF WRF Sundance WRF Evaluation Only No Large
TABS Booster Sundance Community Park Booster Yes Yes Small
TBS Booster Tartesso Distribution Yes No Large
TW1 Well Tartesso Well 1 Yes No Small
TW2 Well Tartesso Well 2 Yes Yes Small
TW3 Well Tartesso Well 3 - FUTURE Yes Yes Small
TWRF WRF Tartesso WRF Evaluation Only No Large
TWRFW Well Tartesso WRF Well Yes Yes Small
W12 Well Well 12 Yes No Small
W14 Well Well 14 Yes No Small
WPBS Booster Westpark Booster Yes Yes Small
XMAS Well Christmas Well No Yes Small

Appendix D. PLC List

n\c\672\22-16-03\wp\102116_Attachments
Last Revised: 10-25-16

City of Buckeye
SCADA Program



 

 

 

APPENDIX E 
E1: Current Network System Architecture 

E2: Proposed System Architecture 
  



Bales
Well/Booster

CONSULTANTS

Project Name

SEALS

SHEET TITLE

SCALE:

SHEET 1 OF 2

Riata West 2
Well

Evergreen Well
2

North East Well

4th & Central
Well/Booster

4th & Baseline
Well/Booster

Alarcon Well/
Booster
(off for

nitrates)

Blue Hills Well/
Booster

(off for arsenic)

Lower Buckeye
Booster

Buckeye North
Booster
(offline)

Westpark
Booster

Rancho Vista
Booster

LEGEND

Sundance WRFNortheast Lift
StationParcel 7Central

Tartesso WRF

Festival Ranch
WRF

North Airport
Road

North Airport
Road Well 1

(onsite)

North Airport
Road Well 2

Sundance
Distribution

Sundance Well
1

Sundance Well
2

Sundance Well
3

Sundance Well
4

Sundance Well
7

Sundance Well
8

Sundance Well
9

Sundance
Community

Park Booster
Station

(Track A)

Farallon

Tartesso
Distribution

Tartesso Well 1
(onsite)

Tartesso Well 2
(WRF) Well 12 Well 14

Hopeville
900MHz

PHX Contacts

Buckeye
Airport Well 1

Sonora Vista
WTP

(SW Well/
Booster onsite)

Christmas Well

Buckeye
Airport Well 2

Global Office

Festival Ranch
Well 1

(onsite)

Festival Ranch
Distribution

Festival Ranch
Well 2

Miller Road
Booster

Sonoran Ridge

Festival Ranch
Well 3

COB
Network

Buckeye
Main Control

Office

COX
EVC

Historic
Booster

900MHz EVC Cox 5.8GHz 3G/4G Sundance Global Water COB
On Net COB/Cox Off NetEthernet

Sundance
Golf

COB
Network

Wonderware 2014

Server
Farm

Wonderware 2012

Buckeye Well screens
Appear at Tartesso

Disbribution

Festival Ranch
Well 4

Reach 2 PRV

Bulfur Well

Sun Valley

City of
Buckeye
SCADA

Program

Existing
SCADA

Network
Architecture

DESIGNED BY: CITY OF BUCKEYE IT

DRAWN BY: DAG

CHECKED BY: JAC



Bales
Well/Booster

CONSULTANTS

Project Name

SEALS

SHEET TITLE

SCALE:

SHEET 2 OF 2

DESIGNED BY: DAG

DRAWN BY: DAG

CHECKED BY: JAC

Riata West 2
Well

Evergreen Well
2

North East Well

4th & Central
Well/Booster

4th & Baseline
Well/Booster

Alarcon Well/
Booster

Blue Hills Well/
Booster

Buckeye North
Booster

Westpark
Booster

Rancho Vista
Booster

LEGEND

North Airport
Road

North Airport
Road Well 1

(onsite)

North Airport
Road Well 2

Sundance
Distribution

Sundance Well
1

Sundance Well
2

Sundance Well
3

Sundance Well
4

Sundance Well
7

Sundance Well
8

Sundance Well
9

Sundance
Community

Park Booster

Farallon Well

Tartesso
Distribution Tartesso Well 1 Tartesso Well 2 Well 12 Well 14

Buckeye
Airport Well 1

Sonora Vista
WTP

Christmas Well Global Office

Festival Ranch
Well 1

Festival Ranch
Distribution

Festival Ranch
Well 2

Miller Road
BoosterSonoran Ridge

Festival Ranch
Well 3

COB
Network

Buckeye
Main Office

City of Buckeye IT
Communications Network

Sundance
Golf

Wonderware

SCADA Software & Hardware

Festival Ranch
Well 4
FUTURE

Reach 2 PRVBulfur Well

Sun Valley

City of
Buckeye
SCADA

Program

Proposed
System

Architecture

Lower Buckeye
BoosterBuckeye

Airport Well 2Hopeville Well

Historic
Booster

Northeast Lift
Station

Parcel 7

Tartesso WRF
Well

Tartesso WRF Central WRF Sundance WRF Festival Ranch
WRF

SCADA DMZ

SCADA Architecture TBD

City Business Systems

• I/O Servers
• Win911
• App Object Server
• Historian
• Device Integration

• Operator Workstations

• Galaxy Repository
• Enterprise Historian
• Engineering Workstation
• Operator Workstation(s)

• I/O Server
• Win911
• App Object Server
• Historian
• Device Integration

• Operator Workstation • I/O Server
• Win911
• App Object Server
• Historian
• Device Integration

• Operator Workstation

• I/O Server
• Win911
• App Object Server
• Historian
• Device Integration

• Operator Workstation

• Microsoft SQL Server
• Reporting



 

 

 

APPENDIX F 
F1: Program Schedule (ANSI D size) 
F2: Program Schedule (ANSI B size) 

 
  



ID Task Name Start Finish Predecessors

1 Buckeye SCADA Program Fri 10/7/16 Fri 10/26/18

2 Key Milestones Mon 11/14/16 Fri 10/26/18

3 SCADA Program Approval Mon 11/14/16 Mon 11/14/16

4 Program Manager Scope/Budget Approval Mon 11/14/16 Fri 2/3/17 3

5 SCADA Program Complete Fri 10/26/18 Fri 10/26/18 11

6 Projects In Progress Fri 10/7/16 Fri 12/2/16

7 CoB SCADA Communications Network Design Fri 10/7/16 Fri 10/7/16

8 TSU ‐ Tartesso Software Upgrades ‐ Managed Fri 10/7/16 Thu 10/13/16

9 FSU ‐ Festival Software Upgrades‐ Managed Wed 10/12/16 Tue 10/18/16

10 GWIC ‐ Comms Equipment Field Investigation and Installation Mon 11/14/16 Fri 12/2/16 3

11 Program Management Mon 2/6/17 Fri 10/26/18

12 Develop RFQ/RFP for System Integrator(s) Mon 2/6/17 Fri 2/17/17 4

13 Issue RFQ/RFP Mon 2/20/17 Fri 3/10/17 12

14 Review Proposals and Select System Integrators Mon 3/13/17 Fri 3/24/17 13

15 Project Scope of Work Development, Contract/Fee Review 
and Project Assignment

Mon 3/27/17 Tue 9/12/17

24 Project Review and Closeout Tue 10/3/17 Fri 8/31/18

32 Program Closeout Mon 9/3/18 Fri 10/26/18 24

33 Bi‐Weekly Progress Meetings Mon 2/6/17 Tue 6/19/18 4

79 Standards Development Mon 2/6/17 Fri 4/21/17

80 Develop Standard Well PLC Program Components Mon 2/6/17 Fri 2/17/17 4

81 Develop Standard Booster Station PLC Program Components Mon 2/6/17 Fri 2/24/17 4

82 Develop Standard HMI Components ‐ Archestra Mon 2/27/17 Fri 4/21/17 81

83 Develop SCADA Cybersecurity Standards Mon 2/6/17 Fri 3/31/17 4

84 Project GWIC ‐ Global Water Integration ‐ Critical Mon 12/5/16 Thu 1/11/18

85 GWIC Project Kickoff Mon 4/17/17 Mon 4/17/17 16

86 GWIC Install CoB Standard Communications Mon 12/5/16 Thu 11/16/17

95 Sonora Vista WTP Temp PLC Install Tue 4/18/17 Mon 5/1/17 85

96 Develop Control Strategies for Sonora Vista Mon 2/6/17 Fri 2/17/17 4

97 Reprogram Sonoran Vista and Wells (PLC & HMI) Mon 2/20/17 Fri 3/17/17 80

98 Sonora Vista Wells Cutover Fri 11/17/17 Thu 11/30/17 86,97

99 Migrate Global SCADA Server to Buckeye Main Control Office Fri 11/17/17 Thu 11/30/17 86

100 Testing and Validation Fri 12/1/17 Thu 1/11/18 98

101 Project GWINC ‐ Global Water Integration ‐ Non Critical Fri 1/12/18 Fri 6/8/18

102 GWINC Project Kickoff Fri 1/12/18 Fri 1/12/18 17,84

103 GWINC Install CoB Standard Communications Mon 1/15/18 Fri 1/26/18

104 Rancho Vista Booster Mon 1/15/18 Mon 1/15/18 102

105 Reach 2 PRV Tue 1/16/18 Tue 1/16/18 104

106 Westpark Booster Wed 1/17/18 Wed 1/17/18 105

107 Buckeye North Booster Thu 1/18/18 Thu 1/18/18 106

108 Buckeye Airport Well 2 Fri 1/19/18 Fri 1/19/18 107

109 Hopeville Mon 1/22/18 Mon 1/22/18 108

110 Sundance Community Park Booster Tue 1/23/18 Tue 1/23/18 109

111 Bulfur Well Wed 1/24/18 Wed 1/24/18 110

112 Historic Booster Thu 1/25/18 Thu 1/25/18 111

11/14

10/26

10/7

S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N
Half 1, 2017 Half 2, 2017 Half 1, 2018 Half 2, 2018

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration-only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

External Tasks

External Milestone

Deadline

Progress

Manual Progress

City of Buckeye 
SCADA Program Schedule

Page 1

Project: Project Portfolio
Date: Tue 11/8/16



ID Task Name Start Finish Predecessors

113 Sun Valley Fri 1/26/18 Fri 1/26/18 112

114 GWINC PLC Hardware Replacements Mon 1/29/18 Fri 3/30/18

115 Buckeye North Booster Mon 1/29/18 Fri 2/2/18 103

116 Hopeville Well Mon 2/5/18 Fri 2/9/18 115

117 Sonoran Vista WTP Mon 2/12/18 Fri 3/2/18 116

118 Sundance Community Park Booster Mon 3/5/18 Fri 3/9/18 117

119 Westpark Booster Mon 3/12/18 Fri 3/16/18 118

120 Sun Valley Mon 3/19/18 Fri 3/23/18 119

121 Bulfur Well Mon 3/26/18 Fri 3/30/18 120

122 GWINC Software Upgrades Mon 4/2/18 Fri 4/20/18 114

123 GWINC System Cutover Mon 4/23/18 Fri 4/27/18 122,114

124 GWINC Data Collection and Reporting Implementation Mon 4/30/18 Fri 5/25/18 123

125 GWINC Testing and Validation Mon 5/28/18 Fri 6/8/18 124

126 Project SSU ‐Sundance Systems Upgrades Tue 5/30/17 Fri 10/13/17

127 SSU Project Kickoff Tue 5/30/17 Tue 5/30/17 18

128 SSU Install CoB Standard Communications Wed 5/31/17 Thu 6/8/17 127

129 Sundance Well 1 Wed 5/31/17 Wed 5/31/17 127

130 Sundance Well 2 Thu 6/1/17 Thu 6/1/17 129

131 Sundance Well 3 Fri 6/2/17 Fri 6/2/17 130

132 Sundance Well 4 Mon 6/5/17 Mon 6/5/17 131

133 Sundance Well 7 Tue 6/6/17 Tue 6/6/17 132

134 Sundance Well 8 Wed 6/7/17 Wed 6/7/17 133

135 Sundance Well 9 Thu 6/8/17 Thu 6/8/17 134

136 SSU  PLC Hardware Replacements Fri 6/9/17 Fri 7/14/17

137 Sundance Distribution Fri 6/9/17 Thu 6/29/17 128

138 Sundance Golf Fri 6/30/17 Fri 7/7/17 137

139 Sundance Well 3 Mon 7/10/17 Fri 7/14/17 138

140 SSU SCADA Software Upgrades Mon 7/17/17 Fri 8/4/17 128,136

141 SSU System Cutover Mon 8/7/17 Fri 8/25/17 140,136

142 SSU Data Collection and Reporting Implementation Mon 8/28/17 Fri 9/22/17 141

143 SSU Testing and Validation Mon 9/25/17 Fri 10/13/17 142

144 Project TSU ‐ Tartesso System Upgrades Mon 10/16/17 Mon 2/5/18

145 TSU Project Kickoff Mon 10/16/17 Mon 10/16/17 19,126

146 TSU Install CoB Standard Communications Tue 10/17/17 Fri 10/20/17

147 Tartesso Well 2 Tue 10/17/17 Tue 10/17/17 145

148 Tartesso Distribution Wed 10/18/17 Wed 10/18/17 147

149 Well 12 Thu 10/19/17 Thu 10/19/17 148

150 Well 14 Fri 10/20/17 Fri 10/20/17 149

151 TSU Tartesso PLC Hardware Replacements Mon 10/23/17 Fri 11/3/17

152 Tartesso Well 2 Mon 10/23/17 Fri 10/27/17 146

153 Tartesso WRF Well Mon 10/30/17 Fri 11/3/17 152

154 TSU SCADA Software Upgrades ‐ Archestra Tue 10/17/17 Mon 11/6/17 82,145

155 TSU System Cutover Tue 11/7/17 Mon 12/4/17 154,151

156 TSU Data Collection and Reporting Implementation Tue 12/5/17 Mon 1/22/18 155

157 TSU Testing and Validation Tue 1/23/18 Mon 2/5/18 156

158 Project FSU ‐ Festival System Upgrades Wed 7/12/17 Thu 9/7/17

159 FSU Project Kickoff Wed 7/12/17 Thu 7/13/17 20

160 FSU Install CoB Standard Communications Fri 7/14/17 Wed 7/19/17

S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N
Half 1, 2017 Half 2, 2017 Half 1, 2018 Half 2, 2018

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration-only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

External Tasks

External Milestone

Deadline

Progress

Manual Progress

City of Buckeye 
SCADA Program Schedule

Page 2

Project: Project Portfolio
Date: Tue 11/8/16



ID Task Name Start Finish Predecessors

161 Festival Ranch Well 1 Fri 7/14/17 Fri 7/14/17 159

162 Festival Ranch Well 2 Mon 7/17/17 Mon 7/17/17 161

163 Festival Ranch Well 3 Tue 7/18/17 Tue 7/18/17 162

164 Festival Ranch Well 4 ‐ FUTURE Wed 7/19/17 Wed 7/19/17 163

165 FSU PLC Hardware Replacements Fri 7/14/17 Thu 8/3/17

166 Festival Ranch Distribution Fri 7/14/17 Thu 8/3/17 159

167 FSU SCADA Software Upgrades ‐ Archestra Fri 7/14/17 Thu 8/3/17 82,159

168 FSU System Cutover Fri 8/4/17 Thu 8/24/17 165

169 FSU Data Collection and Reporting Implementation Fri 8/4/17 Thu 8/31/17 167

170 FSU Testing and Validation Fri 8/25/17 Thu 9/7/17 168

171 Project NARU ‐ North Airport Road Upgrades Fri 9/8/17 Mon 10/2/17

172 NARU Project Kickoff Fri 9/8/17 Mon 9/11/17 21,158

173 NARU Install CoB Standard Communications Tue 9/12/17 Wed 9/13/17

174 NAR Well 1 Tue 9/12/17 Tue 9/12/17 172

175 NAR Well 2 Wed 9/13/17 Wed 9/13/17 174

176 NARU SCADA Software Upgrades ‐ Archestra Tue 9/12/17 Mon 9/18/17 172,82

177 NARU System Cutover Tue 9/19/17 Mon 9/25/17 176

178 NARU Data Collection and Reporting Implementation Tue 9/19/17 Mon 9/25/17 176

179 NARU Testing and Validation Tue 9/26/17 Mon 10/2/17 177

180 Project MHSU ‐ Miscellaneous Hardware/Software Upgrades Tue 10/3/17 Thu 11/30/17

181 MHU Project Kickoff Tue 10/3/17 Wed 10/4/17 22,171

182 MHU Install CoB Standard Communications Thu 10/5/17 Thu 10/5/17

183 Buckeye Airport Well 1 Thu 10/5/17 Thu 10/5/17 181

184 MHU PLC Hardware Replacements Fri 10/6/17 Thu 11/9/17

185 Buckeye Airport Well 1 Fri 10/6/17 Thu 10/12/17 182

186 Farallon Well Fri 10/13/17 Thu 10/19/17 185

187 Lower Buckeye Booster Fri 10/20/17 Thu 10/26/17 186

188 Northeast Lift Station Fri 10/27/17 Thu 11/2/17 187

189 Parcel 7 Lift Station Fri 11/3/17 Thu 11/9/17 188

190 MHU SCADA Software Upgrades ‐ Archestra Thu 10/5/17 Wed 10/11/17 181,82

191 MHU System Cutover Fri 11/10/17 Thu 11/16/17 184

192 MHU Data Collection and Reporting Implementation Thu 10/12/17 Wed 10/18/17 190

193 MHU Testing and Validation Fri 11/17/17 Thu 11/30/17 191

194 Project WRFE ‐ Water Reclamation Facility Evaluations Wed 9/13/17 Tue 1/30/18

195 Festival Ranch WRF Wed 9/13/17 Tue 10/10/17 15

196 Central WRF Wed 10/11/17 Tue 11/7/17 195

197 Sundance WRF Wed 11/8/17 Tue 12/12/17 196

198 Tartesso WRF Wed 12/13/17 Tue 1/30/18 197

S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N
Half 1, 2017 Half 2, 2017 Half 1, 2018 Half 2, 2018

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration-only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

External Tasks

External Milestone

Deadline

Progress

Manual Progress

City of Buckeye 
SCADA Program Schedule

Page 3

Project: Project Portfolio
Date: Tue 11/8/16



ID Task Name Start Finish Predecessors

1 Buckeye SCADA Program Fri 10/7/16 Fri 10/26/18
2 Key Milestones Mon 11/14/16 Fri 10/26/18
3 SCADA Program Approval Mon 11/14/16 Mon 11/14/16
4 Program Manager Scope/Budget Approval Mon 11/14/16 Fri 2/3/17 3
5 SCADA Program Complete Fri 10/26/18 Fri 10/26/18 11
6 Projects In Progress Fri 10/7/16 Fri 12/2/16
7 CoB SCADA Communications Network Design Fri 10/7/16 Fri 10/7/16
8 TSU ‐ Tartesso Software Upgrades ‐ Managed Fri 10/7/16 Thu 10/13/16
9 FSU ‐ Festival Software Upgrades‐ Managed Wed 10/12/16 Tue 10/18/16
10 GWIC ‐ Comms Equipment Field Investigation and Installation Mon 11/14/16 Fri 12/2/16 3

11 Program Management Mon 2/6/17 Fri 10/26/18
12 Develop RFQ/RFP for System Integrator(s) Mon 2/6/17 Fri 2/17/17 4
13 Issue RFQ/RFP Mon 2/20/17 Fri 3/10/17 12
14 Review Proposals and Select System Integrators Mon 3/13/17 Fri 3/24/17 13
15 Project Scope of Work Development, Contract/Fee Review 

and Project Assignment
Mon 3/27/17 Tue 9/12/17

24 Project Review and Closeout Tue 10/3/17 Fri 8/31/18
32 Program Closeout Mon 9/3/18 Fri 10/26/18 24
33 Bi‐Weekly Progress Meetings Mon 2/6/17 Tue 6/19/18 4
79 Standards Development Mon 2/6/17 Fri 4/21/17
80 Develop Standard Well PLC Program Components Mon 2/6/17 Fri 2/17/17 4
81 Develop Standard Booster Station PLC Program Components Mon 2/6/17 Fri 2/24/17 4

82 Develop Standard HMI Components ‐ Archestra Mon 2/27/17 Fri 4/21/17 81
83 Develop SCADA Cybersecurity Standards Mon 2/6/17 Fri 3/31/17 4
84 Project GWIC ‐ Global Water Integration ‐ Critical Mon 12/5/16 Thu 1/11/18
85 GWIC Project Kickoff Mon 4/17/17 Mon 4/17/17 16
86 GWIC Install CoB Standard Communications Mon 12/5/16 Thu 11/16/17
95 Sonora Vista WTP Temp PLC Install Tue 4/18/17 Mon 5/1/17 85
96 Develop Control Strategies for Sonora Vista Mon 2/6/17 Fri 2/17/17 4
97 Reprogram Sonoran Vista and Wells (PLC & HMI) Mon 2/20/17 Fri 3/17/17 80
98 Sonora Vista Wells Cutover Fri 11/17/17 Thu 11/30/17 86,97
99 Migrate Global SCADA Server to Buckeye Main Control Office Fri 11/17/17 Thu 11/30/17 86

100 Testing and Validation Fri 12/1/17 Thu 1/11/18 98
101 Project GWINC ‐ Global Water Integration ‐ Non Critical Fri 1/12/18 Fri 6/8/18

11/14

10/26

10/7

S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D
6 Half 1, 2017 Half 2, 2017 Half 1, 2018 Half 2, 2018

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration-only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

External Tasks

External Milestone

Deadline

Progress

Manual Progress

City of Buckeye 
SCADA Program Schedule

Page 1

Project: Project Portfolio
Date: Tue 11/8/16



ID Task Name Start Finish Predecessors

102 GWINC Project Kickoff Fri 1/12/18 Fri 1/12/18 17,84
103 GWINC Install CoB Standard Communications Mon 1/15/18 Fri 1/26/18
104 Rancho Vista Booster Mon 1/15/18 Mon 1/15/18 102
105 Reach 2 PRV Tue 1/16/18 Tue 1/16/18 104
106 Westpark Booster Wed 1/17/18 Wed 1/17/18 105
107 Buckeye North Booster Thu 1/18/18 Thu 1/18/18 106
108 Buckeye Airport Well 2 Fri 1/19/18 Fri 1/19/18 107
109 Hopeville Mon 1/22/18 Mon 1/22/18 108
110 Sundance Community Park Booster Tue 1/23/18 Tue 1/23/18 109
111 Bulfur Well Wed 1/24/18 Wed 1/24/18 110
112 Historic Booster Thu 1/25/18 Thu 1/25/18 111
113 Sun Valley Fri 1/26/18 Fri 1/26/18 112
114 GWINC PLC Hardware Replacements Mon 1/29/18 Fri 3/30/18
115 Buckeye North Booster Mon 1/29/18 Fri 2/2/18 103
116 Hopeville Well Mon 2/5/18 Fri 2/9/18 115
117 Sonoran Vista WTP Mon 2/12/18 Fri 3/2/18 116
118 Sundance Community Park Booster Mon 3/5/18 Fri 3/9/18 117
119 Westpark Booster Mon 3/12/18 Fri 3/16/18 118
120 Sun Valley Mon 3/19/18 Fri 3/23/18 119
121 Bulfur Well Mon 3/26/18 Fri 3/30/18 120
122 GWINC Software Upgrades Mon 4/2/18 Fri 4/20/18 114
123 GWINC System Cutover Mon 4/23/18 Fri 4/27/18 122,114
124 GWINC Data Collection and Reporting Implementation Mon 4/30/18 Fri 5/25/18 123
125 GWINC Testing and Validation Mon 5/28/18 Fri 6/8/18 124
126 Project SSU ‐Sundance Systems Upgrades Tue 5/30/17 Fri 10/13/17
127 SSU Project Kickoff Tue 5/30/17 Tue 5/30/17 18
128 SSU Install CoB Standard Communications Wed 5/31/17 Thu 6/8/17 127
129 Sundance Well 1 Wed 5/31/17 Wed 5/31/17 127
130 Sundance Well 2 Thu 6/1/17 Thu 6/1/17 129
131 Sundance Well 3 Fri 6/2/17 Fri 6/2/17 130
132 Sundance Well 4 Mon 6/5/17 Mon 6/5/17 131
133 Sundance Well 7 Tue 6/6/17 Tue 6/6/17 132
134 Sundance Well 8 Wed 6/7/17 Wed 6/7/17 133
135 Sundance Well 9 Thu 6/8/17 Thu 6/8/17 134
136 SSU  PLC Hardware Replacements Fri 6/9/17 Fri 7/14/17
137 Sundance Distribution Fri 6/9/17 Thu 6/29/17 128
138 Sundance Golf Fri 6/30/17 Fri 7/7/17 137

S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D
6 Half 1, 2017 Half 2, 2017 Half 1, 2018 Half 2, 2018

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration-only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

External Tasks

External Milestone

Deadline

Progress

Manual Progress

City of Buckeye 
SCADA Program Schedule

Page 2

Project: Project Portfolio
Date: Tue 11/8/16



ID Task Name Start Finish Predecessors

139 Sundance Well 3 Mon 7/10/17 Fri 7/14/17 138
140 SSU SCADA Software Upgrades Mon 7/17/17 Fri 8/4/17 128,136
141 SSU System Cutover Mon 8/7/17 Fri 8/25/17 140,136
142 SSU Data Collection and Reporting Implementation Mon 8/28/17 Fri 9/22/17 141
143 SSU Testing and Validation Mon 9/25/17 Fri 10/13/17 142
144 Project TSU ‐ Tartesso System Upgrades Mon 10/16/17 Mon 2/5/18
145 TSU Project Kickoff Mon 10/16/17 Mon 10/16/17 19,126
146 TSU Install CoB Standard Communications Tue 10/17/17 Fri 10/20/17
147 Tartesso Well 2 Tue 10/17/17 Tue 10/17/17 145
148 Tartesso Distribution Wed 10/18/17 Wed 10/18/17 147
149 Well 12 Thu 10/19/17 Thu 10/19/17 148
150 Well 14 Fri 10/20/17 Fri 10/20/17 149
151 TSU Tartesso PLC Hardware Replacements Mon 10/23/17 Fri 11/3/17
152 Tartesso Well 2 Mon 10/23/17 Fri 10/27/17 146
153 Tartesso WRF Well Mon 10/30/17 Fri 11/3/17 152
154 TSU SCADA Software Upgrades ‐ Archestra Tue 10/17/17 Mon 11/6/17 82,145
155 TSU System Cutover Tue 11/7/17 Mon 12/4/17 154,151
156 TSU Data Collection and Reporting Implementation Tue 12/5/17 Mon 1/22/18 155
157 TSU Testing and Validation Tue 1/23/18 Mon 2/5/18 156
158 Project FSU ‐ Festival System Upgrades Wed 7/12/17 Thu 9/7/17
159 FSU Project Kickoff Wed 7/12/17 Thu 7/13/17 20
160 FSU Install CoB Standard Communications Fri 7/14/17 Wed 7/19/17
161 Festival Ranch Well 1 Fri 7/14/17 Fri 7/14/17 159
162 Festival Ranch Well 2 Mon 7/17/17 Mon 7/17/17 161
163 Festival Ranch Well 3 Tue 7/18/17 Tue 7/18/17 162
164 Festival Ranch Well 4 ‐ FUTURE Wed 7/19/17 Wed 7/19/17 163
165 FSU PLC Hardware Replacements Fri 7/14/17 Thu 8/3/17
166 Festival Ranch Distribution Fri 7/14/17 Thu 8/3/17 159
167 FSU SCADA Software Upgrades ‐ Archestra Fri 7/14/17 Thu 8/3/17 82,159
168 FSU System Cutover Fri 8/4/17 Thu 8/24/17 165
169 FSU Data Collection and Reporting Implementation Fri 8/4/17 Thu 8/31/17 167
170 FSU Testing and Validation Fri 8/25/17 Thu 9/7/17 168
171 Project NARU ‐ North Airport Road Upgrades Fri 9/8/17 Mon 10/2/17
172 NARU Project Kickoff Fri 9/8/17 Mon 9/11/17 21,158
173 NARU Install CoB Standard Communications Tue 9/12/17 Wed 9/13/17
174 NAR Well 1 Tue 9/12/17 Tue 9/12/17 172
175 NAR Well 2 Wed 9/13/17 Wed 9/13/17 174

S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D
6 Half 1, 2017 Half 2, 2017 Half 1, 2018 Half 2, 2018

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration-only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

External Tasks

External Milestone

Deadline

Progress

Manual Progress

City of Buckeye 
SCADA Program Schedule

Page 3

Project: Project Portfolio
Date: Tue 11/8/16



ID Task Name Start Finish Predecessors

176 NARU SCADA Software Upgrades ‐ Archestra Tue 9/12/17 Mon 9/18/17 172,82
177 NARU System Cutover Tue 9/19/17 Mon 9/25/17 176
178 NARU Data Collection and Reporting Implementation Tue 9/19/17 Mon 9/25/17 176
179 NARU Testing and Validation Tue 9/26/17 Mon 10/2/17 177
180 Project MHSU ‐ Miscellaneous Hardware/Software Upgrades Tue 10/3/17 Thu 11/30/17

181 MHU Project Kickoff Tue 10/3/17 Wed 10/4/17 22,171
182 MHU Install CoB Standard Communications Thu 10/5/17 Thu 10/5/17
183 Buckeye Airport Well 1 Thu 10/5/17 Thu 10/5/17 181
184 MHU PLC Hardware Replacements Fri 10/6/17 Thu 11/9/17
185 Buckeye Airport Well 1 Fri 10/6/17 Thu 10/12/17 182
186 Farallon Well Fri 10/13/17 Thu 10/19/17 185
187 Lower Buckeye Booster Fri 10/20/17 Thu 10/26/17 186
188 Northeast Lift Station Fri 10/27/17 Thu 11/2/17 187
189 Parcel 7 Lift Station Fri 11/3/17 Thu 11/9/17 188
190 MHU SCADA Software Upgrades ‐ Archestra Thu 10/5/17 Wed 10/11/17 181,82
191 MHU System Cutover Fri 11/10/17 Thu 11/16/17 184
192 MHU Data Collection and Reporting Implementation Thu 10/12/17 Wed 10/18/17 190
193 MHU Testing and Validation Fri 11/17/17 Thu 11/30/17 191
194 Project WRFE ‐ Water Reclamation Facility Evaluations Wed 9/13/17 Tue 1/30/18
195 Festival Ranch WRF Wed 9/13/17 Tue 10/10/17 15
196 Central WRF Wed 10/11/17 Tue 11/7/17 195
197 Sundance WRF Wed 11/8/17 Tue 12/12/17 196
198 Tartesso WRF Wed 12/13/17 Tue 1/30/18 197

S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D
6 Half 1, 2017 Half 2, 2017 Half 1, 2018 Half 2, 2018

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration-only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

External Tasks

External Milestone

Deadline

Progress

Manual Progress

City of Buckeye 
SCADA Program Schedule

Page 4

Project: Project Portfolio
Date: Tue 11/8/16



 

 

 

APPENDIX G 
Engineering Budget Analysis 

 

  



Task Name Cost Estimate
Key Milestones $0 
Projects In Progress $0 
Program Management(a) $266,960 
Standards Development $62,768 
Project GWIC - Global Water Integration - Critical $202,237 
Project GWINC - Global Water Integration - Non Critical $455,692 
Project SSU -Sundance Systems Upgrades $372,785 
Project TSU - Tartesso System Upgrades $204,038 
Project FSU - Festival System Upgrades $195,390 
Project NARU - North Airport Road Upgrades $42,769 
Project MHSU - Miscellaneous Hardware/Software Upgrades $231,042 
Project WRFE - Water Reclamation Facility Evaluations $214,528 

$2,248,208 
Recommended Owners Contingency 30% $674,462 

$2,922,670 

Subtotal

Recommended Budget

Appendix G. Engineering Budget Analysis

(a)  Efforts for Program Manager are also included in individual projects.

n\c\672\22-16-03\wp\102116_Attachments
Last Revised: 10-25-16

City of Buckeye
SCADA Program



 

 

 

APPENDIX H 
Gantt Chart 

  



ID WBS Task Name Start Finish Predecessors

1 1 Buckeye SCADA Program Fri 10/7/16 Fri 10/26/18

2 1.1 Key Milestones Mon 11/14/16 Fri 10/26/18

6 1.2 Projects In Progress Fri 10/7/16 Fri 12/2/16

11 1.3 Program Management Mon 2/6/17 Fri 10/26/18

79 1.4 Standards Development Fri 2/3/17 Fri 4/21/17

84 1.5 Project GWIC ‐ Global Water Integration ‐ Critical Mon 12/5/16 Thu 1/11/18

101 1.6 Project GWINC ‐ Global Water Integration ‐ Non Critical Fri 1/12/18 Fri 6/8/18

126 1.7 Project SSU ‐Sundance Systems Upgrades Tue 5/30/17 Fri 10/13/17

144 1.8 Project TSU ‐ Tartesso System Upgrades Mon 10/16/17 Mon 2/5/18

158 1.9 Project FSU ‐ Festival System Upgrades Wed 7/12/17 Thu 9/7/17

171 1.10 Project NARU ‐ North Airport Road Upgrades Fri 9/8/17 Mon 10/2/17

180 1.11 Project MHSU ‐ Miscellaneous Hardware/Software Upgrades Tue 10/3/17 Thu 11/30/17

194 1.12 Project WRFE ‐ Water Reclamation Facility Evaluations Wed 9/13/17 Tue 1/30/18

S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N
2, 2016 Half 1, 2017 Half 2, 2017 Half 1, 2018 Half 2, 2018

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration-only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

External Tasks

External Milestone

Deadline

Progress

Manual Progress

CIty of Buckeye 
SCADA Program Schedule

Gantt Chart Template

Page 1

Project: Project Portfolio
Date: Fri 11/4/16



 

 

 

APPENDIX I 
Task Cost Overview (Template) 



TASK COST OVERVIEW (TEMPLATE)
COST DETAILS

Name Fixed Cost Actual Cost Remaining Cost Cost Baseline 
Cost

Cost Variance

Key Milestones $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Projects In Progress $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Program Management $0.00 $0.00 $266,960.00 $266,960.00 $0.00 $266,960.00

Standards Development $0.00 $0.00 $62,768.00 $62,768.00 $0.00 $62,768.00

Project GWIC ‐ Global Water 
Integration ‐ Critical

$0.00 $0.00 $202,236.80 $202,236.80 $0.00 $202,236.80

Project GWINC ‐ Global 
Water Integration ‐ Non 
Critical

$0.00 $0.00 $455,692.00 $455,692.00 $0.00 $455,692.00

Project SSU ‐Sundance 
Systems Upgrades

$0.00 $0.00 $372,784.80 $372,784.80 $0.00 $372,784.80

Project TSU ‐ Tartesso 
System Upgrades

$0.00 $0.00 $204,037.60 $204,037.60 $0.00 $204,037.60

Project FSU ‐ Festival System 
Upgrades

$0.00 $0.00 $195,389.60 $195,389.60 $0.00 $195,389.60

Project NARU ‐ North Airport 
Road Upgrades

$0.00 $0.00 $42,768.80 $42,768.80 $0.00 $42,768.80

Project MHSU ‐
Miscellaneous 
Hardware/Software 
Upgrades

$0.00 $0.00 $231,042.40 $231,042.40 $0.00 $231,042.40

Project WRFE ‐ Water 
Reclamation Facility 
Evaluations

$0.00 $0.00 $214,528.00 $214,528.00 $0.00 $214,528.00

Cost details for all top‐level tasks.

dgroves
Typewritten Text

dgroves
Typewritten Text



3548 E. MESQUITE STREET 
GILBERT, AZ 85296 

PHONE: (480) 241-0016 
  

  

   

STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATION:  RFQ: 417007 

CITY OF BUCKEYE - SCADA IMPROVEMENTS ON-CALL LIST – CATEGORY 2 – SCADA SYSTEM 

PROGRAMMING   

 

FIRM INFORMATION 

1.  Rottweiler Controls LLC, is honored to provide the City of Buckeye (City) with our Team’s qualifications 

and experience.  Rottweiler has been providing the (City), SCADA Support Services for the last three (3) years 

under an On-Call Contract 2016-003.  Steve Gontarz, Field Specialist for Rottweiler has been providing the 

(City) support through his former employers since 1999. 

 Rottweiler Controls was founded by Steve Gontarz in 2014. Steve’s vision was to provide a higher level of 

“Service” that was neglected for years in the Controls Integration industry. The “Core” of Rottweiler Controls 

is Honesty, Integrity and Respect. Rottweiler’s Field Specialist Team has years of experience in the Controls, 

Integration System Design, and Commissioning. Our Projects range from Simple to Complex Well Sites and 

Liftstations, to complete Treatment Facilities, Manufacturing, Chemical/Petroleum processing, Semiconductor, 

Food and Beverage industry. Rottweiler guarantees our reputation of “Customer Service” and quality of 

workmanship that provides Twenty-Four (24) Hour Support Seven (7) Days a week. 

 

• Rottweiler respectfully request consideration for “Category 2: SCADA System Programming” for the 

On-Call List. 

Rottweiler’s sole Office is located 3548 E. Mesquite St. Gilbert, Arizona 85296.  

Rottweiler currently has four (4) on staff, Three (3) Technical (Programmers and Field Specialist), and one (1) 

Administrator.  

There are two (2) Primary Points of Contact (POC) for the City of Buckeye. Office: 480-241-0016 Jill Gontarz, 

Owner & Office Manager, e-mail (jgontarz@rottweilercontrols.com). Cell: 480-241-0932 for Steve Gontarz, 

Field Specialist/Project Manager/SCADA (sgontarz@rottweilercontrols.com). 

Rottweiler Controls is an Arizona Limited Liability Company registered with the Arizona Corporation 

Commission, Licensed in The City of Gilbert and The City of Buckeye. 

Rottweiler is proud to report that we have never had a Contract or Subcontract terminated nor has Rottweiler 

been the subject or involved in any Litigation or Arbitration. 

2.  Rottweiler is a privately held Self Certified, Minority/Women Owned, Arizona LLC, and is debt free.  We 

are solely self-funded and maintain an Excellent Credit rating with our suppliers.  

Rottweiler is qualified in utilizing the Project Management tools such as Microsoft Project Professional or other 

software as indicated by the Program Manager and Team Leaders. Rottweiler Controls Field Specialist Team, 

will prove to be an excellent asset to the City of Buckeye and Team. 

3.  All elements of the SCADA System Programming Category will be completed in house and will not require 

the use of Subcontractors.  As a Registered Wonderware System Integrator, and a Rockwell System Integrator, 

Rottweiler maintains all the software licenses and support resources required to provide the (City) and the 

(City’s) Team with SCADA Programming Support on any part of the system. 

 

 

 

       ROTTWEILER CONTROLS, LLC 
         Built on Honesty, Integrity, & Respect 

 

mailto:sgontarz@rottweilercontrols.com


                                                 Rottweiler Controls LLC 
                                                 Built on Honesty, Integrity and Respect 

 

B. EXPERIENCE OF FIRM: 

City of Buckeye - On-Call Contract Services, Buckeye, Arizona 

• Continuing: On-Call SCADA Support, Rottweiler provided Standard & Emergency Support. 

• Contract Amount:    $10,000.00  

• Method:                        Direct Select 

• Completion Date:        On Going  

Operations Management International, Inc., CH2MHill -Prescott Valley WWTP Facility 

• Rottweiler did a complete PLC System Re-write for Prescott Valley WWTP. 

• Contract Amount:   $238,052.25 

• Method:                      Direct Select 

• Completion Date:      On going 

Town of Camp Verde, Camp Verde Arizona – SCADA Conversion 

• Rottweiler converted a Citect SCADA System to a Wonderware System & Provided New SCADA 

Computer. 

• Contract Amount:     $47,555.00 

• Method:                        Direct Select 

• Completion Date:        On Going 

Fountain Hills Sanitary District – Fountain Hills, AZ – DCS/SACP Retrofit 

• Rottweiler provided AB, PLC and OIT Programming for Intermediate Phase of plant Expansion. 

• Contract Amount:        $17,727.00 

• Method:                           Direct Select 

• Completion Date:           April 12, 2017 

Slide Rock State Park Wastewater, Slide Rock, Arizona – Continuing Services 

• Support & Repair Services to restore the facility to normal operations & to provide ongoing support. 

• Contract Amount:           $20,000.00 

• Method:                              Direct Select 

• Completion Date:              Contract is On Going Support 

  

TWO GENERAL REFERENCES: 

• James Mainus:  (928) 420-6805  

8466 E. Long Mesa Dr. 

Prescott Valley, AZ 86314 

jmainus@ch2m.com 

 

• Jerry Tinagero:  (928) 593-0529 

1000 E. state Route 26  

Camp Verde, AZ 86322 

wwtp@campverde.az.gov 

 

mailto:jmainus@ch2m.com
mailto:wwtp@campverde.az.gov


                                              Rottweiler Controls LLC 

                                                   Built on Honesty, Integrity & Respect 
 

 

                  C1.    ROTTWEILER ORGANIZATIONAL CHART: 

 

       All employees report to Rottweiler Controls LLC at the Home Office: 

3548 E. Mesquite St. 

Gilbert, AZ 85296 

www.rottwweilercontrols.com 

 

Owner/ Office 
Manager Jill 

Gontarz

Steve Gontarz 
Field Specialist & 
Project Manager 

SCADA

Chris Lynch 
Operations & Field 
Specialist/SCADA 

Jonathan Homer 
IT/SCADA 
Technician

http://www.rottwweilercontrols.com/


                   ROTTWEILER CONTROLS, LLC 
                       Built on Honesty, Integrity & Respect 

 
 

 

 

    

 

 

Education 

 US Navy (10 Years) 

Advanced Electronics  

 Certified US Navy 

Instructor 

 US Navy Surface to Air 

Missile Systems 

Instructor 

 Harpoon Operator Team 

Trainer Instructor 

 Harpoon Weapons 

Maintenance Instructor 

 55B Mod10 Terrier 

Missile Technician 

  

 West Chester State 

University, PA 

 

 Level I Thermography 

Certified #99090(ITC) 

 NFPA 70E 

 OSHA 10 Hour 

Construction 

PLC/DCS Hardware 

 Rockwell/Allen Bradley 

 Schneider – 

Telemecanique - 

Modicon 

 GE Fanuc 

 Siemens/Siemens TI 

 Bristol Babcock 

 Networking: DeviceNet, 

ControlNet, Modbus, 

Modbus Plus, and 

Industrial Ethernet 

SCADA Software 

 Wonderware (IAS and 

Intouch) 

 GE Proficy/Intellution 

 Rockwell RSView 

 Citect 

 

Stephen G. Gontarz 

Project Manager – Field Specialist 

 

Primary Role: 

Steve will be the Primary Point of Contact for the City of Buckeye.  Steve will be the 

Leading Manager in Rottweilers Project Team for defined tasks, and Emergency Response 

Team for “Unscheduled” issues. 

 

Experience: 

Mr. Gontarz is the co-founder of Rottweiler Controls, LLC and Field Specialist.  Steve has 

more than twenty (20) years of Technical Design, Programming, and Start-up 

Commissioning’s in Instrumentation and Control (I&C) projects. Steve’s vision was 

implemented into Rottweiler’s Core Values of Honesty, Integrity, and Respect to 

cultivate excellent “customer service”. 

 

Steve has extensive Programming experience with Allen-Bradley (RSLogix 5000, 

RSLogix 500, RSLogix 5, Modicon (Unity, Concept, ProWorxNXT), Siemens (TiSoft), 

and GE FANUC, PLCs. His HMI Programming experience includes working with various 

versions of the Wonderware (InTouch and IAS), GE Proficy/Intellution, and Citect 

packages. He has Programmed and configured Operator Interface Terminals manufactured 

by Allen-Bradley (PanelView, PanelView Plus, 400-800), Modicon (Panel Mate), Total 

Control Products, Eaton, Phoenix Contact, Idec, Direct Logix and Maple Systems. 

 

Steve is the driving force in hundreds of Controls System projects ranging from small 

simple projects to large complex systems.  Steve has become the “Go-To” man at startups, 

because of his Experience and most of all his Process Knowledge.  Steve’s experience 

includes: 

 

 Water Wells  Booster Stations 

 Recharge and 

Injection Wells 

(Treated Wastewater) 

 Complete Water and 

Wastewater 

Treatment Plants 

 Arsenic Removal 

Systems 
 Lift Stations 

 Chemical Injection  Mining 

 Ultra-Pure Chemical 

(Semiconductor)  
 Thermal Heat-Treat 

 Injection Molding  Food and Beverage 

 

Steve’s reputation is well known in the Arizona market for his Superior Performance and 

his commitment to Customer Service.  Since opening Rottweiler, some of the entities 

served include: 

 

 Prescott Valley 

Water/Wastewater 

 Precision Tools & Die 

 Fountain Hills 

Sanitary District 

 Bagdad Mine 

 City of Buckeye  Town of Camp Verde 

 Luke Air Force Base  Arlington Power 

Generation 
 



                   ROTTWEILER CONTROLS, LLC 
                       Built on Honesty, Integrity & Respect 

 

 

Stephen Gontarz 

Project Manager and Field Specialist 
 

Recent Project Experience includes: 

City of Buckeye Water Distribution System (Various Sites/Systems), Buckeye AZ 

Rottweiler supported the City of Buckeye triaging Sites that were failing, converting them to a managed InTouch 

System. 

 

Role:   Steve as Project Manager and Field Specialist, programmed Site Start up’s, Verifications and any 

Diagnostic work that needed to be done.   This was a Multi-site project consisting of the following: 

 

 Tartesso – Water and Wastewater Sites  Sun Dance – Water and Wastewater Sites 

 Northeast Lift station  Festival Ranch – Water and Wastewater 

 Farallon Well Historic Booster Station   

 

 Contract Amount:    $77,500.00 Estimated  

 Completion Date:     December 2015 

 Method:                     Direct Select 

 

Steve assessed all of Global Water Sites in March 2016. He recorded and provided a twenty-seven (27) page Site 

Assessment Manual for the Global Water System Sites. No documentation existed until that time. 

 

 

Town of Camp Verde, Camp Verde Arizona – SCADA Conversion (From Firm List) 

Role:   Steve assessed what was needed for the Town of Camp Verde, configuring a new SCADA Computer, after 

a catastrophic Server Failure resulting in the plant’s staff having to monitor every three (3) hours, twenty-four (24) 

hours a day until the system was back online. The Town’s request was to switch from Citect HMI to Wonderware.  

As part of this Project, Steve converted the Citect Database to Wonderware and recreated all graphical screens.  In 

addition, Steve set up Win911 Enterprise addition which had the Town of Camp Verde up and running in Auto 

within two (2) weeks on the New Wonderware Application. 



AMENDMENT #2  
RFQ# 417007  
SCADA IMPROVEMENTS ON-CALL LIST 
 

FOR USE IN TAB C: EXPERIENCE OF KEY PERSONNEL, IN ADDITION TO RESUME OF KEY PERSONNEL  

Provide Two General References (outside of firm), with contact information  

 
 
Company Name: _________________________________________________ 
 
Address:  _________________________________________________ 
 
Reference:  _________________________________________________ 
 
Telephone Number: _________________________________________________ 
 
Email address:  _________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Company Name: _________________________________________________ 
 
Address:  _________________________________________________ 
 
Reference:  _________________________________________________ 
 
Telephone Number: _________________________________________________ 
 
Email address:  _________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CLynch
Typewriter
Town of Prescott Valley (OMI/CH2MHill)

CLynch
Typewriter
8466 E. Long Mesa Dr., Prescott Valley, AZ 86314

CLynch
Typewriter
James Mainus

CLynch
Typewriter
(928) 420-6805

CLynch
Typewriter
jmainus@ch2m.com

CLynch
Typewriter
Town of Camp Verde

CLynch
Typewriter
1000 E. State Route 260, Camp Verde, AZ 86322

CLynch
Typewriter
Jerry Tinagero

CLynch
Typewriter
(928) 593-0529

CLynch
Typewriter
wwtp@campverde.az.gov

CLynch
Typewriter
Stephen G. GontarzProject Manager – Field Specialist



  
  

  

 

ROTTWEILER CONTROLS, LLC 
Built on Honesty, Integrity & Respect 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Education 

• B.S. Business 

Operations, DeVry 

Institute of Technology, 

Phoenix, Arizona 

 

Continuing 

Education 
• Mine Safety Hazard 

Training (MSHA) 

• NFPA 70E 

• OSHA 10 Hour 

Construction 

• 984 Programming – 

AEG Modicon 

• Modbus Plus 

Networking – AEG 

Modicon 

• Advanced Installation 

Programming 

• Industrial SQL Server 

Basic 

• LANtastic LAN 

Management 

Software Experience 

• Wonderware – Industrial 

SQL, Intouch 

• Win911 

• Rockwell Automation -

RSLogix, RSView 

• Modicon – Proworx, 

Concept, and Unity 

 

Operating Systems 
• Microsoft Server 

(Various Versions) 

• Microsoft Window 

(Various Versions) 

• Apple OS X 

 

 

 

Christopher S. Lynch 

Operations and Field Specialist 

 

Primary Role:  

Chris’ role will be in Wonderware and Rockwell PLC Programming and Support.  Chris 

will be part of Rottweilers Project Team for defined tasks, and Emergency Response Team 

for “Unscheduled” issues. 

 

Experience:  

 
Chris Lynch is Operations and Field Specialist for Rottweiler Controls, LLC.  Chris’s 

career started as an Application Programmer and his Professional experience over the past 

25 years has included numerous I&C projects ranging in scope from conception to 

commissioning. Chris’ roles ranged from Senior Application Programmer, Lead 

Technician, Project Manager, to full financial control of large projects as Chief Financial 

Officer of DLT&V Systems Engineering.  

 

Chris’ projects consisted of Control System Design, Supervisory Control and Data 

Acquisition (SCADA) Systems, Programmable Logic Controller (PLC) Program 

Engineering and development, Human – Machine – Interface (HMI) Program Engineering 

and Development Construction Inspection, and startup of water production, Water 

Treatment, Wastewater, Mining, and Manufacturing applications.  

 

Chris has extensive Programming experience with Modicon, Siemens, Toshiba, GE 

FANUC, and Allen-Bradley PLCs. His HMI Programming experience includes working 

with various versions of the Wonderware and Intellution packages. He has programmed 

and configured Operator Interface Terminals manufactured by Kessler-Ellis, Allen-

Bradley, Modicon, Total Control Products, Eaton, Phoenix Contact, and Nematron. 

 

Chris has more than 25 years of progressively responsible experience in Operational and 

Project Management, hands-on technical design, programming, and start-up 

responsibilities in Instrumentation and Control (I&C) projects. As a founding partner of an 

Electrical Engineering, Instrumentation, and Controls Consulting Firm, Chris is a proven 

entrepreneurial Senior Manager with extensive experience in Operational Management.  

His current duties include day to day Operational Development for our growing business, 

Resource Management, Business Development, Project Management, and hands-on Field 

Service.  Chris’ career has been dedicated to “Best in Class” Customer Service and he has 

a proven track record in providing it. 

 

Prior to Joining Rottweiler, Chris was the Vice President – Business Development and 

Procurement for Keller Electrical Industries, Inc. (KEI).  Chris managed a sales team of 

Six Outside and Three Inside sales people growing revenue to over $25 Million in Sales.  

Chris successfully grew sales by double digits in struggling economy while increasing 

market share and company name recognition for the company.  He Personally Negotiated, 

Executed, and Delivered over $4M in Equipment/Project Sales in his last two years at KEI.  

Additionally, Chris solidified and negotiated OEM and Distribution relationships with 

major electrical manufacturers including US Motors, Toshiba Industrial Controls, GE, and 

ABB. 



ROTTWEILER CONTROLS, LLC 
Built on Honesty, Integrity & Respect 

 

 

 
 

 

Christopher S. Lynch 

Operations and Field Specialist 
 

Recent Project Experience includes: 

 

Fountain Hills Sanitary District DCS/SACP RTU Replacement (From Firm List) 

Role: Chris was Programming Project Manager and Lead Programmer on this project which included programming two 

Rockwell Control Logix PLC’s and two PanelView 700 Operator Interfaces to accommodate the Temporary operations 

of the Wastewater Treatment Facility.  Process areas included:  

• Flow Equalization Basin (FEB) Pump Station 

• Waste Activated Sludge(WAS) Pump System 

• Digested Sludge Pump System 

• Thickened Sludge Pump System. 

Chris performed Startup testing and Commissioning with the customer and assisted the customer with their VTScada 

Database modifications. 

 

Slide Rock Park Wastewater Continuing Service (From Firm List) 

Role:  Chris “Reverse Engineered” OEM’s Wonderware and WIN 911 Applications to determine why the system to 

Function in Automatic Mode.  Chris was required to match up Wonderware Tags to determine Operational Function and 

Intent while matching to PLC Code.  Many of the issues Chris determined were the OEM’s attempt to “Standardize” 

programming but failing to Enable/Disable features relative to Slide Rock’s specific process. 

Chris continues to provide on-going “On-Call” support for system enhancements and process optimization. 



AMENDMENT #2  
RFQ# 417007  
SCADA IMPROVEMENTS ON-CALL LIST 
 

FOR USE IN TAB C: EXPERIENCE OF KEY PERSONNEL, IN ADDITION TO RESUME OF KEY PERSONNEL  

Provide Two General References (outside of firm), with contact information  

 
 
Company Name: _________________________________________________ 
 
Address:  _________________________________________________ 
 
Reference:  _________________________________________________ 
 
Telephone Number: _________________________________________________ 
 
Email address:  _________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Company Name: _________________________________________________ 
 
Address:  _________________________________________________ 
 
Reference:  _________________________________________________ 
 
Telephone Number: _________________________________________________ 
 
Email address:  _________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CLynch
Typewriter
Town of Prescott Valley (OMI/CH2MHill)

CLynch
Typewriter
8466 E. Long Mesa Dr., Prescott Valley, AZ 86314

CLynch
Typewriter
James Mainus

CLynch
Typewriter
(928) 420-6805

CLynch
Typewriter
jmainus@ch2m.com

CLynch
Typewriter
Slide Rock State Park

CLynch
Typewriter
6871 N. Hwy 89A, Sedona AZ 86336

CLynch
Typewriter
Frank Vandevender

CLynch
Typewriter
(928) 282-3034

CLynch
Typewriter
fvandevender@azstateparks.gov

CLynch
Typewriter
Christopher S. LynchOperations and Field Specialist



  
 

 

ROTTWEILER CONTROLS, LLC 
Built on Honesty, Integrity & Respect 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Education 
• University of Phoenix 

Bachelor of the Arts 

(BA), Criminal Justice / 

Law Enforcement 

Administration with a 

Concentration in 

Management, Graduated 

Cum Laude 

• University of Phoenix 

Master’s Degree, 

Management of 

Information Systems, 

(Current - 2017) 

Professional 

Certifications 
• Wonderware 

Application Server 

• Wonderware INtouch 

Software Experience 
• WonderWare – 

Industrial SQL, System 

Platform, Intouch 

• Win911 

• Adobe – Illustrator, 

Dreamweaver 

• VMWare 

• Oracle 

• Honeywell Experion, 

GUS, Server, Control 

Builder, Configuration 

Studio 

• Rockwell Automation -

RSLogix, RS View 

Operating Systems 
• Microsoft Server 

(Various Versions) 

• Exchange Server 

• Microsoft Window 

(Various Versions) 

• Linux 

• Apple OS X 

 
Jonathan Homer 

System Integrator 
 

Primary Role: 

Jonathan’s role will be in Wonderware and WIN911 Programming, and Network Support.  

Jonathan will be part of Rottweilers Project Team for defined tasks, and Emergency 

Response Team for “Unscheduled” issues. 

 

Experience: 

 
Mr. Homer is a Control System Integrator with over eight (8) years in Control Systems 

Automation, Information Technology, Technical Support, Field Service, and Business 

Development. 

 

Jonathan has extensive experience installing, maintaining, and troubleshooting a variety 

of hardware, software, and networking issues and working directly with customers to 

resolve problems. He has well-developed skills configuring servers, client networks, and 

software clients, designing Human Machine Interfaces (HMI), Graphical User Interfaces 

(GUI), and upgrading and installing software and server applications.  

 

Jonathan is a dedicated leader with excellent communication skills and has a proven track 

record of success managing a portfolio of IT projects, serving as the primary point-of-

contact for customers, and serving as a technical Subject Matter Expert responsible for 

resolving customer issues with hardware, software, networking, and providing expert 

advice on company products and services. 

 

Prior to joining Rottweiler, Jonathan was a Senior Designer/System Integrator at an 

Industrial Software Integration company specializing in the Gas and Oil market.  Jonathan 

provided Software Design and Development on a proprietary industrial product based on 

the Honeywell DCS platform and geared for the Gas and Oil and Manufacturing 

Industries. 

 
 

 

 



                                                         Rottweiler Controls LLC 
                                                          Built on Honesty, Integrity and Respect 

 

Jonathan Homer 

System Integrator 
 

Recent Project Experience includes: 

City of Prescott Valley, Water Distribution SCADA Server Replacement, Prescott Valley, AZ  

(From Firm List) 

Role:  Jonathan was the lead in replacing a failed server system for a private Water Operation company running the 

Town of Prescott Valley’s Water and Wastewater systems.  Jonathan configured and deployed a redundant 

Wonderware system communicating over a combination of Radio and Ethernets monitoring and controlling Thirteen 

Well Sites, Three Booster Stations, and Five Tank Sites.  The system also included the addition (upgrade) of Win911 

Alarming software. 

 

 

British Petroleum (BP) Husky Refinery - ISOCracker and ISOCracker SIS - Honeywell GUS 

to Experion/Altius Upgrade, Toledo, OH 

 
Project was to convert the existing proprietary Honeywell GUS (Global User Station) graphics to an ASM (Abnormal 

Situation Management) Graphics scheme utilizing the proprietary Shape Package Altius.   
 

Role:   Jonathan built two-hundred plus ASM graphics for the projects, Implemented the graphics, performed system 

check-out on site, and performed on-going service work.  Most of the Graphic development was performed off site 

at Jonathans local office located in Scottsdale, AZ, before heading to site for implementation.  Jonathan was the 

primary point of contact on both projects, and both projects were completed ahead of schedule allowing time to 

perform extra system enhancement for the customer. 

 

• Contract Amount:    $800,000.00 Estimated  

• Completion Date:     September 2015 

• Method:                     Direct Select 

 



AMENDMENT #2  
RFQ# 417007  
SCADA IMPROVEMENTS ON-CALL LIST 
 

FOR USE IN TAB C: EXPERIENCE OF KEY PERSONNEL, IN ADDITION TO RESUME OF KEY PERSONNEL  

Provide Two General References (outside of firm), with contact information  

 
 
Company Name: _________________________________________________ 
 
Address:  _________________________________________________ 
 
Reference:  _________________________________________________ 
 
Telephone Number: _________________________________________________ 
 
Email address:  _________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Company Name: _________________________________________________ 
 
Address:  _________________________________________________ 
 
Reference:  _________________________________________________ 
 
Telephone Number: _________________________________________________ 
 
Email address:  _________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CLynch
Typewriter
Celtic Elevator

CLynch
Typewriter
39506 W Daisy Mountain Dr Suite 122-613, Anthem AZ 85086

CLynch
Typewriter
Shaun Leary

CLynch
Typewriter
602-910-0409

CLynch
Typewriter
shaun@celticelevator.com

CLynch
Typewriter
Wonderware West

CLynch
Typewriter
2111 E Highland Ave B430, Phoenix, AZ 85016

CLynch
Typewriter
Brian Farner

CLynch
Typewriter
(602) 297-2600

CLynch
Typewriter
Brian.Farner@west.Wonderware.com

CLynch
Typewriter
Jonathan HomerSystem Integrator



AMENDMENT #1 
RFQ# 417007 3 
SCADA IMPROVEMENTS ON-CALL LIST 
 

SOLICITATION AMENDMENT ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 
RFQ# 417007: SCADA IMPROVEMENTS ON-CALL LIST 
AMENDMENT NUMBER 1 
AMENDMENT ISSUE DATE: March 30, 2017 
 
Offeror certifies that Offeror has read, understands, and will fully and faithfully comply with this 
Request for Proposals, its attachments and any referenced documents. Offeror also certifies that 
this offer was independently developed without consultation with any of the other Offerors or 
potential Offerors. 
 
 
Name of Company:     _____________________________________________________ 

Authorized Signature: _____________________________________________________ 

Print Name and Title: _____________________________________________________ 

Date:   _____________________________________________________ 

Address:  _____________________________________________________ 

City, State, Zip Code:   _____________________________________________________ 

Telephone Number:    _____________________________________________________ 

Email Address:             _____________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CLynch
Typewriter
Rottweiler Controls, LLC

CLynch
Typewriter
Jill Gontarz - Owner

CLynch
Typewriter
April 26, 2017

CLynch
Typewriter
3548 E. Mesquite Street

CLynch
Typewriter
Gilbert, AZ 85296

CLynch
Typewriter
480-241-0016

CLynch
Typewriter
JGontarz@RottweilerControls.com

CLynch
Typewriter
Rottweiler Controls, LLC

CLynch
Typewriter
Jill Gontarz - Owner

CLynch
Typewriter
April 26, 2017

CLynch
Typewriter
3548 E. Mesquite Street

CLynch
Typewriter
Gilbert, AZ 85296

CLynch
Typewriter
480-241-0016

CLynch
Typewriter
Rottweiler Controls, LLC

CLynch
Typewriter
Jill Gontarz - Owner

CLynch
Typewriter
April 26, 2017

CLynch
Typewriter
3548 E. Mesquite Street

CLynch
Typewriter
Gilbert, AZ 85296

CLynch
Typewriter
480-241-0016

CLynch
Typewriter
JGontarz@RottweilerControls.com



AMENDMENT #2  
RFQ# 417007 2 
SCADA IMPROVEMENTS ON-CALL LIST 
 

example, we intend to submit for both categories so do we state we are submitting in category 1, 
within the category’s 2 submittal? 
 
A2: Identify the category you are submitting for in each cover page. You will have one cover 
page per category. You do not need to mention both categories on one cover page. 
 
 
The balance of the specifications and instructions remain the same. Offerors must acknowledge 
receipt and acceptance of this amendment by returning the entire amendment with the 
Proposal. 
 
PLEASE ACKNOWLEDGE YOUR FIRM’S RECEIPT OF THIS AMENDMENT BY SIGNING BELOW 
******************************************************************************** 

SOLICITATION AMENDMENT ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 
RFQ# 417007: SCADA IMPROVEMENTS ON-CALL LIST 
AMENDMENT NUMBER 2 
AMENDMENT ISSUE DATE: April 24, 2017 
 
Offeror certifies that Offeror has read, understands, and will fully and faithfully comply with this 
Request for Proposals, its attachments and any referenced documents. Offeror also certifies that 
this offer was independently developed without consultation with any of the other Offerors or 
potential Offerors. 
 
 
Name of Company:     _____________________________________________________ 

Authorized Signature: _____________________________________________________ 

Print Name and Title: _____________________________________________________ 

Date:   _____________________________________________________ 

Address:  _____________________________________________________ 

City, State, Zip Code:   _____________________________________________________ 

Telephone Number:    _____________________________________________________ 

Email Address:             _____________________________________________________ 

 
 

CLynch
Typewriter
Rottweiler Controls, LLC

CLynch
Typewriter
Jill Gontarz - Owner

CLynch
Typewriter
April 26, 2017

CLynch
Typewriter
3548 E. Mesquite Street

CLynch
Typewriter
Gilbert, AZ 85296

CLynch
Typewriter
480-241-0016

CLynch
Typewriter
JGontarz@RottweilerControls.com



 

On-Call SCADA Improvements  
Rottweiler Controls, LLC 
Contract No: 31700019  

1 

ON-CALL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT  
BETWEEN 

CITY OF BUCKEYE 
AND 

ROTTWEILER CONTROLS, LLC 
 
 

Contract No: 31700019 
 
 
THIS CONTRACT, made and entered into by and between the CITY OF BUCKEYE, an Arizona 
municipal corporation, hereafter called the “CITY”, and Rottweiler Controls, LLC, hereafter 
called “CONSULTANT”. 
 

RECITALS 
The City of Buckeye, Arizona, is authorized and empowered by the City Code to execute 

contracts for professional services. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual promises herein 
contained, The City and Consultant agree as follows: 
 

This Contract shall be in full force and effect only when it has been approved as 
required by the City Code and executed by the duly authorized City officials. 
 
1.0 SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

The City desires to obtain Professional Services related to SCADA Improvements. In 
accordance with the contract documents, a specific scope of services and fee proposal 
shall be negotiated for each project and be executed by individual Task Orders. Services 
provided by the Consultant under this agreement shall be performed in a manner 
consistent with the degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same 
profession currently practicing under similar conditions. 

 
The Consultant shall perform all services within the cost and timeframes defined in 
executed Task Orders, and comply in all respect, as described herein for the 
consideration stipulated, and in compliance with applicable Federal, State, and City 
Codes. Services at the City’s request may include, in general, but are not limited to the 
following: 
 
Control Panel Design, Build and Installation - May include the following services: 

• Design of new control panels 
• Design of control panels retrofits or replacements, including site visits to develop 

documentation of existing conditions as required 
• Participate in design review meetings 



 

On-Call SCADA Improvements  
Rottweiler Controls, LLC 
Contract No: 31700019  

2 

• Development of detailed control panel cost estimates 
• Development of control panel shop drawings 
• Development of detailed delivery schedule for control panel assembly 
• Build control panels 
• Perform Factory Acceptance Test, including loading basic PLC program for testing 

purposes 
• Development of final “As-Built” drawings 
• Installation of new control panels 
• Removal of existing control panel components 
• Installation of control panel components in retrofitted panels 
• Perform site acceptance testing  
• Provide startup/cutover support 

 
2.0 FEES AND PAYMENTS 
 
2.1 REGISTRATION REQUIREMENT IN CONSULTANT SELF SERVICE (VSS) 
 

In order to do business with the City of Buckeye, all Consultants must register at 
https://selfservice.buckeyeaz.gov/MSS. Please be aware, Consultants that do not 
register and verify their information, including uploading a W-9 form to their profile, 
may experience delays in processing of invoices and will not be able to do business with 
the City.  
 

2.2 BUSINESS LICENSE REQUIREMENT  
 

Consultants doing business within the City limits must obtain a City of Buckeye Business 
License in order to do business with the City. Apply for a Business License at 
http://www.buckeyeaz.gov/business-licenses/.  

 
2.3 FEE SCHEDULE 
 

Each Task Order over One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00) shall be subject to 
City Council Approval. 

 
2.4 PAYMENT APPROVAL 
 
 The time spent for each task shall be recorded and submitted to the Contract 

Administrator.  Consultant shall maintain all books, papers, documents, accounting 
records and other evidence pertaining to time billed and to costs incurred and make 
such materials available at all reasonable times during the contract period. 

 
 Monthly payments shall be made to the Consultant on the basis of a progress report 

prepared and submitted by the Consultant for work completed through the last day of 

https://selfservice.buckeyeaz.gov/MSS
http://www.buckeyeaz.gov/business-licenses/


 

On-Call SCADA Improvements  
Rottweiler Controls, LLC 
Contract No: 31700019  

3 

the preceding calendar month.  Each task shall be subject to review and approval by the 
Contract Administrator to determine acceptable completion. 

 
 The Contract Administrator shall prepare a partial payment request document for the 

Consultant’s acceptance.   
 
 The Contract Administrator reserves the exclusive right to determine the amount of 

work performed and payment due the Consultant on a monthly basis. 
 
 All charges must be approved by the Contract Administrator prior to payment. 
 
3.0 GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
3.1 CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR 
 
 The Contract Administrator for the City shall be the Purchasing Agent in the Construction 

and Contracting Division or designee. The Contract Administrator shall oversee the 
performance of this Contract, assist the Consultant in contacting members of the City, 
audit billings, and approve payments.  The Consultant shall submit all reports and special 
requests through the Contract Administrator. 

 
3.2 TERM OF CONTRACT 
  

The Contract initial term is established for a term commencing on the date of execution 
and ending June 30, 2018, with automatic renewals, unless otherwise terminated by 
either party, for four (4) additional one-year terms. Consultant shall provide services 
under the contract for specific project assignments with a Task Order issued no later 
than the final day of the effective Contract terms.  
 

3.3 TERMINATION OF CONTRACT 
 
 The City has the right to terminate this Contract or abandon any portion of the project, 

which has not been performed by the Consultant. 
 

Termination for Convenience: City and Consultant reserve the right to terminate this 
contract or any part hereof for its sole convenience with thirty (30) days written notice.  
In the event of such termination, Consultant shall immediately stop all work hereunder, 
and shall immediately cause any of its suppliers and Sub-consultants to cease such work. 
As compensation in full for services performed to the date of such termination, the 
Consultant shall receive a fee for the percentage of services actually completed.  This fee 
shall be in the amount to be mutually agreed upon by the Consultant and the City, based 
on the agreed Scope of Work and the value to the City of the services completed.  If 
there is no mutual agreement, the Contract Administrator shall determine the 
percentage of completion of each task detailed in the Scope of Work and the 



 

On-Call SCADA Improvements  
Rottweiler Controls, LLC 
Contract No: 31700019  

4 

Consultant’s compensation shall be based upon such determination.  The City shall make 
this final payment within sixty (60) days after the Consultant has delivered the last of the 
partially completed items.  Consultant shall not be paid for any work done after receipt 
of the notice of termination, or for any costs incurred by Consultant’s suppliers or Sub-
consultants, which Consultant could reasonably have avoided. 

 
Termination for Cause: City may also terminate this contract or any part hereof with 
seven (7) days written notice for cause in the event of any default by the Consultant, or 
if the Consultant fails to comply with any of the material terms and conditions of this 
contract. By way of example and not limitation, unsatisfactory performance as judged by 
the Contract Administrator, and failure to provide City, upon written request, with 
adequate assurances of future performance shall all be causes allowing City to terminate 
this contract for cause.  In the event of termination for cause, City shall not be liable to 
Consultant for any amount after the issuance of written notice, and Consultant shall be 
liable to City for any and all damages sustained by reason of the default that gave rise to 
the termination. 

 
In the event Consultant is in violation of any Federal, State, County or City law, 
regulation or ordinance, the City may terminate this contract immediately upon giving 
written notice to the Consultant. 

 
 In the event the City shall terminate this Contract or any part of the services as herein 

provided, the City shall notify the Consultant in writing, and immediately upon receiving 
such written notice, the Consultant shall discontinue advancing the work under this 
Contract and proceed to close said operations. 

 
 Upon such termination or abandonment, the Consultant shall deliver to the City all 

drawings, special provisions, field survey notes, reports, and estimates, entirely or 
partially completed, in any format, including but not limited to written or electronic 
media, together with all unused materials supplied by the City.   

  
 The Consultant shall appraise the work it has completed and submit its appraisal to the 

City for evaluation. 
 
 If through any cause, the Consultant shall fail to fulfill in a timely and proper manner its 

obligations under this Contract, or if the Consultant shall violate any of the covenants, 
agreements, or stipulations of this Contract, the City may withhold any payments to the 
Consultant for the purpose of setoff until such time as the exact amount of damages due 
the City from the Consultant is determined. 

 
3.4 FUNDS APPROPRIATION 
 
 If the City Council does not appropriate funds to continue this Contract and pay for 

charges hereunder, the City may terminate this Contract at the end of the current fiscal 



 

On-Call SCADA Improvements  
Rottweiler Controls, LLC 
Contract No: 31700019  

5 

period, or at the time that funds are no longer available to meet the City’s payment 
obligations hereunder.  The City agrees to give written notice of termination to the 
Consultant at least thirty (30) days prior to any termination for a lack of funds and will 
pay to the Consultant all approved charges incurred prior to Consultant’s receipt of such 
notice, subject to the availability of funds therefore. 

 
3.5 AUDIT 
 
 The City may audit all of the Consultant’s records, calculations, and working documents 

pertaining to this work at a mutually agreeable time and place. 
 

Consultant’s records (hard copy, as well as computer readable data), and any other 
supporting evidence deemed necessary by the City to substantiate charges and claims 
related to this contract shall be open to inspection and subject to audit and/or 
reproduction by City's authorized representative to the extent necessary to permit 
evaluation and verification of cost of the work, and any invoices, change orders, 
payments or claims submitted by the Consultant or any of his payees pursuant to the 
execution of the contract.  The City's authorized representative shall be afforded access, 
at reasonable times and places, to all of the Consultant’s records and personnel 
pursuant to the provisions of this article throughout the term of this contract and for a 
period of three years after last or final payment. 

 
Consultant shall require all Sub-consultants, to comply with the provisions of this article 
by insertion of the requirements hereof in a written contract agreement between 
Consultant and payee.  Such requirements will also apply to any and all Sub-consultants. 

 
If an audit in accordance with this article, discloses overcharges, of any nature, by the 
Consultant to the City in excess of five percent (5%) of the total contract billings, the 
actual cost of the City's audit shall be reimbursed to the City by the Consultant.  Any 
adjustments and/or payments, which must be made as a result of any, such audit or 
inspection of the Consultant’s invoices and/or records shall be made within a reasonable 
amount of time (not to exceed 90 days) from presentation of City's findings to 
Consultant. 

 
3.6 OWNERSHIP OF PROJECT DOCUMENTS 
 
 All documents, including but not limited to, field notes, design notes, tracings, data 

compilations, studies, and reports in any format, including but not limited to, written or 
electronic media, which are prepared in the performance of this Contract will become 
and are the property of City, including all intellectual property rights and interests. 

 
 
 
 



 

On-Call SCADA Improvements  
Rottweiler Controls, LLC 
Contract No: 31700019  

6 

3.7 COMPLETENESS AND ACCURACY 
 
 The Consultant shall be responsible for the accuracy of its work, including but not limited 

to, survey work, reports, supporting data, and drawings, sketches, etc. prepared or 
compiled pursuant to this Contract and shall correct, at its expense, all negligent errors 
or omissions therein which may be disclosed.  The cost necessary to correct those errors 
attributable to the engineering errors shall be chargeable to the Consultant. Additional 
construction added to the project shall not be considered the responsibility of the 
Consultant unless the need for same was created solely by any negligent error, omission, 
or negligent act of the Consultant and does not result in a betterment to the City.  The 
fact that the City has accepted or approved the Consultant’s work shall in no way relieve 
the Consultant of any of its responsibilities. 

 
3.8 ATTORNEY’S FEES 
 
 In the event either party brings any action for any relief, declaratory or otherwise, 

arising out of this Contract, or on account of any breach or default hereof, the prevailing 
shall be entitled to receive from the other party reasonable attorneys’ fees and 
reasonable costs and expenses, which shall be deemed to have accrued from the 
commencement of such action. 

 
3.9 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 
 
 This Contract shall extend to and be binding upon the Consultant, its successors and 

assigns, including any individual, company, partnership, or other entity with or into 
which the Consultant shall merge, consolidate, or be liquidated, or any person, 
corporation, partnership, or other entity to which the Consultant shall sell its assets. 

 
3.10 ASSIGNMENT 
 
 Services covered by this Contract shall not be assigned or subcontracted in whole or in 

part without the prior written consent of the Contract Administrator. 
 
3.11 SUB-CONSULTANTS 
 
 During the performance of the Contract, the Consultant may engage such additional 

Sub-consultants as may be required for the timely completion of this Contract.  The 
addition of any Sub-consultants shall be subject to the prior approval of the City. 

 
 In the event of subcontracting, the sole responsibility for fulfillment of all terms and 

conditions of this Contract rests with the Consultant. 
 
 
 



 

On-Call SCADA Improvements  
Rottweiler Controls, LLC 
Contract No: 31700019  

7 

3.12 ALTERATIONS OR ADDITIONS TO SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 The total scope of Services to be performed in accordance with this Contract is set forth 

herein.  Services, which are not included in this Contract, will be considered Additional 
Services.  The Consultant shall not perform these Additional Services without written 
authorization in the form of an approved Change Order from the City.   

 
3.13 MODIFICATIONS 
 
 Any amendment, modification or variation from the terms of this Contract shall be in 

writing and shall be effective only after approval of all parties signing the original 
Contract. 

 
3.14 CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
 This Contract is subject to cancellation pursuant to the provisions of A.R.S. 38-511. 
  
3.15 FORCE MAJEURE 
 
 Neither party shall be responsible for delays or failures in performance resulting from 

acts beyond their control.  Such acts shall include, but not be limited to, acts of God, 
riots, acts of war, epidemics, governmental regulations imposed after the fact, fire, 
communication line failures, power failures, or earthquakes. 

 
3.16 TAXES 
 
 The fee listed in this Contract includes any and all taxes applicable to the activities 

hereunder.  The City shall have no obligation to pay additional amounts for taxes of any 
type. 

 
3.17 ADVERTISING 
 
 No advertising or publicity concerning the City using the Consultant’s services shall be 

undertaken without prior written approval of such advertising or publicity by the 
Contract Administrator. 

 
3.18 COUNTERPARTS 
 
 This Contract may be executed in one or more counterparts, and each executed 

duplicate counterpart of this Contract shall be deemed to possess the full force and 
effect of the original. 

 
 
 



 

On-Call SCADA Improvements  
Rottweiler Controls, LLC 
Contract No: 31700019  

8 

3.19 ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 
 This Contract constitutes the entire understanding of the parties and no representations 

or agreements, oral or written, made prior to its execution shall vary or modify the 
terms herein. 

 
3.20 ARIZONA LAW 
 
 This Contract shall be governed and interpreted according to the laws of the State of 

Arizona. 
 
3.21 EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 
 
 The Consultant shall comply with Executive Order No. 11245, entitled "Equal 

Employment Opportunity", as amended by Executive Order No. 11375, and as 
supplemented in Department of Labor Regulations (41 CFR Part 60). 

 
3.22 NOTICES 
 
 All notices or demands required to be given, pursuant to the terms of this Contract, shall 

be given to the other party in writing, delivered by hand or registered or certified mail, 
at the addresses set forth below, or to such other address as the parties may substitute 
by written notice given in the manner prescribed in this paragraph. 

 
 On behalf of the Consultant:  Rottweiler Controls, LLC  
      Jill Gontarz, Owner 
      3548 E. Mesquite Street 

Gilbert, AZ 85296     
 P: (480) 241-0016 

  
On behalf of the City:   Christopher Williams 

Manager, Contracting & Purchasing 
      City of Buckeye 
      510 East Monroe Avenue 
      Buckeye, AZ 85326 
      P: (623) 349-6174 
      F: (623) 349-6160 
 
 With a copy to:   Gust Rosenfeld, P.L.C. 
      201 E. Washington, Suite 800 
      Phoenix, AZ 85004-2327  
      Attention: Scott Ruby  
      P: (602) 257-7993 
      F: (602) 254-4878 



 

On-Call SCADA Improvements  
Rottweiler Controls, LLC 
Contract No: 31700019  

9 

 
Notices shall be deemed received on date delivered if delivered by hand and on the 
delivery date indicated on receipt if delivered by certified or registered mail. 

 
3.24 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 

The services Contractor provides under the terms of this Contract to the City are that of 
an Independent Contractor, not an employee, or agent of the City.  The City will report 
the value paid for these services each year to the Internal Revenue Service (I.R.S.) using 
Form 1099. 

 
City shall not withhold income tax as a deduction from contractual payments.  As a 
result of this, Contractor may be subject to I.R.S. provisions for payment of estimated 
income tax.  Contractor is responsible for consulting the local I.R.S. office for current 
information on estimated tax requirements. 

 
3.25 INDEMNIFICATION 
 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Consultant, its successors, assigns and 
guarantors, shall indemnify and hold harmless City of Buckeye, its agents, 
representatives, officers, directors, officials and employees for, from and against all 
damages, losses, expenses, including but not limited to, attorney fees, court costs, and 
the cost of appellate proceedings, to the extent caused by or resulting from any 
negligent act or omission of Consultant in work or services performed under this 
Contract, including but not limited to, the negligent acts or omissions of any 
Subcontractor or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any Subcontractor  for 
whose acts Subcontractor may be liable including any injury or damages claimed by any 
of Consultant’s and Subcontractor’s  employees. 

 
Any settlement of claims shall fully release and discharge the indemnified parties from 
any further liability for those claims.  The release and discharge shall be in writing and 
shall be subject to approval by the City, which approval shall not be unreasonably 
withheld or delayed.   

 
It is agreed that the Consultant’s indemnity obligations under this agreement are 
triggered only if Consultant has notice of the allegations, demands, proceedings, suits, 
actions, claims, damages, losses or expenses contemplated above. 

 
Insurance provisions set forth in this agreement are separate and independent from the 
indemnity provisions of this paragraph and shall not be construed in any way to limit the 
scope and magnitude of the indemnity provisions.  The indemnity provisions of this 
paragraph shall not be construed in any way to limit the scope and magnitude and 
applicability of the insurance provisions. 
 



 

On-Call SCADA Improvements  
Rottweiler Controls, LLC 
Contract No: 31700019  

10 

 
3.26 E-VERIFY REQUIREMENTS 
 

To the extent applicable under Ariz. Rev. Stat. §41-4401, the Consultant and its sub-
consultants warrant compliance with all federal immigration laws and regulations that 
relate to their employees and compliance with the E-verify requirements under Ariz. 
Rev. Stat. §23-214(A). The Consultant’s or its sub-consultants’ failure to comply with 
such warranty shall be deemed a material breach of this Agreement and may result in 
the termination of this Agreement by the City. 
 

3.27     PROHIBITION ON IRAN INVESTMENTS 
   

As required by A.R.S §§35-391.06 and 35-393.06, Consultant certifies that it does not 
have a scrutinized business operation in either Sudan or Iran.  
 

3.28     COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL IMMIGRATION LAWS AND REGULATIONS 
 
Consultant warrants that it complies with all Federal Immigration laws and regulations 
that relate to its employees and complies with A.R.S. § 23-214.A. Consultant 
acknowledges that pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-4401 and effective September 30, 2008, a 
breach of this warranty is a material breach of this contract subject to penalties up to 
and including termination of this contract, and that the City retains the legal right to 
inspect the papers of any employee who works on the contract to ensure compliance 
with this warranty.  
 

3.29     ISRAEL 
 
Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute § 35-393.01, Consultant certifies that it is not 
currently engaged in, and agrees for the duration of the Contract to not engage in, a 
boycott of Israel. 
 

3.30 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING 
 

Specific eligible political subdivisions and nonprofit educational or public health 
institutions (“Eligible Procurement Unit(s)“) are permitted to utilize procurement 
Contracts developed by the City, at their discretion and with the Contract of the 
awarded Vendor.  Vendor may, at its sole discretion, accept orders from Eligible 
Procurement Unit(s) for the purchase of the Materials and/or Services at the prices and 
under the terms and conditions of this Contract, in such quantities and configurations as 
may be agreed upon between the parties.  All Cooperative procurements under this 
Contract shall be transacted solely between the requesting of the Eligible Procurement 
Unit.  The exercise of any rights, responsibilities or remedies by Eligible Procurement 
Unit shall be the exclusive obligation of such unit.  The City assumes no responsibility for 
payment, performance or any liability or obligation associated with any cooperative 



 

On-Call SCADA Improvements  
Rottweiler Controls, LLC 
Contract No: 31700019  

11 

procurement under this Contract.  The City shall not be responsible for any disputes 
arising out of transactions made by others. 
 

4.0 INSURANCE 
 

A Standard Accord Certificate of Insurance is acceptable provided it is contains the 
additional language and deleted language as required in this contract.  Failure to provide 
a Certificate of Insurance with the appropriate verbiage as required by this contract will 
result in rejection of the Certificate and delay contract execution. 

 
Additionally, Certificates of Insurance submitted without referencing a Contract 
number will be subject to rejection and returned or discarded. 

 
4.1 Insurance Representations and Requirements 
 
4.1.1 General:  Consultant agrees to comply with all City ordinances and state and federal laws 

and regulations. 
 

Without limiting any obligations or liabilities of Consultant, Consultant shall purchase 
and maintain, at its own expense, hereinafter stipulated minimum insurance with 
insurance companies duly licensed by the State of Arizona (admitted insurer) with an AM 
Best, Inc. rating of B ++ 6 or above or an equivalent qualified unlicensed insurer by the 
State of Arizona (non-admitted insurer) with policies and forms satisfactory to City of 
Buckeye.  Failure to maintain insurance as specified may result in termination of this 
Contract at City of Buckeye’s option. 

 
4.1.2 No Representation of Coverage Adequacy:  By requiring insurance herein, City of 

Buckeye does not represent that coverage and limits will be adequate to protect 
Consultant.  City of Buckeye reserves the right to review any and all of the insurance 
policies and/or endorsements cited in this Contract but has no obligation to do so.  
Failure to demand such evidence of full compliance with the insurance requirements set 
forth in this agreement or failure to identify any insurance deficiency shall not relieve 
Consultant from, nor be construed or deemed a waiver of, its obligation to maintain the 
required insurance at all times during the performance of this Contract.   

 
4.1.3 Additional Insured:  All insurance coverage and self insured retention or deductible 

portions, except Workers Compensation insurance and Professional Liability insurance if 
applicable, shall name, to the fullest extent permitted by law for claims arising out of the 
performance of this contract, City of Buckeye, its agents, representatives, officers, 
directors, officials and employees as Additional Insured as specified under the respective 
coverage sections of this agreement. 

 
4.1.4 Coverage Term:  All insurance required herein shall be maintained in full force and effect 

until all work or services required to be performed under the terms of subject contract is 



 

On-Call SCADA Improvements  
Rottweiler Controls, LLC 
Contract No: 31700019  

12 

satisfactorily performed, completed and formally accepted by the City of Buckeye, 
unless specified otherwise in this Contract. 

 
4.1.5 Primary Insurance: Consultant’s insurance shall be primary insurance as respects 

performance of subject contract and in the protection of City of Buckeye as an 
Additional Insured. 

 
4.1.6 Claims Made:  In the event any insurance policies required by this Contract are written 

on a "claims made" basis, coverage shall extend, either by keeping coverage in force or 
purchasing an extended reporting option, for three (3) years past completion and 
acceptance of the work or services evidenced by submission of annual Certificates of 
Insurance citing applicable coverage is in force and contains the provisions as required 
herein for the three year period. 

 
4.1.7 Waiver:  All policies, except Professional Liability insurance, shall contain a waiver of 

rights of recovery (subrogation) against City of Buckeye, its agents, representatives, 
officials, directors, officers, and employees for any claims arising out of the work or 
services of Consultant.  Consultant shall arrange to have such subrogation waivers 
incorporated into each policy via formal written endorsement thereto. 

 
4.1.8 Policy Deductibles and or Self Insured Retentions:  The policies set forth in these 

requirements may provide coverage, which contain deductibles or self insured retention 
amounts.  Such deductibles or self insured retention shall not be applicable with respect 
to the policy limits provided to City of Buckeye.  Consultant shall be solely responsible 
for any such deductible or self insured retention amount.  City of Buckeye, at its option 
and cost, may require Consultant to secure payment of such deductible or self insured 
retention by a surety bond or irrevocable and unconditional Letter of Credit. 

 
4.1.9 Use of Sub-consultants: If any work under this agreement is subcontracted in any way, 

Consultant shall execute written agreement with Subcontractor containing the same 
Indemnification Clause and Insurance Requirements set forth herein protecting City of 
Buckeye and Consultant.  Consultant shall be responsible for executing the agreement 
with Subcontractor and obtaining Certificates of Insurance verifying the insurance 
requirements.  

 
4.1.10 Evidence of Insurance:  Prior to commencing any work or services under this Contract, 

Consultant shall furnish City of Buckeye with Certificate(s) of Insurance, or formal 
endorsements as required by this Contract, issued by Consultant’s insurer(s) as evidence 
that policies are placed with acceptable insurers as specified herein and provide the 
required coverage(s), conditions, and limits of coverage specified in this Contract and 
that such coverage and provisions are in full force and effect.  If a Certificate of 
Insurance is submitted as verification of coverage, City of Buckeye shall reasonably rely 
upon the Certificate of Insurance as evidence of coverage but such acceptance and 
reliance shall not waive or alter in any way the insurance requirements or obligations of 



 

On-Call SCADA Improvements  
Rottweiler Controls, LLC 
Contract No: 31700019  

13 

this agreement.  Such certificates shall identify the Contract work number and be sent to 
the designated City of Buckeye Contract Administrator.  If any of the above cited policies 
expire during the life of this Contract, it shall be Consultant’s responsibility to forward 
renewal Certificates within ten (10) days after the renewal date containing all the 
aforementioned insurance provisions.  Certificates shall specifically cite the following 
provisions: 

 
1. City of Buckeye, its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials and 

employees is an Additional Insured as follows: 
 
 a) Commercial General Liability - Under ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or equivalent. 

  b)  Auto Liability - Under ISO Form CA 20 48 or equivalent. 
  c)  Excess Liability - Follow Form to underlying insurance.  

 
2. Consultant’s insurance shall be primary insurance as respects performance of 

subject contract. 
 
3. All policies, except Professional Liability, waive rights of recovery (subrogation) 

against City of Buckeye, its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials 
and employees for any claims arising out of work or services performed by 
Consultant under this contract. 

 
4. Certificate shall cite a 30 day advance notice cancellation provision.  If ACORD 

Certificate of Insurance form used, the phrases in the cancellation provision 
“endeavor to" and "but failure to mail such notice shall impose no obligation or 
liability of any kind upon the company, its agents or representatives" shall be 
deleted.  Certificate forms other than ACORD form shall have similar restrictive 
language deleted. . 

 
4.2 Required Coverage 
 
4.2.1 Commercial General Liability:  Consultant shall maintain "occurrence" form Commercial 

General Liability insurance with an unimpaired limit of not less than $1,000,000 for each 
occurrence, $2,000,000 Products and Completed Operations Annual Aggregate, and a 
$2,000,000 General Aggregate Limit.  The policy shall cover liability arising from 
premises, operations, independent Consultants, products-completed operations, 
personal injury and advertising injury.  Coverage under the policy will be at least as 
broad as Insurance Services Office, Inc. policy form CG 00 010 93 or equivalent thereof, 
including but not limited to, separation of insureds clause.  To the fullest extent allowed 
by law, for claims arising out of the performance of this contract, the City of Buckeye, its 
agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials and employees shall be cited as an 
Additional Insured under Insurance Service Offices, Inc. Commercial General Liability 
Additional Insured Endorsement form CG 20 10 11 85, or equivalent, which shall read  
"Who is an Insured (Section II) is amended to include as an insured the person or 



 

On-Call SCADA Improvements  
Rottweiler Controls, LLC 
Contract No: 31700019  

14 

organization shown in the Schedule, but only with respect to liability arising out of "your 
work" for that insured by or for you."   If any Excess insurance is utilized to fulfill the 
requirements of this paragraph, such Excess insurance shall be "follow form" equal or 
broader in coverage scope then underlying insurance.       

 
4.2.2 Professional Liability:  If the Contract is the subject of any professional services or work, 

or if Consultant engages in any professional services or work adjunct or residual to 
performing the work under this Contract, Consultant shall maintain Professional Liability 
insurance covering errors and omissions arising out of the work or services performed by 
Consultant, or anyone employed by Consultant, or anyone for whose acts, mistakes, 
errors and omissions Consultant is legally liable, with liability insurance limit of 
$1,000,000 each claim and $2,000,000 all claims.  In the event the Professional Liability 
insurance policy is written on a "claims made" basis, coverage shall extend for three (3) 
years past completion and acceptance of the work or services, and Consultant shall be 
required to submit Certificates of Insurance evidencing proper coverage is in effect as 
required above. 

 
4.2.3 Vehicle Liability:  Consultant shall maintain Business Automobile Liability insurance with 

a limit of $1,000,000 each occurrence on Consultant’s owned, hired, and non-owned 
vehicles assigned to or used in the performance of the Consultant’s work or services 
under this Contract.  Coverage will be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office, Inc. 
coverage code "1" "any auto" policy form CA 00 01 12 93 or equivalent thereof.  To the 
fullest extent allowed by law, for claims arising out of the performance of this contract, 
the City of Buckeye, its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials and 
employees shall be cited as an Additional Insured under Insurance Service Offices, Inc. 
Business Auto policy Designated Insured Endorsement form CA 20 48 or equivalent.  If 
any Excess insurance is utilized to fulfill the requirements of this paragraph, such Excess 
insurance shall be "follow form" equal or broader in coverage scope then underlying 
insurance.       

 
4.2.4 Worker’s Compensation Insurance:  Consultant shall maintain Workers Compensation 

insurance to cover obligations imposed by federal and state statutes having jurisdiction 
of Consultant’s employees engaged in the performance of work or services under this 
Contract and shall also maintain Employers Liability Insurance of not less than $500,000 
for each accident, $500,000 disease for each employee and $1,000,000 disease policy 
limit. 

 
4.2.5  Umbrella/Excess Liability: Umbrella/Excess Liability insurance with a limit of not less than 

$2,000,000 per occurrence combined limit Bodily Injury and Property Damage, that 
“follows form” and applies in excess of the Commercial General Liability, Automobile 
Liability, and Employer’s Liability, as required above. 

 



 

On-Call SCADA Improvements  
Rottweiler Controls, LLC 
Contract No: 31700019  

15 

5.0 SOFTWARE LICENSES 
 

As to all software licenses provided to the City as part of Consultant’s obligations under 
this Contract, the following provisions apply: 

 
5.1 SOURCE CODE AVAILABILITY 
 
5.1.1 Consultant shall furnish City, without charge, a single copy of the Source Code for the 

Software immediately upon the occurrence of any of the following: 
 

1.  Consultant becomes insolvent; or 
 
2.  Consultant ceases to conduct business; or 
 
3.  Consultant makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; or 
 
4.  A petition is filed in Bankruptcy by or against Consultant. 

 
5.1.2 Use of the Source Code shall be subject to the same restrictions as to which the 

Software itself is subject. 
 
5.1.3 City shall have the right to modify Source Code in any manner it deems appropriate, 

provided that the Source Code as modified shall remain subject to the restrictions set 
forth in 5.1.2 immediately above. 

 
5.2 PROPRIETARY PROTECTION 
 
5.2.1 City acknowledges that to the extent Consultant advises the City that the Software is 

confidential information or is a trade secret property of the Consultant, the Software is 
thereby disclosed on a confidential basis under this Contract and is to be used only 
pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

 
5.2.2 Consultant shall not use or disclose any knowledge, data or proprietary information 

relating to City obtained in any manner whatsoever. 
 
5.2.3 To the extent permitted by Arizona Law, the parties agree, both during the term of this 

Contract and for a period of seven (7) years after termination of this Contract and of all 
licenses granted hereunder, to hold each others’ confidential information in confidence.  
The parties agree, unless required by government regulations or order of court, not to 
make each others’ confidential information available in any form to any third party or to 
use each other's confidential information for any purposes other than the 
implementation of this Contract provided, however, that if Consultant’s confidential 
information is requested to be divulged under the provisions of the Arizona Public 
Records Act, A.R.S., Title 39, Consultant shall reimburse to City the full cost of City’s 



 

On-Call SCADA Improvements  
Rottweiler Controls, LLC 
Contract No: 31700019  

16 

refusal to release the information, including  costs of litigation, City’s attorney fees, 
fines, penalties or assessments of opposing party’s attorney fees.  Each party agrees to 
take all reasonable steps to ensure that confidential information is not disclosed or 
distributed by its employees or agents in violation of the provisions of this Contract. 

 
5.3 NON-INFRINGEMENT 
 
 Consultant warrants that the Software provided hereunder does not and will not infringe 

upon or violate any patent, copyright, trade secret or other proprietary or property right 
of any person or entity.  In the event of a claim against City asserting or involving such an 
allegation, Consultant will defend, at Consultant’s expense, and will indemnify City and 
hold City harmless against any loss, cost, expense (including attorney fees) or liability 
arising out of such claim, whether or not such claim is successful.  In the event an 
injunction or order should be obtained against use of the Software by reason of the 
allegations, or if in Consultant’s opinion the Software is likely to become the subject of 
such a claim of infringement, Consultant will, at its option and its expense:  (I) procure 
for the City the right to continue using the Software; or (ii) replace or modify the same 
so that it becomes non-infringing (such modification or replacement shall be functionally 
equivalent to the original); or (iii) if neither (i) nor (ii) is practicable, repurchase the 
Software on a depreciated basis utilizing a straight line five (5) year period, commencing 
on the date of acceptance. 

 
5.4 THIRD PARTY LICENSE 
 

Consultant shall sublicense to City any and all third party Software required in the 
execution of this Contract.  City reserves the right to accept or reject third party license 
terms. If City rejects the terms of a third party license, it shall be Consultant’s 
responsibility to negotiate acceptable terms or to supply Software from another source 
with terms acceptable to City.  City’s acceptance of the third party license terms shall not 
be unreasonably withheld. 

  
6.0 SEVERABILITY AND AUTHORITY 
 
6.1 SEVERABILITY 
 
 If any term or provision of this Contract shall be found to be illegal or unenforceable, 

then notwithstanding such illegality or unenforceability, this Contract shall remain in full 
force and effect and such term or provision shall be deemed to be deleted. 

 
6.2 AUTHORITY 
 
 Each party hereby warrants and represents that it has full power and authority to enter 

into and perform this Contract, and that the person signing on behalf of each party has 
been properly authorized and empowered to enter this Contract.  Each party further 





1 
 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA 
CONTRACT FOR COOPERATIVE USE OF CITY OF BUCKEYE SOLICITATION NO. 
417007 AND CONTRACT NO 31700019 FOR SCADA IMPROVEMENTS ON CALL 

LIST. 
 

THIS CONTRACT (the “Contract”) is made and entered into effective as of the 20th day 
of August, 2018 (“Effective Date”), by and between the Town of Florence, Arizona (the 
“Town”), and Rottweiler Controls, LLC (the “Contractor”) and together with the Contract 
Documents referred to and incorporated herein, is the “resultant contract” contemplated 
in City of Buckeye Solicitation 417007 and Contract No. 31700019, SCADA 
Improvements On Call List. The Town and the Contractor are sometimes referred to in 
this Contract collectively as the “Parties” and each individually as a “Party”.  
 

1. SCOPE OF WORK: The Contractor shall provide the Town all necessary labor, 
material, transportation services and equipment to upgrade the Town’s current 
SCADA system for operation and monitoring of well sites and the distribution 
system pressure, per contract specifications described in the attached scope of 
materials and services set forth in Exhibit “A” (the “Goods” or “Services”). The 
Contractor shall provide the Goods in accordance with the schedule attached in 
Exhibit “A”, and the Contract Documents, including all exhibits to the Master 
Contract including but not limited to any Instructions, Standard Terms and 
Conditions, Special Terms and Conditions, Specifications, Scope of Work, 
Submittals and Attachments.  Contractor agrees, at its own cost and expense, to 
do all of the work and furnish all of the equipment, personnel and materials 
necessary to provide in a good and substantial manner, and to the satisfaction of 
the Town, the Services/Goods. 
 

2. PRIORITY OF DOCUMENTS. It is further expressly agreed by and between the 
Parties that should there be any conflict between the terms of this Contract, the 
Master Contract, or the Contractor’s Proposal, then this Contract and the 
provisions of the Contract Documents shall control and nothing herein shall be 
considered as an acceptance of the terms of the said Proposal conflicting herewith 
or with the Master Contract, unless expressly stated herein. 

 
3. INCORPORATION: For and in consideration of this Contract and other good and 

valuable consideration, the Contractor agrees that the master cooperative 
Solicitation 417007 and City of Buckeye Contract 31700019 to provide SCADA 
Improvements On Call; is in full force and effect, and all terms and conditions of 
the Master Contract are incorporated by reference into this Contract, creating an 
agreement identical in terms between the Town and Contractor.  In the Master 
Contract, the terms: “City of Buckeye”, “Contract Administrator” and “City” shall be 
deemed to be and refer to the Town of Florence; the terms: “Contract 
Administrator” shall be deemed to be and refer to the Town of Florence Town 
Manager; and the terms: “Consultant”, “Offeror”, “Contractor”, “Seller”, “Supplier”, 
and “Vendor” shall be deemed to be and refer to the Contractor under this Contract.  
 



2 
 

4. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: This Contract consists of the following contract 
documents, which by reference are incorporated herein: 
A. This signed Contract 
B. Exhibit “A” – Scope of Work 
C. The solicitation Documents for the City of Buckeye RFQ 417007 On Call 

SCADA, Rottweiler RFP 417007 Response, City of Buckeye Executed 
Contract No. 31700019 between the City of Buckeye and Rottweiler Controls, 
LLC., including, but not limited to:  Instructions, Fee Schedules; Notices; 
Checklists; Requirements for Proposers; General Conditions; Special 
Conditions; Scope of Work; Work Schedule; Certificates of Compliance; 
Warranties for Work; Specifications and Pricing Sheets; Special Provisions and 
Specifications; Technical Provisions and Specifications; Schedules; 
Cooperative Authorizations; Exhibits; Change Orders (the “Contract 
Documents” or “Master Contract”). 
 

5. CONTRACT PRICING: Contract pricing shall be consistent with the Contract 
Documents and Contractor’s Proposal and is listed in Exhibit “A” (Price Sheet), 
and shall not exceed $50,000.00. 
 

6. TERM OF CONTRACT: The term of this Contract shall be from the Effective Date 
through satisfactory completion of the Services or delivery of Goods and 
acceptance of the Services and/or Goods by the Town. Time is of the essence to 
the terms of this Contract. 
 

7. COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL AND STATE LAWS. 
A. The Contractor understands and acknowledges the applicability to it of the 

American with Disabilities Act, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 
and the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1989.  

 
B. Under the provisions of A. R. S. § 41-4401, Contractor hereby warrants to the 

Town  that the Contractor and each of its subcontractors will comply with, and 
are contractually obligated to comply with, all Federal Immigration laws and 
regulations that relate to their employees and A. R. S. § 23-214 (A) (hereinafter 
“Contractor Immigration Warranty”). 

 
C. A breach of the Contractor Immigration Warranty shall constitute a material 

breach of this Contract and shall subject the Contractor to penalties up to and 
including termination of this Contract at the sole discretion of the Town. 

 
D. The Town retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any Contractor or 

Subcontractor’s employee who works on this Contract to ensure that the 
Contractor or Subcontractor is complying with the Contractor Immigration 
Warranty.  Contractor agrees to assist the Town in regard to any such 
inspections. 

 



3 
 

E. The Town may, at is sole discretion, conduct random verification of the 
employment records of the Contractor and any subcontractors to ensure 
compliance with Contractor’s Immigration Warranty.  Contractor agrees to 
assist the Town in regard to any random verification performed. 

 
F. Neither the Contractor nor any subcontractor shall be deemed to have 

materially breached the Contractor Immigration Warranty if the Contractor or 
subcontractor establishes that it has complied with the employment verification 
provisions prescribed by section 274A and 274B of the Federal Immigration 
and Nationality Act and the E-Verify requirements prescribed by A. R. S. § 23-
214, Subsection A. 

 
G. The provisions of this Section must be included in any contract the Contractor 

enters into with any and all of its subcontractors who provide Services under 
this Contract or any subcontract.  “Services” are defined as furnishing labor, 
time or effort in the State of Arizona by a contractor or subcontractor.  Services 
include construction or maintenance of any structure, building or transportation 
facility or improvement to real property. 

 
8. METHOD OF PAYMENT.  Method of payment shall be set forth in Exhibit “A”.  If 

payment is to be made monthly, Contractor shall prepare monthly invoices and 
progress reports which clearly indicate the progress to date and the amount of 
compensation due by virtue of that progress.  All invoices shall be for Services 
completed or Goods accepted by the Town. 
 

9. TERMINATION.  Town, at any time and for any reason and without cause, may 
terminate, suspend or abandon any portion, or all, of this Contract at Town’s 
convenience without penalty or recourse.  Contractor shall receive payment for 
Services or Goods satisfactorily completed and accepted by Town, as determined 
by Town in its reasonable discretion, based on the Goods and/or Services 
requirements and schedule for payment. 
 

10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  It is understood that Contractor shall be an 
independent contractor with respect to Services and/or Goods provided under this 
Contract, and shall not be deemed to be a partner, employee, joint venture, agent, 
or to have any other legal relationship with Town. 
 

11. Notices.  Any notice to be given under this Contract shall be in writing, shall be 
deemed to have been given when personally served or when mailed by certified 
or registered mail, addressed as follows:  Town: Town of Florence, Town Clerk, 
775 N. Main Street, PO Box 2670, Florence, AZ 85132; and Contractor: Rottweiler 
Controls, LLC, Jill Gontarz (Owner), 3548 E. Mesquite Street, Gilbert, AZ 85296, 
480-241-0016, jgontarz@rottweilercontrols.com. 

 
12.  INDEMNIFICATION.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor, its 

successors, assigns and guarantors, shall pay, defend, indemnify and hold 



4 
 

harmless the Town of Florence, its Mayor and Council members, its agents, 
officers, officials, representatives and employees, from and against all demands, 
claims proceedings, suits, damages, losses and expenses (including but not 
limited to attorney’s fees, court costs, and the costs of appellate proceedings), and 
all claim adjustment and handling expenses, relating to, arising out of, or alleged 
to have resulted from the acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods or Services of 
the Contractor, its agents, employees or any tier of Contractor’s subcontractors 
related to the Goods or Services in the performance of this Contract.  Contractor’s 
duty to defend, hold harmless and indemnify Town of Florence, its Mayor and  
Council members, its agents, officers, officials, representatives and employees 
shall arise in connection with any claim, damage, loss or expense that is 
attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, death, or injury to, impairment, or 
destruction of property including loss of use of resulting therefrom, caused by 
Contractor’s acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods, Services in the 
performance of this Contract including any employee of the Contractor, any tier of 
Contractor’s subcontractors or any other person for whose acts, errors, mistakes, 
omissions, Goods, Services the Contractor may be legally liable. In consideration 
of the award of this Contract, the Contractor agrees to waive all rights of 
subrogation against the Town, its officers, officials, agents and employees for 
losses arising from the Goods or Services provided by the Contractor for the Town. 
 

13. WARRANTY.  Contractor warrants that the Goods and Services will conform to 
the requirements of this Contract.  Additionally, Contractor warrants that all 
Services will be performed in a good, workman-like and professional manner.  The 
Town’s acceptance of Goods or Services provided by Contractor shall not relieve 
Contractor from its obligations under this warranty.  If any Goods or Services are 
of a substandard or unsatisfactory manner as determined by the Town, Contractor, 
at no additional charge to the Town, will provide Goods or redo such Services until 
they are in accordance with this Contract and to the Town’s reasonable 
satisfaction.  Unless otherwise agreed, Contractor, warrants that Goods will be 
new, unused, of most current manufacture and not discontinued, will be free of 
defects in materials and workmanship, will be provided in accordance with 
manufacturer’s standard warranty for at least one (1) year, unless otherwise 
specified, and will perform in accordance with manufacturer’s published 
specifications. 
 

14. PURCHASING POLICY.  The Town of Florence Town Code and Purchasing 
Policy (the “Policy”) govern this procurement and are incorporated as part of this 
Contract by this reference. Contractor agrees and warrants that it is in compliance 
with the Policy, including demonstrating its lawful presence in the United States. 

 
15. GOVERNING LAW.  This Contract shall be deemed to be made under, shall be 

construed in accordance with, and shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
Arizona, without reference to choice of law or conflicts of laws principles thereof. 
The exclusive forum selected for any proceeding or suit in law or equity arising 
from or incident to this Contract shall be Pinal County, Arizona. 



5 
 

 
16. PROHIBITED BOYCOTT.  Pursuant to A.R.S. section 35-393.01, the Contractor, 

by execution of this Contract, certifies that it is not currently engaged in, and agrees 
for the duration of this Contract to not engage in, a boycott of Israel. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Contract effective as of the 
Effective Date set forth above. 

 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, A municipal corporation 
 

        
 

By: __________________________  Date:_________________________ 
       Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________ 
Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 
 
 
CONTRACTOR 
 
By: ___________________________ Date:__________________________ 
         
 
Its: __________________________  
         
 
           



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
7c. 

MEETING DATE:  August 20, 2018 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Development Services 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Christopher A. Salas,  
                                      Development Services Director/ 
                                      Town Engineer 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   
st
Subject:  Insta-Valve 250 Patriot Insertion Valves through Hydra-Stop                          Meeting Date:  August 20, 2018 
Page 1 of 2 

 
SUBJECT:  Purchase Insta-Valve 250 Patriot Insertion Valves 
through Hydra-Stop  

 1  Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality        Economic Prosperity   Leadership and Governance     
 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 
 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 

 
Motion to purchase Insta-Valve 250 Patriot Insertion Valves through Hydra-Stop, through 
June 30, 2019, in an amount not to exceed $100,000.   
  
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Town of Florence has limited water valves and some of the limited valves no longer are 
operable.  Often when a waterline is damaged, a large portion of the Town has to be shut 
down and without water.  The Hydra-Stop Valve Insertion tool allows valves to be added to 
the system without having to shut down the water system and cut in a valve.  The Town of 
Florence has previously purchased a Hydra-Stop Valve Insertion tool based on a 
competitive bid selection.  The Town must now purchase the actual valve insertions for this 
year’s planned CIP and maintenance projects that require valves to be installed.  The 
projects that will require valves to be installed are: 
 Fire hydrants 
 Valve Exercise Program 
 Installation of new water lines 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 
 
A vote of no would delay or would require cancelling certain capital improvement projects.   

 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 
 
Town staff would continue to work towards completion of planned capital improvement 
projects. 



Subject:  Insta-Valve 250 Patriot Insertion Valves through Hydra-Stop                          Meeting Date:  August 20, 2018 
Page 2 of 2 

 FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The cost to provide parts will not exceed $100,000.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Price Sheet 
 Approved Sole Source Form 

 
 

 



How to purchase the Insta-Valve 250 Patriot Insertion Valve
1. Select the IV 250 Valve Body which meets your requirements. (Based on O.D. of pipe.)  
2. Select the IV 250 Valve Cartridge which meets your requirements. (Based on I.D. of pipe and open left or open right.)
3. Select optional Domestic Stainless Steel Bonnet Flange if required.
4. Select optional Domestic Hardware if required.
5. Place your order.

Nominal Size Valve Body OD Range HS Part Number Description List Price

4”

4.35-4.65 25450250-CS IV 250 4.50” Valve Body, Carbon Steel Flange, 304 Hardware  $1,648 

4.65-4.95 25480250-CS IV 250 4.80” Valve Body, Carbon Steel Flange, 304 Hardware  $1,648 

4.98-5.28 25513250-CS IV 250 5.13” Valve Body, Carbon Steel Flange, 304 Hardware  $1,648 

5.07-5.37 25522250-CS IV 250 5.22” Valve Body, Carbon Steel Flange, 304 Hardware  $1,648 

5.35-5.65 25550250-CS IV 250 5.50” Valve Body, Carbon Steel Flange, 304 Hardware  $1,648 

6”

6.48-6.78 25663250-CS IV 250 6.63” Valve Body, Carbon Steel Flange, 304 Hardware  $1,931 

6.75-7.05 25690250-CS IV 250 6.90” Valve Body, Carbon Steel Flange, 304 Hardware  $1,931 

7.05-7.35 25720250-CS IV 250 7.20” Valve Body, Carbon Steel Flange, 304 Hardware  $1,931 

7.21-7.51 25736250-CS IV 250 7.36” Valve Body, Carbon Steel Flange, 304 Hardware  $1,931 

7.35-7.65 25750250-CS IV 250 7.50” Valve Body, Carbon Steel Flange, 304 Hardware  $1,931 

8”

8.48-8.78 25863250-CS IV 250 8.63” Valve Body, Carbon Steel Flange, 304 Hardware  $2,189 

8.90-9.20 25905250-CS IV 250 9.05” Valve Body, Carbon Steel Flange, 304 Hardware  $2,189 

9.17-9.47 25932250-CS IV 250 9.32” Valve Body, Carbon Steel Flange, 304 Hardware  $2,189 

9.35-9.65 25950250-CS IV 250 9.50” Valve Body, Carbon Steel Flange, 304 Hardware  $2,189 

9.55-9.85 25970250-CS IV 250 9.70” Valve Body, Carbon Steel Flange, 304 Hardware  $2,189 

10”

10.60-10.90 251075250-CS IV 250 10.75” Valve Body, Carbon Steel Flange, 304 Hardware  $4,200 

10.95-11.25 251110250-CS IV 250 11.10” Valve Body, Carbon Steel Flange, 304 Hardware $4,200

11.35-11.65 251130250-CS IV 250 11.30” Valve Body, Carbon Steel Flange, 304 Hardware $4,200

11.85-12.15 251200250-CS IV 250 12.00” Valve Body, Carbon Steel Flange, 304 Hardware $4,200

12”

12.60-12.90 251275250-CS IV 250 12.75” Valve Body, Carbon Steel Flange, 304 Hardware $4,950

13.05-13.35 251320250-CS IV 250 13.20” Valve Body, Carbon Steel Flange, 304 Hardware $4,950

13.35-13.65 251350250-CS IV 250 13.50” Valve Body, Carbon Steel Flange, 304 Hardware $4,950

13.60-13.90 251375250-CS IV 250 13.75” Valve Body, Carbon Steel Flange, 304 Hardware $4,950

14.05-14.35 251420250-CS IV 250 14.20” Valve Body, Carbon Steel Flange, 304 Hardware $4,950

14.25-14.55 251440250-CS IV 250 14.40” Valve Body, Carbon Steel Flange, 304 Hardware $4,950

 Note: Valve body includes epoxy coated carbon steel bonnet fl ange and all required 304 stainless-steel installation hardware.

 Optional domestic stainless-steel bonnet fl ange available for purchase. See section 3. 
 Optional domestic valve body hardware available for purchase. See section 5. 

Step 1) Select the Insta-Valve 250 Patriot Valve Body which meets your 
requirements. (Based on O.D. of pipe.)

Continue to Step 2) Select the Insta-Valve 250 Patriot Valve Cartridge which 
meets your requirements on following page.

6”

8”

10”

© 2018 Hydra-Stop   All Rights Reserved.    Prices subject to change without notice.    DS-HS_IV250_ORDER_1/1/2018

START HERE ->



How to purchase the Insta-Valve 250 Patriot Insertion Valve
Step 2) Select the Insta-Valve 250 Patriot Valve Cartridge which meets your 

requirements.  (Based on I.D. of pipe and open left or open right.)

4”-12” INSTA-VALVE 250 PATRIOT OPEN LEFT VALVE CARTRIDGES (BLACK Opera  ng Nut)
Nominal Size Valve Body ID Range Part Number Description List Price

4” 3.75+ 8IVBULTLH04-250 IV 250 4” Valve Cartridge OL Standard $1,147

6”
5.75+ 8IVBULTLH06-250 IV 250 6” Valve Cartridge OL Standard $1,254

5.45-5.75 8IVBULTLH06-250-U5.5 IV 250 6” Valve Cartridge OL Undersize $1,504

8”

7.80+ 8IVBULTLH08-250 IV 250 8” Valve Cartridge OL Standard $1,416

7.40-7.80 8IVBULTLH08-250-U7.5 IV 250 8” Valve Cartridge OL Undersize $1,808

7.40-7.80 8IVBULTLH08-250-U7.5-AC IV 250 8” Valve Cartridge OL Undersize AC $1,808

10”

9.70+ 8IVBULTLH10-250 IV 250 10” Valve Cartridge OL Standard $2,120

9.40-9.70 8IVBULTLH10-250-U9.5 IV 250 10” Valve Cartridge OL Undersize $2,436

9.40-9.70 8IVBULTLH10-250-U9.5-AC IV 250 10” Valve Cartridge OL Undersize AC $2,436

12”

11.70+ 8IVBULTLH12-250 IV 250 12” Valve Cartridge OL Standard $2,510

11.00-11.40 8IVBULTLH12-250-U11.1 IV 250 12” Valve Cartridge OL Undersize $2,950

11.40-11.70 8IVBULTLH12-250-U11.5 IV 250 12” Valve Cartridge OL Undersize $2,950

11.40-11.70 8IVBULTLH12-250-U11.5-AC IV 250 12” Valve Cartridge OL Undersize AC $2,950

Note: Valve cartridges include operating nut, operating nut retention nut and friction washer   

 Undersized valve cartridges require the use of undersized cutters.  See Hydra-Core Pipe Wall Sampling Kit operating

 instructions for reference.

 Undersized AC valve cartridges must be used in AC applications

4”-12” INSTA-VALVE 250 PATRIOT OPEN RIGHT VALVE CARTRIDGES (RED Opera  ng Nut)
Nominal Size Valve Body ID Range Part Number Description List Price

4” 3.75+ 8IVBULTRH04-250 IV 250 4” Valve Cartridge OR Standard $1,147

6”
5.75+ 8IVBULTRH06-250 IV 250 6” Valve Cartridge OR Standard $1,254

5.45-5.75 8IVBULTRH06-250-U5.5 IV 250 6” Valve Cartridge OR Undersize $1,504

8”

7.80+ 8IVBULTRH08-250 IV 250 8” Valve Cartridge OR Standard $1,416

7.40-7.80 8IVBULTRH08-250-U7.5 IV 250 8” Valve Cartridge OR Undersize $1,808

7.40-7.80 8IVBULTRH08-250-U7.5-AC IV 250 8” Valve Cartridge OR Undersize AC $1,808

10”

9.70+ 8IVBULTRH10-250 IV 250 10” Valve Cartridge OR Standard $2,120

9.40-9.70 8IVBULTRH10-250-U9.5 IV 250 10” Valve Cartridge OR Undersize $2,436

9.40-9.70 8IVBULTRH10-250-U9.5-AC IV 250 10” Valve Cartridge OR Undersize AC $2,436

12”

11.70+ 8IVBULTRH12-250 IV 250 12” Valve Cartridge OR Standard $2,510

11.00-11.40 8IVBULTRH12-250-U11.1 IV 250 12” Valve Cartridge OR Undersize $2,950

11.40-11.70 8IVBULTRH12-250-U11.5 IV 250 12” Valve Cartridge OR Undersize $2,950

11.40-11.70 8IVBULTRH12-250-U11.5-AC IV 250 12” Valve Cartridge OR Undersize AC $2,950

Note: Valve cartridges include operating nut, operating nut retention nut and friction washer   

 Undersized valve cartridges require the use of undersized cutters.  See Hydra-Core Pipe Wall Sampling Kit operating

 instructions for reference.

 Undersized AC valve cartridges must be used in AC applications

Continue to Step 3) Select optional Domestic Stainless Steel Bonnet Flange,

 if required, on following page.

© 2018 Hydra-Stop   All Rights Reserved.    Prices subject to change without notice.    DS-HS_IV250_ORDER_1/1/2018



How to purchase the Insta-Valve 250 Patriot Insertion Valve

Nominal Size Part Number Description List Price

4”-8” 8IVBLFLG08-250-SS IV250 4-8” Domestic Stainless Steel Bonnet Flange  $443 

10”-12” 8IVBLFLG12-250-SS IV 250 10-12” Domestic Stainless Steel Bonnet Flange  $1,085

Nominal Size Part Number Description List Price

4”-8” 8B-PACK304SS-HW-48-DOM IV250 4-8” Domestic Stainless Steel Hardware  $330 

10”-12” 8B-PACK304SS-HW-1012-DOM IV 250 10-12” Domestic Stainless Steel Hardware  $855 

Step 3) Select optional Domestic Stainless Steel Bonnet Flange, if required.

4”-12” INSTA-VALVE 250 PATRIOT OPTIONAL DOMESTIC STAINLESS STEEL BONNET FLANGE

4”-12” INSTA-VALVE 250 PATRIOT OPTIONAL DOMESTIC STAINLESS STEEL HARDWARE

Step 5) Select optional Domestic Hardware if required.

Note: Domestic stainless steel hardware upgrade is required to meet American Iron and Steel, Made in USA and Buy America requirements. All Insta-Valve 250 Patriot inser-

tion valves meet Buy American requirements.

Proprietary Information: This property of Hydra-Stop shall not be used, reproduced or 

distributed without written consent. All design and invention rights are reserved.  Patents 

Pending.

Other Specifi cations

Minimum Test Pressure: 1.5 times system working pressure

Maximum Test Pressure: 375 psi,  Maximum Working Pressure: 250 psi 

Weights and Dims

Size A B C D Approx. Weight

4” 12” 18.6 8.4 13.5 138 lbs

6” 12” 21.5 8.4 13.5 173 lbs

8” 16” 24.6 8.4 13.5 229 lbs

10” 24 30 17 19 370 lbs

12” 24 33 17 19 425 lbs

Step 6) Place your order.

© 2018 Hydra-Stop   All Rights Reserved.    Prices subject to change without notice.    DS-HS_IV250_ORDER_1/1/2018

Nominal Size Part Number Description List Price

4”-8” 7-PIKIT08-250 IV250 4-8” Post Hole Indicator Kit  $579

10”-12” 7-PIKIT12-250 IV 250 10-12”  Post Hole Indicator Kit  $1,160

Note: Indicator Post mounting pattern compatible with Mueller UL/FM Adjustable Indicator Post.  Included with Indicator Post 

Adaptor Kit: Drilled and tapped domestic 304 stainless steel valve bonnet, modifi ed operating nut, stainless steel lock pin, 

mounting hardware (bolts, nuts and washers), and installation instructions.

Step 4) Select optional 4-8” or 10-12” Post Hole Indicator Kit, if required.

4”-12” INSTA-VALVE 250 PATRIOT OPTIONAL POST HOLE INDICATOR KIT

N



Moved to 8/20/18 Meeting



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
7d. 

MEETING DATE:  August 20, 2018 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Development Services 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Christopher A. Salas,  
                                      Development Services Director/ 
                                      Town Engineer 
 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  
nd
Subject:   Authorization to contract with Pro‐Tec Environmental                 Meeting Date:  August 20, 2018 
Page 1 of 2 

SUBJECT:  Contract with Pro-Tec Environmental Inc. to provide 
sewer line cleaning in an amount not to exceed $100,000   

 2  Reading 
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Property   Leadership and Governance     

  Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Authorization to contract with Pro-Tec Environmental Inc., to provide sewer line cleaning, 
through June 30, 2019, in an amount not to exceed $100,000. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 

 
Staff uses a combination sewer cleaning truck to clean sewer lines.  The truck carries 1500 
gallons of fresh water and has an 1800-gallon debris tank to hold everything that is 
vacuumed out of the sewer system. 

 
The truck carries 800 feet of 1” pressure jetter hose that can pump 80-gallons per minute at 
2000 PSI.  The hose goes up the sewer line from one manhole to the next and then is pulled 
back under pressure flushing all of the debris down to the manhole where the truck is 
located.   As the debris is flush back to the truck, we use the 8” vacuum hose to pick up all of 
the debris that has been flushed out of the sewer system.  The trucks carry different nozzles 
and cutters that are used to clean and cut roots depending on what is found in the sewers 
and the size of the pipe we are working in. 
 
To clean the sewer system, staff starts at the top of the system and cleans towards the 
bottom where there is a lift station or a waste water treatment plant. 
 
 
 
 



Subject:   Authorization to contract with Pro‐Tec Environmental                 Meeting Date:  August 20, 2018 
Page 2 of 2 

A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 
 
The sewer lines will not be cleaned this year.  By not doing the annual maintenance, the 
sewer lines could back up, causing damage to homes and businesses. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 
 
The annual maintenance on the sewer lines will be on schedule. (CIP SU-94) 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Authorization to contract with Pro-Tec Environmental Inc. to provide sewer line cleaning, 
through June 30, 2019, in an amount not to exceed $100,000.   
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 Exhibit A – Scope of Work 
 Approved Bid Tabulation 
 Service Agreement 

 
 





1 | P a g e  
 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 

SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 The SERVICES AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is entered into by and between PRO-TEC 
Environmental, Inc. (“Vendor”) and the Town of Florence, a political subdivision of the state if Arizona 
(“Town”), effective as of August 20, 2018 (the “Effective Date”). Town and the Vender may be referred 
to in this Agreement collectively as the “parties” and each individually as a “party”.  
 

RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS: 

 
A. Town    requires    the    services    of    an    independent    contractor    to    

provide labor, equipment and material to clean the Town’s sewer system (hereinafter 
"Services");  

 
B. Town requested quotations in order to obtain these Services; 

 
C. The Vendor submitted the successful quotation; 

 
D. Town desires to contract with the Vendor to provide these Services; and 

 
E. The Vendor is ready, willing, and able to provide the Services. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and obligations contained herein, 
and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, Vendor and Town agree as follows: 

 
AGREEMENTS 

 
1. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Vendor shall provide the Services described in the Scope of Services attached hereto as Exhibit 
"A" (the "Services" or “Scope of Services”). All work shall be reviewed and approved by Town's 
Contract Administrator to determine acceptable completion. Review and approval by the Contract 
Administrator shall not relieve Vendor of any liability for improper, negligent or inadequate 
Services rendered pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
Unless otherwise noted herein, in case of a conflict between the terms of the Agreement and 
the terms of any other documents related to the Services, the terms of this Agreement shall 
prevail. Agreement to the terms set forth herein is a material and necessary precondition and 
inducement to Town for entering into the Agreement with Vendor. 

 
In the event the Services cannot be completed within the time specified, the Contract Administrator 
may approve a change order extending the time for completion of the Services when she/he 
determines it is in the best interest of Town to do so, for such period as the Contract 
Administrator deems reasonable. A change order extending the time for completion of the 
Services pursuant to this subparagraph shall not entitle Vendor to additional compensation. 



2 | P a g e  
 

 
2. ADDITIONAL SERVICES OR ALTERATIONS 
 

The entire Scope of Services to be performed in accordance with this Agreement is set forth in 
Exhibit "A".  Services which are not included in Exhibit "A" will be considered "Additional 
Services".  Vendor shall not perform such Additional Services without the prior written authorization 
in the form of an approved change order or contract amendment from Town. In the event the 
Vendor performs such Additional Services without prior written authorization from Town, it shall be 
presumed that the Additional Services were included in the Scope of Services and Vendor shall not 
be permitted to request or receive any additional compensation for such Additional Services. 
 
3. ACCEPTANCE 

All materials and Services are subject to final inspection and acceptance by Town. Materials or 
Services failing to conform to the specifications of this Agreement shall be held at Vendor's risk 
and may be returned to the Vendor. If returned, all costs are the responsibility of the Vendor. Town 
may elect to do any or all of the following:  (i) waive the non-conformance; (ii) stop the work 
immediately; (iii) bring materials into compliance; (iv.) terminate the Agreement and seek all 
remedies available in law and in equity.  This shall be accomplished by a written determination 
by Town. 
 
4. FEES 

The amount paid to the Vendor under this Agreement, including reimbursable expenses, shall not 
exceed $100,000.00.  Vendor shall be paid according to the schedule set forth in Exhibit "A". 
 
Vendor shall submit to Town a monthly invoice describing the Services performed. Monthly 
payment may be made to Vendor on the basis of a progress report prepared and submitted by 
the Vendor for the work completed through the last day of the preceding calendar month. The 
Contract Administrator reserves the exclusive right to determine the amount of work performed 
and payment due the Vendor on a monthly basis. Monthly billings shall be accompanied by such 
documentation as the Contract Administrator may require for his/her determination of work 
performed and payment due. 
 
All Expenses incurred by the Vendor under this Agreement are to be covered under the total 
contract compensation amount. 
 
5. TERM OF AGREEMENT 
 
This Agreement shall be in full force and effect when approved and signed by Town. The Vendor 
shall proceed with providing the Services immediately upon receipt of a notice to proceed issued 
by the Contract Administrator.  The term of this Agreement shall be from the Effective Date 
through satisfactory completion of the Services and acceptance of the Services by the Town.  
 

6. WARRANTIES 

Unless otherwise specified, all items shall be guaranteed for a minimum period of one (1) year 
from the date of acceptance by Town against defects in material and workmanship. At any time 
during that period, if a defect should occur in any item that item shall be replaced or repaired by 



3 | P a g e  
 

the Vendor at no obligation to Town except where it is shown that the defect was caused 
solely by misuse by Town. Any defects of design, workmanship, or materials that would result 
in non-compliance with the contract specifications shall be fully corrected by the Vendor 
(including parts, labor, shipping or freight) without cost to Town. This includes any necessary 
labor to remove, repair, install, or to ship or transport any item to a point of repair and return. It 
is agreed that the Vendor shall be fully responsible for making any correction, replacement, 
or modifications necessary for specification or legal compliance. 
 
Vendor expressly warrants that all goods and Services furnished under this Agreement shall 
conform to the specifications, appropriate standards, and will be new and free from defects in 
material or workmanship. 
 
The Vendor warrants that the materials supplied under this Agreement are free of liens.  Unless 
otherwise  modified  elsewhere  in this Agreement,  the Vendor  warrants  that  for one year  after  
acceptance  by Town of materials and Services, they shall be: (i) of a quality to pass without objection 
in the trade under the Agreement description; (ii) fit for the intended purposes for which the materials 
and Services are used; (iii) within variations permitted by the Agreement and are of even kind, 
quality, and quality within each unit and among all units; (iv) adequately contained, packaged and 
marked as the Agreement may require; and (v) conforming to the written promises or affirmations 
of fact made by the Vendor. The Vendor warrants that any materials and Services supplied shall be 
fit for all purposes and uses required by the Agreement. The warranties set forth herein are not affected 
by inspection, testing of or payment for the materials or Services by Town. The materials and Services 
supplied under this Agreement shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, and the 
Vendor shall maintain all applicable licenses and permits. Vendor warrants that all materials 
(including software and hardware) and Services delivered under this Agreement will conform to the 
requirements of this Agreement (including all applicable descriptions, specifications, drawings and 
samples), and will be free from defects in material and workmanship and will be free from defects in 
design and fit for the intended purpose. Any inspection or acceptance of the materials or Services by 
Town shall not alter or affect the obligation of Vendor or the rights of Town under the foregoing 
warranties. All representations and warranties made by the Vendor under this Agreement shall 
survive the expiration or termination hereof. The Vendor shall, in accordance with all terms and 
condition of the Agreement, fully perform and shall be obligated to comply with all purchase orders 
received by the Vendor prior to the expiration or termination hereof, unless otherwise directed in 
writing by the Contract Administrator, including, without limitation, all purchase orders received prior 
to but not fully performed and satisfied at the expiration or termination of the Agreement. 
 
Vendor's warranty shall run to Town, its successors and assigns. 
 
7. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT, OR PORTIONS OF SERVICES 

Town has the right to terminate, suspend or abandon this Agreement for cause or convenience, 
or to terminate any portion of the Services which have not been performed by the Vendor. 

 
Termination  for  Convenience.   Town may terminate this Agreement, or any part thereof for its  
sole convenience, at any time without penalty or recourse. Vendor shall receive payment for 
Services satisfactorily completed and accepted by Town, as determined by Town in its reasonable 
discretion, based on the Scope of Services and schedule for payment.  This fee shall be in an 
amount to be mutually agreed upon  by the Vendor and the Town, based upon the Scope of Services 
set forth in Exhibit "A" and the payment schedule set forth in Section 4 of this Agreement. If mutual 



4 | P a g e  
 

agreement between the parties cannot be  reached after reasonable negotiation, the Contract 
Administrator shall determine the percentage of satisfactory  completion of each task set forth in the 
Scope of Services and the amount of compensation Vendor is entitled  for such work, and the 
Contract Administrator's determination in this regard shall be final. Upon receipt of  the written 
notice, the Vendor shall immediately stop all work, as directed in the notice, notify all subcontractors 
of the effective date of the termination and minimize all further costs to Town. In  the event of 
termination under this paragraph, all documents, data and reports prepared by the Vendor under the 
Agreement  shall become the property of and be delivered to Town. Town shall make such final 
payment within 60 days after the Vendor has delivered the last of the partially completed items. 

 
If for any reason the Vendor fails to fulfill in a timely and proper manner its obligations under this 
Agreement, or if the Vendor violates any of the covenants, agreements, or stipulations of this 
Agreement, Town may withhold from payment due to the Vendor such amounts as are necessary to 
protect Town's position for the purpose of set-off until such time as the exact amount of damages 
due to Town from Vendor is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction. 

 
Termination for Cause/Remedies:   Town reserves the right to terminate the Agreement or, any  
part thereof, for cause, upon such written notice as shall be reasonable in the circumstances. Cause 
as used herein shall include but not limited to: 

 
(A) The Vendor fails to adequately perform the Services set forth in the Agreement; 
(B) The Vendor fails to make progress in the performance of the Agreement and/or 

gives Town reason to believe that the Vendor will not or cannot perform to the 
requirements of the Agreement. 

 
The Vendor shall have ten (10) days from receipt of Town's written notice to provide a 
response to Town that is satisfactory to Town, in its sole discretion, regarding the cause and the 
steps the Vendor has or will undertake to address all issues of concern. In the event the Vendor 
fails to address any issue of concern Town may, at its sole option, pursue one or more of the 
following remedies: 

 
(A) Cancel any agreement; 

 
(B) Reserve all rights or claims to damage for breach of any covenants of the Agreement; 

 
(C) Complete the Services using its own or contracted personnel. Town may recover 

any actual excess costs from the Vendor by: 
 

i. Deduction from an unpaid balance; 

ii.    Collection against the bid and/or performance bond, or; 
 

Any combination of the above or any other remedies as provided by law. 
 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 
It is understood that Vendor shall be an independent contractor with respect to Services provided 
under this Agreement, and shall not be deemed to be a partner, employee, joint venturer, agent, 
or to have any other legal relationship with Town. As an independent contractor, Vendor shall: (a) 



5 | P a g e  
 

have discretion in deciding upon the method of performing the Services provided; (b) not be entitled 
to worker’s compensation benefits from the Town; (c) not be entitled to any Town sponsored benefit 
plan; (d) shall select the hours of his/her work; (e) shall provide her/his own equipment and tools; and 
(f) to the extent required by law, be responsible for obtaining and remaining licensed to provide the 
Services.  Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, Town shall not be responsible for the 
payment of any taxes, permit fees or licenses incurred or required by Vendor in order to perform 
Services under this Agreement. Vendor understands that the Vendor is responsible to pay, 
according to law, the Vendor's income tax, and this may include Vendor's self-employment, social 
security, and other taxes. As an independent contractor, Vendor is responsible for providing all 
workers' compensation insurance required by law. Vendor shall be solely responsible for the acts 
and omissions of its officers, agents, servants, and employees. 
 
9. AMENDMENT AND ENTIRETY OF CONTRACT 

This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the parties with respect to the 
subject matter hereto and shall supersede all previous proposals, both oral and written, 
negotiations, representations, commitments, writings, agreements and other communications 
between the parties. It may not be changed or modified except by an instrument in writing signed 
by a duly authorized representative of each party. 

 
10. RECORDS AND OWNERSHIP OF WORK PRODUCT 

The Vendor agrees: 
 

(A) To submit all reports and invoices specified in this Agreement in a timely manner. 
 

(B) To preserve and make available all records for a period of five (5) years from the 
date of final payment under this Agreement and for such period of time as is required 
by any other paragraph of this Agreement including the following: 

 
i. If this Agreement is completely or partially terminated, the records relating 

to the work terminated shall be preserved and made available for such a 
period of five (5) years from the date of any such termination. 
 

ii. Records which relate to disputes, litigations or the settlement of claims 
arising out of the performance of this Agreement or to  costs  and  expenses  
of this  Agreement  to  which exception has been taken by Town shall be 
retained by the Vendor until such appeals, litigations, claims or exceptions have 
been finally resolved. 

 
iii. If any litigation, claim or audit is started before the expiration of the five (5) year 

period, the records shall be retained until all litigation, claims, or audit findings 
involving the records have been resolved. 

 
(C) All documents and other work product generated on behalf of Town in connection 

with this Agreement (except for Vendor's notes for internal use) are the property of 
Town. Vendor agrees that all work product constitutes works "made for hire." In the 
event any such materials are not works "made for hire," Vendor hereby assigns to Town 
all rights in such materials and copyrights therein. 
 



6 | P a g e  
 

11. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

During the term of this Agreement, Vendor shall not knowingly accept or receive any compensation, 
fees, expenses, or other thing of monetary value from any person, agency, firm or enterprise with 
interests in conflict with those of Town. In the event of an unanticipated conflict of interest arises, 
Vendor shall immediately so inform Town. 
 
12. APPROVAL BY TOWN 

Before this Agreement shall become effective and binding upon Town, it must be approved by 
Town's Manager and/or Town Council. In the event that the Town Manager and/or Town Council 
fails or refuses to approve this Agreement, or approve funding for the Agreement, it shall be null 
and void and of no effect whatsoever. 
 

13. NON-ASSIGNMENT 

Neither this Agreement, nor any obligation of the Vendor hereunder, shall be assigned in whole or 
in part by Vendor without the prior written consent of Town and such attempted assignment shall be 
null and void and a material breach of this Agreement and shall transfer no rights to the purported 
assignee. 

 
The Vendor may engage such subcontractors or professional associates as Vendor may deem 
necessary or desirable for the timely and successful completion of this Agreement. However, the 
use of such subcontractors or professional associates for the performance of any part of the 
Services specified in Exhibit "A" shall be subject to the prior written approval of Town.  Employment 
of such subcontractors or professional associates in order to complete the Services set forth in 
Exhibit "A" shall not entitle Vendor to additional compensation beyond that set forth in Section 4.   
The Vendor shall be responsible for and shall warrant all Services including work delegated to 
such subcontractors or professional associates.  
 

14. CANCELLATION OF AGREEMENT 
 

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-511, the provisions of which are incorporated herein by reference, all parties 
are hereby put on notice that this Agreement is subject to cancellation by Town if any person 
significantly involved in initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting or creating the Agreement on behalf 
of Town is, at any time while the Agreement or any extension of the Agreement is in effect, an 
employee or agent of any other party to the Agreement in any capacity or a consultant to any other 
party of the Agreement with respect to the subject matter of the Agreement. 
 

15. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND NON-DISCRIMINATION 
 

In the performance of Services hereunder, Vendor shall comply with all applicable state, federal 
and local laws or regulations. Without limiting the foregoing, Vendor shall comply with  Title VII of 
the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1975 and 
Federal Executive Order No. 11246, State Executive Order No. 99-4 and A.R.S. § 41-1461 et. 
seq., which mandates that all persons, regardless of race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin 
or political affiliation, shall have access to employment opportunities. The Vendor shall comply 
with Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, which prohibits discrimination in 
the employment or advancement in employment of qualified persons because of physical or mental 
handicap. The Vendor shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 



7 | P a g e  
 

which prohibits the denial of benefits or participation in contract services on the basis of race, 
color, or national origin. The Vendor shall comply with the requirements of Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicap 
in delivering contract services. 
 
16. COMPLIANCE WITH IMMIGRATION LAWS 

Pursuant to the provisions of A.R.S. § 41-4401, Vendor warrants to Town that Vendor and 
all its subcontractors are in compliance with all Federal Immigration laws and regulations that 
relate to their employees and with the E-Verify Program under A.R.S. § 23-214(A). Vendor 
acknowledges that a breach of this warranty by Vendor or any of its subcontractors is a material 
breach of this Agreement subject to penalties up to and including termination of this Agreement 
or any subcontract. Town retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any employee of Vendor 
or any subcontractor who works on this Agreement to ensure compliance with this warranty. 

 
Town may conduct random verification of the employment records of Vendor and any of its 
subcontractors to ensure compliance with this warranty. 

 
Town will not consider Vendor or any of its subcontractors in material breach of the foregoing 
warranty if Vendor and its subcontractors establish that they have complied with the employment 
verification provisions prescribed by 8 USCA § 1324(a) and (b) of the Federal Immigration and 
Nationality Act and the E-verify requirements prescribed by Arizona Revised Statutes § 23-2 l 4(A). 

 
The provisions of this Section must be included in any contract Vendor enters into with any and 
all of its subcontractors who provide services under this Agreement or any subcontract. 
"Services" for purposes of this section are defined as furnishing labor, time or effort in the State 
of Arizona by a Vendor or subcontractor. Services include construction or maintenance of any 
structure, building or transportation facility or improvement to real property. 

 
17. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 

All documents including but not limited to data computation, studies, reports, design notes 
and any original drawings which are prepared in the performance of this Agreement are to be 
and remain the property of Town and are to be delivered to the Contract Administrator before 
final payment under this Agreement is made to the Vendor or upon termination, abandonment, 
or suspension of this Agreement for any reason. 

 
18. INDEMNIFICATION 

 
The Vendor shall at all times indemnify, keep indemnified, defend and save harmless Town and 
any of its Mayor, council members, agents, officials, officers, representatives, volunteers and 
employees from any and all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, loss, costs and/or 
damages of every kind and description including any attorney's fees and/or litigation expenses 
which may be brought or made  against  or  incurred  by  Town  on account of loss of or damage 
to any property or for injuries to or death of any person caused by, arising out of, or contributed 
to, in whole or in part, by reason of any alleged act, omission, professional error, fault, mistake, 
or negligence of the Vendor, its employees, agents, representatives,  or subcontractors, their 
employees, agents, or  representatives  in  connection  with  or  incidental  to  the  performance  of 
this  Agreement  or  arising  out  of Workers' Compensation claims, Unemployment Compensation 



8 | P a g e  
 

claims, or Unemployment Disability Compensation claims of employees of the Vendor or its 
subcontractors or claims under similar laws or obligations. The Vendor's obligations under this 
paragraph shall not extend to any liability caused by the sole negligence of Town or its employees. 

 
In the event that any action or proceeding shall at any time be brought against Town by 

reason of any claim referred to in this Section, the Vendor, at Vendor's sole cost and upon at least 
10 day's written notice from Town, shall defend the same with counsel acceptable to Town, in 
Town's sole discretion. The Vendor's obligations under this Section shall survive the expiration or 
earlier termination of this Agreement. Insurance provisions set forth in this Agreement are separate 
and independent from the indemnity provisions of this Section and shall not be construed in any 
way to limit the scope and magnitude of this Indemnification, nor shall this Indemnification be 
construed in any way to limit the scope, magnitude or applicability of the insurance provisions. 

 
19. INDEMNIFICATION-PATENT, COPYRIGHT AND TRADEMARK 

Vendor shall indemnify and hold harmless Town against any liability, including costs and expenses, 
for infringement of any patent, copyright or trademark or other proprietary rights of any third parties 
arising out of Agreement performance or use by Town of materials furnished or Services performed 
under this Agreement. The Vendor agrees upon receipt of notification to promptly assume full 
responsibility for the defense of any claim, suit or proceeding which is, has been, or may be 
brought against Town and its agents for alleged infringement, as well as for the alleged unfair 
competition resulting from similarity in design, trademark or appearance of goods or materials by 
reason of the use or sale of any goods or materials furnished under this Agreement and the Vendor 
further agrees to indemnify Town against any and all expenses, losses royalties, profits and 
damages including courts' costs and attorney's fees resulting from the bringing of such suit or 
proceeding including any settlement or decree of judgment entered therein. It is expressly agreed by 
the Vendor that these covenants are irrevocable and perpetual. 

 
20. CHANGES 

Any changes to this Agreement shall be made in writing and signed by both parties. 
 
21. NO AUTHORITY TO BIND TOWN 

The Vendor has no authority to enter into contracts or agreements on behalf of Town, or in the name 
of Town, and nothing in this Agreement is to be construed to provide such authority. 

 
22. DECLARATION  BY VENDOR 

Vendor declares that the Vendor has complied with all federal, state and local laws regarding 
business permits, certificates and licenses that may be required to carry out the Services to be 
performed under this Agreement. 

 
23. NOTICE 

Unless otherwise provided herein, demands or notices under this Agreement will be in writing and 
will be deemed to have been duly given and received either (a) on the date of services if personally 
delivered to the party to whom notice is to be given, or (b) on the 3rd day after the date of the 
postmark of deposit by first class United States mail, registered or certified postage prepaid and 
properly addressed according to the party's place of business as set forth herein. 

 



9 | P a g e  
 

24. WAIVER  AND SEVERABILITY 
 

None of the provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed to have been waived by an act or 
knowledge of any party or its agents or employees, but only by a specific written waiver signed by 
an authorized officer of such party and delivered to the other party. A waiver of any part of this 
Agreement, whether express or by conduct, shall not constitute a continuing waiver of such part 
(unless explicitly stated to be so), or a waiver of any other part, nor shall a waiver of any breach 
of this Agreement, or any part of it, whether express or by conduct, constitute a waiver of any 
succeeding breach. The provisions of this Agreement shall be severable such that if any provision 
shall be deemed to be invalid and unenforceable for any reason, such invalidity or unenforceability 
shall not affect the remaining provisions hereof. 

 
25. INSURANCE 

(A) The Vendor shall provide and maintain and cause any subcontractors to provide and 
maintain appropriate insurance. In no event shall the total coverage be less than the 
minimum insurance coverage specified below: 

 
i.   Commercial General Liability in an amount of not less than One Million Dollars 

($1,000,000) per occurrence and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) general aggregate. 

ii.  Automobile Liability in an amount of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) 
per occurrence. 

i. Statutory Workman’s compensation. 

(B) The Vendor shall name Town, its Mayor, council members, agents, officers, 
representatives, officials, volunteers and employees as additional insureds and shall 
specify that the insurance afforded by the Vendor shall be primary insurance and that 
any insurance coverage carried or self-insurance by Town, any department or employee 
shall be excess coverage and not contributory insurance to that provided by the Vendor. 
Said policy shall contain a severability of interest provision. Town reserves the right to 
continue payment of premium for which reimbursement shall be deducted from amounts 
due or subsequently due Vendor. 

 
(C) Failure on the part of the Vendor to procure and maintain the requested liability 

insurance and provide proof thereof to Town within ten (10) days following the 
commencement of a new policy, shall constitute a material breach of the Agreement upon 
which Town may immediately terminate this Agreement. Within ten (10) days of signing 
this Agreement, the Vendor shall furnish the Town with copies of the Certificate of 
Insurance and Endorsements drawn in conformity with the above insurance 
requirements. Town reserves the right to request and receive certified copies of any or 
all of the above policies and endorsements. 

 
(D) The Vendor agrees to comply with statutory requirements for both workers' 

compensation and unemployment insurance coverage during the term of this Agreement. 
A Certificate of Insurance for workers' compensation coverage shall be provided within 
ten (10) days of signing this Agreement. The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of 
subrogation against Town, its Mayor and Council members, its officers, representatives, 
officials, volunteers, agents, and employees for losses arising from Services performed 
by the Vendor for Town. 

 



10 | P a g e  
 

(E) The Vendor is primarily responsible for the risk management of its Services under this 
Agreement, including but not limited to obtaining and maintaining the required 
insurance and establishing and maintaining a reasonable risk control and safety 
program. Town reserves the right to amend the requirements herein at any time during 
the Agreement subject to at least (5) days written notice. The Vendor shall require any 
and all subcontractors to maintain insurance as required herein naming Town and 
Vendor as "Additional Insured" on all insurance policies, except Worker's 
Compensation, and this shall be reflected on the Certificate of Insurance and 
endorsements. The Vendor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance with 
respect to all other available sources. Coverage provided by the Vendor shall not be 
limited to the liability assumed under the Indemnification provision of this Agreement. To 
the extent permitted by law, Vendor waives all rights of subrogation or similar rights 
against Town, its Mayor and council members, officials, agents, representatives, 
officers, volunteers and employees. All insurance policies, except Workers' 
Compensation required by this Agreement, and self-insured retention or deductible 
portions, shall name, to the fullest extent permitted by law for claims arising out of the 
performance of this Agreement, Town, its Mayor and council members, agents, 
representatives, officers, directors, officials, volunteers and employees as Additional 
Insureds. Town reserves the right to require complete copies of all insurance policies 
and endorsements required by this Agreement at any time. Failure to maintain the 
insurance policies as required by this Agreement, or to provide evidence of renewal, is a 
material breach of contract. 

 
26. COUNTERPARTS 

This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, and each originally executed 
duplicate counterpart of this Agreement shall be deemed to possess the full force and effect of 
the original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument, binding on all of 
the parties. The parties agree that this Agreement may be transmitted between them via facsimile 
or so called “PDF” signature. The parties intend that faxed or “PDF” signatures constitute original 
signatures and that a fully collated agreement containing the signatures (original, faxed or PDF) of 
all the parties is binding upon the parties. 

 
27. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS 

The Recitals are acknowledged by the parties to be substantially true and correct, and hereby 
incorporated as agreements of the parties. 

 
28. ATTORNEY'S FEES 

In the event either party brings any action for any relief, declaratory or otherwise, arising out of 
this Agreement, or on account of any breach or default hereof, the prevailing party shall be entitled 
to receive from the other party reasonable attorney's fees and reasonable costs and expenses 
(including expert witness fees), determined by the arbitrator or court sitting without a jury, which 
fees shall be deemed to have accrued on the commencement of such action and shall be enforced 
whether or not such action is prosecuted through judgment. 
 
29. CONSTRUCTION 

The terms and provisions of this Agreement represent the results of negotiations between the 
parties, each of which has been or has had the opportunity to be represented by counsel of its 



11 | P a g e  
 

own choosing, and neither of which has acted under any duress or compulsion, whether legal, 
economic or otherwise. Consequently, the terms and provisions of this Agreement shall be 
interpreted and construed in accordance with their usual and customary meanings, and the parties 
each hereby waive the application of any rule of law which would otherwise be applicable in 
connection with the interpretation and construction of this Agreement that ambiguous or conflicting 
terms or provisions contained in this Agreement shall be interpreted or construed against the party 
whose attorney prepared the executed Agreement or any earlier draft of the same. 

 
30. DISPUTES, GOVERNING LAW 

Should any dispute, misunderstanding or conflict arise as to the terms or provisions contained in 
this Agreement, the matter shall first be referred to Town, and Town shall determine the term or 
provision's true intent and meaning. 

 This Agreement shall be deemed to be made under, shall be construed in accordance with, and 
shall be governed by the laws of the State of Arizona, without reference to choice of law or 
conflicts of laws principles thereof. Any action brought to interpret, enforce, or construe any provision 
of this Agreement shall be commenced and maintained in the Superior Court of the State of Arizona 
in and for the County of Pinal (or, as may be appropriate, in the Justice Courts of Pinal County, 
Arizona or in the United States District Court for the District of Arizona, if but only if, the Superior 
Court lacks or declines jurisdiction over such action). The parties irrevocably consent to jurisdiction 
and venue in such courts for such purposes and agree not to seek transfer or removal of any action 
commenced in accordance with the terms of this paragraph. 
 
31. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding of the parties and supersedes all previous 
representations, written or oral, with respect to the Services specified herein. The Agreement may 
not be modified or amended except by a written document, signed by authorized representatives or 
each party. 
 
32. LICENSES 

Vendor shall maintain in current status all Federal, State, and Local licenses and permits required 
for the operations of the business conducted by Vendor and the Services to be provided under this 
Agreement. 
 
33. PERMITS AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

Vendor, shall, without additional expense to Town, be responsible for obtaining any necessary 
licenses and permits and for complying with any applicable Federal, State, County and Municipal 
Laws, codes and regulations in connection with the execution of the work, provision of Services and 
provision of materials. 
 
34. LIENS 

 
Vendor shall hold Town harmless from claimants supplying labor or materials to the Vendor or 
subcontractors in the performance of the Services under this Agreement. Vendor shall deliver 
appropriate written releases, in statutory form, of all liens to Town. 
 
35. NON-EXCLUSIVE REMEDIES 
 



12 | P a g e  
 

The rights and the remedies of Town under this Agreement are not exclusive. Town shall be entitled 
to offset against any sums due to Vendor, any expenses or costs incurred by Town, or damages 
assessed by Town concerning Vendor's non-conforming performance or failure to perform the 
Agreement, including costs and damages incurred by Town. 
 
36. TAXES 
 
Vendor shall be solely responsible for any and all tax obligations which may result out of the Vendor's 
performance of this Agreement. Town shall have no obligation to pay any amounts for taxes, of 
any type, incurred by the Vendor. 
 
37. INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE 
 
All Exhibits to this Agreement are fully incorporated herein as though set forth at length herein. 
 
38. SURVIVAL 
 
All warranties, representations and indemnification by Vendor shall survive the completion, 
expiration, or termination of this Agreement. 
 

39. Prohibited Boycott.   
 

Pursuant to A.R.S. 35-393.01, the Vendor, by execution of this Agreement, certifies that it is not 
currently engaged in, and agrees for the duration of this Agreement to not engage in, a boycott of 
Israel. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Vendor and Town have caused this document to be executed 
by their duly authorized representatives, this _ date of           , 2018. 

 
 

TOWN OF FLORENCE: VENDOR: 
 

              
 
 
ATTEST: 

 
  
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 

 
 
REVIEWED AS TO FORM: 

 
  
Clifford L. Mattice Town Attorney 
 

 
 
 



13 | P a g e  
 

Exhibit “A” 
 
Pro-Tec Environmental – Scope of Work 
Town of Florence 
 
1)  To clean sewer lines we use a combination sewer cleaning truck.  The truck 

carries 1500-gallons of fresh water and has an 1800-gallon debris tank to hold everything that 
is vacuumed out of the sewer system. 
 

2)  The truck carries 800 feet of 1” pressure jetter hose that can pump 80-gallons a minute at 2000 
PSI. The hose goes up the sewer line from one manhole to the next and then is pulled back 
under pressure flushing all of the debris down to the manhole where the truck is located.   As 
the debris is flush back to the truck, we use the 8” vacuum hose to pick up all of the debris that 
has been flushed out of the sewer system.  The trucks carry different nozzles and cutters that 
are used to clean and cut roots depending on what we find in the sewers and the size of the pipe 
we are working in. 
 

  3)  To clean the sewer system we start at the top of the system and clean 
towards the bottom where there is a lift station or a waste water treatment plant. 









  
MINUTES OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL HELD ON TUESDAY, JULY 3, 2018, AT 4:00 P.M., IN THE 
FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, LOCATED AT 775 N. MAIN STREET, 
FLORENCE, ARIZONA.      
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Walter called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.  
 

Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
July 3, 2018 
Page 1 of 2 

ROLL CALL:     
 
Present:  Walter, Woolridge, Hawkins, Guilin, Anderson, Wall, Larsen 
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the Town Council.  
Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual Councilmembers may respond to 
criticism made by those commenting, may ask staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda.  However, members of the Council shall not discuss or take 
action on any matter during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for 
discussion and legal action. 
 
There were no public comments.  
 
ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Discussion and possible action to authorize the holding of an Executive Session during the 
Council Meeting for the purposes of discussions or consultations with designated 
representatives of the public body and/or legal counsel pursuant to A.R.S. Sections 38-431.03 
(A)(1), (A)(3), (A)(4) and (A)(7) to consider its position and instruct its representatives and/or 
attorneys regarding: 
 

a. Contract negotiations with the Town Manager.  
b. Town’s position and instruct its attorneys regarding pending litigation in Maricopa County 

Superior Court:  Town of Florence v. Florence Copper, Inc. CV2015 -000325. 
c. Town’s position and instruct its attorneys regarding possible contract matters resulting 

from the closing of the Florence Hospital at Anthem.   
 

On motion of Vice-Mayor Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and carried to 
adjourn to Executive Session.  

ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, and carried to 
adjourn from Executive Session.  
 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
July 3, 2018 
Page 2 of 2 

TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
There was no report.  
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY 
 
The Council invited the public to the Fourth of July activities with the pool opening at noon and 
the Freedom Fest beginning at 5:00 pm.  They also invited the public to visit the art show 
coming to McFarland State Park.  
 
 ADJOURNMENT 

 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Vice-Mayor Woolridge, and carried to 
adjourn the meeting at 5:48 p.m.  

 
 

 
________________________________ 
Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town Council 
meeting held on July 3, 2018, and that the meeting was duly called to order and that a quorum 
was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 

 
 

 
 
 

 



MINUTES OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, JULY 16, 
2018, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, LOCATED AT 775 N. 
MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA.   
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Walter called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL:    
 
Present:  Walter, Woolridge, Hawkins, Guilin, Anderson, Wall, Larsen. 
 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 16, 2018 
Page 1 of 30 

MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
Mayor Walter called for a moment of silence. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Walter led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the Town Council.  
Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual Councilmembers may 
respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask staff to review a matter raised 
or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, members of the Council 
shall not discuss or take action on any matter during an open call to the public unless the 
matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
 
Mr. Jerry Ravert, Florence Resident, stated that he has expressed concerns about the use of 
primary elections to make far-reaching decisions, especially with a seasonal population as the 
Chamber of Commerce has brought to the Council’s attention.  He stated that although the State 
of Arizona may dictate when the primary elections are held, the State cannot and should not tell 
us, the counties and cities, what the content of our elections should be.  For future elections, I am 
asking the Council to keep issues with long term consequences, such as the base-rate 
adjustment, and election of the council members for the November General Election – when there 
are more voters in town.  He stated that if the Council truly wants to be transparent, you need to 
hear all voices; it is important, people will respond.  
 
Mr. Ravert stated that the Council needs to make a commitment to historic preservation.  In front 
of the Council is a golden opportunity.  There are two National Register buildings on Historic Main 
Street which will soon be demolished unless something is done.  The Town already owns the 
Cuen House, and it could purchase the remaining of the 1912 brick saloon, recently burned.  The 
Town could rehabilitate both buildings and set an example by following all rules, codes, and 
preservation guidelines we as property owners in the Historic District are expected to follow.  Main 
Street does not need any more empty lots or parks.  Main Street needs preservation and in fill.  
The Town could lead the way by setting the example.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 16, 2018 
Page 2 of 30 

Tom Rankin, Florence Resident, stated that many residents utilized the transfer station services 
that were previously provided to the residents.  He stated that now residents must have to bag 
their waste in plastic bags until they can have it picked up, which is once per month.  He asked 
the Council to negotiate with Right Away Disposal (RAD) to have them do two times per month 
pickups and to develop reusable bags.  He stated that the bags can be made of burlap or tarp 
material.  He is concerned about the landfill being filled with plastic bags and the desert, in which 
many people may start dumping at because they have no place to dump.  He stated that many 
people will not spend $40-$45 for dumping fees.     
 
Mr. Rankin stated that bulk waste is a problem.  He stated that this is a service that is needed and 
no longer available to the residents.           
 
Bruce Taylor, San Tan Valley Resident, asked the Council to annex an area of San Tan Valley 
and make it a part of Florence.  He stated that Florence’s population would increase by 100,000 
and probably within 200,000 within in a few years.  They would benefit from the infrastructure and 
the services the Town provides to its residents.  The new residents would bring in more tax dollars 
and have the authority and ability to help everyone grow together.   
 
ADJOURN TO MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1 
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried to adjourn 
to Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1. 
 
Public hearing to receive citizens’ comments on the proposed final budget for Merrill 
Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1; and possible adoption of Resolution No. 
MRCFD1 139-18 
 
Chairman Walter read Resolution No. MRCFD1 139-18 by title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1, 
PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019.  
 
Mr. Joe Jarvis, District Treasurer, stated that as part of the process of developing the Town’s 
budget, they also developed the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1 budget.  He has 
provided the official documents from the Attorney General’s Office for this District.   
 
Boardmember Wall inquired about the difference between the secondary property tax rate 
between Fiscal Year 2017-2018 and Fiscal Year 2018-2019. 
 
Mr. Jarvis stated that rate for Fiscal Year 2017-2018 is $3.25 for the ad valorem tax and $0.30 for 
the operations and maintenance.  He stated, that with the assistance of Piper Jaffray, the District’s 
Financial Advisor, they have analyzed what the minimum rate should be which will cover the 
expenses for this next fiscal year.  He stated that the rate of 1.9025 is included in the budget, 
which includes covering the expenses for this upcoming year for debt and interest on the 2008A 
General Obligation Bonds (GO Bonds) and the new funding that occurred in 2017.  It also includes 
the $0.30 for the operation and maintenance.  In addition, it includes a buffer of $15,000 to cover 
an interest payment on a potential GO Bond of $2 million.  The buffer also includes a 5% 
delinquency rate because some customers do not pay their bills on time.  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 16, 2018 
Page 3 of 30 

Mr. Jarvis stated that staff is working with the consultants to determine the most appropriate rate 
to present for this next fiscal year.  He stated that the rate may be slightly different from what is 
currently being presented.   
 
Mr. Brent Billingsley, District Manager, stated that this is different than what has been done in the 
past.  The two Community Facilities Districts (CFDs) have had the same rate for the entire time 
of their existence.  The history of the districts was evaluated as was the actual costs associated 
with the CFDs based on the issuances that have occurred since they were started.  He stated that 
there is going to be a time when the rates will be different because a lot of development is 
occurring in one of the CFDs and not in the other.  The District has issued a lot of GO Bonds in 
one CFD and the other had one issuance.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that what is being presented is the real audit by Piper Jaffray on what the 
minimum rate for those will be.  There are several things that go into determining what a rate will 
be, which includes issuances that may occur in the next year.  A request was made by the 
developer to have an issuance this year.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that he has asked Mr. Jarvis and Piper Jaffray to set up a time frame in 
December or January of each year where requests can come from developers for financial 
offerings in the forthcoming year.   
 
Mr. Jarvis stated that the Arizona Revised Statutes have changed which now restricts the District.  
He stated that within the debt fund in each of the CFDs, they have Special Assessment and 
General Obligation Bonds.  The General Obligation Fund Balance is now restricted.  The District 
cannot have more than 10% of the annual debt and interest payments in its cash balance as of 
July 1, 2019.  Historically, the rate has been held the same and have been able to retain a little 
bit more funding than the required amount for debt and interest payments.  With the extra cash, 
the District has been able to make additional issuances and help the CFDs out.  The District is 
now required to use the cash.   
 
Boardmember Anderson asked that maps of each of the Districts be provided to him.   
 
Boardmember Guilin inquired if Mr. Jarvis added an additional 5% for delinquency.  She asked if 
it was applied to the full levy amount.   
 
Mr. Jarvis stated that the 5% is on a small portion of the ad valorem and did not include the 
operations and maintenance. 
 
Mayor Walter inquired if the payments would need to be applied towards the total debt amount 
and if staff has looked into that with the recent agreements.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the funds that are collected are held within the CFD.  There are several 
different accounts where the fees are located.  The laws limit what the balances are to ensure 
that the individuals who pay the taxes are protected from a truck-tax rate that is set arbitrarily high 
to collect money and go into the individual accounts within the CFDs.  There are two parts:  the 
part that relates to a rate that is set and the funds that will be accumulated based on that; and 
what to do with the balances that exist in the individual CFDs for those accounts.  A 
recommendation will be forwarded to the board at the end of the month.  Piper Jaffray has 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 16, 2018 
Page 4 of 30 

provided a minimum amount that needs to be collected for all things to stay even with the CFDs.  
The amount will go up if there will be issuances that can occur in the upcoming year or for changes 
in the valuation.   
 
Chairman Walter stated that any revenue that comes in could be used to pay off the debt at a 
faster rate.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the District did a refinance last year in MRCFD No. 1.  The District used 
the account balance to buy down the debt as part of the refunding.  The time frame was also 
impacted as part of the reduction in rate.             
 
Chairman Walter opened the public hearing.  There being no public comments, Chairman Walter 
closed the public hearing.  
 
On motion of Vice-Chairman Woolridge, seconded by Boardmember Guilin, and carried to adopt 
Resolution No. MRCFD1 139-18. 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1 
March 19, 2018 Special Meeting minutes.  
 
On motion of Vice-Chairman Woolridge, seconded by Boardmember Larsen, and carried to 
approve the March 19, 2018 Special Meeting minutes.   
 
ADJOURN FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1 
 
On motion of Boardmember Larsen, seconded by Boardmember Hawkins, and carried to adjourn 
from Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1.  
 
ADJOURN TO MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2 
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and carried to 
adjourn to Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 2.  
 
Public hearing to receive citizens’ comments on the proposed final budget for Merrill 
Ranch Community Facilities District No. 2; and possible adoption of Resolution No. 
MRCFD2 236-18:  
 
Chairman Walter read Resolution No. MRCFD2 236-18 by title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2, 
PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019.  
 
Mr. Jarvis stated the numbers being presented are lower in the upcoming fiscal year than in the 
last fiscal year because the Arizona Revised Statutes have changed.  He met with the consultants 
and they are coming before the Board with a recommendation on July 30, 2018.     
 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 16, 2018 
Page 5 of 30 

Chairman Walter opened the public hearing.  There were no public comments, Chairman Walter 
closed the public hearing.  
 
On motion of Boardmember Hawkins, seconded by Vice-Chairman Woolridge, and carried to 
adopt Resolution No. MRCFD2 236-18. 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 2 
March 19, 2018 Special Meeting minutes.  
 
On motion of Boardmember Wall, seconded by Boardmember Larsen, and carried to approve the 
March 19, 2018 Special Meeting minutes.  
 
ADJOURN FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2 
 
On motion of Vice-Chairman Woolridge, seconded by Boardmember Hawkins, and carried to 
adjourn from Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 2. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 
Public hearing to receive citizens’ comments on the property tax levy of the Town of 
Florence.  
 
Mr. Joe Jarvis, Finance Director, stated that the recommendation is to lower the rate.  The Town 
is holding a public hearing because of the property tax levy and the truth in taxation requirement.  
The levy amount will increase this next fiscal year.  The reason the levy amount is increasing is 
because property values are increasing.  They will still be able to collect just as much revenue as 
they did last year if they lower the rate because of the increase in the property value.   
 
Mr. Jarvis stated that each individual’s property tax may either increase or decrease, depending 
on the rate that the Council adopts and the value of the home.  The Council will have the 
opportunity to consider adopting the rate for the next fiscal year.          
 
Mayor Walter opened the public hearing.  There being no public comments, Mayor Walter closed 
the public hearing.  
 
Public hearing to receive citizen’s comments on the proposed final budget for Fiscal Year 
2018-2019.  
 
Mr. Jarvis stated that the public hearing is to receive comments from the public.  He thanked the 
Council for the work they have done on the budget.   
 
Mayor Walter opened the public hearing.   
 
Mr. Billingsley thanked the Budget Committee for their hard work and the time spent working 
through the budget process.  He thanked them for their contribution.  He also thanked the public 
for their comments.  He also thanked the Department Directors for their hard work.    
 
Mayor Walter closed the public hearing.   



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 16, 2018 
Page 6 of 30 

Public hearing on an application received from Samir Shilaimon Kasha, Pinal Food Market, 
LLC, located at 90 N. Main Street, Florence, Arizona, for an Agent Change – Acquisition-
Control, and for Council recommendation for approval or disapproval of said license.  
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, stated that the Town Clerk’s Office received 
the application and posted it at Pinal Food Market for the required 20 days.  The Town has not 
received any complaints regarding the application.  Town staff recommends that the Town Council 
approve the application. 
 
Mayor Walter opened the public hearing.  There being no comments, Mayor Walter closed the 
public hearing.  
 
On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, and carried to forward a 
favorable recommendation to the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control for an Agent 
change – Acquisition - Control application, received from Samir Shilaimon Kasha, Pinal Food 
Market, LLC, located at 90 N. Main Street, Florence, Arizona.   
 
Presentation by Tony Trifiletti, Executive Director of All Aboard Arizona. 
 
Mr. Brent Billingsley, Town Manager, stated that All Aboard Arizona is a non-profit group that 
advocates specifically for passenger rail.  They are working very hard on passenger rail from 
Phoenix to Tucson and wants to ensure that Florence is part of the project when it comes to 
fruition.  They have applied for grant funds and asked for Florence’s support in their grant 
application.  Florence has sent a letter of support on their behalf.     
 
Mr. Tony Trifiletti, Executive Director of All Aboard Arizona, stated that their key priority is to 
establish intracity passenger rail service from Phoenix to Tucson.  They thought they could get a 
state passenger rail program started.  He stated that they made a presentation to Senator Bob 
Worsley.  Their idea was to take one of the cheaper alternatives from the $6 million Arizona 
Department of Transportation (ADOT) High Speed Rail Study; however, they ran afoul of Article 
9, Section 14 of the Arizona Constitution.       
 
Mr. Tifiletti provided a presentation in which he outlined the following: 
- Executive Summary 

 The Sun Corridor contains 5 million people, which is 75% of the population of Arizona, and 
grew 78% between 1990 and 2010.  In the Phoenix-Tucson segment, by 2035 there will 
be an additional 51% population growth to 7.7 million.  Phoenix is the largest city in America 
without commuter or intercity rail, and Maricopa County is America’s fastest growing 
county. 

 I-10 travel times are expected to increase 26% by 2035 and 59% by 2050.  To handle the 
anticipated traffic, I-10 would have to be widened to 10 lanes.  It would cost $1 billion for 
just two more lanes on I-10 between Phoenix and Tucson.  There is a significant demand 
for passenger rail from the people, employers and other private sector entities and 
developers in particular.  If Arizona wishes to attract more and larger employers, 
particularly the high-tech variety, it needs to improve its transportation profile. 

 Air travel is time consuming and inflexible, and air fares can be prohibitive.  Sandstorms 
close airports, and ground planes and passengers.  I-10 is hazardous even on its best days 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 16, 2018 
Page 7 of 30 

with the sheer number of trucks.  Sandstorms can make driving on the freeway treacherous 
and even close it entirely.  Trains can handle sandstorms as long as the block signals are 
visible.  Rail moves people and goods when other modes fail. 

 ADOT’s study of passenger rail between Phoenix and Tucson cost over $6 million and 
joined previous studies on the shelf.  The study’s proposed speed of 125 mph is out of 
reach unless a totally new line is built to European or Japanese high-speed standards. 

 One of the options enumerated by the ADOT Rail Office is the Amtrak Connection.  By 
utilizing the existing Union Pacific line between Phoenix and Tucson, the 3-year buildout 
and $1.1 billion cost would make it a far superior alternative to the high-speed study’s 20-
year buildout and $6 billion cost. 

 Conventional passenger railcars can be purchased from Siemans in Sacramento.  At 79 
mph, the trains would make the trip between Phoenix and Tucson in 2 hours to 2 hours 15 
minutes. 

 Recommendations 
 Establish a stronger Rail Office within ADOT; 
 Fund and finish the ADOT Phase 2 study; 
 Explore the purchase of Siemans equipment from its Sacramento factory; 
 Prepare the groundwork for upgrading Union Pacific’s rail line in the corridor. 

- Sun Corridor Population Growth 
 In the Sun Corridor (Prescott-Phoenix-Tucson-Nogales), there are 5 million people, which 

is 75% of the population of Arizona.  This corridor grew 78% between 1990 and 2010. 
 In the Phoenix-Tucson segment of the Sun Corridor, by 2035 there will be an additional 

51% population growth to 7.7 million. 
 Phoenix is the largest city in America without commuter or intercity rail, and Maricopa 

County is America’s fastest growing county.  Arizona’s population and employment are 
heavily concentrated in this segment of the corridor. 

 This does not even include Bill Gates’ new “smart city” of Belmont, which will be 
constructed on the future I-11 between Wickenburg and Buckeye. 

 How will all these people get around? 
- Sun Corridor Transportation Profile 

 I-10 travel times are expected to increase 26% by 2035 and 59% by 2050.  To handle the 
anticipated traffic, I-10 would have to be widened to 10 lanes. 
It costs $3 to $6 million per mile to build two additional freeway lanes. That’s easily $1 
billion for just two more lanes on I-10 between Phoenix and Tucson. 

 Arizona has over 66,000 miles of public roads of which 15% are in poor condition.  There 
is $1.7 billion in highway construction underway with another $3.25 billion planned over the 
next decade. 

 But we need more than just highways.  If we want an all-highway solution to our 
transportation problems, we should have started construction yesterday. 

 There are over 1600 miles of railroad track in Arizona.  There is a significant demand for 
passenger rail from the people, employers and other private sector entities and developers 
in particular. 

 If Arizona wishes to attract more and larger employers, particularly the high-tech variety, it 
needs to improve its transportation profile. 

 The bottom line isn’t pretty. Planned highway expansion in the Phoenix-Tucson corridor 
will not meet growing traffic demand by 2035.  It’s just a brutal fact. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 16, 2018 
Page 8 of 30 

- Why Rail? 
 Air travel?  It’s time consuming, inflexible, and air fares can be prohibitive.  A standard 

coach ticket for Phoenix-Tucson can range from $250 to over $1000, even with a change 
of planes at an out-of-the-way hub like Denver (cf. Expedia).  Sandstorms close airports, 
and ground planes and passengers. 

 Highway safety:  Interstate 10 is hazardous even on its best days with the sheer number 
of trucks.  A simple fender bender can create backups running for miles due to the minimal 
number of bypass options and can delay a short trip by hours.  Sandstorms can make 
driving on the freeway treacherous and even close it entirely. 

 Why would a conservative Republican favor a rail-based solution to a transportation 
problem?  There is a Republican argument for rail, and it can be summarized in three 
simple words: Facilitation of Commerce. 

 Rail moves people and goods in an efficient cost-effective manner.  Rail moves people and 
goods when other modes fail.  Rail is good for business.  

- The latest ADOT Rail Study 
 ADOT’s latest study of passenger rail between Phoenix and Tucson cost over $6 million 

and joined previous studies on the shelf.  Let’s be realistic.  It’s unlikely that anything will 
ever come of it. 

 To get passenger trains moving more rapidly than the FRA’s arbitrary speed limit of 79 
mph would require very expensive track improvements.  The study’s proposed speed of 
125 mph is out of reach unless a totally new line is built to European or Japanese high-
speed standards. 

 Who is going to pay for it?  Where will the money come from? 
- Amtrak Connection 

 Peoria 
 Phoenix Union Station 
 Phoenix Sky Train 
 Queen Creek – Airport 
 Downtown Coolidge 
 Marana North 
 Tucson Amtrak 
 Tucson – Airport 

- A Better Way 
 One of the options enumerated by the ADOT Rail Office is the Amtrak Connection.  By 

utilizing the existing Union Pacific line between Phoenix and Tucson, the 3-year buildout 
and $1.1 billion cost would make it far superior to the ADOT high speed rail study’s 20-year 
buildout and $6 billion cost. 

 The Union Pacific line would require work to prepare it for intercity passenger rail service.  
The single-track line from Phoenix to Picacho Junction (75 miles) would require significant 
track upgrades, while the double-track line from Picacho Junction to Tucson (45 miles) 
would only require minimal work. 

 The stations at Phoenix and Tucson would require some work, and the seven proposed 
stations between them would utilize portable manufactured modular units like the station 
in Maricopa. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 16, 2018 
Page 9 of 30 

 This option, favored by All Aboard Arizona, would give the state and the Sun Corridor more 
bang for the buck in a much shorter time frame.  It would also interface nicely with the 
future I-11 and its associated rail infrastructure. 

- Siemans Solution  
 Siemans is producing passenger railcars for Caltrans and Florida’s Brightline at is 

Sacramento facility.  
 The interiors feature Wi-Fi, electric outlets for each set and bicycle racks. 
 Brightline trains will start running from Miami to West Palm Beach this year on the tracks 

of the Florida East Coast Railway.  Service will eventually reach Orlando. 
 Brightline is a total private sector solution funded by All Aboard Florida, Florida East Coast 

Industries and Fortress Capital. 
 Siemans has a factory in Sacramento and is producing the next generation of passenger 

railcars for California.  Brightline has piggybacked on that order. 
- Interstate 11 

 This new proposed addition to the interstate highway system will combine the existing US 
95, I-515 and US 93 in Nevada and Arizona. Then I-11 will either blaze a new route from 
Wickenburg south to AZ 85 at Buckeye on its way to I-8 at Gila Bend, or create a new 
southern bypass of the Phoenix area roughly paralleling I-10.  

 This will be a Cooper Corridor, combining a highway with a rail line, pipelines and power 
lines in the median.  The Cooper Corridor concept was invented by Dr. Hal Cooper nearly 
a half century ago when he was a professor of engineering at Texas A and M.  The Trans-
Texas Corridors, proposed 15 years ago by then-Gov. Rick Perry, were based on Dr. 
Cooper’s work.  

 Bill Gates’ proposed “smart city” of Belmont is to be located on the future I-11 between 
Wickenburg and Buckeye.  

 The rail line proposed for the median of Interstate 11 would provide easier exchange of 
freight between BNSF and Union Pacific, and also provide additional commuter and 
intercity passenger rail options for the region. 

- Recommendations 
 Establish a stronger Rail Office within ADOT.  The current Rail Office consists of only one 

person, and he wears a number of other hats as additional duties.  This office needs 
beefing up and more prominence.  Its new mission would be to: 
 Coordinate intercity planning with MAG’s planning, employing regional rail, commuter 

rail and light rail; 
 Manage use of shared tracks, communications, dispatching and station investments 

with Union Pacific; 
 Manage connectivity and collaboration with MAG should its ballot measure pass in 

2022. 
 Fund and finish ADOT Phase 2 study.  Under current environmental regulations, the study 
would have to be completed, but the study should now cover leased tracks, trains and stations 
for the Amtrak Connection option.  The final proposal would require: 
 Legislative approval; 
 Trackage agreements; 
 Lease or purchase of rolling stock and stations; 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 16, 2018 
Page 10 of 30 

 Contracts for existing station improvements. 
 Intercity passenger rail service could begin as soon as 3 years after the ink has 
dried. 

- Establish the purchase of Siemans equipment from its Sacramento factory.  Florida has 
piggybacked on the California order, and Arizona could follow.  

- Prepare the groundwork for upgrading Union Pacific’s rail line in the corridor.  This is where 
most of the money will be spent for the project, and a good working relationship needs to be 
established with the railroad to make the partnership work. 

 
Mayor Walter inquired what the timeline will be. 
 
Mr. Trifiletti stated that they would like to set up meetings with each of the following: elected 
officials, NPOs and Union Pacific along with their players.  He stated that it took Florida seven 
years to complete the project and run the first train.  He stated that their project will take 
approximately three years once the agreement is made.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated this group and their board members are very experienced in doing these 
type of projects and we are fortunate to have them working in Arizona.  
 
Mr. Trifiletti provided a brief overview of his experience.  He talked about the similarities and 
differences between the railways in Washington and Arizona.           

 
Presentation by Greg Swartz, Financial Advisor, Piper Jaffray and Co. 

 
Mr. Joe Jarvis, Finance Director stated that Piper Jaffray and Company was the selected bidder 
as the Town’s financial advisor.   
 
Mr. Greg Swartz, Senior Vice-President, provided a presentation in which he discussed the 
following:  
 Firm Overview 

 Headquarter is in Minneapolis  
 Have offices throughout the Country 

 Piper Jaffray is a leading advising, underwriting, and asset management firm 
 Corporate Finance 
 Advisory 
 Capital Markets and Equities 
 Mergers and Acquisitions  
 Research 
 Sales and Trading   
 Arizona Experience and Expertise  
 Florence CFDs 
 Team Resumes 

 Public Finance 
 Advising and Underwriting 
 Tax-Exempt and Taxable Bonds 
 Credit and Strategic Analytics  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 16, 2018 
Page 11 of 30 

 Asset Management 
 Wealth Management 
 Equity and Fixed Income 
 Private Equity Investments  

 1895 – Present - 120+ Year Record of Results 
 2017 - Top 50 Most Trustworthy Financial Companies by Forbes 
 Region of expertise 
 State and Local Government 
 Utilities  
 Charter Schools 
 Healthcare 
 Higher Education 
 K-12 
 Senior Living 
 Transportation 
 Senior Living and Housing 

 Three public finance roles 
 Advisor - We advise and represent the issuer as a financial advisor. 
 Placement Agent - We “place” bonds directly with investors on behalf of issuers.  
 Senior Underwriter - We serve as lead underwriter to publicly sell bonds 

 Piper Jaffray Rankings 
Role Advisory Placement Agent Senior Underwriter
Issues 1,022 891 2,293
Ranked by # of issues 4 1 3
Amount (billions) $8.9 Piper Jaffray Rankings $57.0
 We are the only firm to rank within the top five for each role 

 
Mr. Nick Dodd, Financial Advisor, Pipe Jaffray and Co, provided a presentation in which he 
outlined the following:  
 
- Arizona Experience and Expertise 

 Arizona Advisor Ranking – 2017 
Rank Advisor # of Issues Market Share % $ (Millions)
1 Piper Jaffray 12 8.3 480
2 Hilltop 11 7.6 352
3 Stifel 9 6.3 303
4 RBC 8 5.6 482
5 Frasca 4 2.8 875
6 Urban Features 4 2.8 126
7 Kaufman Hall 3 2.1 461
8 Public Resources 3 2.1 303
9 Wedbush 2 1.4 171
10 Ironwood 2 1.4 44

 
- Community Facilities Districts 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 16, 2018 
Page 12 of 30 

 Since 2013, Nick Dodd has been one of the more active advisors/bankers working on 
Community Facility Districts in Arizona. 

 Mr. Dodd has completed 25 transactions for $190 million on behalf of 12 different CFD’s.   
 Since 2008, Greg Swartz has formed CFDs in Apache Junction, Cave Creek, and Gila 

Bend and issued $65 million in CFD bonds.   
Mr. Swartz continued with the presentation, in which he outlined the following:  
- Florence CFDs 

 Phase 1 
 Confirm Tax Balances Available for Debt Service 
 Recommend FY 2018-19 Levies and Rates 

 Phase 2 
 Present to Council/Board  

 Phase 3 
 Confirm Tax Balances 
 Confirm Assessment Balances  
 Confirm Past and Future Uses  

 Phase 4 
 Recommend Enhancements to CFD Procedures and Policies 
 Comply with New Statutory Requirements - Property Tax Balances and Carryforward 

- Phases 1 and 2 -  Recommend Tax Levies and Rates 
 New 2017 Statutory Requirements - Arizona Revised Statutes 35-458 
 Limits Levies  
 O and M Tax - Maximum Rate of $0.3000 
 Annual Debt Service on Existing Bonds  
 Annual Debt Service on Bonds to be issued  
 Reasonable Delinquency 
 Additional Interest for Tax-Exempt Bonds Declared Taxable 

 Florence CFD Property Tax Rates 
CFD FY2007-FY2018 Estimated 2019
No. 1 3.5500 1.9025
No. 2  3.5500 3.3594

 
- Phase 3 Fund Balances 

 Confirm and Allocate Balances 
 2 CFDs - 6 Funds 

o Project 
o Administration 
o Debt Service  

 Main Revenue Sources  
o Taxes -  OM and Debt Service 
o Assessments -  14 Areas 
o Bonds - 20 Series 
o Earnings 
o Application Fees 
o Other 

 Confirm Past and Future Uses 
o Estimated Completion: August 1, 2018 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 16, 2018 
Page 13 of 30 

 Sources – up to 80 
 Uses – Up to 150 

- Estimated completed August 1, 2018 
- Phase 4 Enhancements 

 Initial Thoughts  
 Separate Funds for Taxes and Assessments  
 Disclose and Report on “Installment Purchases” within CAFR 
 Additional Trustee Detail on Assessment Bond Prepayments 
 Estimated Completion: September 1, 2018 

 Longer-Term Considerations  
 Fewer and Larger Bond Issues 
 Interim Loans for Project Construction/Acquisition 
 Update Written Policies and Procedures 
 Resolve CFD No. 1 GO Bond Proceed Consent “Issue” 
 Estimated Completion: During FY 2019 
  

Mr. Greg Swartz, Senior Vice President, Piper Jaffray & Co., provided a lengthy overview of the 
complexity of the bonds and how difficult the 80 sources and 150 uses are to track.  
  
Councilmember Guilin stated it is not very difficult.  There are accounting groups and you need to 
account for the money coming in and the money going out.     
 
Mr. Swarts, stated that it is easy if you have the staff and the knowledge base to do.  He 
complimented Councilmember Guilin for her work on the CFDS.     
 
Mayor Walter commended Councilmember Guilin and stated that she provides a wealth of 
knowledge.  She stated that she wants to ensure that whatever is bonded or whatever rates they 
receive, that it is of quality for the citizens so that are assessed fairly.   
   

a. Presentation by Innovation Pavilion, and Subex, regarding cybersecurity.   
 
Ms. Kitty Kolding CEO, Innovation Pavilion, provided a presentation, in which she discussed the 
following: 
 
- Upcoming events 

 Cybersecurity Summit  - July 26, 2018 
 Fire Within Entrepreneurial Launchpad Event (Sept/Oct) 
 Cybersecure Your Business Crash Course (September) 
 Local Digital Marketing Crash Course (October) 
 Raising Capital for Start Ups Crash Course (November) 
 Smart City Symposium (December) 

- Overall Updates 
 Completed a successful first teacher training with Florence K-8 teachers on May 30, 2018  
 Launched the new IP/Florence Facebook group (July 11, 2018)  
 Engaging two to four additional local resources to source and obtain Grants for FUSD 

projects 
 IoT Lab sponsored by Subex to be operational in the 2018/2019 school year  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 16, 2018 
Page 14 of 30 

 Milandr/SMART City project beginning Summer 2018 
 Subex/Cybersecurity project beginning Summer 2018 

 
Councilmember Wall asked that Council be provided copies of the activities and programs.   
 
Councilmember Anderson inquired when Innovation Pavilion will start building.  
 
Ms. Kolding stated that they are still working through development plans and have a way to go 
before they break ground.   
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that he thought the development plans should have been 
completed by now. 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the innovation assessment is due this month, which is the first item on 
the schedule from the contract. The schedule does not show them breaking ground for 
approximately 24 months.   
 
Councilmember Larsen inquired what the name of the Facebook page will be. 
 
Ms. Kolding stated that the name is of the Facebook page will be Innovation Pavilion Florence.   
 
Mr. Preetham Naik – Director of IoT Solutions, Subex, provided a presentation in which he outlined 
the following: 
- Subex at a glance 

 Financial Strength 
 More than US$ 60M in Revenue 
 EBITDA higher than most other BSS vendors in the market 
 Have been in business for over 25 years 
 Have partnered with Innovation Pavilion for approximately one year 

 Strong Subexian Base 
 Global workforce, with local presence at all locations: Bangalore (Head office), Denver, 

London, Dubai and Singapore 
 Over 800+ Subexians working together to deliver market leading software products 

 Global presence 
 Development centers in India, US and UK 
 Over 200 customers and 300+ installations in over 70 countries 
 Customers include 29 of top 50 operators* and 33 of the world’s 50# biggest telecom 

service providers worldwide 
 Thought leadership 
 Comprehensive selection of security and fraud management product suites to achieve 

competitive edge. 
 Recognized as the most Innovative IoT Security solution provider by Pipeline Innovation 

in 2016, 2017 and 2018 
 Featured as 1 of the ’10 companies to watch out for in 2015’, Frost and Sullivan March 

2015. 
 Project lead for TM Forum Asset Management Group 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 16, 2018 
Page 15 of 30 

 Leading security solutions provider for Telcos, enterprises, Educations institutions, 
critical infrastructures and Smart cities focused on IoT and ICS ecosystem. 

 Subex global footprint 
 Denver, USA 
 London, UK 
 Dubai, UAE 
 Bangalore, India 
 Singapore, Southeast Asia 

 Thought leadership 
 16 Patents globally - 8 granted, 8 pending approval 
 700+ Engineers working on creating world-leading IP 

 Subex portfolio 
 Drive new business model 
 Enhancing customer service 
 Optimize enterprise 
 Business 

o Revenue intelligence 
o Customer intelligence 
o Product intelligence 
o Partner Management 

 Operations 
o Fraud management 
o Revenue assurance 
o Interconnect settlement 
o Network Asset Management 

 Infrastructure 
o IoT Security 
o Capacity Management 

- Subex IoT Security Footprint 
 Subex provides IoT Security for connected cars 
 Pod Group and Subex partner to provide advanced security for IoT billing and connectivity 

service 
 Subex deploys Threat Research Lab and IoT Security for educational institutions 
 Subex provides IoT Security for Smart Cities to Town of Florence 
 35+ industry recognized awards 

- Customers Success, Partnerships and Alliances in IoT Security 
 IoT security for Telcos 
 IOT/ICS security for industrial, automotive/connected cars 
 Critical infrastructure security for smart cities 
 Threat intelligence and research with educational institutions 

- Subex secure for critical infrastructures 
- Subex Secure: IoT Ecosystem Protection 

 Intrusion, detection and prevention 
 Web application protection 
  SIEM 
 IoT Aware 

- Deployment architecture 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 16, 2018 
Page 16 of 30 

- Subex secure integration 
- Subex secure multi-site/Multi plant forecasted approach 
- IoT Innovation Lab and Security Center of Excellence 
- Why Subex collaborates with educational institutes 

 Enable Educational Institutions to create a lab as innovation Hub 
 Build industry capable talent in the space of IoT 
 Create innovative applications and domain capability 
 Thrive and embrace partnership and entrepreneurship   

1. IoT and Cybersecurity Center of Excellence (COE) 
2. train students to make them industry ready 
3. build research and development capabilities 
4. IoT ecosystem for partnership and collaboration  

- What are the benefits 
 Connect institution with local industries to build an IoT Ecosystem. Showcase capabilities 

in advanced cybersecurity area 
 The Institute can become a pioneer in IoT Technology and IoT Education by creating a 

platform for offering special courses/consulting projects 
 Academic 
 Make innovation lab available for researchers 
 Create Industry standard proficiency courses and upgrading skillset 
 Offer a new stream of courses for next gen technology 

 Start Up and SMB 
 Use of Open Technology Stack; Access to Industry experts 
 Access to students to work on innovative projects 
 Attract local organizations to seek talent in new technology areas 

 Government 
 Attract more FDI to encourage domestic manufacturing. 
 Connect institutions with Local and Federal industries to build a platform for IoT 

Ecosystem 
 Help in evaluation of critical infrastructure components and security. 

- What we provide 
 IoT Research Kit 
 Devices and components with over 200+ devices.  
 Subex IoT Aware Software License (with 50+ programs)   

 Setup Installation and Implementation 
 Onsite setup of lab,  
 Installation of lab system with racking system.  
 Installation and connectivity of network equipment’s, switches and IoT devices.   

 Professional Services 
 Deployment of IoT Lab network with network design services. Installation of Subex 

Honeypot and Subex Secure software  
 Training and support 
 Imparting training to Lab representatives, Faculty and students. End to end 

documentation  
- IoT Innovation Lab – a phased approach 

 Phase 1 
 3 months- Training and Execution of basic projects 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 16, 2018 
Page 17 of 30 

 Phase 2 
 2 Semesters – Experiment and Research IoT 

- IoT Security 
 Phase 3 
 IoT projects 

 Phase 4 
 Live projects and industry engagement 

- Research projects 
 Examples of IoT-Cybersecurity research projects 
 Effectiveness of using Neural Networks on Anomaly detection in IoT 
 Creating Decoy Networks to protect Critical Infrastructure 
 Creating Sandbox Environment for different IoT Architecture 
 Classification of Malwares using Neural Networks 
 Statistical evaluation of Malware Samples for Detection 
 Emergency Preparedness and Crisis Management using Unmanned Aircraft 
 Physical Intrusion and Detection using IoT 
 Intrusion detection system for low power protocol 

 Examples of IoT-Blockchain-Cybersecurity 
 Blockchain for IoT Security 
 Private IoT networks using Blockchain 
 Tracking High Value items in the supply chain using Blockchain services 
 Federated machine learning using IoT and Blockchain technology 

 
Mr. Billingsley stated that he, along with some members of the Council, walked the Highland 
Ranch STEM School, and Council inquired how the Town can get corporate sponsorships.  He 
stated that through the Town’s efforts, Subex put together IoT kits and an IoT lab, as a sponsor 
of the STEM School.  The lab will be located at the Florence Unified School District.  He is proud 
of the partnership.   
 
Mayor Walter inquired if they have partnered with the cyber lab in Parker.   
 
Mr. Naik stated they do not partner; however, they do something similar in Singapore and 
explained what they do.  
 
Mayor Walker stated that the Arizona State University may be another great opportunity for them 
to partner with. 
 
Mayor Walter asked Mr. Naik to showcase some of the basic projects.  
Mr. Naik discussed some of the projects and (inaudible) networks and anomaly detections and 
new technology as well as how the knowledge around this is built.  The networks are used in 
smart city and critical network infrastructure applications for maintenance.  There are also 
consumer focused projects that they would like to deploy, such as smart parking or a smart home.       
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that it is important in speaking with the other entities that are part of the IP 
Model, to ensure that the Town has a strong partnership that allows them to evolve and move 
forward.  This will help the Town’s regional economic development as well as the importance of 
negotiating the added features.  It is important to have a honeypot in Florence.  He stated that it 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 16, 2018 
Page 18 of 30 

is more than a typical contract.  It is an agreement by which the Town of Florence’s partner with 
Subex in developing cutting edge technology that can be marketed to other private, not profit and 
government customers.   
 
Councilmember Larsen stated that she is happy that they are partnering with the Florence Unified 
School District and inquired how it will be implemented with the students.  She also inquired when 
will the implementation take place.     
 
Mr. Naik stated that they are in the initial discussion phase.  They want to start small and they 
need to identify what the gaps are and how to fill those gaps. They will then set up a facility and 
determine how to include it as part of the service.   
 
Mr. Adam Leckie, Assistant Superintendent, stated that the Florence Unified School District is 
excited to partner with Subex.  They have had a meeting and discussed curriculum advancement 
program for the students.  They see it as an integrated, vertically articulated program that can get 
the kids ready for industry from pre-school through 12th grade.  They are excited about the 
innovation that Subex and Innovation Pavilion are bringing to the table.     
 
Mr. Naik invited everyone to attend the Cyber Security Summit, which will provide an overview of 
what initiatives cities are taking to cyber secure their eco system.   
 
ADJOURN TO A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Wall, and carried to adjourn to 
a Special Meeting.  
 
Resolution No. 1667-18:   
 
Mayor Walter read Resolution No. 1667-18 by title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, ADOPTING 
THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019.  
 
Mr. Jarvis stated the final budget for Fiscal Year 2018-2019 is being presented to Council for 
consideration.   
 
Mayor Walter opened the public hearing.  There being no public comments, Mayor Walter closed 
the public hearing.  
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, to adopt Resolution 
No. 1667-18. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
 
Woolridge:  Yes 
Hawkins:  Yes 
Guilin:  Yes 
Anderson:  Yes 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 16, 2018 
Page 19 of 30 

Wall:  Yes 
Larsen:  Yes 
Walter:  Yes 
 
Yes: 7; No: 0; Motion passed 
 
ADJOURN FROM A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
 
On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Wall, and carried to 
adjourn from a Special Meeting.   
 
CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as part of the 
consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects at the time 
the agenda item is called.  
 

a. Resolution No. 1671-18:   
 

Mayor Walter read Resolution No. 1671-18 by title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING 
THE TOWN TO ENTER INTO A GRANT AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF TUCSON POLICE 
DEPARTMENT, REGARDING THE ARIZONA HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA. 

 
b. Authorization to enter into a contract with Canyon State Wireless, Inc., to provide 

Land Mobile Radio maintenance services for three years, with two one-year 
extensions available, in an amount not to exceed $23,490, for Fiscal Year 2018-2019.  

 
c. Authorization to enter into a contract with Fester and Chapman, PLLC, for annual 

auditing services, for Fiscal Year 2017-2018, in amount not to exceed $41,150. 
 

d. Approval of an amendment of Article 3.2 of the Purchases and Sale Agreement, for 
Long Term Storage Credits, with Central Arizona Water Conservation District, as 
documented in the June 27, 2018 Letter of Agreement. 

 
e. Ratify the election of John Kemp as an employee representative on the Town of 

Florence Public Safety Personnel Retirement System Fire Local Board, for a period 
of four years. 
 

f. Appointment of Amber Phipps to fill the remainder of Carl Bell’s vacated seat on the 
Planning and Zoning Commission, with a term to expire December 31, 2018.  
 

g. Approval of the June 4, June 18, and June 27, 2018 Town Council Meeting minutes. 
 

h. Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 
i. June 7, 2018 Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting minutes.  
 

i. Approval of accepting the register of demands ending May 31, 2018, in the amount of 
$1,525,219.17.   



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 16, 2018 
Page 20 of 30 

 
Mayor Walter removed Item f. from the Consent Agenda. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, and carried to 
approve the Consent Agenda, as written, with the removal of Item f.    
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
Ordinance No. 661-18:   
 
Mayor Walter read Ordinance No. 661-18 by title only.  
 
ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING THE 
ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY WITHIN THE STREET LIGHT IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICTS (1, 2 and 3) SUBJECT TO TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH $100 OF 
VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM 
FUNDS FOR STREET LIGHT OPERATIONAL EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING 
THE 30th DAY OF JUNE 2019. 
 
Mr. Joe Jarvis, Finance Director, stated that the Town Council acts as the Board for the three 
Streetlight Improvement Districts (SLIDs).  Historically, The Town Council had adopted an 
ordinance that included the primary property tax and the three SLIDs.  The SLIDs are not separate 
districts like the community facilities districts; but are encompassed with the Town Council.  He 
stated that this year he separated the ordinances so there will be one for the SLIDs and one for 
the primary property tax.   
 
Mr. Jarvis stated that it is staff’s recommendation that they levy a rate of $0.  There is an available 
cash balance in each of the SLID funds to pay for this year’s expenses.  They may need to levy 
a rate next year to collect some revenue to pay for future expenses.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Wall, and carried to adopt 
Ordinance No. 661-18.  
 
Roll Call Vote:   
 
Hawkins:  Yes 
Wall:  Yes 
Larsen:  Yes 
Anderson:  Yes 
Guilin:  Yes 
Woolridge:  Yes 
Walter: Yes 
 
Yes: 7; No: 0; Motion passed 
 
Discussion and possible action regarding instructing staff how to proceed on the transfer 
station project. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 16, 2018 
Page 21 of 30 

Mr. Benjamin Bitter, Assistant Town Manager, stated that staff is presenting the following options 
for Council’s consideration:  
 
 Option 1:  Expand existing relationship with Right Away Disposal (RAD) through a contract 

amendment.   
 Add transfer station services 
 Enhance the number of community dump days 
 RAD is in agreement that they could provide the additional services.   
 Residents will be able to dump, at no cost to the residents, at RAD’s transfer station in 

Apache Junction.  
o Similar service to what was previously offered 
o Benefits include expanded hours as well as being open on Saturdays 
o It is a longer drive to Apache Junction 

 Can request an additional 90-gallon container for $5 per month 
 Requires an amendment to the existing contract 
 Transfer station services can be available immediately 

 Option 2:  Issue a Request for Proposals (RFP) for landfill or transfer station services.  
 With an expedited timeframe, staff could send out the RFP by July 23, 2018, give three 

weeks to allow for responses and advertising requirements, a week for review, and then 
place a recommendation for action on the Town Council agenda on September 4, 2018. 

 Option 3:  Begin to reimburse residents for their use of the Central Arizona Solid Waste transfer 
station on Hunt Highway.   
 Policies and procedures will need to be developed along with form for customer to 

complete 
 Will need to determine maximum that can be reimbursed  

o If the Town reimburses all dumps, staff can anticipate an approximate 50% increase 
in cost compared to Fiscal Year 2018. (Assuming all people seek and are eligible 
for reimbursement). 

o If the Town reimburses one dump per customer per month, staff can anticipate an 
approximate 6% decrease in cost compared to Fiscal Year 2018. 

o If the Town reimburses 75% of the cost for one dump per customer per month, staff 
can anticipate an approximate 30% decrease in cost. 

o If the Town reimburses 75% of the cost (for any/all dumps), staff can anticipate an 
approximate 12% increase in cost. 

o If the Town reimburses 50% of the cost (for any/all dumps), staff can anticipate an 
approximate 25% decrease in cost. 

 
- Option 4:  Issue Request for Proposal for sanitation services which will encompass the entire 

enterprise of sanitation.    
 Can include landfill and transfer station components in the response to the proposals 

 
Mayor Walter stated that it was her understanding that the contract with RAD would be amended 
immediately, after Council authorization, to utilize their transfer station, since legally the Town can 
add those services to the existing contract.  This would provide an immediate solution.  She stated 
that staff then could do an RFP for sanitation services, and the RFP could be worded that a 
different business could provide a portion of the services.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 16, 2018 
Page 22 of 30 

Discussion occurred on the various scenarios and possible options for services, inclusive of 
having a landfill locally.   
 
Discussion occurred on the four free dump days per year offered by Pinal County which Town 
residents can participate in, along with the free dump day that the Town offers.   
 
Mr. Brent Billingsley, Town Manager, stated that he has been working with Pinal County on a joint 
landfill, which will be new infrastructure.  Pinal County wanted to hire a consultant and do a 
feasibility study so they would have something to provide to their board to show if it would be a 
financial benefit on a cost ratio basis.  He stated that he has not seen the feasibility study but will 
share it with the Council once it becomes available.  The Town will utilize the information to see if 
it is feasible for the Town to participate.   
 
Discussion occurred on additional dump days for Florence’s residents, including monthly dump 
days.   
 
Discussion occurred on the statistics, for eight months, of those who have utilized the landfill for 
dumping services.   He explained the patterns of those who dumped and the associated fees for 
dumping, specifically, if the Town were going to reimburse the residents.   
 
Councilmember Larsen, stated that it is important to do a multi-solution approach.  She likes the 
one dump day per month as well as more community dump days.   
 
Councilmember Wall stated that Options No. 1 and 3 are short term solutions.  She does not want 
the Town to rush out to bid for the service.  She would prefer Option 4 but is in favor of the short- 
term solutions until a permanent solution is reached.  
 
Councilmember Guilin inquired if the Town has researched the State Contract for Option 2.  She 
stated that she is not in favor of Option 3 because it is unreasonable, it opens opportunities for 
several issues, is an issue for administrative staff and limits the number of loads that a resident 
can do.   
 
Mr. Bitter stated that he has not researched the State Contract.   
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that he does not agree with Option 3, but is in favor of Option 2, 
until a permanent solution is reached.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired about a joint transfer station with Pinal County. 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the Town has been in discussion with Pinal County for approximately 
six months.  He stated that Pinal County has had a consultant for approximately three months to 
complete the study that Pinal County is paying for.  He stated that Pinal County would provide the 
land and the Town has funding for a more sustainable solution.   
 
Vice-Mayor Woolridge stated that she is not in favor of Option 3 as it would create a paperwork 
nightmare and open the opportunity for possible fraud.  If the Town chooses Option 3, residents 
will only be able to dump once per month and they would be responsible for any other dumping 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 16, 2018 
Page 23 of 30 

costs.  This would create a mess for the staff.  She stated that she knows it is inconvenient for 
residents to drive to Apache Junction to dump.  Her preference would be for Option 1.  
 
Mayor Walter stated that it is an approximate ½ hour drive to the dumping site in Apache Junction.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired if the Town partnered with Pinal County, and had a joint landfill, 
would the costs allow the landfill to be self- sustainable.  
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the intent is for the landfill to be self-sustainable; however, they are still 
in the preliminary discussions.  
 
Discussion occurred on scenarios regarding use of the proposed landfill.   
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that there needs to be something local for the citizens until such 
time that there is a permanent solution.  He stated that the dump in Apache Junction is too far for 
the residents.    
 
Councilmember Larsen stated that she is not in favor of utilizing the dump in Apache Junction.   
 
Mayor Walter stated that she is disappointed that they lost the services for the residents and wants 
to ensure that something is offered to the residents in the interim until there is a permanent 
solution.   
 
Mr. Bitter stated that he has reached out to Waste Management and has not had a response. 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that he has met with Waste Management and it is not an option because 
they need to reconfigure their site to accept public dumping as they are only set up for commercial 
trash trucks.  The fees would be very expensive.  
 
Mr. Rankin stated that Option No. 3 would be a nightmare for staff.  He stated that an option would 
be to have a temporary transfer station on the land at Ruggles and Willow until such time that a 
permanent one could be built.  He stated that the North/South Corridor needs to be considered 
when determining where to place a permanent landfill.  He stated that commercial dumping needs 
to be closely monitored.   
 
Mayor Walter stated that she would like for staff to bring back an amendment to the RAD 
Agreement (Option 4) which is to amend the RAD Agreement to add the transfer station, as well 
as an RFP for services to include the transfer station, at the July 30, 2018, or August 6, 2018 
Town Council meeting.     
Discussion occurred on having a temporary transfer station at a location in Florence. 
 
Mr. Bitter stated that there is no one to man the facility and it is very expensive to start up a new 
facility.  Discussion occurred regarding putting a roll off in the community where it would be behind 
a fenced gate and could be opened up at the Town’s convenience; however, the difficulty is finding 
the manpower.   
Discussion occurred on how Coolidge dumps and that Coolidge is not interested in joining in the 
discussions regarding joint landfill use with Pinal County and the Town.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 16, 2018 
Page 24 of 30 

Discussion occurred on why the contract with Central Arizona Solid Waste ended.   
 
Discussion occurred on the Town going out for bid and the parameters for the bid.   
 
Councilmember Wall stated that Pinal County has roll offs in a cyclone fenced area near their 
Sheriff’s substation on Hunt Highway and it is not manned.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that contractors could dump at those locations.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Mayor Walter, and carried to issue a 
Request for Proposal for landfill or transfer station services as well as options for a temporary 
solution and for the recommendation be placed on the September 4, 2018 Town Council meeting 
agenda. 
  
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of a Design Services Agreement, with J2 Engineering 
and Environmental Design, for the Poston Butte Preserve Project, in an amount not to 
exceed $109,548. 
 
Mr. Bryan Hughes, Community Services Director, stated that the contract is for design services 
for the next step in the Poston Butte project.  Staff has already started the cultural, biological and 
environmental surveys.  The design portion coincides with the surveys.   
 
Councilmember Wall asked for the timeline for design.   
 
Mr. Hughes stated that they have allotted nine months for the 30% design.  They anticipate to 
finish in early Spring.   
 
Councilmember Anderson inquired how they will address the railroad track. 
 
Mr. Hughes stated that there would be an aggregate crossing west of Poston Butte.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the Town has met with the Arizona Corporation Commission, the 
railroad and Southwest Value Partners and have formulated a plan to move forward.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Guilin, seconded by Councilmember Anderson, and carried to 
approve a Design Services Agreement, with J2 Engineering and Environmental Design, for the 
Poston Butte Preserve Project, in an amount not to exceed $109,548. 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to enter into a contract with Holbrook Asphalt Co., using 
the cooperative contract, through the City of Mesa Contract #2016162, for a proposal 
amount of $281,485.45, with a 15% contingency of $42,222.82, for a not to exceed amount 
of $323,708.27.  
 
Mr. Chris Salas, Development Services Director, stated the Town has completed four projects 
using HA5 product and have been pleased with the product and their service.  He stated that the 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 16, 2018 
Page 25 of 30 

three projects target Anthem Unit 14, 21, 23, 25 29, Anthem American Way, Anthem Way and 
Constitution Way.  
 
Councilmember Anderson inquired if the projects will be completed by the end of the fiscal year.  
 
Mr. Salas stated that one of the projects is in front of the school and the project will be completed 
when the school is not in session.  He stated that he can provide a schedule of when projects will 
be done.       
 
On motion of Councilmember Guilin, seconded by Vice-Mayor Woolridge, and carried to enter 
into a contract with Holbrook Asphalt Co., using the cooperative contract, through the City of Mesa 
Contract #2016162, for a proposal amount of $281,485.45, with a 15% contingency of $42,222.82, 
for a not to exceed amount of $323,708.27. 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of entering into an Employment Agreement with the 
Town Manager Brent Billingsley. 
 
Mr. Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney, stated that the Employment Agreement with Mr. Billingsley 
is an extension of his existing agreement.  Mr. Billingsley has served as Town Manager for 2 ½ 
years and his current contract is set to expire December 31, 2018.  There is a desire by the parties 
to extend the contract.  The changes to the terms are: 
- Add four years onto the contract 
- Increase the salary by approximately 10.8% which is in line with the market adjustment that 

other employees experienced this fiscal year as a separate issue from the 5% merit increase 
 Salary increase to $151,329.00 annually base salary 

- 20 days of vacation accrual per year with a maximum cap of 400 hours, which is consistent 
with the length of service for employees with 10+ years of service 
 Mr. Billingsley has been a public employee for over 10 years, so it is consistent with other 

employees 
 
Mr. Mattice stated that the draft contract previously provided to Council had some typographical 
errors and noted the following for the record: 
- Section 8-5: word should be breach instead of reach 
- Section 20 D and/or E: should be 20(4) and/or (5) 
- Section 9:  Second paragraph, word “be” is crossed out in error 
- Section 11:  Seven lines down there is a date of June 2018 and it should be June 2022 and 

the end date of the contract should be December 31, 2022.   
Mr. Mattice stated that the contract allows for the Council to do an annual review of the Town 
Manager as well as provides an opportunity for the Council to increase the salary in the future if 
they desire.     
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that his responsibility is to the residents of Florence.  He stated 
that the Town entered into a contract with the Town Manager 2 ½ years ago and now propose to 
make major changes to the agreement.  He would propose three changes to the agreement:  
- Section 3: Compensation 
- Section 9: Severance 
- Section 11:  Performance Evaluation 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 16, 2018 
Page 26 of 30 

Councilmember Anderson stated that the proposed increase to $151,329, from the original 
contract amount of $130,000, and was raised to $136,500 last year, is to put the Town Manager 
in the mid-range as other Town Managers in Pinal County.  He stated that both the Town Manager 
and Council negotiated a contract that both thought to be fair to the Town and the candidate.  
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that they looked at the salaries of neighboring towns and the 
experience of the candidate.  The Council discussed the disparity between Florence and other 
Pinal County Towns along with job responsibilities and expectations.  The residents realize how 
unique Florence is and he does not see any change in their circumstances in the last 2 ½ years 
that would justify 10.8% salary increase.  He stated that Florence’s Town Manager is well within 
the range of other towns and does not see an issue in setting a goal to bring the salaries in range 
to comparable neighbors and it should be done on an incremental basis based on merit and other 
factors.  He stated that the proposal is a $14,829 increase.  He stated that the Town Manager 
deserves a raise, as do all good performing employees; however, the Town compensation 
package suggests a maximum 5% increase for top performers.  He suggested a 5% increase in 
base salary of $6,840 to a base salary of $143,340, which follows the compensation guidelines 
followed by all employees.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that the contract was previously provided to the Council and was 
provided ample to time to review it.  He stated that it is too late to renegotiate the contract now.  
He stated that there have been several projects completed as well as the direction of Town has 
been done under his management.  He stated that the Town is fortunate to have Mr. Billingsley 
as its Manager and believes that he is worth the contract.   
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that this is the only opportunity to discuss this topic. All other 
discussion took place in Executive Session, and they are not allowed to discuss what was 
discussed there.  
 
Councilmember Wall stated that she supports the Town Manager contract that was submitted.  
During his tenure, Mr. Billingsley has demonstrated, what she believes to be, outstanding 
capabilities, service and commitment to the Town.  The Town has significantly improved in many 
areas due to his leadership, which was demonstrated in the email that Council received that 
outlined the significant body of improvement and leadership.  She stated that it is her belief that 
the contract is fair and reasonable.   
 
Councilmember Wall stated that termination for cause does not require a severance package and 
it is her understanding for salary and severance are usual and customary when compared to 
similar positions.  A performance review is included in the proposed contract and was conducted 
in an Executive Session.  The manner and form of that review is, and should be, at the discretion 
of the majority of Council.   
 
Councilmember Larsen stated that Mr. Billingsley has added so much value to the Town.  She 
stated that one of Councilmember Anderson’s concerns is the compensation increase; however, 
his position was evaluated the same as all employees.  She stated that she believes the 10.8% 
increase is fair.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that it has been a pleasure serving the Town and its residents.  He has 
served under two Councils and soon a third.  He has had fun jobs in his life and has had some 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 16, 2018 
Page 27 of 30 

interesting experiences where he learned a lot; however, he has never had the experience that 
he has had in Florence.  The diversity of the Council, the engagement that he and the Council 
have with the citizenry along with the challenges and opportunities to succeed, the quality of the 
staff and the overall nature of the work is what makes Florence special.  He stated he hopes to be 
able to continue to serve in that capacity.   
 
Vice-Mayor Woolridge stated that he inherited an excellent staff, and everyone has bumped it up 
a notch and everyone works well together, and the Town is better off for it.   
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that his comment is not a personal critique of Mr. Billingsley’s 
performance; he has done a good job and has taught everyone a lot.  He stated that comparative 
to the other raises that were given, the proposed rate is out of range.   
     
On motion of Councilmember Larsen, seconded by Councilmember Wall, and carried to enter into 
an Employment Agreement with the Town Manager Brent Billingsley. 

 
Discussion and possible action regarding instructing staff how to proceed on the Cuen 
Building.   
 
Mayor Walter asked for this item to be brought back to Council on the August 6, 2018 Town 
Council Meeting.   
 
On motion of Mayor Walter, seconded by Vice-Mayor Woolridge, and carried to table to the August 
6, 2018 Town Council meeting.  

 
Resolution No. 1672-18:  

 
Mayor Walter read Resolution No. 1672-18 by title only.  

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING 
THE PURCHASE OF RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR ROADWAY PROJECT T-08 AND T-09, AND 
APPROVING AND RATIFYING THE RELATED TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT 
AND LETTER AGREEMENT NECESSARY FOR THE PROJECT. 
 
Mr. Salas stated that as part of the project, while they were working through the engineering, as 
well as the 750 E. Gila project was starting their review for the building permit, they both identified 
a lack of right-of-way within this project’s limit, especially north of the project.  There was an intent 
to dedicate right-of-way; however, it was never done.  The Town hired a surveyor, and they 
provided the Town with all the legal exhibits and descriptions, and the Town does not have right-
of-way on there.  The Town has negotiated, in good faith, with the property owner to purchase 
that.  It is typical that if a development were to occur, they would dedicate that right-of-way.  This 
project did not meet that criteria as they were doing a tenant improvement.  They have asked the 
Town to purchase the right-of-way.  A comparative market analysis was done with an independent 
realtor, and it was assessed at $2.00 per square foot.   
 
Mr. Salas stated that they are purchasing the 3,223 square feet for $6,446.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 16, 2018 
Page 28 of 30 

On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Anderson, and carried to adopt 
Resolution No. 1672-18. 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT 

Mr. Brent Billingsley introduced Mr. James Allen who will be Florence’s new Building Official.  He 
previously worked with Pinal County for over 10 years in their building safety division.  He has 
eight industry certifications.  

Mr. James Allen, Building Official stated that he is from the area and was born at the Florence 
Hospital.  He resides in Valley Farms and is a business owner in Florence as he owns the car 
wash.  He stated that he is excited to work for Florence.    

DEPARTMENT REPORTS   

Community Services 
Courts 
Development Services 
Finance 
Fire 
Police 
 
The Department Reports were received and filed.  
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
Mr. Rankin asked that the Council consider a right-of-way be included when considering the 
North/South Corridor for future railway.  He stated that there is money available for these studies.   
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY 
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that he has received compliments regarding the streets in 
Florence Gardens and complimented Mr. Salas.  He stated that there was a fire in the Parkside 
subdivision in Anthem on July 4, 2018.  He complimented the Fire Department on their excellent 
performance.  It rained hard in Florence and the Town experienced significant flooding.  Many of 
the businesses on Main Street had to use sand bags to prevent their businesses from flooding.  
He stated that the Windmill Winery also flooded.  He asked staff to look at ways to prevent the 
flooding.   
Councilmember Wall asked for the dates of the permanent base adjustment to be shared with the 
public.  
 
The dates are as follows:  
 
July 17, 2018 at 2:30 pm at the Sun City Ballroom 
July 19, 2018 at 6:00 pm at Parkside 
July 31, 2018 at 8:45 am at Caliente 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 16, 2018 
Page 29 of 30 

Councilmember Wall encouraged the public to attend one the dates to learn more about the 
measure that will be on the ballot in August.   
 
Mayor Walter asked if there will be a presentation in Florence Gardens.   
 
Councilmember Larsen inquired when the “Meet the Candidates Forum” will be held. 
 
Mayor Walter stated that the “Meet the Candidates Forum” will be held on July 25, 2018, at 6:00 
pm, in Caliente.   
 
Councilmember Larsen thanked Tom Rankin for speaking at the meeting. She stated that the 
Council values the public’s opinion.   
 
Mayor Walter thanked everyone for attending the Council meeting.  
 
ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Discussion and possible action to authorize the holding of an Executive Session during 
the Council Meeting for the purposes of discussions or consultations with designated 
representatives of the public body and/or legal counsel pursuant to A.R.S. Sections 38-
431.03 (A)(3), (A)(4) and (A)(7) to consider its position and instruct its representatives 
and/or attorneys regarding: 
 
Town’s position and instruct its attorneys regarding the Petition for Review of 
Underground Injection Control Permit, issued by USEPA Region 9, for the Florence Copper 
Project, UIC Appeal 17-03, and related proceedings, including Ninth Circuit appeals of the 
1997 Aquifer Exemption (Case No. 17-73170), and the decision of the Environmental 
Appeals Board (Case No. 17-73168). 
Town’s position and instruct its attorneys regarding Arizona Department of Environmental 
Quality proceedings, related to Water Quality Appeals Board Case No. 16-002, including 
appellate proceedings to reviewing courts. 
Town’s position and instruct its attorneys regarding pending litigation in Maricopa County 
Superior Court:  Town of Florence v. Florence Copper, Inc. CV2015 -000325. 
Discussion or consultations regarding the Town of Florence Intervention in the Matter of 
the Commission’s Investigation into the Billing Practices and Water Quality Issues of 
Johnson Utilities, LLC before the Arizona Corporation Commission (WS-02987A-18-0050). 
Discussion or consultations regarding the Town of Florence Intervention in the Matter of 
the Commission’s Investigation into the rate case of Johnson Utilities, LLC before the 
Arizona Corporation Commission (WS02987A-17-0392). 
Discussion or consultation regarding Southeast Valley Regional Cooperative 
Intergovernmental Agreement for the Management, Operations and Planning for Effluent, 
Water and Wastewater Treatment Services in the Region between the Town of Florence 
and the Town of Queen Creek.  
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 16, 2018 
Page 30 of 30 

On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Vice-Mayor Woolridge, and carried to 
adjourn to Executive Session.  
 
 ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
On motion of Councilmember Guilin, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried to adjourn 
from Executive Session.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried to 
adjourn the meeting at 10:45 pm. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town Council 
meeting held on July 16, 2018, and that the meeting was duly called to order and that a quorum 
was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 



MINUTES OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING HELD ON 
TUESDAY, JULY 18, 2018, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL 
CHAMBERS, LOCATED AT 775 N. MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA.   
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Walter called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Present:  Walter, Woolridge*, Hawkins, Guilin, Anderson, Wall, Larsen  
*Vice-Mayor Woolridge arrived at 6:03 p.m.      
 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 18, 2018 
Page 1 of 2 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Walter led the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
Mayor Walter called for a moment of silence.  
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the Town 
Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask staff to 
review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, 
members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter during an open 
call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
 
There were no public comments.  
 
ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Discussion and possible action to authorize the holding of an Executive Session during 
the Council Meeting for the purposes of discussions or consultations with designated 
representatives of the public body and/or legal counsel pursuant to A.R.S. Sections 38-
431.03 (A)(3), (A)(4) and (A)(7) to consider its position and instruct its representatives 
and/or attorneys regarding: 
 
Discussion or consultations regarding the Town of Florence Intervention in the Matter of 
the Commission’s Investigation into the Billing Practices, Water Quality Issues, and rate 
case of Johnson Utilities, LLC before the Arizona Corporation Commission.  
Discussion or consultation regarding Southeast Valley Regional Cooperative 
Intergovernmental Agreement for the Management, Operations and Planning for Effluent, 
Water and Wastewater Treatment Services in the Region between the Town of Florence 
and the Town of Queen Creek.  

On motion of Councilmember Guilin, seconded by Councilmember Anderson, and carried to 
adjourn to Executive Session. (In favor: 7: Walter, Woolridge, Hawkins, Guilin, Anderson, Wall, 
Larsen; Opposed: 0)  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 18, 2018 
Page 2 of 2 

 
ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
On motion of Councilmember Guilin, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried to 
adjourn from Executive Session.  (In favor: 7: Walter, Woolridge, Hawkins, Guilin, Anderson, 
Wall, Larsen; Opposed: 0)  
 
TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
There was no Town Manager’s Report.  
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY 
 
There were no public comments.  
 
 ADJOURNMENT 

 
On motion of Councilmember Guilin, seconded by Councilmember Wall, and carried to adjourn 
the meeting at 7:15 p.m. (In favor: 7: Walter, Woolridge, Hawkins, Guilin, Anderson, Wall, 
Larsen; Opposed: 0)  
 
 
________________________________ 
Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town Council 
meeting held on July 18, 2018, and that the meeting was duly called to order and that a quorum 
was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 

 
 



  
MINUTES OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING HELD ON FRIDAY, 
JULY 20, 2018, AT 11:00 A.M., IN THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 
LOCATED AT 775 N. MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA.   
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Vice-Mayor Woolridge called the meeting to order at 11:00 am.  
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Present:  Woolridge, Hawkins, Guilin, Anderson, Wall, Larsen 
Absent:  Walter      
 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 20, 2018 
Page 1 of 2 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Vice-Mayor Woolridge led the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the Town 
Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask staff to 
review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, 
members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter during an open 
call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
 
There were no public comments.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
  
Resolution No. 1673-18:   
 
Vice-Mayor Woolridge read Resolution No. 1673-18 by title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING 
A SOUTHEAST VALLEY REGIONAL COOPERATIVE INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
AGREEMENT FOR THE MANAGEMENT, OPERATION AND PLANNING FOR EFFLUENT, 
WATER AND WASTEWATER TREATMENT SERVICES IN THE REGION BETWEEN THE 
TOWN OF QUEEN CREEK AND THE TOWN OF FLORENCE. (Brent Billingsley) 
 
Mr. Brent Billingsley, Town Manager, stated that the Town of Florence and the Town of Queen 
Creek already have one agreement of intervention in regard to the rate cases going on at the 
Arizona Corporation Commission (ACC).  The Town has collectively intervened in four different 
items at the ACC.  He stated that this item is to approve a resolution, attached to an 
Intergovernmental Agreement, between the two entities to apply to be the interim operator for 
Johnson Utilities if the ACC should so choose to assign an interim operator.  He stated that if 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 20, 2018 
Page 2 of 2 

Queen Creek and Florence are not chosen as the interim operator, it still gives vehicle for the 
two entities to work together regionally with whoever is chosen as the interim operator.   
 
Councilmember Wall stated that she has had an opportunity to read through the agreement and 
thinks that it would be a good partnership with Queen Creek.         
 
On motion of Councilmember Guilin, seconded by Councilmember Anderson, and carried to 
adopt Resolution No. 1673-18. (In Favor:  6: Woolridge, Hawkins, Guilin, Anderson, Wall, 
Larsen; Opposed: 0) 
 
Vice-Mayor Woolridge stated that the agreement will be beneficial to both communities because 
water and wastewater is essential, and we need to ensure that the Town’s residents are taken 
care of.   
 
TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
There was no report.  
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY 
 
Councilmember Hawkins invited the public the Posse Streak Fry this evening at the American 
Legion Facility.   
 
 ADJOURNMENT 
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Anderson, and carried to 
adjourn the meeting at 11:05 pm.  
 
 
________________________________ 
Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town Council 
meeting held on July 20, 2018, and that the meeting was duly called to order and that a quorum 
was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 



MINUTES OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING HELD ON 
MONDAY, JULY 30, 2018, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 
LOCATED AT 775 N. MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA.   
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Walter called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL:     
 
Present:  Walter, Woolridge, Hawkins, Guilin, Anderson*, Wall, Larsen. 
*Anderson arrived at 6:05 pm 
 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 30, 2018 
Page 1 of 7 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Walter led the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the Town 
Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask staff to 
review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, 
members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter during an open 
call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
 
There were no public comments.  
 
ADJOURN TO MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1 
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried to 
adjourn to Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1. 
 
Ordinance No. MRCFD1 115-18:  
 
Chairman Walter read Ordinance No. MRCFD1 115-18 by title only.  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1, 
PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY 
WITHIN THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1 SUBJECT TO TAXATION OF 
CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH $100 OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE AMOUNT 
ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES EXPENSES 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30th DAY OF JUNE 2019, AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. (Joe Jarvis)  
 
Mr. Joe Jarvis, District Treasurer, stated the second property tax impacts property owners within 
the Community Facilities District No.1. At the previous meeting, the District Board unanimously 
approved the budget for this next fiscal year, which included the minimum recommended 
property tax rate for CFD No. 1.  He stated that the way the minimum rate was determined was 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 30, 2018 
Page 2 of 7 

that staff and consultants reviewed the immediate needs for the District this next fiscal year and 
presented a rate.  Since then, staff has finished their conversation with the Town’s consultants 
and Pulte and is presenting a secondary property tax rate of $3.28, which includes $0.30 for 
operations and maintenance.  The remainder of $2.98 will be for paying the GO Bond principal 
and interest and potential issuances in this next fiscal year.   
 
Boardmember Guilin stated that a rate of $1.90 was presented at the last meeting.  She inquired 
what the additional levy is for.  
 
District Treasurer Jarvis stated that since the CFDs were created, the District Boards have 
approved the same rate of $3.55, which was $3.25 per $100 per the limited assessed value and 
$0.30 for operations and maintenance. One of the changes that has occurred is Arizona 
Revised Statutes clearly defined what the fund balance can be within the GO cash fund balance 
within the Districts.  There is more cash than what is allowed, so they are proposing a lower rate 
in order to get in line with the Arizona Revised Statutes.  Previously, staff had proposed a rate of 
$1.9025.  The new proposed rate is $3.28.  
 
District Treasurer Jarvis stated that they have reviewed the principal and interest payments for 
Series 2017 which is the refunding of Series 2008.  It includes the same $0.30 for operations 
and maintenance.  The difference is that previously they had proposed interest only payments in 
this next fiscal year for a potential $2 million GO Bond whereas now they are proposing 
$360,000 as principal and interest payments on projected bond issuances in this fiscal year.  He 
stated that previously, he had proposed a 5% delinquency rate.  Staff has gone and reviewed 
the delinquency rate.  The delinquency is those who have not paid their property taxes.  Staff 
has found that less than 1% of the property owners within the CFD are delinquent on their 
property taxes.  The delinquency rate was reduced to 1.75%.   
 
District Treasurer Jarvis stated that the changes from the last presentation are: 
 Increased projected principal and interest payments to $360,000 for the next year 
 Reduced the delinquency rate from 5% to 1.75%. 
 Initial levy was proposed at approximately $457,000  
 The proposed revised levy is $788,856.28 
 
Boardmember Guilin inquired why they had initially only proposed to pay interest for this next 
year.    
 
District Treasurer Jarvis stated that CFD No. 1 has some limitations that needed to be 
addressed. It was also important to draw down the cash balance.  They had initially proposed 
the idea that they would only pay interest this next fiscal year because they are not sure how 
much and in what amount of debt issuance they could do in this next fiscal year for GO bonds.  
He stated that after discussion with the consultants, it was agreed that they felt confident they 
could either issue new GO bonds this next fiscal year or utilize that cash to refund existing 
bonds or pay down existing debt.   
 
District Treasurer Jarvis stated that when they adopted the new rate they had anticipated 
making principal and interest payments in the fiscal year; however, in the previous proposal the 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 30, 2018 
Page 3 of 7 

interest was to pay interest only.  He stated that it was then decided that they would pay 
principal and interest on any new issuances to help bring down the cash balance.  
  
Brent Billingsley, District Manager, stated that this is the first time ever that a recommendation is 
being presented to lower the rates in the CFDs.  The minimum rate was provided at the last 
meeting.  After discussions with Pulte and the Town’s financial advisors (Piper Jaffray and 
Stifle), which included existing balances and their relationships to State Law, opportunities for 
refunding and not for new issuances of GO bonds due to the limitations that they have, and 
Pulte’s position with respect to this.  Pulte would have liked for the rates to remain the same 
because they have housing products for sale in both districts that are very similar, and it would 
be challenging for them.   
 
District Manager Billingsley stated that they went through the financial entities and determined 
where they needed to be to come in line with the State Law and allow us to do the transactions 
that may be necessary or feasible in both CFDs while trying to understand where Pulte was 
coming from.  A reduction in rate is being proposed for CFD No. 1 with the understanding the 
rate is going to decrease further next year if those transactions do not take place in the current 
year.   
 
District Manager Billingsley stated that in the ordinance rates can only increase on a maximum 
level year-to-year by 5%.   
 
Boardmember Guilin understood the rate increase was only on primary property tax, and not ad 
valorem. 
 
District Manager Billingsley stated that per the advice of their financial advisor, it was 5% 
maximum increase per year.  He stated this was per Proposition 117 that was approved in 2015.             
 
On motion of Boardmember Wall, seconded by Boardmember Hawkins, to adopt Ordinance No. 
MRCFD1 115-18. 
 
Roll Call Vote:  
Boardmember Wall:  Yes 
Boardmember Hawkins:  Yes 
Boardmember Guilin: Yes 
Boardmember Anderson: Yes 
Boardmember Larsen:  Yes 
Vice-Chairman Woolridge:  Yes 
Chairman Walter:  Yes 
Motion Passed:  Yes: 7; No: 0 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1 
July 16, 2018 Special Meeting minutes.  
 
On motion of Vice-Chairman Woolridge, seconded by Boardmember Larsen, and carried (7-0) 
to approve the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1 July 16, 2018 Special Meeting 
minutes.  
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 30, 2018 
Page 4 of 7 

ADJOURN FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1 
 
On motion of Vice-Chairman Woolridge, seconded by Boardmember Larsen, and carried (7-0) 
to adjourn from Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1.  
 
ADJOURN TO MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2 
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, and carried (7-0) to 
adjourn to Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 2.  
 
Ordinance No. MRCFD2 215-18:  
 
Chairman Walter read Ordinance No. MRCFD2 215-18 by title only.  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2, 
PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY 
WITHIN THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2 SUBJECT TO TAXATION OF 
CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH $100 OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE AMOUNT 
ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES EXPENSES 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30th DAY OF JUNE 2019, AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. (Joe Jarvis)  
 
District Treasurer Jarvis stated that initially he had stated that the rate of 3.3594 was the lowest 
rate recommend; however, he is now recommending a rate of 3.28.  The reason for the new 
rate is due to the 5% delinquency rate.  Staff evaluated the delinquency rate and found the rate 
to be less than 1% rather than the 5%.  He stated that they modified the delinquency rate to be 
2.456%.   
 
District Treasurer Jarvis stated that the rates are historically lower than they have ever been.       
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the difference between CFD No. 1 and 2 is that CFD No. 2 is making 
sure the Board has capacity to do a GO Bond if there is capacity in the next year, as well as to 
comply with the State Statutes. It was also important to keep the rates the same.     
 
On motion of Boardmember Guilin, seconded by Boardmember Anderson, to adopt Ordinance 
No. MRCFD2 215-18. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Boardmember Guilin: Yes 
Boardmember Anderson: Yes 
Boardmember Larsen:  Yes 
Boardmember Hawkins:  Yes 
Boardmember Wall:  Yes 
Vice-Chairman Woolridge:  Yes 
Chairman Walter:  Yes 
 
Motion Passed:  Yes: 7; No: 0 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 30, 2018 
Page 5 of 7 

Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 2 
July 16, 2018 Special Meeting minutes.  
 
On motion of Boardmember Larsen, seconded by Chairman Walter, and carried (7-0) to 
approve the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 2 July 16, 2018 Special Meeting 
minutes.  
 
ADJOURN FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILTIES DISTRICT NO. 2 
 
On motion of Vice-Chairman Woolridge, seconded by Boardmember Larsen, and carried (7-0) 
to adjourn from Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 2.  
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
Ordinance No. 660-18:   
 
Mayor Walter read Ordinance No. 660-18 by title only.  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING 
THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY WITHIN THE TOWN OF FLORENCE 
SUBJECT TO TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH $100 OF VALUATION 
SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR 
GENERAL MUNICIPAL EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30th DAY OF 
JUNE 2019. (Joe Jarvis) 
 
Mr. Joe Jarvis, Finance Director, stated that a Truth in Taxation Hearing was held at the last 
Council meeting.  The Town of Florence levies a primary property tax annually. The rate for last 
year was $1.1345 per $100 of Net Assessed Valuation (NAV).  The proposed property tax rate 
is $1.1060 per $100/NAV, which is a property tax decrease.   The reason that staff is presenting 
a lower rate is because staff is anticipating collecting just as much property tax revenue as 
received in the previous fiscal year.  He stated that property tax makes up approximately 7% of 
the General Fund Revenue.     
 
On motion of Councilmember Guilin, seconded b Councilmember Anderson, to adopt Ordinance 
No. 660-18. 
 
Roll Call Vote:  
 
Councilmember Guilin: Yes 
Councilmember Anderson: Yes 
Councilmember Hawkins: Yes 
Councilmember Larsen: Yes 
Councilmember Wall:   Yes 
Vice-Mayor Woolridge: Yes 
Mayor Walter: Yes 
 
Motion Passed:  Yes: 7; No: 0 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 30, 2018 
Page 6 of 7 

 
TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
There was no report.  
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that in last week’s edition of the Florence Reminder, Mr. Jerry 
Ravert suggested that the election be moved to when the winter visitors are back.  He stated 
that elections are held at the same time as State Elections, in accordance with State Law.  He 
stated that it would be good to have the full citizenship here; however, there is an opportunity to 
have mail-in ballots, so they are able to participate in the elections.  
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that he was late because he attended the Pinal County Safety 
Hearing.  He stated the State will receive millions of dollars in safety funds and will be available 
to the cities and towns next year.  Florence needs to submit their application no later than 
January 2019.  He stated that the statistics were very interesting, and sad, as Florence has had 
10 people killed on the roadways in the last 10 years.  There have also been 875 car accidents 
in Florence.   
 
Councilmember Anderson inquired if they will be making any code change recommendations.  
He stated that they would make the recommendation for code changes at the Town’s request.  
 
Mayor Walter stated the ballots are being mailed out August 1, 2018 and hopes that everyone 
takes the opportunity to participates in the election and returns their ballots.  
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, clarified that the ballots are being mailed 
out only to those on the permanent early voting list.  
 
ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Discussion and possible action to authorize the holding of an Executive Session during 
the Council Meeting for the purposes of discussions or consultations with designated 
representatives of the public body and/or legal counsel pursuant to A.R.S. Sections 38-
431.03 (A)(3), (A)(4) and (A)(7) to consider its position and instruct its representatives 
and/or attorneys regarding: 
 

a. Town’s position and instruct its attorneys regarding the Petition for Review of 
Underground Injection Control Permit, issued by USEPA Region 9, for the Florence 
Copper Project, UIC Appeal 17-03, and related proceedings, including Ninth Circuit 
appeals of the 1997 Aquifer Exemption (Case No. 17-73170), and the decision of the 
Environmental Appeals Board (Case No. 17-73168). 

b. Town’s position and instruct its attorneys regarding Arizona Department of Environmental 
Quality proceedings, related to Water Quality Appeals Board Case No. 16-002, including 
appellate proceedings to reviewing courts. 

c. Town’s position and instruct its attorneys regarding pending litigation in Maricopa County 
Superior Court:  Town of Florence v. Florence Copper, Inc. CV2015 -000325. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 30, 2018 
Page 7 of 7 

d. Discussion or consultations regarding the Town of Florence Intervention in the Matter of 
the Commission’s Investigation into the Billing Practices and Water Quality Issues of 
Johnson Utilities, LLC before the Arizona Corporation Commission (WS-02987A-18-
0050). 

e. Discussion or consultations regarding the Town of Florence Intervention in the Matter of 
the Commission’s Investigation into the rate case of Johnson Utilities, LLC before the 
Arizona Corporation Commission (WS02987A-17-0392). 

f. Discussion or consultation regarding Southeast Valley Regional Cooperative 
Intergovernmental Agreement for the Management, Operations and Planning for Effluent, 
Water and Wastewater Treatment Services in the Region between the Town of Florence 
and the Town of Queen Creek.  
 

On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (7-0) 
to adjourn to Executive Session.  

 
 ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, and carried (7-0) 
to adjourn from Executive Session. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, and carried (7-0) to 
adjourn the meeting at 7:56 pm.  

 
 
________________________________ 
Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town Council 
meeting held on July 30, 2018, and that the meeting was duly called to order and that a quorum 
was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 

 
 

















 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
8a.  

MEETING DATE:   August 6, 2018  
 
DEPARTMENT:  Development Services, Planning Division 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Dana Burkhardt, Planning Consultant 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 1675-18  “Small Wireless Facilities 
in Town Rights of Way Terms and Conditions”

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject:  Resolution No. 1675-18: SWF Terms & Conditions                                      Meeting Date:  August 20, 2018 
Page 1 of 3 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnerships and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
On August 20, 2018, motion to adopt Resolution No. 1675-18:   A RESOLUTION OF THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, ADOPTING SMALL WIRELESS 
FACILITIES IN TOWN RIGHTS OF WAY TERMS AND CONDITIONS. 

 
OVERVIEW: 

On February 1, 2018 the Planning and Zoning Commission took action to initiate text 
amendments to the Florence Town Code to implement the State mandated requirements 
for Small Wireless Facilities (SWFs) within Town rights of way.  Staff has consulted with 
stakeholders, the community at large, and researched best practices from other Arizona 
communities to develop a policy that will effectively address this mandate.  The result of 
this effort culminates in the proposed draft amendments to the Town Code, Development 
Code, and the “Small Wireless Facilities Terms and Conditions.”  
 
This agenda item and report addresses proposed Resolution No. 1675-18, “Small 
Wireless Facilities in Town Rights of Way Terms and Conditions” (Exhibit A.) 
 
The first reading of Resolution No. 1675-18 was held on August 6, 2018. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The House Bill 2365 (HB 2365) legislation authorizes Towns to establish a set of Terms 
and Conditions for licensing wireless providers and for thier associated permits to 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1675-18: SWF Terms & Conditions                                      Meeting Date:  August 20, 2018 
Page 2 of 3 

opertate within the Town-owned rights of way.  The specific text of this legislation is as 
follows:  
 
A.R.S. §9-52 (E) 

“An authority shall establish and make available rates, fees and terms for the 
construction, installation, mounting, maintenance, modification, operation or 
replacement of a small wireless facility, utility pole or wireless support structure 
by a wireless provider in a right-of-way controlled by the authority, including 
collocation in the right-of-way, within six months after the effective date of this 
section or three months after receiving a request by a wireless provider, 
whichever is later. The rates, fees and terms must be made available for 
acceptance by a wireless provider. At the wireless provider's option, a wireless 
provider may request different or additional terms that the parties shall 
negotiate in good faith. Documents that reflect rates, fees and terms with each 
wireless provider are public record. Rates, fees and terms must comply with 
this section and meet the following requirements: 

1. Terms may not be unreasonable or discriminatory and may not violate any 
applicable law. 

2. Terms may include requirements applicable to other users of the right-of-
way. 

3. Terms may require that the wireless provider's operation of the small 
wireless facilities in the right-of-way does not interfere with the authority's 
public safety communications. 

4. Terms may require reasonable accommodations with respect to adopted 
plans for the removal of authority utility poles for undergrounding purposes. 
Such terms shall provide for reasonable notice to the wireless provider. 

5. Terms may not require the placement of small wireless facilities on any 
specific utility pole or category of poles or require multiple antenna systems 
on a single utility pole. 

6. Terms may not limit the placement of small wireless facilities by minimum 
separation distances.” 

 
Planning Staff offers the following findings for the consideration of the Town Council: 
 
1. The proposed Terms and Conditions address the State mandated requirements, 

within the timeframe imposed (policy to be in place no later than three (3) months 
from the time of receipt of a request to locate a small wireless facility within the 
Town right of way. No such request has been received to date.)    

2. The proposed Terms and Conditions support the following Strategic Plan 
Objectives:  

a. Transportation and Infrastructure: Maintain, enhance and expand 
information technology (IT) infrastructure to pursue the goals, objectives 
and tasks as established by Town Council and the Strategic plan. 

b. Leadership and Governance: Stay engaged with federal, state, regional and 
local government and regulatory agencies regarding existing and ever-
evolving regulatory requirements. 

 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1675-18: SWF Terms & Conditions                                      Meeting Date:  August 20, 2018 
Page 3 of 3 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
 
Staff has complied with all applicable Town requirements and Arizona Revised Statutes 
regarding public notification and public participation.  Exhibit A, Terms and Conditions 
were reviewed and discussed by the Planning & Zoning Commission in conjunction with 
the associated Town Code amendment ordinances.  As such, the Terms and Conditions 
received the same public exposure and scrutiny through the comprehensive review of the 
SWF policies.  Meetings and public outreach for the proposed Terms and Conditions are 
as follows (* denotes tentatively scheduled): 
 

June 7, 2018  Planning and Zoning Commission Work Session 
June 21, 2018 Planning and Zoning Commission Review/Discussion 
July 12, 2018  Neighborhood Meeting (5-6PM Community Center) 
July 19, 2018  Planning and Zoning Commission  
August 6, 2018 Town Council (1st reading) 
*August 20, 2018 2nd Town Council reading (action) 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Neutral, approval or denial of this request has no impact to the Town’s finances. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission found that Resolution 1675-18 complies with state 
mandate HB 2365 and is in the interest of general welfare, health and safety of the public. 
The Planning and Zoning Commission has forwarded a unanimous favorable 
recommendation on the proposed Small Wireless Facility Terms and Conditions, as 
described in Exhibit A, to the Mayor and Town Council, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Update all proposed text amendment references to “Development Services 

Department” and “Development Services Director” to reflect the titles and positions 
currently established in the Town of Florence Code of Ordinances. (Exhibit A 
illustrates these updates as tracked changes) 

2. Correct typographical and scrivener’s errors as identified by Commissioner Frost 
during the discussion. (Exhibit A illustrates these updates as tracked changes) 

3. Any additional modifications or changes deemed necessary by the Town Council. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1675-18 
Exhibit A – Proposed Small Wireless Facilities in Town Rights of Way Terms and 
Conditions” 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO 1675-18 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, ADOPTING SMALL WIRELESS FACILITIES IN TOWN 
RIGHTS OF WAY TERMS AND CONDITIONS. 

 
WHEREAS, House Bill 2365 legislation authorizes Towns to establish a set of 

Terms and Conditions for licensing wireless providers and for thier associated permits 
to opertate within the Town-owned rights of way.; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed Terms and Conditions address the State mandated 

requirements, within the timeframe imposed; and  
 
WHEREAS, the proposed Terms and Conditions support the following Strategic 

Plan Objectives:  
 

a. Transportation and Infrastructure: Maintain, enhance and expand 
information technology (IT) infrastructure to pursue the goals, objectives 
and tasks as established by Town Council and the Strategic plan. 

b. Leadership and Governance: Stay engaged with federal, state, regional 
and local government and regulatory agencies regarding existing and 
ever-evolving regulatory requirements. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town 

of Florence, Arizona, to hereby adopt Small Wireless Facilities in the Town’s Right of 
Way Term and Conditions, attached as “Exhibit A”.  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, this 20th day of August, 2018. 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
    
 
____________________________  _______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk     Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 



* Planning and Zoning Commission recommended amendments are tracked with a strikethrough for 
deletions and underline for additions 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

SMALL WIRELESS 
FACILITIES IN TOWN  

RIGHTS OF WAY 
 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

 
TC FINAL DRAFT 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

SMALL CELL WIRELESS TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

The Town Council of the Town of Florence has adopted the following terms and conditions 
(the “Terms”) to govern the use of Town-Owned right-of-way for the placement of wireless 
facilities by a Wireless Services Provider as defined by the Arizona Revised Statutes 
(“ARS”), Section 9-591, et seq., Title 9, Article 8, entitled “Use of Public Highways by 
Wireless Providers (“Article 8”). These Tterms are effective as of                of November 
20, 2018, and may be amended only upon approval of the Town Council. These Terms 
work together with Title XI - Chapter 120 of the Florence Town Code and Part 9 “Wireless 
Communications Facilities” of the Florence Land Development Code, to implement ARS 
Article 8 in the Town of Florence. 

 

RECITALS 
 

A. Town, in its governmental capacity, owns or holds a legal interest in public roads, 
streets and alleys and all other dedicated public rights of way, public utility 
easements and public utilities and facilities easements of the Town (collectively 
the “ROW”). Town is responsible for the management of the ROW within Town’s 
boundaries. Pursuant to ARS § 9-240, 9-276 and 9-582, the Town has exclusive 
control of the ROW. 

 
B. As authorized by ARS Title 8, Wireless Service Providers will attach Wireless 

Facilities to Authority Utility Poles located in the ROW. 
 

C. All Town-owned structures approved for such private uses must retain their primary 
governmental purpose, and those entities occupying public property must not 
interfere with those purposes in any way, nor shall their activities create an 
unreasonably dangerous condition for the public. 

 
D. The purpose of these Terms is to protect the health, safety, and welfare for the 

public, and to protect the value of and physical integrity of publicly-owned property 
and assets. 

 
1. DEFINITIONS 

 
1.1. “Antenna(s)” means the physical structure, or structures, as depicted on the 

Ssite Pplans, which are attached to (or incorporated into) the Town-Owned 
Structure that transmits and/or receives communications exclusively for 
Permitted Uses by converting electric current to/from electromagnetic waves 
used in providing wireless services. 

 
1.2. “Applicable Laws” means the federal, state, county, and Town of Florence laws, 

ordinances, rules, regulations, and permit requirements that apply to Licensee’s 
use of the Use Areas. 

 
1.3. “Authority Utility Pole” means a utility pole that is owned or operated by the Town 

and that is in the ROW. Authority Utility Pole does not include a utility pole that 
is used for electric distribution. 

 
1.4. “Equipment Cabinets” means equipment that is ground mounted or placed on a 



 

 

concrete slab that contains Licensee’s improvements, personal property and 
facilities to operate its Antenna(s) for Permitted Uses including: radio receivers, 
transmitters, related facilities, and/or cabinets, related cables and utility lines, 
location-based power source (including a battery), the electrical meter and any 
other equipment necessary for the operation of wireless antenna. 

 
1.5. “Licensee” means an entity providing wireless services and that holds a valid 

License to use the ROW for such business. 
 

1.6. “Licensee’s Facilities” means the Antennas, Equipment Cabinets, and all other 
fiber, cable, wire, equipment, conduit, screen walls, or other such element used 
by Licensee for Permitted Uses including frequencies, technology, antennas, 
radios, fiber and cable owned by third parties, in connection with its installation 
of Small Cell Wireless Facilities and related equipment on Town-Owned 
Structures pursuant to individual Permits. 

 
1.7. “License” means a revocable, nonexclusive permission to attach Wireless 

Facilities to a Town-Owned Structure and encroach in the ROW, which does not 
create or confer any interest in real or personal property. 

 
1.8. “Monopole” means a Wwireless sSupport sStructure that is not more than forty 

inches in diameter at the ground level and that has all of the Wireless Facilities 
mounted on the pole or contained inside the pole. 

 
1.9. “Parties” means the Town and a Licensee collectively. 

 
1.10. “Party” means the Town or a Licensee singly. 

 
1.11. “Permit” means written permission required by the Town to install, mount, 

maintain, modify, operate or replace a Utility Pole, to collocate a Small Wireless 
Facility on a Utility Pole or wWireless sSupport sStructure or to collocate 
Wireless Facilities. 

 
1.12. “Permitted Uses” means, and is limited to, Licensee's right to construct, install, 

operate, maintain and repair the related support facilities (such as wireless 
antennas and equipment cabinets) for the delivery of Wireless Services. 

 
1.13. “Small Cell Wireless Facility” means a Wireless Facility that meets both of the 

following qualifications: 

1.13.1. Having all Antennas located inside an enclosure of not more than six 
cubic feet in volume, or in the case of an Antenna that has exposed 
elements, the Antenna and all of the Antenna’s exposed elements could 
fit within an imaginary enclosure of not more than six cubic feet in 
volume; and 

 
1.13.2. All other wireless equipment associated with the facility are cumulatively 

not more than twenty-eight cubic feet in volume, or fifty cubic feet in 
volume if ground mounted before August 9, 2017, excluding the 



 

 

following equipment: an electric meter, concealment elements, a 
telecommunications demarcation box, grounding equipment, a power 
transfer switch, a cutoff switch, and vertical cable runs for the connection 
of power and other services. 

 
1.14. “Third Party Areas” means the portions of the Right-of-Way, such as canal and 

railroad crossings or other areas that for any reason have limited right-of-way 
dedications or that have regulatory use restrictions imposed by a third party. 

1.15. “Town-Owned Structure” means the vertical element owned by Town and 
located in the ROW, to which Licensee will attach an Antenna, and which 
applicable Florence codes, standards, specifications, and regulations permit the 
collation of Small Wireless Facilities. Authority Utility Poles and Town-Owned 
Monopoles are included in the definition of Town-Owned Structures. 

 
1.16. “Use Area” means the area that Licensee is permitted to use pursuant to an 

approved Permit. The term Use Area includes the area depicted on the Permit 
that shows where Antenna and other Wireless Facilities will be attached to the 
Town-Owned Structure, and where the Equipment Cabinet and associated 
ground mounted equipment will be located. The Use Area shall be the smallest 
geometric shape necessary to accommodate the Wireless Facilities, including 
concealment enclosures. 

 
1.17. “Utility Pole” means a pole or similar structure that is used in whole or in part for 

communications service, electric distribution, lighting or traffic signals. Utility 
pole does not include a Monopole. 

 
1.18. “Wireless Facility” means equipment at a fixed location that enables wireless 

communications between users of equipment and a communications network, 
including both of the following: (a) equipment associated with wireless 
communications; and (b) radio transceivers, Antennas, coaxial or fiber-optic 
cables, regular and backup power supplies and comparable equipment, 
regardless of technological configuration. 

 
1.18.1. Includes Small Wireless Facilities. 

 
1.18.2. Does not include the structure or improvements on, under or within 

which the equipment is collocated, wireline backhaul facilities, coaxial or 
fiber-optic cable that is between wireless support structures or utility 
poles or coaxial or fiber-optic cable that is other either not immediately 
adjacent to, or directly associated with, an antenna. 

 
1.18.3. Does not include wi-fi radio equipment described in ARS § 9-506, 

Subsection I or microcell equipment described in ARS § 9-584, 
Subsection E. 

 

1.19. “Wireless Services” means any services that are provided to the public and that 
use licensed or unlicensed spectrum, whether at a fixed location or mobile, using 
Wireless Facilities. 



 

 

 
2. Licensing Scope 

 
2.1. Licensee shall not attach any Wireless Facility to a Town-Owned Structure or 

place Licensee Facilities in the ROW without a License approved by the 
Florence Town Council. Placement of any unauthorized facilities on Town- 
Owned Structures or in the ROW without a License and Permit shall constitute 
trespass. 

 
2.2. Licenses and Permits do not provide Licensee with any ownership or leasehold 

interests in the Town-Owned Structures, replacement poles or ROW, nor do 
they provide Licensee with any of the Town’s rights to use the public property 
upon which the Town-Owned Structures and Licensee’s Facilities are located, 
other than those expressly provided herein or in a Permit. 

 
2.3. Town specifically reserves to itself and excludes from an approved Permit a non- 

exclusive and delegable right over the entire Use Area for all manner of real and 
personal improvements related to governmental activity or other improvement 
designed to benefit the public. Licensees accept the risk that the Town and 
others may now or in the future install or modify facilities in the Use Areas in 
locations that make the area unavailable for Licensee’s use. Such activities may 
include, but are not limited to any and all construction, erection, installation, use, 
operation, repair, replacement, removal, relocation, raising, lowering, widening, 
realigning, or otherwise accommodating all manner of streets, sidewalks, alleys, 
trails, traffic control devices, transit facilities, pipes, wires, cables, conduit, 
sewer, canals, drains, overpasses, culverts, bridges, and other encroachments, 
and any other use of the right of way that the Town may determine from time to 
time to be a benefit to the public. 

 
2.4. There may be portions of the ROW, such as canal crossings, structures not 

owned or operated by the Town, or other areas that are encumbered for the 
benefit of others, have limited dedications to the public, or that have regulatory 
use restrictions imposed by a third party. Areas subject to such encumbrances, 
restrictions, or regulation are Third Party Areas and Licensee Facilities shall not 
be constructed or placed in such areas without the express written permission 
from the Third third Party party or Third third Parties parties that have property 
rights or regulatory authority over the specific Third -Party Area. 

 
2.5. Subject to the requirements of ARS § 9-591, et seq., the Town shall have full 

authority to regulate use of the Use Areas and to resolve competing demands 
and preferences regarding use of the Use Areas and to require Licensee to 
cooperate and participate in implementing such solutions. In exercising its 
authority, the Town may consider any legal, timing, operational, financial and 
other factors affecting existing and future proposals and public needs in the Use 
Area. 

 
2.6. Licensees assume all risk, costs and expenses related to the Licensee Facilities 

and loss of service that may occur due to damage, destruction or collapse of 
any Town-Owned Structure or due to any incompatibility of Licensee’s use with 



 

 

Town’s use, or other user’s use, of the Town-Owned Structures. Licensee shall 
be solely responsible for the relocation of any Licensee Facilities placed on a 
structure or property not owned by Town or wrongly designated as a Town-
Owned Structure and/or ROW at any time. 

 
2.7. Town may require Licensees to remove any unauthorized attachment to a Town- 

Owned Structure or placement of facilities in the ROW. If Licensees fail to 
remove the unauthorized facilities within thirty (30) days after notice, Town may 
remove the unauthorized facilities without incurring any liability, including but not 
limited to liability for interruption of service. Licensees shall reimburse Town for 
its actual costs of removal of the unauthorized facilities. The failure of the Town 
to act to remove any unauthorized facilities shall not constitute permission or a 
de facto Permit in any manner nor shall subsequent issuance of a Permit operate 
retroactively. 

 
2.8. Licensee Facilities may be used solely for Permitted Uses, and Licensees are 

not authorized to and shall not use the Licensee Facilities to offer or provide any 
other services not specified herein. The Licensee Facilities shall be owned by 
Licensees. 

 
3. Licensing and Permitting Procedures 

 
3.1. Licensee shall submit an application for a License to the Town Manager for 

approval by the Town Council. Following Council approval of the License, 
individual Permits consistent with the License and Applicable Laws may be 
approved by the Director of Development ServicesTown Manager or designee. 

 
3.2. Licensee shall submit an application for an individual Permit on an application 

form approved by the Director of Development ServicesTown Manager or 
designee (“Application”). Once the Application is reviewed and approved by 
Town, a Permit may then be executed by the Parties. The Director of 
Development Services Town Manager or designee will have the authority to 
execute a Permit. 

 
3.3. Licensee shall submit one Permit Application for each site or proposed Use 

Area. An applicant seeking to collocate multiple small wireless facilities within 
Town right-of-way may file a consolidated application for the collocation of up to 
twenty-five (25) small wireless facilities if the collocations each involve 
substantially the same type of small wireless facilities and structure. Town shall 
charge a permit fee for and issue individual permits for each facility included in 
a consolidated application. 

 
3.4. Any change to the site plan of an approved Permit is void unless Town agrees 

to the change in writing during the Permit approval process. 
 

3.5. Licensees shall comply with Article 120 of the Town Code and any necessary 
zoning, building permit, traffic control, ROW management requirements, non-
Town utility permits, other permits as required, or other regulatory requirements 



 

 

(“Permits”) that apply to Licensee Facilities.  
 

3.6. Licensees are responsible for the study and inspection of the Town-Owned 
Structures and ROW to be utilized by Licensee and for determining the fitness 
for the use by Licensee. Town expressly disclaims all warranties of 
merchantability and fitness for a purpose or absence of hazardous conditions 
associated with the Town-Owned Structures and ROW. Town makes the Town-
Owned Structures and ROW available for Licensee’s use “AS IS.” 

 
3.7. To the extent that Licensee owns any fiber or conduits that will be placed 

underground, and to the extent that State law requires it, Licensee shall comply 
with ARS Title 40, Chapter 2, Article 6.3 by participating as a member of the 
Arizona Blue Stake Center. A copy of Licensee’s proof of membership shall be 
filed with the Town when the Application is submitted. 

 
4. Standards for Installation, Operations, and Maintenance 

 
4.1. Licensee, at its sole expense, shall supply all material associated with the 

installation, operation, and maintenance of Licensee’s Facilities. Licensee shall 
maintain Licensee’s Facilities and shall notify the designated Town 
representative listed on the annual permit, a minimum of 24 hours (or as 
required to request and receive permits for work within the right of way) in 
advance of servicing or maintaining the permitted Use Area. All servicing and 
maintenance shall comply with applicable Town Codes, policies, permits and 
requirements. 

 
4.2. Where installation of Licensee’s Facilities requires replacement of an existing 

Town-Owned Structure, Licensee shall replace, at Licensee’s sole expense, the 
Town-Owned Structure with a structure meeting all applicable Town standards 
and specifications and shall return replaced structures to Town at a designated 
location. This shall include and not limited to the premature aging or wear and 
tear of Town-Owned Structure or Use Area caused by the Licensee’s 
attachments and facilities, as determined by the Town.  

 
4.3. All Licensee Facilities shall be designed and constructed by Licensees at the 

Licensees’ sole cost and expense, including without limitation any alteration or 
other change to the Town’s equipment or other improvements or personalty that 
may occur. In no event shall Town be obligated to compensate a Licensee in 
any manner for any of Licensee’s improvements or other work provided by 
Licensee during or related to the term of any Permit. Licensee shall timely pay 
for all labor, materials, work and all professional and other services related 
thereto and shall pay, protect, indemnify, defend and hold harmless Town and 
Town’s employees, officers, contractors, and agents against all claims related to 
such items. Licensee shall bear the cost of all work required from time to time to 
cause the Use Areas and Town’s adjoining property (if directly impacted by 
Licensee’s work) to comply with local zoning rules, the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, building codes and all similar rules, regulations and other laws if 
such work is required because of work performed by Licensee, by Licensees’ use 
of the Use Areas, or by any exercise of the rights granted to Licensee under a 



 

 

License or a Permit.  

4.4. Licensees shall purchase and store two (2) extra street light poles, at their own 
cost, in anticipation of emergency or routine replacement of such poles utilized 
by Licensee or Town. Streetlight pole replacements shall be provided within 
three (3) weeks. In the event a replacement is not available, the Town may 
replace such pole; however, such pole may not be able to support the Licensee’s 
equipment. All replacement poles shall be approved by Town prior to installation. 

 
4.5. Licensees shall apply for and obtain one annual permit for emergency 

operations (no excavation) occurring within the ROW and/or on the Town-Owned 
Structures. The annual permit shall include disclosure of safety instruction for 
Town employee’s subject to Section 9 of this agreement. Each Licensee shall 
renew such permit annually during the term of each individual Permit so that 
such a permit for emergency operations is in force during the entire time that 
Licensee is occupying the ROW.  

 
4.6. All work in the ROW will be performed only by a Licensee and its contractors 

and will be performed substantially in compliance with Florence Town Code, 
applicable Town policies, the Uniform Standard Specifications and Details for 
Public Works Construction sponsored and distributed by the Maricopa 
Association of Governments (“MAG”) as amended, Florence’s Engineering and 
Design Standards, Florence’s Approved Product List and Technical 
Specifications, National Electric Code (NEC), National Electric Safety Code 
(NESC), OSHA regulations, compliance with the FCC Radio Frequency 
Exposure Guidelines (FCC OET Bulletin 65) and all other applicable radio 
frequency emissions laws and regulations in effect from time to time. 

 
4.7. Upon performing work in the ROW, Licensee shall simultaneously restore the 

ROW to its prior condition, as directed by Town, and repair any holes, mounting 
surface or other damage whatsoever to the ROW. Such work shall include new 
landscaping or revegetation and appropriate irrigation systems for landscaped 
areas. 

 
4.8. Licensees shall, at all times during the term of a Permit, maintain the Licensee 

Facilities in good repair and shall keep the Use Area free of debris and anything 
of a dangerous, noxious or offensive nature or which would create a hazard or 
source of undue vibration, heat, noise or interference. 

 

4.9. Licensees shall prepare and maintain record drawings of all Licensee Facilities 
located on Town-Owned Structures and in the ROW and furnish such record 
drawings at Town’s request. Locations of said encroachments shall be reported 
using State Plan Coordinate System Arizona Central Zone, North American 
Datum 1983 (NAD83) for horizontal position, and North American Vertical 
Datum 1988 (NAVD88) for vertical positions; or other public land survey system 
accepted by the Director of Development ServicesTown Manager or designee. 
Licensees shall furnish Town copies of the record drawings in both hard copy 
and electronic formats, as requested by the Town. The electronic copy shall be 



 

 

provided in Autocad 2014 DWG format or other current Town electronic format. 
If the horizontal and vertical locations are not known or provided as requested 
by Town, Licensees shall reimburse the Town for actual costs associated with 
locating and potholing a Licensee’s Facilities, in the event that Licensee 
Facilities need to be located in connection with one of Florence’s projects. 

 
4.10. If Licensee Facilities are not located in the precise location depicted in the Permit 

or the As-Built Drawings, Licensees shall be responsible, and shall reimburse 
Town, for all costs and damages incurred in locating the Licensee Facilities and 
all delay costs incurred to locate (and if necessary relocate) the Licensee 
Facilities. 

 
4.11. Consistent with the requirements of Florence Town Code and Florence’s 

Engineering and Design Standards, Licensees shall screen or conceal, as 
applicable and determined to be reasonable by the Town, all pole-mounted, pad, 
and ground-mounted equipment used for Permitted Uses with aesthetic 
features, such as canisters, screen walls, and landscaping, as approved by 
Town with each Permit. Concealing and screening shall blend with or enhance 
the surrounding area with the use of artistic and/or architectural detail and shall 
take into account scale, form, texture, materials and color and shall conceal the 
equipment. Concealing and screening features shall be noted on the site survey 
and construction drawings submitted with each application. 

 
4.12. Licensees shall not install signage at the Use Area except as required for 

emergency contact in accordance with the Florence Development Code § 
150.183(B) for the safe use of the Use Areas by the Town, Licensee, and others. 
Any such signs shall be maintained at all times, shall not exceed 18” x 12” in 
size, and shall include Licensee’s name, business address, telephone number, 
and emergency contact information. In no instance shall such signs contain a 
commercial message. 

 
4.13. Except for security lighting operated with the Town’s approval from time to time, 

Licensees shall not operate outdoor lights at the Use Areas. 
 

4.14. Except during permitted construction and safety tests, equipment located on the 
Use Area shall not emit noise greater than ambient noise level of the 
surrounding ROW, and in no case shall exceed the limits imposed by Title XIII, 
§ 132.02 of the Town Code. This limitation does not apply to infrequent use of 
equipment that is as quiet or quieter than a well-maintained gasoline generator 
or to the use of air conditioning equipment than is no louder than a typical well- 
maintained residential air conditioning unit. 

 
4.15. If a Licensee abandons use of any of Licensee’s Facilities, or any portion 

thereof, installed under or pursuant to an approved Permit, the Licensee shall 
remove all of the Licensee Facilities, including subgrade facilities and 
foundations, installed pursuant to the approved Permit no later than thirty (30) 
days, at the Licensee’s expense and restore the Town-Owned Structure and 
ROW, including Licensee Facilities installed sub-grade, to better than or equal 
to the condition that existed prior to construction and installation of the Licensee 



 

 

Facilities. 

4.16. Licensees shall cause all construction to occur lien-free and in compliance with 
all applicable laws and ordinances. If any lien is filed against Town Property as 
a result of acts or omissions of a Licensee or its employees, agents or 
contractors, the Licensee shall discharge the lien or bond the lien off in a manner 
reasonably satisfactory to Town within thirty (30) days after Licensee receives 
written notice that the lien has been filed. 

 
4.17. Licensees shall install separate meters for any utilities used by Licensee and 

shall pay for all utilities supplied to, used, or consumed as a result of the 
operation of Licensee’s Facilities, including without limitation (as applicable) all 
gas, electric, sanitation, and telephone installation and monthly use charge. 
Licensees shall comply with all Town of Florence Ordinances, permit 
requirements, Utility Terms and Conditions, and regulations related to utility 
services. Any third-party equipment needed to service the Licensee Facilities 
shall be required to apply for and obtain separate permits. The Town shall not 
provide easements within the ROW to Licensees or third-parties. 

 
4.18. In the event of an emergency, maintenance, accident or condition that causes 

the Town to replace or remove a Licensee’s Facility, the Licensee at its sole 
expense shall be responsible for the reconnection to a utility. No secondary 
power supply (generator or battery, permanent or temporary) may be located on 
the Town-Owned Structures or in the ROW without the prior written consent of 
Town pursuant to an approved Permit. 

 
5. Duration 

 
5.1. Term of  Licenses and Permits 

 
Subject to a Licensee’s right to terminate, Licenses and Permits shall have a 
duration of ten years. 

 
5.2. Early Termination 

 
Licensees may terminate a License or Permit at any time upon service of 60-
days written notice to Town. In the event a Licensee exercises this option, 
Licensee shall be subject to all obligations in these Terms and Conditions to 
restore and rehabilitate all Town-Owned Structures and ROW used for 
Licensee’s Facilities to their former condition and utility. 

 
5.3. Renewals 

 
Permits shall be renewed for equivalent terms of ten years, unless the Town 
finds that the Licensee or permitted small wireless facilities, new or modified 
utility pole, or structure do not comply with the applicable Town codes or 
regulations, or with applicable federal or state laws. 

6. Relocation of Town-Owned Structures 



 

 

 
Town shall have the right at any time to require relocation of a Licensee’s 
Facilities or any portion of them to accommodate a public project, at Licensee’s 
expense, to another location suitable for Licensee’s use. Licensee shall have 
at least ninety (90) days’ notice of such relocation and shall fully cooperate in 
such relocation. If a Licensee fails to relocate as required herein, the Licensee 
shall reimburse Town for actual, direct and indirect damages incurred by the 
Town as a result of such delays. If necessary Town may permit Licensee to 
place a temporary Small Cell Wireless Facility (cCell on wWheels or similar 
installation) on the Town pProperty or at some other location acceptable to 
Licensee, at Licensee’s cost, until such relocation is complete. 

 
7. Operations Interference, Emergency Disruption, Testing, and Reservation 

 
7.1. Licensees shall not use the Town-Owned Structures or the ROW in any way 

which interferes with the use of any portion of the Town Property by Town. In 
the event Town determines that a Licensee’s use of the Town-Owned Structures 
or the ROW interferes with the Town’s use of the Town Propertyproperty, Town 
will notify the Licensee of such interference and the Licensee shall have fifteen 
(15) days to remedy the interference. If a Licensee does not remedy the 
interference, such action shall be deemed a material breach by the Licensee 
and Town shall have the right to terminate the Permit. 

 
7.2. Town shall be entitled to inspect all construction, reconstruction, or installation 

work and to conduct such tests as it deems necessary to ensure compliance 
with the terms herein and all applicable laws, regulations, and rules. This right 
to access is in addition to access rights for Town inspectors or other employees 
and officers acting within their legal authority. 

 
7.3. Licensees shall not install, operate, or allow the use of equipment, methodology 

or technology that interferes or is likely to interfere with the optimum effective 
use or operation of Town's existing or future fire, law enforcement, pPolice, 
pPublic Safetysafety, transportation, information technology, engineering, 
emergency or other communication equipment, methodology or technology 
(including, but not limited to, voice, data or other carrying, receiving or 
transmitting equipment.) If such interference should occur, the Licensee shall 
immediately discontinue using the equipment, methodology or technology that 
causes the interference until the Licensee takes corrective measures to alter the 
Licensee Facilities to eliminate such interference. Any such corrective measures 
shall be made at no cost to Town. 

7.4. Town may remove alter, tear out, relocate, or damage portions of Licensee’s 
Facilities in the case of fire, disaster, or other emergency if the Town deems such 
action to be reasonable necessary under the circumstances. In such event, 
neither the Town nor any agent, contractor or employee of the Town shall be 
liable to Licensee or its customers or third parties for any harm so caused to them 
or Licensee’s Facilities. Town shall make good faith effort to consult with 
Licensee in advance to assess the necessity of such actions and to minimize, to 
the extent practical under the circumstances, damage to and disruption or 



 

 

operation of the Licensee’s Facilities by calling the emergency number posted 
on the facility. In any event, Town shall inform Licensee after such actions. 

 
7.5. Licensees shall at all times retain on call and available to the Town by telephone 

an active, qualified, competent and experienced person to supervise all activities 
upon the Use Areas and operation of Licensee’s Facilities and who shall be 
authorized to represent and act for Licensee in matters pertaining to all 
emergencies and day-to-day operation of the ROW and all other matters 
affecting a Permit. 

 
7.6. Both Town and the Licensees may conduct radio frequency emission and 

interference studies from time to time to determine whether a Licensee's use of 
the Licensee Facilities will interfere with Town’s use of the Town-Owned 
Structures or the ROW. In the event such a study indicates that a Licensee’s 
use will potentially interfere with Town’s use of the Town-Owned Structures or 
the ROW, the Licensee shall have thirty (30) days to remedy the interference to 
Town's satisfaction. If the problem is not so remedied in thirty (30) days, then 
Town may require the Licensee, at Licensee's full expense, to relocate the 
Licensee Facilities so as to remove or minimize the interference, to the extent 
Town deems necessary. Town may permit Licensee to place a temporary 
Antenna (cCell on Wheels wheels or similar installation) on the Town-Owned 
Structures, the ROW or at some other location acceptable to Licensee and 
Town, during relocation of the Licensee’s Facilities. 

 
7.7. Town may, at its expense, perform tests as necessary to determine compliance 

of the Licensee Facilities on the Town-Owned Structures or in the ROW with 
Federal radio frequency exposure limit rules, 47 C.F.R. Section 1.1310, or 
subsequent Federal rules as amended from time to time. 

 
7.8. Licensees shall conduct an initial test for compliance with Federal radio 

frequency exposure limit rules prior to placing Licensee Facilities (or that of any 
sub-lessees of Licensee) on Town-Owned Structures or in the ROW into 
commercial operation, and Licensees shall perform additional tests upon any 
significant change in the Licensee Facilities on the Town-Owned Structures or in 
the ROW, such as sublicenses to third parties for them to install communications 
equipment on the Town-Owned Structures or in the ROW. All such testing shall 
be performed by a qualified radio engineer, and a copy of the test results shall be 
provided to all Parties. If such tests show noncompliance with applicable radio 
frequency exposure limit rules then in effect, then noncompliant Licensee 
Facilities on the Town-Owned Structures or in the ROW shall be shut down 
(except for work necessary to bring it into compliance) until subsequent tests 
again show compliance with such rules. 

 

7.9. Town does not grant, and reserves for itself, its lessees, successors and assigns, 
(i) all mineral rights, seismic rights and rights to oil, gas, water, other 
hydrocarbons or minerals on, as to, under or about any portion of the Town 
Property; (ii) rights to generate electricity from the wind or wind power on, as to 
or about any portion of the Town Property; and (iii) the right to grant to others the 
rights hereby reserved. 



 

 

 
7.10. Town shall have the right to operate, replace and maintain all Town-Owned 

Structures in such manner as best serves Town’s service requirements including, 
but not limited to, the right to allow the attachment of additional facilities. 
Licensee agrees to shut down communications and electrical equipment during 
any time Town is maintaining, testing or replacing the affected Town-Owned 
Structure within one (1) business day from the date of notice in a manner 
provided in Section 9 of this agreement, or as otherwise agreed to in writing 
between Licensee and Town. If Licensee fails to shut off the equipment within 
one (1) business day from the date of notice, or within the agreed upon timeframe, 
Licensee shall reimburse Town for its costs related to the delay including time 
and labor expenses. The reimbursement will be at a minimum $500 per incident. 

 
8. Fees 

 
8.1. Section 120.06 of the Florence Town Code specifies rRates and fFees 

applicable to small wireless facilities within the Towns right-of-wayROW. 
Licensees shall pay the application fees set forth on the Schedule of Fees for 
each Permit at the time of submittal of a Permit application. 

 
8.2. Licensees shall pay all applicable permit fees at the time of issuance of each 

Permit, including by way of illustration and not limitation, all applicable taxes, 
traffic control fees, and technology fees that are adopted by the Town from time 
to time. 

 
8.3. The applicable fees set forth for each Permit shall be consideration for the right 

to use Town-Owned Structures or the ROW. 
 

8.4. The Fee fee shall be paid to Town in advance, on or before the anniversary date 
of the effective date of each Permit, without prior demand and without any 
deduction or offset whatsoever. 

 
8.5. Fees paid by Licensees are non-refundable. 

 
9. Safety Program for Town’s Employees 

 
In order to perform duties necessary as owner and manager of the public ROW, the Town 
and its employees, agents, and representatives must have uninterrupted and safe access 
to the ROW and all structures located thereon. In conjunction with paragraph 4.5 
requiring annual permits for emergency operations, and paragraph 7.10, above, and 
in order to ensure the safety of those working on or near a Licensee’s Facilities, 
Licensees must comply with at least one of the following safety protocols: 

 
9.1. Provide access to a cutoff switch for each Small Wireless Site that the Town’s 

employees, agents, or representatives can use to turn off all power to the 
Licensee’s Facilities while Town work is performed at the location. The Town, 
will provide the licensee at least twenty-four (24) hours’ notice of turning off the 
site, unless an immediate shut down is needed to protect the public’s health, 
safety, and general welfare. 



 

 

 
9.2. Within 24 hours of a request, agree to send a technician with an RF monitor to 

confirm that all RF emitting equipment has, in fact, been deactivated, and to 
install all appropriate lockout tags and devices. 

 
10. Indemnification 

 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, Licensees shall indemnify, hold harmless, and 
defend the Indemnified PartiesTown for, from and against all claims, damages, losses, 
and expenses including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys' fees arising out of or 
resulting from the conduct or management of Licensee’s Facilities or any condition 
created in or about the Licensee’s Facilities or any accident, injury, or damage whatsoever 
occurring in or at Licensee’s Facilities or from the failure of Licensee to keep its facilities 
in good condition and repair, provided that any such claim, damage, loss, or expense (a) 
is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death, or injury to or destruction of 
tangible property, including loss of use therefrom, and (b) is caused by any act or omission 
of Licensee or anyone directly or indirectly employed by it, including any contractor or 
subcontractor, or anyone for whose acts it might be liable. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
Licensee’s obligation to indemnify or hold harmless the Indemnified PartiesTown under 
this provision shall be limited to the extent that the damage or injury is attributable to the 
negligence or other wrongful acts or omissions of Licensee or its employees, contractors, 
subcontractors or agents. If the damage or injury is caused by the joint or concurrent 
negligence of Town and Licensee, the loss shall be borne by Town and Licensee in 
proportion to their degree of negligence or fault. Licensee’s hold harmless agreement 
includes latent defects, and, subject to standard provisions of the relevant policies, the 
hold harmless obligation shall be specifically covered and insured by the insurance 
policies required by these Terms. 

 
11. Insurance 

 
11.1. Without limiting any liabilities or any other obligations of any Licensee or any of 

its contractors or subcontractors under any License, Permit or otherwise, a 
Licensee and its contractors or subcontractors shall provide and maintain, with 
forms and insurers acceptable to Town, and until all obligations under the 
License and all Permits are satisfied, the minimum insurance coverage, as 
follows: 

 

11.1.1. Commercial General Liability Insurance, including coverage of 
contractual liability assumed under each Permit, affording protection of 
not less than TWO MILLION DOLLARS ($2,000,000) per occurrence, 
combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage, against 
damages because of, or on account of, bodily injuries to or the death of 
any person or destruction of or damage to the property of any person, 
occurring on or about any of Licensee’s Facilities or due in any way to 
the use, occupancy, maintenance or operation of the Small Cell Wireless 
Facility or , gGround fFacilities or other related facilities. 

 
11.1.2. Workers’ compensation insurance to cover obligations imposed by 

federal and state statutes having jurisdiction of Licensee’s and 



 

 

Licensee’s contractor or subcontractor employees who may be working 
on Licensee’s Facilities, and employer’s liability with a minimum limit of 
ONE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS ($100,000). 

 
11.1.3. Commercial automobile liability insurance with a combined single limit 

for bodily injury and property damage of not less than TWO MILLION 
DOLLARS ($2,000,000) each occurrence with respect to vehicles 
assigned to or used in the performance of the work, whether owned, 
hired, or non-owned. 

 
11.2. The policies required by Sections 12.1.1 and 12.1.3 herein shall include the 

Town of Florence, members of its governing bodies, its officers, agents and 
employees as additional insureds and shall stipulate that the insurance afforded 
for shall be primary insurance and that any insurance carried by the Town of 
Florence, members of its governing bodies, its officers, agents and employees 
shall be excess and not contributory. 

 
11.3. Contractor, its subcontractors and its insurers providing the required coverages 

shall waive all rights of subrogation against the Town of Florence, members of 
its governing bodies, its officers, agents and employees. 

 
11.4. Prior to commencing construction, cContractor or sSubcontractor shall furnish the 

Town with cCertificates of iInsurance and related endorsements as evidence 
that policies providing the required coverage, conditions and limits are in full 
force and effect. Such certificates shall provide that not less than thirty (30) days’ 
notice of cancellation, termination, or material change shall be sent directly to 
Town. 

 
11.5. All insurance policies shall be obtained from companies duly authorized to issue 

such policies in the State of Arizona, having Best’s ratings of “A” and acceptable 
to Town. 

 
12. Breach and Letter of Credit 

 
12.1. Any breach of these Terms and Conditions or of any provision of a License or 

Permit, if left uncured after 30-days’ written notice, shall render Licensee’s 
Facilities as unauthorized work within the right-of-way, and shall be subject to 
the penalties in the Florence Town Code. 

 

12.2. Prior to the effective date of any License or Permit, Licensees shall provide a 
letter of credit in an amount based upon a Licensee’s good-faith estimate of the 
number of Permits to be issued within the Town in the current calendar year. 
The letter of credit shall be a security deposit for a Licensee’s performance of 
all of its obligations under these Terms, and shall be in substantially the same 
form as approved by the Town Attorney. 

 
12.2.1. The amount of the letter of credit shall be, as follows: Thirty Thousand 

Dollars ($30,000.00) for up to ten (10) Permits; Sixty Thousand Dollars 
($60,000.00) for eleven (11) to twenty (20)Permits; One Hundred Five 



 

 

Thousand Dollars ($105,000.00) for twenty-one (21) to thirty-five (35) 
Permits; One Hundred Eighty Thousand Dollars ($180,000.00) for thirty- 
six (36) to sixty (60) Permits; Three Hundred Thousand Dollars 
($300,000.00) for sixty-one (61) to one hundred (100) Permits; Four 
Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($450,000.00) for One hundred one 
(101) to one hundred fifty (150) Permits; Six Hundred Seventy-Five 
Thousand ($675,000.00) for one hundred fifty-one (151) to two hundred 
twenty-five (225) Permits; One Million Fifty Thousand Dollars 
($1,050,000.00) for two hundred twenty-six (226) to three hundred fifty 
(350) Permits; One Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars 
(1,500,000.00) for three hundred fifty-one (351) to five hundred (500) 
Permits; Two Million Two Hundred and Fifty Thousand Dollars 
($2,250,000.00) for five hundred one (501) to seven hundred fifty (750) 
Permits; and Three Million Dollars ($3,000,000.00) for seven hundred 
fifty-one (751) to one thousand (1,000) Permits. If the number of Permits 
exceeds one thousand (1,000), then the Three Million Dollar 
($3,000,000.00) letter of credit shall remain in effect and the amounts for 
additional Permits shall be calculated according to the calculation above. 

 
12.2.2. The Town will determine at least once annually if Licensee must update 

the amount of the letter of credit based upon the then-current number of 
Licensee’s Permits. 

 
 

12.2.3. Licensee shall pay all costs associated with the letter of credit and shall 
maintain the letter of credit for at least one year following the term of any 
Permit. 

 
12.2.4. Town may, in its sole discretion, draw on the letter of credit in the event 

of any default under these Terms and Conditions. In such event, 
Licensee shall cause that the letter of credit be replenished to its prior 
amount within ten (10) business days after Town notifies a Licensee that 
it has drawn on the letter of credit. 

12.3. The Town’s remedies for breach are cumulative and in addition to, not exclusive 
of or in substitution for, any rights or remedies otherwise available under the law. 

 
13. General Provisions 

 
13.1. Force Majeure 

 
 

13.1.1. Neither Town nor any Licensee shall be liable or responsible for a delay 
or failure in performing or carrying out any of its obligations (other than 
obligations to make payments) under any License or Permit caused by 
force majeure. Force majeure shall mean any cause beyond the 
reasonable control of Town or Licensee, as applicable, or beyond the 
reasonable control of any of their respective contractors, subcontractors, 
suppliers or vendors, including without limitation: acts of God, including, 



 

 

but not necessarily limited to, lightning, earthquakes, adverse weather 
of greater duration or intensity than normally expected for the job area 
and time of year, fires, explosions, floods, other natural catastrophes, 
sabotage, acts of a public enemy, acts of government or regulatory 
agencies, wars, blockades, embargoes, insurrections, riots, or civil 
disturbances; lLabor disputes, including, but not necessarily limited to, 
strikes, work slowdowns, work stoppages, or labor disruptions, labor or 
material shortages, or delays or disruptions of transportation; orders and 
judgments of any federal, state or local court, administrative agency or 
governmental body; the adoption of or change in any federal, state or 
local laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, permits or licenses, or 
changes in the interpretation of such laws, rules, regulations, 
ordinances, permits or licenses, by a court or public agency having 
appropriate jurisdiction after the date of the adoption of these Terms; or 
any suspension, termination, interruption, denial or failure to issue or 
renew by any governmental authority or other party having approval 
rights of any approval required or necessary hereunder for installation 
or operation of any Small Cell Equipment Wireless Facility or for either 
Party to perform its obligations hereunder, except when such 
suspension, termination, interruption, denial or failure to issue or renew 
results from the negligence or failure to act of the Party claiming the 
occurrence of an event of force majeure. 

 

13.1.2. If either Town or a Licensee is rendered unable to fulfill any of its 
obligations under a  License or Permit by reason of force majeure, such 
Party shall promptly notify the other and shall exercise due diligence to 
remove such inability with all reasonable dispatch; provided, that nothing 
contained in this Section 14.1 shall be construed as requiring Town or a 
Licensee to settle any strike, work stoppage or other labor dispute in 
which it may be involved, or to accept any permit, certificate, license or 
other approval on terms deemed unacceptable to such Party, or to enter into 
any contract or other undertaking on terms which the Party deems to be unduly 
burdensome or costly. 

 
13.2. Assignment 

 
Licensees will have the right to assign, sell or transfer its interest under a License or 
Permit without the approval or consent of Town, to the Licensee’s affiliate or to any 
entity which acquires all or substantially all of the Licensee’s assets in the market 
defined by the Federal Communications Commission in which the Licensee’s Facilities 
are located by reason of a merger, acquisition, or other business reorganization. 
Licensees may not otherwise assign a License or Permit without the Town’s consent, 
Town’s consent not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. Any 
purported assignment in violation of this Section shall be void. 

 
13.3. Entire Agreement 

 
These Terms and Conditions and any related Licenses represent the entire agreement 
of the Parties. There are no other agreements or terms, written or oral. Except for 



 

 

those previously-executed and enforceable contracts, these Terms and Conditions 
and related Licenses supersedes all previous communications and representations 
between the Parties on the same subject matter, whether oral or written. All changes 
to any License agreed to by the Parties shall be in writing, and must be executed by 
both Parties. 

 
13.4. Severability 

 
If any a provision of these Terms is invalidated by a court of competent jurisdiction, all 
other provisions hereof shall continue in effect. 

 
13.5. Governing Law and Choice of Forum 

 
These Terms and all matters relating hereto shall be governed by, construed and 
interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Arizona without reference to 
principles of conflict of laws in Arizona or any other jurisdiction. Any proceeding shall 
be filed, prosecuted and resolved in the courts of the State of Arizona, state or federal, 
and venue for any litigation or other dispute shall be only in Pinal County, Arizona. The 
Parties waive any and all rights to a jury. 

 
13.6. Remedies Cumulative 

 
All remedies specified in these Terms and all remedies provided by law or otherwise 
(except as specifically excluded herein), shall be cumulative and not alternative. 

13.7. Attorneys’ Fees and Expenses 
 

In the event of default by either Party or any action or suit arising out of these Terms 
and Conditions, any License or any individual Permit, the prevailing Party or the non-
defaulting Party shall be entitled to recover its costs, expenses, reasonable attorneys’ 
fees, experts’ fees and witness fees of any type. 

 
13.8. Notices 

 
Notices hereunder shall be given in writing delivered to the other party or mailed by 
registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid to the addresses 
set forth in the License and to the Town as follows: 

 
If to Town: Town of Florence 

Development Services Department Administration 
PO Box 2670 
Florence, AZ 85132 
Attn: Director of Development 
ServicesTown Manager 

 

Copy to: Town of Florence Town Clerk 
Attn: Lisa Garcia 
PO Box 2670 
775 N. Main Street 
Florence, AZ 85132 



 

 

 
By notice from time to time, a person may designate any other street address within 
Pinal County, Arizona as its address for giving notice hereunder. Service of any notice 
by mail shall be deemed to be complete three (3) days (excluding Saturday, Sunday 
and legal holidays) after the notice is deposited in the United States mail. 
 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
8b. 

MEETING DATE:   August 20, 2018  
 
DEPARTMENT:  Development Services, Planning Division 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Dana Burkhardt, Planning Consultant 
 
SUBJECT:  Ordinance No. 662-18 Small Wireless Facility 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
Subject:  SWF Amendment Ordinance 662-18 (PZ-18-21-ORD)                                Meeting Date:  August 20, 2018 
Page 1 of 4 

Development Code Text Amendment (PZ-18-21-ORD) Public Hearing  Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnerships and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
On August 20, 2018, motion to approve (with amendments) Ordinance No. 662-18 for the 
Small Wireless Facility Development Code Text Amendment. 

OVERVIEW: 
 
On February 1, 2018, the Planning and Zoning Commission took action to initiate text 
amendments to the Florence Town Code to implement the State mandated requirements 
for Small Wireless Facilities (SWFs) within Town rights of way. Staff has consulted with 
stakeholders, the community at large, and researched best practices from other Arizona 
communities to develop a policy that will effectively address this mandate.  The result of 
this effort culminates in the proposed draft amendments to the Town Code, Development 
Code, and the “Small Wireless Facilities Terms and Conditions.”  
 
This agenda item and report addresses proposed Ordinance Number 662-18, a text 
amendment to The Development Code of the Town of Florence amending the 
“Definitions” and “Part 9 Wireless Communications Facilities” Sections 150.031, and 
150.180 to 150.184, respectively (Exhibit A). 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Town staff is proposing minor modifications to the Florence Development Code to 
regulate wireless facilities and monopoles within the parameters of HB 2365. Ordinance 
No. 662-18 would amend the Development Code provisions for wireless facilities to be 
compimentary to the proposed Town Code Business regulations of Ordinance No. 663-

Small Cell



Subject:  SWF Amendment Ordinance 662-18 (PZ-18-21-ORD)                                Meeting Date:  August 20, 2018 
Page 2 of 4 

18.  For additional details surrounding Ordinance 663-18, please refer to concurrent 
agenda item and RCA on this agenda. 
 
The HB 2365 legislation explicitly allows by right, without a zoning approval process, 
wireless carriers and wireless infrastructure providers to access the public right-of-way to 
collocate new small cell wireless sites on City street light poles, utility poles and other 
structures, build new poles for small cells, and under certain conditions build Monopoles 
and taller utility poles.  Among other things, this proposed amendment will streamline the 
permitting process to install small wireless facilities in the rights of way and classify such 
facilities as a permitted use exempt from zoning review or approval in accordance with 
HB 2365. 
 
In summary, Ordinance No. 662-18 amends the current Development Code provisions 
for wireless facilities to: 

 Update the Development Code definitions related to wireless facilities. 
 Clearly state the purpose and intent of Part 9 – Wireless Communications 

Facilities. 
 Clarify the “Administrative Review and Approval” section to exempt small wireless 

facilities within Town rights of way from zoning review, and defer to the proposed 
Town Code Section 120 and the proposed Terms and Conditions. 

 Enhance design review and aesthetic criteria by prohibiting outdated tower designs 
(lattice and guy-wire) and encourage monopoles, camouflage, and stealth tower 
design when collocations are not feasible. 

 
Planning Staff offers the following findings for the consideration of the Town Council: 
 
1. The proposed text amendment addresses the State mandated requirements, 

within the timeframe imposed (policy to be in place no later than three (3) months 
from the time of receipt of a request to locate a small wireless facility within the 
Town right of way. No such request has been received to date.)    

 
2. The proposed text amendment supports the following Strategic Plan Objectives:  

 
a. Transportation and Infrastructure: Maintain, enhance and expand 

information technology (IT) infrastructure to pursue the goals, objectives 
and tasks as established by Town Council and the Strategic plan. 

 
b. Leadership and Governance: Stay engaged with federal, state, regional and 

local government and regulatory agencies regarding existing and ever-
evolving regulatory requirements. 

 
3. Subject to the health concern of wireless antennas expressed during public 

comment (see below), the statutes authorize cities and towns to only deny an 
application if the request does not meet applicable codes that concern public safety 
or reasonable stealth and concealment requirements.  At this time, there is no 
conclusive evidence or studies linking cellular antenna operations to health 
problems. 



Subject:  SWF Amendment Ordinance 662-18 (PZ-18-21-ORD)                                Meeting Date:  August 20, 2018 
Page 3 of 4 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
 
Staff has complied with all applicable Town requirements and Arizona Revised Statutes 
regarding public notification and public participation. Public Notices for the Planning and 
Zoning Commission and Town Council Public Hearings were advertised in the local 
paper, the Florence Reminder. Meetings and public outreach for the proposed text 
amendment are as follows (* denotes tentatively scheduled): 
 

June 7, 2018  Planning and Zoning Commission Work Session 
June 21, 2018 Planning and Zoning Commission Review/Discussion 
July 12, 2018  Neighborhood Meeting (5-6PM Community Center) 
July 19, 2018  Planning and Zoning Commission (public hearing) 
August 6, 2018 Town Council (public hearing and 1st reading) 
August 20, 2018 2nd Town Council reading and action 

 
July 19, 2018 Public Hearing Testimony: 
 
Elissa Moulton – Is on record requesting additional information of how cellular antennas 

work and the type of radio frequency they utilize. She also expressed 
concerns of health impacts from cellular antennas and equipment. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Neutral, approval or denial of this request has no impact to the Town’s finances. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission found that Ordinance 662-18 complies with state 
mandate HB 2365 and is in the interest of general welfare, health and safety of the public. 
The Planning and Zoning Commission has forwarded a unanimous favorable 
recommendation on this proposed text amendment, as described in Exhibit A, to the 
Mayor and Town Council, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Update all proposed text amendment references to “Development Services 

Department” and “Development Services Director” to reflect the titles and positions 
currently established in the Town of Florence Code of Ordinances. (Exhibit A 
includes these updates) 

2. Correct typographical and scrivener’s errors as identified by Commissioner Frost 
during the discussion. (Exhibit A includes these updates) 

3. Any additional modifications or changes deemed necessary by the Town Council. 

 
 
 
 



Subject:  SWF Amendment Ordinance 662-18 (PZ-18-21-ORD)                                Meeting Date:  August 20, 2018 
Page 4 of 4 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Ordinance No. 662-18  
Exhibit A – Dev Code Text Amendment  
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 662-18 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE CODE OF ORDINANCES TITLE XV “LAND 
USAGE” CHAPTER 150 OF THE DEVELOPMENT CODE, 
EXISTING SECTIONS 150.031 “DEFINITIONS” AND  
“PART 9 WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS FACILITIES” 
SECTIONS 150.180 TO 150.184, (CASE PZ 18-21 ORD). 
 

 
WHEREAS, Arizona State Legislature passed House Bill 2365 amending 

the Arizona Revised Statutes by adding Title 9, Chapter 5, Article 8 "Use of 
Public Highways by Wireless Providers"; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council has determined that it is in the best interest 

of the residents of Florence to make changes to the Florence Development Code 
Sections 150.031, and 150.180 to 150.184, such that it is advisable to amend 
aforementioned sections, as further set forth in Exhibit "A", which is attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by reference; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission, after having held a 

public hearing on the case, has forwarded the Mayor and Town Council a 
unanimous favorable recommendation for the text amendment ordinance; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council has determined that, for the reasons set 

forth above and for the purpose of protecting the public health, safety and welfare 
of the residents and visitors of Florence, it is in the best interests of the Town to 
amend the Code of Ordinances as provided herein. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, as follows:  

Section 1. Any proposal for the construction or installation of new monopoles, 
poles associated with wireless facilities, or wireless facilities in the 
public right of way shall be subject to the following: Town of Florence 
Code of Ordinances Title XV Land Usage, Chapter 150 of the Florence 
Development Code Part 9 Wireless Communications Facilities Sections 
150.180 to 150.184; the Town's licensing and permit requirements; the 
Town’s reasonable design review and development standards; the 
Town's reasonable rates and fees as adopted by the Town; and all 
other applicable regulatory processes. 

Section 2. Existing Title XV of the Town of Florence Code of Ordinances is 
hereby amended by the revisions, additions, and deletions of the 
Development Code text as set forth in Exhibit "A." 



Section 3. Exhibit "A" is hereby approved, adopted and incorporated into the 
Town of Florence Code of Ordinances Title XV Land Usage, Chapter 
150 Development Code by reference, as fully as if set forth in this 
Ordinance in its entirety. 

Section 4. If any section, subsection, clause, phrase or portion of this Ordinance 
or any part of the amended and restated Town of Florence Code of 
Ordinances Title XV is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional 
by the decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision 
shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions thereof. 

Section 5. One (1) paper copy and one (1) electronic copy of this ordinance are 
ordered to remain on file with the Town Clerk. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence this 
20th day of August, 2018. 

      ______________________________ 
      Tara Walter, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:                                             APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
___________________________ ______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 



 
 

 
 

Exhibit A ‐ Small Wireless Facility Text Amendment 
Development Code Ordinance No. 662‐18 

 

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

Ordinance	662‐18	
EXHIBIT	A			

	
	

Town	of	Florence	
HB2365	Small	Wireless	Facility	

Development	Code	Text	Amendment	
 
 
 
 
The following text in red are proposed additions to the Development Code, Planning & 
Zoning Commission recommended insertions are shown with red underline. Text with a 
strikethrough are proposed for deletion.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 
 

Exhibit A ‐ Small Wireless Facility Text Amendment 
Development Code Ordinance No. 662‐18 

 

DEFINITIONS	

§	150.031		DEFINED	WORDS.	
	
ANTENNA(E).  Any exterior transmitting or receiving device mounted on a building or structure 
and used to transmit or receive communications that radiates or captures electromagnetic waves, 
digital signals, analog signals, radio frequencies (excluding radar signals), wireless 
telecommunication signals or other communication signals. This definition does not include a 
personal use antenna or amateur antenna. 
 
MONOPOLE.  A freestanding wireless support structure that is not more than 40 inches in 
diameter at the ground level and that has all of the wireless facilities mounted inside of the pole 
with exception of the antenna(s) and necessary concealed ground equipment.  A monopole may 
also be an alternative tower structure that is designed to replicate a tree or other natural feature 
(aka. stealth). 
   
TOWER. Any structure that is designed and constructed primarily for the purpose of supporting 
one or more wireless facilities, antennas for telephone, radio, and similar communication purposes, 
including monopole towers. The term includes, but is not limited to, radio and television 
transmission towers, microwave towers, common-carrier towers, cellular telephone towers, stealth 
towers and alternative tower structures. The term also includes the structure and any support 
thereto. 
 
WIRELESS COMMUNICATION FACILITY.:   
 (a) means equipment at a fixed location that enables wireless communications 
 between user equipment and a communications network, including both of the 
 following:  
  (i) equipment associated with wireless communications.  
  (ii) radio transceivers, antennas, coaxial or fiber-optic cables, regular and backup  
  power supplies and comparable equipment, regardless of technological   
  configuration. 
 (b) includes small wireless facilities.  
 (c) does not include the structure or improvements on, under or within which the 
 equipment is collocated. 

(d) does not include non-commercial, non-business fixed wireless communications, such 
as television and satellite reception antennae or amateur radio antennae 

 
WIRELESS COMMUNICATION FACILITY, SMALL. A wireless facility that meets both of the 
following qualifications: 
 (a) each antenna is located inside an enclosure of not more  than six cubic feet in volume 
 or, in the case of an antenna that has exposed elements, the antenna and all of the 



 
 

 
 

Exhibit A ‐ Small Wireless Facility Text Amendment 
Development Code Ordinance No. 662‐18 

 

 antenna's exposed elements could fit within an imaginary enclosure of not more than six 
 cubic feet in volume. 
  (b) all other wireless equipment associated with the facility is cumulatively not more than 
 twenty-eight cubic feet in volume. The following types of associated ancillary equipment 
 are not included in the calculation of equipment volume pursuant to this code: 
  (i) an electric meter. 
  (ii) concealment elements. 
  (iii) a telecommunications demarcation box. 
  (iv) ground-based enclosures. 
  (v) grounding equipment. 
  (vi) a power transfer switch. 
  (vii) a cut-off switch. 
  (viii) vertical cable runs for the connection of power and other services 
	

(Ord. 662-18, passed DATE)	

	

	

PART	9.		WIRELESS	COMMUNICATIONS	FACILITIES	

§	150.180	PURPOSE.	GENERAL	APPLICABILITY.		

   WIRELESS	COMMUNICATIONS	FACILITIES, as herein defined, require specified, 
additional conditions and design criteria other than those used only for non-commercial, 
non-business fixed wireless communications, such as television and satellite reception 
antennae or amateur radio antennae which are exempt. 

The purpose of this Article is to establish general requirements for the installation of 
wireless communications facilities, including towers and antennas. The goals of this Article 
are to: 
 

(A) Minimize the adverse visual effects of towers through careful design, siting, and 
 screening, while preserving the rights of wireless telecommunications providers; 

(B) Encourage the location of towers in non-residential areas; 
(C) Minimize the total number of towers throughout the community; 
(D) Strongly encourage the joint use (co-location) of new and existing tower sites as 

a primary option rather than construction of additional single-use towers; 
(E) Encourage users of towers and antennas to locate them, to the extent possible, in 

areas where the adverse impact on the community is minimal; 



 
 

 
 

Exhibit A ‐ Small Wireless Facility Text Amendment 
Development Code Ordinance No. 662‐18 

 

(F) Encourage users of towers and antennas to configure them in a way that 
minimizes the adverse visual impact of the towers and antennas through careful design, 
siting, screening, and innovative camouflaging techniques;  

(G) Enhance the ability of the providers of telecommunications services to provide 
such services to the community quickly, effectively and efficiently; and 

(H) Avoid potential damage to adjacent properties from tower failure through 
engineering and careful siting of tower structures. 

 
(Prior Code, Ch. 4, Art. IV, § 4-316)  (Ord. 432-06, passed 6-19-2006) (Ord. 662-18, passed 
DATE) 

§	150.181		ADMINISTRATIVE	REVIEW	AND	APPROVAL.	

The following wireless communications facilities may be approved administratively by the 
Town Manager Zoning Administrator or designee upon satisfactory review by the 
Technical Advisory Committee through the design review and building permit process, 
unless otherwise specified herein:  

Wireless communications (A) fFacilities comprised of panel antennae mounted on or 
against an existing structure, or antennae attached to a 69kV or higher power line tower or 
pole which does not raise the height of the tower or pole more than 15 feet above its 
original height, when not located within Town-owned right of way; or  

(B) nNew antennae attached to an existing, conforming wireless communications 
tower which does not raise the height of the tower more than 15 feet above its original 
height when not located within Town-owned right of way may be approved by the Planning 
Director after review and approval by the Site Plan Review Committee.; or  

(C) Small Wireless Communications Facilities located within Town-owned right of 
way shall be subject to the town’s Small Wireless Facility Terms and Conditions, Wireless 
Facility License Agreement, and Permit requirements. Refer to Town Code §120. 

(Prior Code, Ch. 4, Art. IV, § 4-317)  (Ord. 432-06, passed 6-19-2006) (Ord. 662-18, passed 
DATE) 

§	150.182		REQUIRED	INFORMATION.	

   (A)   Site plan approval is required. 

   (B)   At the time of request the applicant shall also submit: 

      (1)   A current map, or update to an existing map on file showing locations of applicant's 
antenna(e) and facilities and all other known existing and proposed wireless 



 
 

 
 

Exhibit A ‐ Small Wireless Facility Text Amendment 
Development Code Ordinance No. 662‐18 

 

communications towers within a one-mile radius of the proposed tower and the following 
accompanying information: 

         (a)   Report from a structural Engineer registered in the state showing the tower 
antenna capacity by type and number, and a certification that the tower and attached 
equipment is designed to withstand winds in accordance with ANSUEIA/TIA 222 (latest 
revision) standards; 

         (b)   Complete names and addresses of the owners of all antennae and equipment to be 
located at the site as of the date of application; 

         (c)   Written authorization for the use from the site owner; and 

         (d)   Provide the town with a plan for the total build-out in the town. This allows the 
town to coordinate tower locations with other applicants. 

      (2)   Proof that: 

         (a)   Reasonable measures have been taken to assure that the proposed structure will 
be placed in a location which will minimize the visual impact on the surrounding area; 

         (b)   The proposed antenna and equipment could not be placed on a preexisting facility 
under control of the applicant and function under applicable regulatory and design 
requirements without unreasonable modification; 

         (c)   If the application is for siting in a residential area, the area cannot be adequately 
served by a facility placed in a non-residential area; and 

         (d)   A new tower is designed to accommodate the applicant's potential future needs, is 
of suitable construction and should be adapted to allow the co-location of additional 
antennae. 

      (3)   A written agreement that: 

         (a)   The tower and/or antenna shall be removed within 180 days of cessation of use, 
and to return the area to its condition prior to the construction of the tower; 

         (b)   The applicant's service is subordinate to essential public communications services 
and agreement to suspend use of any site which may be in conflict with the services, 
regardless of the reason for the conflict, until the conflict is resolved; and 

         (c)   All applicable health, nuisance, fire and safety codes are met. If upon inspection, 
the town determines that a wireless communications facility fails to comply with the 
agreements or applicable codes, the owner of the facility will have 30 days to bring the 
facility into compliance. Failure to bring the facility into compliance within 30 days will 
constitute grounds for the removal of the facility at the owner's expense. 



 
 

 
 

Exhibit A ‐ Small Wireless Facility Text Amendment 
Development Code Ordinance No. 662‐18 

 

(Prior Code, Ch. 4, Art. IV, § 4-318)  (Ord. 432-06, passed 6-19-2006)  

§	150.183		DESIGN	CRITERIA.	

   (A)   Physical	appearance.  To the extent possible, materials, colors, textures and 
landscaping shall be designed to blend in with the surrounding setting. A tower shall be 
finished or painted so as to minimize visual obtrusiveness and shall not be illuminated 
unless otherwise required by state or federal regulations. Panel antennae and their 
associated cables and hardware mounted on or against an existing structure shall be 
architecturally integrated and painted to match the existing façade, or be otherwise 
camouflaged to reduce their visual impact. 

   (B)   Signs	and	communications	tower.	No signage shall be allowed on an antenna or 
communications tower	A sign identifying operator/provider contact information, 
restricting trespass, warning of life safety risks, and other similar notification is required. 
No other signage shall be allowed on an antenna or communications tower. 

   (C)   Distance. A tower and attached appurtenances must be set back from all 
nonresidential lot lines a minimum distance equal to the height of the tower and from all 
residential lot lines a minimum distance equal to the height of the tower plus 20%. 

   (D)   New	communications	towers.		No new communications tower shall be located within 
1,320 feet of an existing tower unless the existing tower does not meet the structural 
specifications or technical requirements necessary for additional antenna co-location, or 
unless a co-location agreement could not be obtained at commercial reasonable terms and 
conditions, including price. Communications towers used to support athletic field lighting 
or parking lot lighting, and communications towers which are camouflaged to disguise the 
presence of commercial antennas shall be exempt from this requirement. 

   (E)   Height.  In all districts, towers, antennae and all related wireless communication 
facilities mounted on buildings, water tanks or collocated on other structures other than 
freestanding or and guyed communications towers must not extend more than ten feet 
above the highest part of the structure. Refer to subsection (F) for freestanding tower 
height restrictions. 

   (F)   Freestanding	or	and	guyed	towers.		New Ffreestanding lattice or guyed towers are not 
permitted. Monopoles and camouflaged or “stealth” tower applications may be placed 
located in the following all zoning districts and subject to the maximum building height of 
the specified district following height limitations, unless express waiver is provided 
granted by Town Council at the time of special permit with an approved Conditional Use 
Permit. approval. 



 
 

 
 

Exhibit A ‐ Small Wireless Facility Text Amendment 
Development Code Ordinance No. 662‐18 

 

   (G)   All	districts.  Freestanding or guyed towers Monopole and camouflaged or “stealth” 
towers height shall not exceeding ten feet above the maximum height permitted in the 
specified district and shall not exceed a maximum of fifty (50) feet in height. 

   (H)   Wind	Loading.  Anticipated wind load shall not exceed 25% of the yield strength of 
the monopole or utility pole base material. 

(Prior Code, Ch. 4, Art. IV, § 4-319)  (Ord. 432-06, passed 6-19-2006) (Ord. 662-18, passed 
DATE) 

§	150.184		REPLACEMENT	AND/OR	REBUILDING	OF	WIRELESS	COMMUNICATIONS	
TOWERS.	

   Pre-existing nonconforming wireless communications towers which have been destroyed 
or structurally damaged shall be replaced with towers meeting the requirements as 
provided in this Development Code., except that they may be rebuilt to their original height 
and in their original location, regardless of setback requirements. 

(Prior Code, Ch. 4, Art. IV, § 4-320)  (Ord. 432-06, passed 6-19-2006) (Ord. 662-18, passed 
DATE) 

 

 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
8c.  

MEETING DATE:   August 20, 2018  
 
DEPARTMENT:  Development Services, Planning Division 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Dana Burkhardt, Planning Consultant 
 
SUBJECT:  Ordinance No. 663-18: Small Wireless Facility Town 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
Subject:  SWF Amendment Ordinance 663-18 (PZ-18-22-ORD)                                Meeting Date:  August 20, 2018 
Page 1 of 5 

Code Text Amendment (PZ-18-22-ORD)  Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnerships and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Adoption of Ordinance No. 663-18:   AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, 
PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES TITLE XI “BUSINESS REGULATIONS”, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, NEW 
PROVISIONS REGARDING SMALL WIRELESS FACILITIES AND RATES AND FEES 
FOR USE OF THE PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY AND TOWN STRUCTURES, (CASE PZ 
18-22 ORD). 

OVERVIEW: 
 
On February 1, 2018, the Planning and Zoning Commission took action to initiate text 
amendments to the Florence Town Code to implement the State mandated requirements 
for Small Wireless Facilities (SWFs) within Town rights of way.  Staff has consulted with 
stakeholders, the community at large, and researched best practices from other Arizona 
communities to develop a policy that will effectively address this mandate.  The result of 
this effort culminates in the proposed draft amendments to the Town Code, Land 
Development Code, and the “Small Wireless Facilities Terms and Conditions.”  
 
This agenda item and RCA addresses proposed Ordinance Number 663-18, a text 
amendment to the Florence Town Code of Ordinances to add Section 120 “Small 
Wireless Facilities” to Title XI Business Regulations (Exhibit C). 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 



Subject:  SWF Amendment Ordinance 663-18 (PZ-18-22-ORD)                                Meeting Date:  August 20, 2018 
Page 2 of 5 

On March 31, 2017, House Bill 2365 was signed into law, which amended Title 9, Chapter 
5 of the Arizona Revised Statutes, by adding Article 8 “Use of Public Highways by 
Wireless Providers.” The new statutes are ARS Sections 9-591 through 9-599. 
HB 2365 requires municipalities to allow SWFs or “small cells” to be installed within the 
public right-of-way and Town easements. Small cells are different from typical wireless 
facilities. As the name implies, they are much smaller and cover limited areas. Small cells 
are low-powered wireless base stations that typically provide coverage for targeted indoor 
and outdoor areas of varying sizes (e.g., homes, office buildings, shopping malls, and 
stadiums). SWFs allow wireless service providers to add capacity to their networks by 
providing improved access for cell phone coverage 
and high-speed wireless data services not being 
served by traditional cell sites. 
 
Small cells typically are attached to vertical structures 
within the right of way, such as light poles, utility 
poles, and traffic signal poles, to form a network. HB 
2365 allows wireless providers to construct, install, 
modify, mount, maintain, operate, and replace utility 
poles associated with the collocation of small cells 
and to do the same for monopoles that are associated 
with the collocation of all wireless facilities, not just 
small cells. 
 
Town staff proposes Ordinance No. 663-18, which 
amends the Florence Town Code of Ordinances by 
inserting Chapter 120 “Small Wireless Facilities”, 
under Title XI: “Business Regulations” to establish 
licensing requirements and other provisions for 
wireless providers to locate, maintain, and operate 
commercial wireless facilities within Town rights of 
way in accordance with statutory requirements 
(Exhibit C). Concurrently, staff also proposes 
complimentary Ordinance No. 662-18, which 
provides minor modifications to the Florence 
Development Code to regulate wireless facilities and 
monopoles within the parameters of HB 2365 (refer to the following agenda item). The 
proposed amendments allow requests for SWFs in rights of way to be licensed and 
permitted in a similar manner as telecommunications and cable facilities within Town 
rights of way, although franchise/exclusive agreements with providers are prohibited. The 
proposed steps to permit SWFs in rights of way are as follows: 
 

1) License – Wireless providers are first required to receive a license to operate 
in the right of way by Town Council, subject to “Terms and Conditions” (refer to 
separate agenda item). 

2) Design Review – Wireless providers may then apply for and receive Design 
Review and Site Plan approval for each proposed SWF. 

Small Cell 
Antennas 

Small Cell 
Ground 

Equipment 

Small Cell Example 



Subject:  SWF Amendment Ordinance 663-18 (PZ-18-22-ORD)                                Meeting Date:  August 20, 2018 
Page 3 of 5 

3) Building Permit – Concurrent with Design Review, Wireless Providers may 
submit building permit application. Up to 25 facilities may be requested on one 
application, however individual building permits will be issued for each facility. 

4) ROW Encroachment Permit – Prior to commencement of construction within 
town rights of way, an approved encroachment permit is required. 

5) Annual Emergency Operations Permit – Wireless providers shall apply for 
and receive an annual permit for emergency operations for each facility located 
within the ROW. 

6) Duration – Applicants are permitted to operate and maintain their SWF’s for a 
period of 10 years and may be granted an additional 10-year term. 

 
The variety of scenarios presented in HB 2365 provides several options to wireless 
providers including major/minor collocations and modifications to their wireless facilities. 
For additional details of this legislation, please refer to the League of Cities and Towns 
SWF Guide (Exhibit A), and the adopted HB 2365 language (Exhibit B). Highlights of the 
bill are as follows: 
 

 Prohibits cities from imposing moratorium on receiving and processing permits for 
wireless antennae applications. 

 Explicitly allows by right, without a zoning approval process, wireless carriers and 
wireless infrastructure providers to access the public right-of-way to collocate new 
small cell wireless sites on City street light poles, utility poles and other structures, 
build new poles for small cells, and under certain conditions build Monopoles and 
taller utility poles.  

 Streamlines the permitting process for attaching small cells making these facilities 
a permitted use exempt from zoning review or approval. 

 Sets timeframes for the approval or denial of an application - 75 days or the 
application is automatically approved. 

 Requires a local government to grant approval unless the application does not 
meet regulations concerning public safety, design standards, concealment 
requirements or spacing requirements for ground-mounted equipment in the right-
of-way. 

 Bundling: Allows applicants seeking to collocate multiple small wireless facilities 
within the Town to file a consolidated application for up to 25 small wireless 
facilities so long as the collocations are substantially similar. 

 Significantly reduces the amount of annual rent a City can charge for a small cell 
within the public right-of-way. 

 
Planning Staff offers the following findings for the consideration of the Town Council: 
 
1. The proposed text amendments and Terms and Conditions address the State 

mandated requirements, within the timeframe imposed (policy to be in place no 
later than three (3) months from the time of receipt of a request to locate a small 
wireless facility within the Town right of way. No such request has been received 
to date.)    

 



Subject:  SWF Amendment Ordinance 663-18 (PZ-18-22-ORD)                                Meeting Date:  August 20, 2018 
Page 4 of 5 

2. The proposed text amendments and Terms and Conditions support the following 
Strategic Plan Objectives:  

a. Transportation and Infrastructure: Maintain, enhance and expand 
information technology (IT) infrastructure to pursue the goals, objectives 
and tasks as established by Town Council and the Strategic plan. 

b. Leadership and Governance: Stay engaged with federal, state, regional and 
local government and regulatory agencies regarding existing and ever-
evolving regulatory requirements. 

 
3. Subject to the health concern of wireless antennas expressed during public 

comment (see below), the statutes authorize cities and towns to only deny an 
application if the request does not meet applicable codes that concern public safety 
or reasonable stealth and concealment requirements. At this time, there is no 
conclusive evidence or studies linking cellular antenna operations to health 
problems. 

 
Public hearing and first reading was held on August 6, 2018.  

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
 
Staff has complied with all applicable Town requirements and Arizona Revised Statutes 
regarding public notification and public participation. Public Notices for the Planning and 
Zoning Commission and Town Council Public Hearings were advertised in the local 
paper, the Florence Reminder. Meetings and public outreach for the proposed text 
amendment Ordinances and Terms and Conditions are as follows (* denotes tentatively 
scheduled): 
 

June 7, 2018  Planning and Zoning Commission Work Session 
June 21, 2018 Planning and Zoning Commission Review/Discussion 
July 12, 2018  Neighborhood Meeting (5-6PM Community Center) 
July 19, 2018  Planning and Zoning Commission (public hearing) 
August 6, 2018 Town Council (public hearing and 1st reading) 
August 20, 2018 2nd Town Council reading and action 

 
July 19, 2018 Public Hearing Testimony: 
 
Thomas Moulton – Is on record stating he does not want an antenna on the streetlight in 

front of his home. Thomas referenced an article from Santa Rosa, 
California, where residents argued against a new cell tower request, 
including health related concerns, which was ultimately denied by the 
legislative authority. Town should consider the health issues 
stemming from cellular antennas before allowing them to be 
constructed.  

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Neutral, approval or denial of this request has no impact to the Town’s finances. 



Subject:  SWF Amendment Ordinance 663-18 (PZ-18-22-ORD)                                Meeting Date:  August 20, 2018 
Page 5 of 5 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission found that Ordinance No. 663-18 complies with 
state mandate HB 2365 and is in the interest of general welfare, health and safety of the 
public. The Planning and Zoning Commission has forwarded a unanimous favorable 
recommendation on Ordinance No. 663-18, to the Mayor and Town Council, subject to 
the following conditions: 
 
1. Update all proposed text amendment references to “Development Services 

Department” and “Development Services Director” to reflect the titles and positions 
currently established in the Town of Florence Code of Ordinances. (Exhibit C 
illustrates these updates as tracked changes) 

2. Correct typographical and scrivener’s errors as identified by Commissioner Frost 
during the discussion. (Exhibit C illustrates these updates as tracked changes) 

3. Any additional modifications or changes deemed necessary by the Town Council. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

Exhibit A – League of Cities and Towns SWF Guide 
Exhibit B – HB 2365 Adopted ARS legislation text 
Exhibit C – Ordinance No. 663-18: Proposed amendment to the Town Code Title 

XI, Article 120 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL
EXHIBIT A  

LEAGUE OF CITIES & TOWNS 
IMPLEMENTATION GUIDELINES 

Small Cell Overview 

On March 31, 2017, Arizona became the first state to adopt wireless industry-supported legislation 

granting right of way access to wireless providers to deploy technology known as small cell. Small cells 

are defined by the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) as low-powered wireless base stations 

that typically provide coverage for targeted indoor or localized outdoor areas ranging in size from 

homes and offices to stadiums, shopping malls, hospitals and metropolitan outdoor spaces. The 

installations of this equipment help wireless carriers add capacity to their networks to provide better 

access to cell phone coverage and high-speed wireless data services. 

HB 2365 was supported by the four major wireless companies, AT&T, T-Mobile, Verizon and Sprint, as 

part of a nationwide effort to remove “overly-burdensome siting ordinances” and “excessive fees to 

gain access to municipal rights of way” to expedite the deployment of these wireless facilities and meet 

the exponential growth in mobile data usage. Florida, Colorado, Texas and Virginia are among the states 

that have adopted similar legislation while other states are considering bills on this subject. 

Each introduced bill is different, but they all have common elements such as expedited timelines for 

processing applications, reduced and capped fees for right of way use and applications, presumed 

application approvals and limited scope for local governments to deny applications, and prohibited or 

limited zoning authority over attachments and new poles. The FCC has also taken steps to expedite 

deployment of wireless infrastructure by releasing a notice of proposed rulemaking in April of this year 

seeking comment on how current federal, state and local regulations impact the speed and cost of 

deploying wireless infrastructure, among other issues. 

CTIA, the wireless industry’s trade association, cites FCC data estimates showing that today nearly 70% 

of high-speed broadband usage in Arizona is conducted on mobile devices and wireless subscriptions 

have grown by 24% since 2010. In addition, they estimate wireless data usage has increased 238% since 

2015. 

In an effort to increase network capacity to support this demand for wireless connectivity, wireless 

companies have been deploying small cells on city-owned infrastructure, such as street lights and traffic 

signals, to increase cell coverage in areas that are not being served or are underserved by traditional 

macro cell towers. The technology is called small cell, but the equipment can be up to 28 cubic feet, the 

size of a household refrigerator, with up to six cubic feet of antennas, and attached to utility poles that 

can be up to 50 feet tall. Without standards to manage where new utility poles are erected and small 

cells installed, and how they blend in with the surrounding community, citizens will benefit from the 

increased cellular connectivity but could face increased visual blight and decreased property values. 

In Arizona, small cells that have been deployed added capacity to wireless networks to provide flexible 

coverage that businesses and citizens of our state rely on while maintaining the visual character of the 



community. Our cities and towns recognize that the growing digital economy requires a new and robust 

network of infrastructure coupled with a regulatory framework that allows for the fast deployment of 

new technology without sacrificing the aesthetics of our communities. That is why cities and towns of 

Arizona worked with the industry on crafting HB 2365 to allow for the streamlined deployment of small 

cell equipment while achieving our primary goal to manage design standards, require equipment to be 

stealth and concealed and meet applicable codes and public safety regulations, among other 

requirements. 

Small cells and utility poles that meet these standards and specified size requirements are exempt from 

zoning review, which will expedite the siting process. Larger monopole structures and wireless facilities 

are subject to zoning review and all regulatory processes for managing the rights of way, which will 

provide cities and towns flexibility in determining the appropriate location and concealment of this 

equipment. 

Cities and towns that have already been working with wireless carriers on small cell equipment siting 

will need to thoroughly review this new law to determine its impact on existing agreements, zoning 

codes and regulatory processes for siting new small cells, monopoles, and utility poles in the right of 

way. The League has published a document that will provide guidance on how to comply with this new 

law. 

For questions, please contact League Legislative Associate Tom Savage at tsavage@azleague.org. 

mailto:tsavage@azleague.org


LEGIS�TIVE
IMPLEMENTATION
GUIDELINES

HB 2365 
WIRELESS FACILITIES; 
RIGHTS-OF-WAY GUIDE
August, 2017



2 

The HB 2365 Guide, published as a service to the members of the League of Arizona 
Cities and Towns, does not identify every provision of this new law.  It is neither 
designed nor intended to provide legal advice or counsel.  It should be used only as a 
reference tool and not as a comprehensive guidance document.  In certain limited 
instances, the Guide does highlight action items that should be considered by cities and 
towns.  In no case, however, should the Guide substitute for the independent judgment of 
your city or town manager or attorney.   



3 

Contents 

A. Introduction ......................................................................... 4

B.   Effective Dates ..................................................................... 5 

C.   Key definitions ...................................................................... 5 

D.   Application processes .......................................................... 6 

1. Applications that are NOT subject to zoning review: ........ 6 

2. Applications subject to zoning review: ............................... 8 

E.  Rates and fees ....................................................................... 9 

F.   Terms and conditions .......................................................... 10 

G.  Existing agreements ............................................................ 11 

H.  Frequently asked questions ................................................ 12 



4 

A. Introduction

On March 31, 2017 HB 2365 wireless facilities; rights-of-way was signed into law, 
which allows wireless providers to install and operate small cells and related equipment 
in city, town and county rights-of-way (ROW) and public easements, excluding 
deployment in areas outside of the right-of-way, on private easements or on electric 
distribution poles. Small cells are low-powered wireless base stations that typically 
provide coverage for targeted indoor or localized outdoor areas ranging in size from 
homes and offices to stadiums, shopping malls, hospitals and metropolitan outdoor 
spaces. The installations of this equipment in city and town rights-of-way help wireless 
carriers add capacity to their networks to provide better access to cell phone coverage 
and high-speed wireless data services in areas that are not being served by traditional 
cell sites.    

The legislation also allows the wireless provider to construct, install, modify, 
mount, maintain, operate and replace utility poles that are associated with the 
collocation of small cells and to construct, install, modify, mount, maintain, operate and 
replace monopoles1 that are associated with the collocation of wireless  facilities (not 
just small cells) in the ROW.   

While the legislation set the fees for small cells, it is silent on the fees for 
monopoles. Cities and towns are required to accept and process applications for the 
installation of new monopoles in the ROW2 and to establish and make available rates, 
fees and terms for such monopoles.3  Siting of monopoles is subject to zoning codes 
and other regulatory processes governing use of the ROW.4 The installation, 
modification and replacement of monopoles are subject to municipal review regardless 
of the height of the monopole.5   

Cities and towns that have already been working with wireless carriers on small 
cell equipment siting will need to thoroughly review this new law to determine its 
impact on existing agreements, existing zoning codes and regulatory processes for 
siting new small cells, monopoles, and utility poles in the ROW.    

1 ARS 9-592(H)(3) 
2 ARS 9-594(C)(1) 
3 ARS 9-592(E)(1) 
4 ARS 9-594(A) 
5 ARS 9-592(H)(3) 



5 
 

B. Effective Dates 

The effective date of HB 2365 is August 9, 2017. Cities and towns are required to 
establish and make available rates, fees and terms that are consistent with HB 2365 by 
February 9, 2018 or three months after receiving the first request by a wireless 
provider, whichever is later.6 

C. Key definitions7 

Applicable Codes:  Uniform building, fire, electrical, plumbing or mechanical codes 
that are adopted by a recognized national code organization or local amendments to 
those codes that are enacted to address threats of destruction of property or injury 
to persons.  

Authority: Cities and towns 

Authority utility pole: a utility pole, excluding a utility pole for electric distribution, 
that is owned or operated by an authority and that is in a ROW.  

Monopole: a wireless support structure that is not more than 40 inches in diameter 
at the ground level and that has all of the wireless facilities mounted on or inside of 
the pole.  

Small wireless facility (SWF): a wireless facility that meets the following size 
qualifications of not more than: 

1. 6 cubic feet of antennas, enclosed or fits within an imaginary enclosure;  
2. 28 cubic feet of wireless equipment; and 
3. 50 cubic feet of wireless equipment only if it was ground-mounted prior to 

August 9, 2017.  

Equipment not included in size calculation: 
1. Electric meters 
2. Concealment elements 
3. Demarcation boxes 
4. Grounding equipment 
5. Power transfer switches 
6. Cutoff switches 
7. Vertical cable runs 

                                                            
6 A.R.S. §§ 9-592(E), 9-595(D)  
7 A.R.S. § 9-591 



6 

Utility pole: a pole or similar structure used in whole or part for communications 
services, electric distribution, lighting or traffic signals. 

Wireless facility: Equipment, including small wireless facilities, that enables 
wireless communications between user equipment and a communications network, 
including:  

1. Equipment associated with wireless communications; and
2. Radio transceivers, antennas, coaxial or fiber-optic cables, regular and

backup power supplies and comparable equipment.

Wireless support structure: a freestanding structure, such as a: 
1. Monopole;
2. Guyed or self-supporting tower;
3. Sign or billboard; or
4. Any other existing or proposed structure designed to support, or capable of

supporting SWFs.
The definition does not include a utility pole. 

D. Application processes

1. Applications that are NOT subject to zoning review:

Utility poles 

A new, replacement or modified utility pole for SWF collocations installed in the 
ROW is NOT subject to zoning review or approval if it does not exceed the greater of 
either (i) 10 feet above the tallest existing utility pole (excluding utility poles supporting 
only wireless facilities), that is located within 500 feet of the proposed site for the new, 
replacement or modified pole if that existing pole was in place prior to August 9, 2017, 
but the new pole cannot be more than 50 feet above ground level; or (ii) 40 feet above 
ground level. The existing utility pole that is used as the basis for the new, replacement 
or modified utility pole must be in the same ROW and jurisdictional boundary of the city 
or town.  

If there is no existing verticality, the new, replacement or modified utility pole 
may not exceed 40 feet above ground level.8  

Applications are required to be approved unless the utility pole does not comply 
with9: 

8 A.R.S. § 9-592(I)(1), (2) 
9 A.R.S. § 9-592(K) 



7 

1. Applicable Codes;
2. Code provisions or regulations that concern public safety;
3. Objective design standards;
4. Reasonable stealth and concealment requirements;
5. Undergrounding requirements;
6. Undergrounding requirements that may require a waiver before a new pole or

monopole can be installed in the ROW without prior approval.  The
undergrounding requirements cannot prohibit the replacement of utility poles
or monopoles.

7. Contractual requirements between a city or town and a private property
owner concerning design standards for utility poles in the ROW; or

8. Reasonable spacing requirements concerning the location of new utility poles
in the ROW.

SWFs 

Collocations of new small wireless facilities are NOT subject to zoning review and 
approval if they do not exceed 10 feet above the utility pole or wireless support 
structure (defined as including a monopole if there was an existing one in the ROW) 
and do not exceed 50 feet above ground level.10  

Applications for a permit to collocate SWFs to utility poles in the ROW, in any 
zone, are required to be approved unless the application does not meet; 

1. Applicable Codes;
2. Code provisions or regulations that concern public safety;
3. Objective design standards for decorative utility poles;
4. Reasonable stealth and concealment requirements; or
5. Reasonable spacing requirements concerning the location of ground-mounted

equipment.11

Note: If a city or town determines that the utility pole or wireless support 
structure must be replaced prior to collocation, the application to collocate may 
be conditionally approved pending replacement of the utility pole or wireless 
support structure. Requests for replacement utility poles are to be processed 
pursuant to A.R.S. § 9-592.  

10 A.R.S. § 9-592(J)  
11 A.R.S. § 9-593(F)(4) 



8 

Consolidated applications for the collocation of up to 25 SWFs may be submitted 
by an applicant only if all SWFs included are substantially the same type and involve 
substantially the same type of structure.12 SWF collocations may be removed from the 
application and considered separately if incomplete information was provided, the SWF 
does not qualify for consolidated treatment or the SWF is subject to a denial.13 

If a city or town denies an application for not meeting one or more of the 
requirements listed above, documentation must be submitted to the applicant on or 
before the date of denial that includes the specific code provisions, regulations or 
requirements on which the denial was based.  

The applicant may resubmit the application to cure the deficiencies that the 
denial was based on within 30 days after denial. The city or town must approve or deny 
the resubmitted application within 30 days of receipt with no additional fee charged to 
the applicant. The review of the resubmitted application is limited to the deficiencies 
that were cited for the basis or denial.14 

Listed below are the application timelines for small wireless facilities and utility 
poles and collocations to authority utility poles that are NOT subject to zoning review. 
If a city or town takes no action on the application within the specified time frame, the 
application is deemed approved.15 

20 days to determine and notify applicant 
if application is complete 

75 days to take action on application 
30 days to take action on revised 

applications  

2. Applications subject to zoning review:

The modification of existing or the installation of new monopoles, the installation
or collocation of wireless facilities, and the installation of utility poles and SWFs that 
exceed the heights that are exempt from zoning review are subject to all of the zoning 
codes, regulations and regulatory processes governing the rights-of-way.16  

12 A.R.S. § 9-593(D) 
13 A.R.S. § 9-593(F)(6) 
14 A.R.S. § 9-593(F)(5) 
15 A.R.S. §§ 9-593(F)(2), 9-593(F)(3), 9-595(D)(1) Note: Statute requires applications for collocating to authority utility poles 
to be processed in the same manner as applications to collocate to utility poles 
16 A.R.S. § 9-594(B) 



9 

Cities and towns are permitted to require reasonable appearance and 
concealment requirements and setback or fall zone requirements for these structures17 
and prohibit, regulate and charge for the collocation of a wireless facility on municipally-
owned wireless support structures.18 

The following are the time frames established for processing applications: 

30 days to determine and notify applicant 
if application is complete 

150 days to take action on application 

Collocation of wireless facilities19: 

30 days to determine and notify applicant if 
application is complete 

90 days to take action on application 

Note: The application time period for approval may be tolled to accommodate requests 
for information or extended by mutual agreement of the applicant and the city or 
town20. 

A city or town may deny an application only if there is a reasonable basis for the 
denial and the denial is not discriminatory against the applicant with respect to the 
placement of the facilities of other wireless providers. If an application is denied, the 
city or town must notify the applicant in writing and provide substantial supporting 
evidence for the reason for denial.21  

Rates and fees 

Cities and towns are permitted to charge wireless providers a rate or fee for the 
use of and activities conducted in the ROW. Rates and fees are limited to the direct and 
actual cost of managing the ROW and may only be charged if other ROW users, such as 
telecom providers and utilities, are charged ROW use fees and there is legal authority 
for the fee.22  

The rate or fee charged may not do any of the following: 

17 A.R.S. § 9-594(E) 
18 A.R.S. § 9-595(E) 
19 A.R.S. § 9-594(C)(3) 
20 A.R.S. § 9-594(C)(3) Note: Statute allows the time period to be tolled to accommodate timely requests for information or 
may be extended by mutual agreement of the city or town and the applicant. 
21 A.R.S. § 9-594(C)(4) 
22 A.R.S. § 9-592(C) 



10 

1. Result in a double recovery where existing rates, fees or taxes already recover
ROW management costs;

2. Be in the form of a franchise or other revenue-based fees;
3. Be unreasonable or discriminatory;
4. Exceed the specified rate caps (see chart below).23

In addition, rates and fees are capped as follows:

ROW use fee24 $50/year x number of SWFs 
ROW use fee for monopoles and 
associated wireless facilities25 

Limited to not more than the direct and 
actual cost of managing the ROW 

Authority utility pole attachment26 $50/year 

Application for collocating SWFs27: 

SWF collocation 
$100 per SWF up to five 
$50 per additional SWF 

Batched applications up to 25 SWFs28: 

First five SWFs @ $100 $500 
Additional 20 sites @ $50 $1,000 

Total for batch of 25 $1,500 

Utility pole and monopole applications: 

New, replacement or modified utility poles 
NOT subject to zoning review29 $750 

New, replacement or modified monopoles 
and utility poles and collocation of wireless 
facilities subject to zoning review30 

$1,000 

E. Terms and conditions

In addition to the establishment of rates and fees described above, cities and 
towns are required to establish and make available to wireless providers terms and 
conditions for the following activities conducted in the ROW: 

23 A.R.S. § 9-592(D)  
24 A.R.S. § 9-592(C)(4) 
25 A.R.S. § 9-594(D)(5) 
26 A.R.S. § 9-595(C) 
27 A.R.S. §§ 9-593(I), 9-593(J) 
28 A.R.S. § 9-592(D) 
29 A.R.S. § 9-592(L)  
30 A.R.S. § 9-594(E)(3) 



11 

1. Construction, installation, mounting, maintenance, operation or
replacement of utility poles and monopoles;

2. Collocation of SWFs;
3. Collocation of wireless facilities on or within a monopole
4. Collocation of SWFs on authority utility poles.31

The standard terms and conditions MAY NOT: 

1. Be unreasonable or discriminatory
2. Require the placement of SWFs on any specific utility pole or category of

poles
3. Require multiple antenna systems on a single utility pole
4. Require minimum separation distances for SWFs.

The standard terms and conditions may, however, include requirements that are 
applicable to other ROW users and require that the operation of SWFs do not interfere 
with public safety communications.32  The terms must reasonably accommodate power 
supply and electric metering for the SWF.   

The wireless provider may accept the standard terms and conditions or they may 
negotiate with the city or town for different or additional terms.  

The legislation is silent as to whether the time deadlines for granting or denying 
the application are then tolled while the negotiations are taking place.    

Existing agreements 

Existing agreements with wireless providers that are in effect on August 9, 2017 
will remain in effect subject to applicable termination provisions. Wireless providers may 
accept the new rates, fees and terms that are consistent with HB 2365 for SWF’s and 
utility poles that are the subject of an application submitted after the rates, fees and 
terms become effective. .33  

31 A.R.S. §§ 9-592(E), 9-595(D) 
32 A.R.S. §§ 9-592(F), 9-595(D) 
33 A.R.S. § 9-592(G)  



12 

Frequently asked questions 

Q. Relocation of wireless equipment?

A. A.R.S. § 9-596(D) requires wireless equipment to be relocated at no cost to 
the city or town in order to accommodate a public project but does not specify any 
particular type of project. 

Q. Are cities and towns permitted to apply spacing requirements for siting of
new utility poles and equipment? 

A. A.R.S. § 9-592(K)(4) allows cities and towns to apply “reasonable” spacing 
requirements to applications for new utility poles in the ROW in addition to “reasonable” 
spacing for ground-mounted equipment.  

Q. Are cities and towns able to reserve space on poles as well as conduit and
fiber? 

A. A.R.S. § 9-593(G)(1) prohibits cities and towns from requiring applicants to 
reserve conduit, fiber or pole space on a wireless provider’s pole for the city or town. 
There is no similar prohibition for municipally-owned poles.  

Q. What period of time does the new law provide for wireless providers to
operate their equipment in the ROW? 

A. Application approval allows the applicant to operate and maintain new,
modified or replacement poles34 and SWFs35 for 10 years, subject to applicable 
relocation requirements and terms and conditions. 

Q. Is there a time frame within which the wireless provider must complete
construction or installation of the small cell for operational use? 

A. Yes.  For utility poles36 the construction, installation, mounting, maintenance,
modification, operation or replacement for which a permit is granted shall be completed 
within 180 days after the permit issuance date, unless the city or town and the wireless 
provider agree to extend the period or a delay is caused by lack of commercial power at 
the site and for small cells, they must be operational within that time period.37   

34 A.R.S. § 9-592(M)(2) 
35 A.R.S. § 9-593(H)(3) 
36 ARS 9-592(M)  
37 ARS 9-593(E) and ARS 9-593(H) (collocations) 



13 

Q. What ability does a city or town have to address the radio frequency (RF)
emissions from small cells? 

A. The city or town may require the applicant to certify that the SWF to be
collocated comply with the FCC’s regulations concerning RF emissions. Beyond that, 
there is no basis to deny access to the ROW if compliance is demonstrated.      

Q. What does the legislation say with respect to ground equipment?

A. A city or town may adopt reasonable requirements regarding the appearance
and concealment of facilities, including those relating to materials used for arranging, 
screening or landscaping.38  Facilities must be constructed, maintained and located so 
that they don’t obstruct, endanger or hinder the usual travel or public safety on the 
ROW.39 

Q. Who will own the replacement utility pole?

A. The city or town.40

38 ARS 9-594(E)(1) 
39 ARS 9-598 
40 ARS 9-595(D)(1) 























































 

ORDINANCE NO. 663-18 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE CODE OF ORDINANCES TITLE XI 
“BUSINESS REGULATIONS”, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, 
NEW PROVISIONS REGARDING SMALL WIRELESS 
FACILITIES AND RATES AND FEES FOR USE OF THE 
PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY AND TOWN STRUCTURES, 
(CASE PZ 18-22 ORD). 
 

 
WHEREAS, Arizona State Legislature passed House Bill 2365 amending 

the Arizona Revised Statutes by adding Title 9, Chapter 5, Article 8 "Use of 
Public Highways by Wireless Providers"; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council has determined that it is in the best interest 

of the residents of Florence to amend the Town of Florence Code of Ordinances, 
Title XI “Business Regulations” by adding Subsection 120 “Small Wireless 
Facilities”, as further set forth in Exhibit "A", which is attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission, after having held a 

public hearing on the case, has forwarded the Mayor and Town Council a 
unanimous favorable recommendation for the text amendment ordinance; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council has determined that, for the reasons set 

forth above and for the purpose of protecting the public health, safety and welfare 
of the residents and visitors of Florence, it is in the best interests of the Town to 
amend the Code of Ordinances as provided herein. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, as follows:  

Section 1. Any proposal for the construction or installation of new monopoles, 
poles associated with wireless facilities, or wireless facilities in the 
public right of way shall be subject to the following: Title XV Land 
Usage, Chapter 150 Development Code, Part 9 Wireless Communications 
Facilities Sections 150.180 to 150.184; the Town's licensing and permit 
requirements; the Town’s reasonable design review and 
development standards; the Town's reasonable rates and fees as 
adopted by the Town; and all other applicable regulatory processes. 

Section 2. Existing Title XI of the Town of Florence Code of Ordinances is 
hereby amended by the addition of new Subsection 120 as set forth 
in Exhibit "A." 



 

Section 3. Exhibit "A" is hereby approved, adopted and incorporated into the 
Town of Florence Code of Ordinances by reference, as fully as if set 
forth in this Ordinance in its entirety. 

Section 4. If any section, subsection, clause, phrase or portion of this Ordinance 
or any part of the amended and restated Town of Florence Code of 
Ordinances Title XI is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional 
by the decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision 
shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions thereof. 

Section 5. One (1) paper copy and one (1) electronic copy of this ordinance are 
ordered to remain on file with the Town Clerk. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 
Florence this 20th day of August, 2018. 

      ______________________________ 
      Tara Walter, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:                                             APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________ ______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 



TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
8d. 

MEETING DATE:  August 20, 2018 

DEPARTMENT:  Community Services 

STAFF PRESENTER:  John Nixon, Recreation Superintendent 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  
Subject:  Ordinance No. 664-18: Florence Youth Commission Meeting Date:  August 20, 2018 
Page 1 of 2 

SUBJECT:  Ordinance No. 664-18: Florence Youth Commission  2nd Reading
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 

Adoption of Ordinance No. 664-18:  AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, 
PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING CHAPTER 32 OF THE FLORENCE TOWN 
CODE BY ADDING SECTION § 32.200 ET SEQ., ESTABLISHING A YOUTH 
COMMISSION IN THE TOWN OF FLORENCE. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 

In 2017, the Town Council adopted a Strategic Plan that included the creation of a youth 
commission as an objective related to Community Vitality.  Staff has now drafted an 
application and bylaws for the proposed Florence Youth Commission for the Town 
Council’s consideration.  This application and bylaws to create a Youth Commission 
would further the Town Council’s and Town Staff’s commitment to improve the quality of 
life for Florence teens by direct representation in issues which affect them.   

Our current Florence Teen Council (FTC), created in July 2016, emphasizes the 
planning, coordination and implementation of teen programs and events.  While the 
FTC has occasionally expanded into areas of community service, its emphasis remains 
in programming and events.   

The vision for the proposed Youth Commission shifts emphasis to involvement with 
town government operations and to serve as a direct voice to the Mayor and Council.  If 
Council approves the creation of the Youth Commission, we predict that both youth 
organizations will at times, work together in various capacities; however, the main 



 

Subject:  Ordinance No. 664-18: Florence Youth Commission Meeting Date:  August 20, 2018 
Page 2 of 2 

emphasis for the Youth Commission, will be its dedication to representing the interests 
and desires of our local youth and recommending issues, concerns and policies to 
Town Staff and the Mayor and Council.  
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 
 
No further action will be taken to create a Florence Youth Commission. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

Staff will move forward with the marketing of the Florence Youth Commission and 
recruitment of applicants for appointment by the Town Council in September. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Funding for teen leadership and programming was included in the Recreation Division 
budget.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Ordinance No. 664-18  
Florence Youth Commission Guide 



ORDINANCE NO 664-18 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, AMENDING CHAPTER 32 OF THE FLORENCE TOWN CODE 
BY ADDING SECTION § 32.200 ET SEQ., ESTABLISHING A YOUTH 
COMMISSION IN THE TOWN OF FLORENCE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, Arizona believes it is 

in the best interest of the Town and its residents to establish a Youth Commission; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council, pursuant to Article 32.001 of the Town Code, 
are authorized to establish the Youth Commission for the purposes of promoting youth 
leadership and providing a voice for the Youth of the Town of Florence. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 
That Chapter 32 of the Florence Town Code is hereby amended by adding Section § 
32.200, et seq., the following: 
  
32.200 Youth Commission 
 
(A) Membership. To carry out the responsibilities and duties set forth herein, there is 
hereby created a Youth Commission to consist of five (5) voting members and two 
alternates.   
 

(1) The members of the Youth Commission shall be appointed and shall serve two 
years term. The initial appointment shall have two members who serve one-
year term.   Terms will expire October 1. If a vacancy occurs on the 
Commission, the first alternate member will complete the unexpired term, 
followed by the second alternate member. Alternate will assume the expired 
term of the vacating member.  Members shall serve until their successors are 
appointed. 
 

(2) Membership Qualifications: All members must live within the town limits of 
Florence, be between the ages of 14 – 18 years old (or be in the 9th to 12th 
grade) and have at least a 2.00 GPA. Members may serve until their 19th 
birthday.  

 
(3) The Commission may organize committees and adopt rules and procedures 

necessary to accomplish its purpose. 
 

 
 (B) Duties. The Commission shall act as an advisory body to the Town Council and the 
Parks and Recreation Advisory Board and make recommendations regarding but not 
limited to: 



 
(1) Policies, priorities, and plans for promoting, advancing, and maintaining youth 

activities; 
 

(2) Encouraging the promotion of youth leadership; 
 
(3) Setting annual goals to be identified in the Strategic Plan as Youth Commission 

projects and approved by Town Council. 
 
(4) Review and approve the official minutes from all Youth Commission meetings. 
 
(5) Establish, support and participate in planned public relation events to better 

inform the public of youth programs, services and views.  
 

(C) Meetings.    
(A) The Youth Commission Shall hold monthly meetings.  

 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, this 20th day of August 2018. 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Tara Walter, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_____________________________  ______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Town of Florence 

 
Community Services 

 
 
 
 

FLORENCE YOUTH COMMISSION  
“Leaders of tomorrow, serving today” 

“Today’s students, tomorrow’s leaders” 
 
 
 
 

Youth Commission Guide 
Goals, Application & Bylaws  



Town of Florence Youth Commission Information 
 

Goals: 
 

 Educate youth in the operation of town government and give them a meaningful voice  
 Provide a link to the Mayor and Council by representing our community’s youth 
 Express their concerns, needs and suggestions to Town officials 
 Recommend policies and programs to Mayor and Council which would benefit all 

Florence youth 
 Increase knowledge and opportunity of civic education through hands-on experience 
 Research and recommend valuable partnerships within the community  
 Promote and assume an active role in the exchange of information on youth 

development  
 

 
Benefits: 

 Develop leadership skills 
 Learn responsibility and accountability 
 Networking and develop new friendships 
 Personal development 
 Strengthen resumes for scholarships, higher education and future work opportunities 
 Serve as a voice for the youth in our community 
 Serve as a youth advocate 
 Increased understanding of government functions 
 Increased understanding of future government employment opportunities  
 Impact the community with recommendations and observations on teen issues and 

concerns  
 Direct line to decision makers in the community  

 
Mission Statement:  

 (To be determined by the first Youth Commission) 
 

 

  



 

 

Town of Florence Youth Commission  
Application 

 
 
The Florence Youth Commission is open to all high school aged students living in Florence.  
This includes but is not limited to Florence Unified School District, online secondary schools or 
secondary charter schools.  Students must be in grades 9-12 and/or between the ages of 14-18.  
Deadline to submit applications is Friday, August 31, 2018.  Applications may be submitted 
at the Florence Library and Community Center, 778 N. Main Street or mailed to:  Florence 
Youth Commission, c/o Florence Community Services Department, P.O. Box 2670, Florence, 
AZ 85132.     

 
 
 
Full Name:           Male        Female   

Home Address:         Date of Birth:    

City:             Zip:     

Home Phone: (  )     Cell Phone: (  )    

Grade_______ School__________________________________ 
 
E-mail:                  

 

Parent or Guardian Name(s):           

“I give my permission for _____________________________________to apply to the Town  
 
of Florence Youth Commission.”  
 
Parent/Guardian Signature:____________________________________Date:______________ 

Parent Contact Number: ____________________________________  

Parent Email:_____________________________________________ 

Cell Phone:_______________________________________________  

 

 



Applicant Questions: 

How did you hear about the Florence Youth Commission? (Please circle any that apply) 

Parent    Friend    Media (which one)    

Mayor/Council   School    Other:      

 

Why are you applying to serve on the Florence Youth Commission?  

  ______________________________________________________________ 

            ___ 

            ___ 

 

What interests and talents would you bring to the Youth Commission if you are selected?  

             

             

             

 

What are three main issues facing the youth in Florence?  

_______________________________________________________________________ 

      ____________________________________ 

             

 

List your community or school volunteer and/or work experience(s).  

             

          ______________ 

             

 

 



What is your vision or expectations of the Florence Youth Commission?  

             

             

             

 

 

 

List two adult (non-relatives) references who would recommend you for the Youth Commission. 
This could be a teacher, employer, community member or a family friend.   
 

 
Name:          Phone:      

Address_____________________________________________________________________ 

Email:_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Name:          Phone:      

Address_____________________________________________________________________ 

Email:_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

NOTE:   Selected members of the Florence Youth Commission must attend regular monthly 
meetings (and others as decided by the commission), and be an active participant in the 
Commission and selected activities. Members can be removed from the Commission after three 
unexcused absences.  Your signature below indicates you agree and understand the duties and 
responsibilities of a Florence Youth Commission member. 
 
 
 

Print Name       
 

Signature         Date 
 
  



  

 

Town of Florence Youth Commission  
Bylaws 

 
ARTICLE I 
 
Section 1 – Representation  
The Town of Florence Youth Commission seeks a diverse membership from the Florence 
community to represent our youth.  Local high school aged students are encouraged to apply.   
Section 2 – Goals and Purposes  
The Youth Commission will serve as a link between the youth of Florence, the community and 
Town Council.   Members will be responsible for communication between youth and adults to 
improve teen activities, observations and develop leadership skills among Florence teens.  
Section 3 – Membership Qualifications  
All members must live within the town limits of Florence, be between the ages of 14 – 18 years 
old (or be in the 9th to 12th grade) and have at least a 2.00 GPA.  
Section 4 – Term Limits  
One two year term of service is expected but members may remain on the Youth Commission 
until they graduate from high school or have their 19th birthday.   
Section 5 – Appointment of Members  
The Mayor and Town Council will appoint the members of the Youth Commission.  The Mayor 
and Council member may appoint five applicants and two alternates to the Commission.  The 
Community Services Department staff and Parks and Recreation Advisory Board Members will 
make recommendations to the Mayor and Council.   
Section 6 – Orientation  
New members of the Youth Commission are required to attend a training orientation upon 
appointment to the Commission.   
Section 7 – Conduct  
All members of the Florence Youth Commission will conduct themselves in a positive, 
professional manner at all times.  Behavior such as smoking, consuming alcohol or using illegal 
drugs will not be tolerated and are grounds for immediate dismissal.    



ARTICLE II  
 
OFFICES  
Section 1 – Offices  
The Recreation Superintendent shall serve as temporary chair in order to elect the officers.  The 
Commission shall elect a Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, and Secretary.  The candidate 
receiving a majority vote from Commission members is elected.  
Section 2 – Officer Duties  
The duties of the officers shall be as follows:  
a. The Chairperson shall preside at the meetings of the Florence Youth Commission and 
administer the affairs of the Youth Commission, with assistance from the Community Services 
Department.  The Chairperson shall perform such other duties as provided by these bylaws 
and/or by direction from the Florence Town Council.   
b. The Vice Chair shall perform the duties and exercise the power of the Chair during the 
absence or by request of the Chair.  
c. The Secretary shall determine a quorum for the meeting and take meeting notes. The 
Secretary conducts roll call at the start of each meeting. The Secretary shall preside and 
perform the duties and exercise the power of the Chair during the absence of both the Chair and 
the Vice Chair.  
Section 3 – Election of Officers  
Youth Commission Officers shall be elected annually. The officers shall be elected by a majority 
vote of the Commission members present.  
Section 4 – Term of Officers  
The term of all officers is one year.  However, all officers shall continue to hold office until their 
successors are elected. Officers shall be elected at the first Youth Commission meeting each 
year.  
Section 5 – Vacancies of Officers  
Should a vacancy occur in an office of the Florence Youth Commission for any reason, the 
office shall be filled by an election at the next regular meeting of the Commission.   



ARTICLE III  
 
MEETINGS  
Section 1 – Regular Meetings Procedures  
Regular meetings of the Florence Youth Commission will be held once a month at a day and 
time determined by its members.  The principal meeting place of the Youth Commission will be 
the Florence Community Center.  Before convening a Commission meeting, the Recreation 
Coordinator shall inform the Town Clerk of the meeting subject matter. The Town Clerk shall 
give public notice of the meeting in accordance with the requirements of the Arizona Open 
Meetings Law. This notice shall include posting on the Town of Florence official website.  
Section 2 – Special Meetings  
The Commission Chairperson may call a Special Meeting with approval from the Recreation 
Superintendent. Request for Special Meetings shall be sent to the Town Clerk at least 48 hours 
in advance of the meeting. This request shall include the reason or reasons for requesting the 
Special Meeting. The Recreation Superintendent shall notify each member of the Commission 
via electronic mail or by telephone.  
Section 3 – Open Meetings  
All meetings of the Town of Florence Youth Commission are open to the public and subject to 
all requirements of the Arizona’s Open Meeting Laws.  
Section 4 – Quorum  
The presence of a majority of the entire membership of Florence Youth Commission shall 
constitute a quorum at its meetings.  A quorum is required to conduct official Commission  
business at any meeting.  
Section 5 – Voting  
The affirmative vote of a majority of the Commission members present shall be necessary to 
adopt a recommendation to be forwarded to the Florence Town Council for review and/or 
possible action.  
Section 6 – Order of Business  
The Chairperson of the Youth Commission shall call the members of the Commission to order. 
Before proceeding to business, the roll of the members shall be called, and the names of those 
present (and absent) entered in the minutes. If a quorum is present, the order of the business 
shall be:  



a. Pledge of Allegiance 
b. Roll call  
c. Approval of the minutes of the previous meeting  
c. Call to the Public  
d. Matters for consideration (new and old business) 
f. Adjournment  
Section 7 – Recordings of Meetings  
The proceedings of the Youth Commission shall be recorded by Community Services 
Department representative(s). Records shall be preserved in accordance with procedures  
established by the Town Clerk.    
Section 8 – Conduct of Members  
No member of the Youth Commission shall interfere with the orderly progress of the meeting by 
leaving his or her seat or engaging in unnecessary conversation. Any member responsible for 
any unprofessional conduct will be excused from the rest of the meeting and reported to the 
Recreation Coordinator.  Members will be removed from the Commission for three excuses.  
 
A Commission member may lose eligibility under the Conduct of Members for any of the 
following behaviors:  
� possession, use, or purchase of tobacco products  
� possession, use, or purchase of alcoholic beverages, including beer and wine (“use” included 
having the odor of alcohol on one’s breath)  
� possession, use, or purchase of illegal drugs or the unauthorized possession, use, sale or 
purchase of otherwise lawful drugs  
� engaging in any act that would be grounds for arrest or citation in the criminal or juvenile court 
system, excluding minor traffic offenses, regardless of whether the student was cited, arrested, 
convicted, or adjudicated for the act(s)  
� inappropriate or offensive conduct such as fighting, hazing or harassment of others, or 
insubordination - refusing to cooperate with staff to the point that a Town employee is involved 
at the scene or law enforcement is called to resolve the situation  
� posting inappropriate or offensive material on a social media website (i.e. Twitter, Facebook, 
Instagram, YouTube, Snap Chat, etc.) that would be accessible to the general public  
 
Section 9 – Attendance  
Attendance at all Youth Commission meetings and activities is expected from all members. 
Arriving on time (punctuality) is also expected.  If a member cannot attend due to sickness or 
other legitimate reason, the member must notify the Recreation Superintendent who shall notify 
the Youth Commission Chair.  Any member who fails to appear and answer to his or her name 
when the roll is called at any regular meeting or special meeting shall be recorded as absent 
(excused or unexcused). Any member who has misses 75% of required 12 meetings and 50% 
of sanctioned events, or three consecutive regular meetings (excused or unexcused) shall be 
reported back to their Town Council representative and subject to removal.  
 
ARTICLE IV  
 
TOWN COUNCIL ROLE   
Section 1 – Role of Town Council  
The Florence Town Council shall receive and consider recommendations from the Florence 
Youth Commission.  The Town Council shall provide support staff to the Youth Commission to  
assist it in carrying out its duties. The Town Council shall communicate upcoming issues to the 



Youth Commission so it may review and respond accordingly. The Town of Florence Town 
Council reserves the right to amend or disband the Youth Commission at any time.  
 
ARTICLE V  
 
BYLAWS AND AMENDMENTS  
Section 1 – Bylaws and Amendments  
The Youth Commission bylaws shall be reviewed once annually. The bylaws may be amended 
at a regular stated meeting under these conditions: a majority of the Commission members 
approve the amendment in a roll call vote; the amendment is part of the meeting agenda and 
the members were notified in writing. Final approval of bylaws and amendments must come 
from the Town of Florence Town Council in order to take effect.  
 
ARTICLE VI  
 
REWARDS AND RECOGNITION   
Section 1 – Rewards and Recognition  
The Town of Florence Town Council will determine an appropriate method for recognizing 
successful participation in the Florence Youth Commission.  A decision will be made at the end 
of each appointee’s annual term to determine how they will be recognized for their hard work 
and dedication. Representatives from Community Services will assist and recommend to the 
Mayor and Council members methods to recognize and reward Commission members.  
 
 

 
 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
 9a. 

MEETING DATE:  August 20, 2018 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Benjamin Bitter, Assistant to the Town 
Manager 
 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  
Subject: Resolution No. 1662-18 TO Cemetery Spaces                                              Meeting Date:  August 20, 2018 
Page 1 of 2 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 1662-18: to provide cemetery lots to 
members of the Tohono O’odham Nation, to rescind a past 
resolution, and to set future rates

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    

 Leadership and Governance     Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure
 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Adopt Resolution No. 1662-18:  A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, 
PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF THE REMAINING PLOTS 
OF BLOCK 29 OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE CEMETERY TO THE TOHONO 
O’ODHAM NATION, RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 544-96, AND ESTABLISHING 
FUTURE RATES FOR CEMETERY SERVICES AT THE THEN PREVAILING RATE. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
On February 20, 1996, the Town of Florence adopted Resolution No. 544-96, which 
authorized an Intergovernmental Agreement between the Town and the Tohono 
O’odham Nation.  The Agreement set forth the terms of a partnership by which the 
Tohono O’odham Nation would have exclusive rights to Block 29 of the Town of 
Florence Cemetery, and set an interment fee of $26.00 for each burial plot.  Other fees 
were applicable, if the Tohono O’odham Nation used Town of Florence personnel 
and/or equipment for preparations or other accommodations. 
 
During the course of a recent internal review, Staff determined that the Town of 
Florence had overcharged the Tohono O’odham Nation for the plots and services 
offered under the 1996 resolution.  A review of past transactions found that the Tohono 
O’odham Nation should have a credit on their account of $2,548 for these 
overpayments. 
 
The Tohono O’odham Nation approached the Town of Florence with a desire to 
purchase the remaining 180 plots within Block 29 of the Town of Florence Cemetery. 



Subject: Resolution No. 1662-18 TO Cemetery Spaces                                              Meeting Date:  August 20, 2018 
Page 2 of 2 

Because the purpose of the Intergovernmental Agreement and Resolution from 1996 
was to oversee the process of the sale of plots within Block 29, the Agreement will 
become moot upon the final sale of all plots within Block 29.  As such, it is necessary to 
terminate the former Intergovernmental Agreement, and provide to the Tohono 
O’odham Nation the “instrument of termination adopted by the terminating party’s 
governing board” as outlined in the Agreement (p. 4). 
 
The Town values its partnership with the Tohono O’odham Nation and Gu Achi District 
and look forward to continuing our relationship for many years. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN:  
 
The Town would issue a credit to the Tohono O’odham Nation to compensate for the 
past overcharges. Remaining plots would be sold, as needed, under the former 
agreement (at $26 per plot). Some additional fees would be at 1996 prices (if set apart 
in that agreement), while others would be at prevailing rate. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN:  
 
The Town would transfer ownership of the remaining 180 plots in Block 29 to the 
Tohono O’odham Nation, and would rescind Resolution 544-96.  This would the allow 
the Town to have uniform fees for additional services, thereby minimizing the possibility 
for future oversight. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The Town will receive a one-time payment of $4,680 for the remaining 180 plots 
(including the $2,548 credit that will be issued for past overpayments). The Community 
currently has sufficient funds for this purchase in their account with the Town of 
Florence. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1662-18 
Cemetery Map 
Letter from the Gu Achi District of the Tohono O’Odham Nation 



RESOLUTION NO. 1662-18 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF THE REMAINING PLOTS OF 
BLOCK 29 OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE CEMETERY TO THE 
TOHONO O’ODHAM NATION, RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 544-
96, AND ESTABLISHING FUTURE RATES FOR CEMETERY 
SERVICES AT THE THEN PREVAILING RATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Florence adopted Resolution No. 544-96 on February 

20, 1996, which set apart an Intergovernmental Agreement between the Tohono 
O’odham Nation and the Town relating to burial practices at the Town of Florence 
Cemetery; and 

  
WHEREAS, in Resolution No. 544-96, the Town set aside Block 29 of the 

Cemetery for the Tohono O’odham Nation, and the Tohono O’odham Nation has 
requested to purchase all remaining plots within Block 29 at the price agreed to in the 
Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town values its relationship with the Tohono O’odham Nation, 

the Gu-achi District, and the Florence Indian Community, and agrees to sell the 
remaining plots in Block 29 at the price agreed to in the Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, with the sale of the remaining plots within Block 29, the Town’s 

obligations under the Intergovernmental Agreement authorized by Resolution No. 544-
96 have been met; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Town recognizes the unique and distinct burial practices of the 

Tohono O’odham Nation, and wishes to accommodate these practices, while 
establishing that if additional services are requested by the Tohono O’odham Nation, 
that these services shall be charged at the prevailing rate. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the remaining plot in unit 29 will 
be sold to the Tohono O’Odham Nation. 

 
FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED THAT that Resolution No. 544-96 is rescinded 

and the underlying Intergovernmental Agreement is terminated and all future cemetery 
services will be provided at the prevailing rate at the time of service. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by a majority vote of the Mayor and Council of the 

Town of Florence on this 20th day of August 2018. 
 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________  ________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 







 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
9b. 

MEETING DATE:  August 20, 2018 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Development Services 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Christopher A. Salas,  
                                      Development Services Director 
                                      Town Engineer 
 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
Subject:   Cactus Transportation dba Cactus Asphalt  Contract                                Meeting Date:  August 20, 2018 
Page 1 of 3 

SUBJECT:  Contract with Cactus Transportation dba: Cactus 
Asphalt for asphalt maintenance and repair services  

 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

  Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance 

 Statutory    Partnership and Relationships  Transportation and Infrastructure 

 None 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to enter into a contract with Cactus Transportation, dba: Cactus Asphalt, using 
the Cooperative Contract, through Pinal County JOC Contract #173923 Asphalt 
Maintenance & Repair Services, which includes the application of Chip Seal Binder: 
Polymer Modified Asphalt Rubber and FOG Seal Binder for pavement preservation 
treatment.  in an amount not to exceed $364,018.24 (Proposal $316,537.60 with a 15% 
contingency, $47,480.64.) 

 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The surface of the various locations throughout Florence are worn and in need of asphalt 
preservation.  The areas targeted for the Fall of 2018 are on Exhibit B. 
 
Pinal County has an existing contract with Cactus Asphalt, and the Town of Florence has 
the opportunity to piggyback on the Pinal County Contract #175923.  On May 22, 2018, 
Pinal County entered into a contract with Cactus Asphalt to provide asphalt maintenance 
and repair services which includes binder pavement preservation treatment.  This 
contract expires May 22, 2019, with options to extend.  
 
Per section 4.12 of the Town’s Purchasing Policy, Department Heads must approve all 
purchases regardless of dollar value.  This does not preclude the Department Head from 
obtaining the necessary approval from the Town Manager and/or Town Council, nor 
does this allow them to have signature authority on contracts.  The Town Manager has 
signature authority on purchases up to $24,999.  Town Council approval is required on 
any purchases of $25,000 or more. 



Subject:   Cactus Transportation dba Cactus Asphalt  Contract                                Meeting Date:  August 20, 2018 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

 
Preventative maintenance would be delayed until the following fiscal year.  The asphalt 
pavement would continue to incrementally deteriorate.  As preventative maintenance is 
delayed the cost to maintain the streets is increased. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 
 
Preventative maintenance would occur as scheduled and the future costs would continue 
as projected. 

    
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The cost to Contract with Cactus Asphalt in amount of $316,537.60, plus 15% 
contingency of $47,480.64 making the not to exceed amount $364,018.24. 
 
The fixed fee proposed for this project has been negotiated by staff and obtained through a 
sole source selection.  Per section 4.4 of the Town’s Policy; 
  
 4.4 Sole Source Purchase 
   
Departments may procure and contract for supplies and services without using competitive 
procedures when it is clearly determined to be impractical to procure through the competitive 
bidding process.  The Department Head shall submit a Sole Source/Emergency Purchase 
Justification Form (Supplement 7.7) to the Town Manager for pre-approval.  If approved by 
Town Manager, the Department Head shall process the corresponding requisition. 
 
In the event a Sole Source Purchase exceeds $25,000, the Department Head shall obtain 
Town Council pre-approval, and, if approved, the purchase shall be processed by the 
Department in accordance with the Purchasing Policy. 
 
Services will be obtained following the Town’s Purchasing Policy, Section 5.63 Purchases of 
$25,000 or More (specifically, 5.6321 of Vendor Selection). 
 

5.632 Vendor Selection 
 

5.6321 Alternative purchase methods are identified if approved by necessity or by the Town 
Manager as indicated by Emergency / Sole Source Purchase, cooperative purchase, state 
contract or any other method authorized.  The Finance Director reviews for budget 
availability and bidding procedures.  The Town Manager reviews for need. 

 
4.12 Purchasing Policy  

  
Department Heads must approve all purchases regardless of dollar value.  This does not 
preclude the Department Head from obtaining the necessary approval from the Town 
Manager and/or Town Council, nor does this allow them to have signature authority on 
contracts.  The Town Manager has signature authority on purchases up to $24,999.  Town 
Council is required on any purchases of $25,000 or more. 
 



Subject:   Cactus Transportation dba Cactus Asphalt  Contract                                Meeting Date:  August 20, 2018 
Page 3 of 3 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 Exhibit A – Fall 2018 Scope of Work 
 Exhibit B – Map  
 Pinal County Contract #173923 
 Approved Bid Tab 
 Professional Services Contract 8.20.18 

 
 



To: TOWN OF FLORENCE Contact: Christopher Salas

Address: PO BOX 2670,  444 NORTH WARNER Phone: 520-868-7621

FLORENCE, AZ  85232 Fax: 520-868-7637

Florence Fall 2018 FASTProject Name: Bid Number:

Project Location: Various Streets, Florence, AZ Bid Date: 6/21/2018

Total PriceUnit PriceUnitItem DescriptionItem # Estimated Quantity

FY 18/19 Early (Fall 2018)

$115,776.00$576.00201.004-12 TONChip Seal Binder: Polymer Modified Asphalt Rubber (PG 64
-16, 16% Tire Rubber, 3% SBS Polymer) >100 TN

$20,502.00$102.00201.004-19 TONChip Seal Binder - Haul & Apply Services

$116,390.00$103.001,130.004-23 TONChip Seal Aggregate - HV Pre-Coated

$8,040.00$40.00201.004-28 TONTraffic Control-Chip Seal (Based On Binder Ton)

$9,635.00$235.0041.003-1 TONAsphalt Emulsion Fog Seal SS 1:1 Or CSS 1:1 <50 TN

$9,553.00$233.0041.003-13 TONFog Seal Binder - Haul & Apply Services

$5,658.00$138.0041.003-14 TONTraffic Control-FOG Sealing 

$5,400.00$75.0072.009-2 DYMessage Board (Per Unit Per Day)

$5,000.00$5,000.001.009-7 LSMiscellaneous Removals And Other Work:
Contingency For Bituminous Adjustments

$295,954.00Total Price for above FY 18/19 Early (Fall 2018) Items:

$295,954.00Bid Price Subtotal:

$20,583.60Pinal County, State And Florence 6.96%:

$316,537.60Total Bid Price:

Notes: • Standard Terms and Conditions to follow.
• All scheduling contingent upon mutual agreement of Owner and Cactus Asphalt.
• Prices above based on completing each task in one mobilization. If an additional mobilization is required, charges may apply.
• Quoted prices valid for 60 days unless otherwise noted.
• Cactus is not responsible for notification, nor removal of vehicles and property from work areas.
• Cactus will require this proposal with exclusions be included in any contractual agreement.
• Unit prices above include all applicable state, county & local taxes for contracting.
• In the event that quantites differ from above, billing will reflect agreed upon measured quantities.
• EXCLUSIONS (Unless Otherwise Specified): Permits, Plans, Engineering, Survey, Staking, As-Builts, Testing, Inspection,
Gradework, Landscape Areas, Weed Killer, Crack Routing, Crack-Sealing, Asphalt Patching, ABC or Landscape Materials,
Vegetation Replacement, Prime Coat, Concrete Structures, Irrigation or Pipe Work, Utility Removal or Relocation, Drywells,
Rip/Rap, Structural Backfill, Striping, Signage, Parking Bumpers Removal or Replacement, Import, Export, Excavation,

Subgrade Stabilization, Removal of Debris Generated by Other Trades, Erosion Control, Thickened Pavement Edge, Project
Information Sign And Any Special Insurance Requirements.

• Pricing Based off Pinal County JOC 175923

Page 1 of 48/2/2018 8:22:46 AM



ACCEPTED:

The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory 
and hereby accepted.

Buyer:

Signature:

Date of Acceptance:

CONFIRMED:

Cactus Asphalt

Authorized Signature:

Estimator: Jeff Smith

Page 2 of 48/2/2018 8:22:46 AM



TERMS AND CONDITIONS

GENERAL

Owner shall timely notify Cactus Asphalt (Cactus) in writing when the premises will be ready for work to commence,

and shall give unobstructed access to all areas where work is to be done.  Any necessary towing and costs of delays
shall be the responsibility of the owner.

Cactus is not responsible for any utility lines (water, electric, sprinkler, communications, cable, etc.) which may lie
within eighteen inches (18”) of the surface.  Owner is responsible for supplying all known layouts of any such utility 

lines which are known to exist.  Cactus is not responsible for damage to undisclosed, unknown or improperly placed
lines.

If Cactus encounters any different site condition or concealed condition, including but not limited to underground
utilities, debris, ground water, underground storage tanks, hazardous material, “hard dig” soils, or any material or 
substance regulated by federal, state, local law, ordinance, or regulation, any other environmental, health or safety

issue, or concern, or  other conditions,  that were unknown to Cactus before submission of this Proposal, the contract
price shall be equitably adjusted to compensate Cactus for any additional work performed or damages incurred as a

result of any such conditions.  At Cactus’ sole discretion, Cactus may stop all work on the project, until the parties
have reached an agreement, in writing, concerning any such equitable adjustment, and Cactus shall have no
obligation to perform any work which, as determined by Cactus, directly or indirectly involves any environmental,
health or safety risk or hazard.

The Owner is responsible for ensuring that all surfaces are kept in a condition acceptable to the application of the
agreed upon product.  This includes ensuring that all automatic sprinklers that may place water on the surface are

turned off.  Any delay caused by failure to perform the above may result in additional expense to the owner.

Cactus is not responsible for ponding water where grade is less than 2%.

Owner is to provide a water source that is acceptable to Cactus and is sufficient for performing the work.

Cactus is fully licensed and insured.  All Cactus employees are covered by Worker’s Compensation Insurance.

Unless otherwise agreed in writing, the prices contained within this agreement do not include the costs of permits or 
bonds.

WARRANTY

All work performed by Cactus is covered by a one year warranty on workmanship.  Normal wear and
tear, abuse, weather, and other acts of God are excluded.

PAYMENT AND TAXES

By law, taxes may only be waived upon receipt of a valid exemption certificate.  Taxes are determined in accordance

with the jurisdiction where the work is performed.  The owner is responsible for payment of all taxes.

Unless otherwise stated within this agreement, all payment is due upon transmittal of invoice.  In addition to other 

terms contained elsewhere in this proposal, Owner agrees to pay a service charge at the rate of 2% per month on all
accounts that become 10 days past due.  All costs of collection, as well as attorney’s fees, will be added to the

balance and interest due.

Cactus reserves the right (without further notice) to suspend or terminate this agreement if work is stopped for 30 or 
more days because of a failure to make progress payments or other delay not caused by Cactus.  In such event

Cactus reserves the right to recover payment for all work performed, including reasonable overhead, profit and
damages under the contract.

This agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with Arizona law, and any lawsuit or  
arbitration arising from this agreement must be filed in Maricopa County, Arizona.  If any provision of this

agreement is determined invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, that provision
alone will be deemed stricken and the remainder of the agreement will be enforced.



Any dispute arising from this agreement, not timely resolved after good faith negotiation, will be

submitted, at Cactus’s sole discretion, to mediation, binding arbitration, or litigation in state court. If  
mediation is elected, its completion is an express condition precedent to Cactus’s election of binding
arbitration or state court litigation. If Cactus elects arbitration, the arbitration will be governed by and

conducted in accordance with the Arizona Revised Uniform Arbitration Act at A.R.S. §12-1501, et seq.

A property owner has the right to file a written complaint with the

Arizona Registrar of Contractors for an alleged violation of A.R.S. §
32-1154(A).  Any such complaint must be filed within the applicable
time period set forth in A.R.S. § 32-1155(A). The Registrar’s phone

number is (602) 542-1525, and its website address is
http://www.azroc.gov/.





 

 

ROQ-175923 
JOC Asphalt 

Maintenance & Repair 
Services 

 
Pinal County 

Finance Department 
31 N. Pinal St. 

Bldg. A 
P.O. Box 1348 

Florence, AZ 85132 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 1 of 37 

 

 
 

NOTICE OF REVIEW OF QUALIFICATIONS 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Designated Agency: PINAL COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
  
Material or Service: JOC ASPHALT MAINTENANCE & REPAIR SERVICES 
  
Contract Type: FIRM FIXED PRICE 
  
Contract Period:  ONE (1) YEAR INITIAL TERM 

 FOUR (4) ONE-YEAR RENEWAL OPTIONS 
 

  
Pre-Submittal Conference: N/A 

 
 

Question Due Date: BY 5:00 PM ARIZONA TIME ON MAY 9, 2018 
  

  
Solicitation Due Date:  BY 2:00 PM ARIZONA TIME ON MAY 22, 2018 
  
Number of Copies Required: ELECTRONIC SUBMITTAL 
  

   Solicitation Opening Date:  BY 2:15 PM ARIZONA TIME ON  MAY 22, 2018 
  
Solicitation Opening Location: 31 NORTH PINAL STREET 

BUILDING A 
FLORENCE, AZ  85132 

  
Procurement Officer Contact 
Name: 

  
LORINA GILLETTE, CPPB  

  
Telephone: (520) 866- 6639 
  
Fax: (520) 866- 2903 
  
E-mail: Lorina.Gillette@pinalcountyaz.gov 



 

 

 
Table of Contents 

 
Pinal County 

Finance Department 
31 N. Pinal St. 

Bldg. A 
P.O. Box 1348 

Florence, AZ 85132 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 2 of 37 

 

 
 

 

SOLICITATION DOCUMENTS 

 

SCOPE OF WORK……………………………………………………………………………….…………….p.       3 

DEFINITIONS…………………………………………………………………………………………………...p.      7 

SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS……………………………………………………………………………………p.     10  

UNIFORM INSTRUCTIONS………………………………………………………………………………….. p. 13 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS…………………………………………………………………………………. p. 18 

ADDENDUM ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM…………………………………………………………….. p. 31 

W-9 FORM…………………………………………………………………………………………………….. p. 32 

RESPONDERS CHECKLIST………………………………….…………………………………………..... p. 33 

OFFER AND ACCEPTANCE FORM……..……………….…………………………………………………p. 34 

 

 

 

EXHIBITS AND ATTACHMENTS 

Attachment A – Bonfire Submission Instructions for Suppliers 

 

END OF SOLICITATION 



 

 

 
Statement of Work 

 
Pinal County 

Finance Department 
31 N. Pinal St. 

Bldg. A 
P.O. Box 1348 

Florence, AZ 85132 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 3 of 37 

 

 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 Purpose and Description 

Pinal County Public Works (County) is seeking experienced Contractors to provide Asphalt Maintenance and Repair Services 
on an as-needed basis at various project locations throughout the County utilizing the Job Order Contracting (JOC) project 
delivery method. 

It is the intent of the County to select four (4) contractors for contract award.  The initial term of the JOC will be for a minimum 
of one (1) year and may be renewed up to four (4) additional one-year terms.  Renewal of the contract will be at the sole option 
of the County and be based on the successful performance of the JOC Contractor and the needs of the County.  The 
individual job order assignment maximum amount is $1,000,000.  It is the County’s intent to enter into a cost plus fee structure. 

During the term of the JOC, work is performed as a series of individual job orders assignments.  Individual projects may 
require the expenditure approval of the Pinal County Board of Supervisors.  Each job order assignment, initiated by the owner, 
is defined cooperatively by the owner and contractor.  A scope, schedule and price are negotiated and agreed upon.  Then the 
contractor is directed to proceed with the work.  Job Order Contracting may include design services, pre-construction services, 
construction work, maintenance and as-built documents. 

 The County has elected to use the JOC delivery method for these projects as outlined under A.R.S. Title 34.  Cost effective 
construction in the shortest possible time frame and within the County’s tolerance of financial risk will be the guiding principles 
behind the projects. 

1.2 Cooperative Purchasing 

This contract shall be for the permissive use by Pinal County. The County has entered into various cooperative purchasing 
agreements with other Arizona government entities in order to conserve resources, reduce overhead and purchase costs and 
improve delivery time.  The contract resulting from this Solicitation may be extended for use by other municipalities, school 
districts and government agencies in the State of Arizona with the approval of the Contractor.  Orders placed by other 
agencies and payment thereof will be the sole responsibility of that agency.  The County shall not be responsible for any 
disputes arising out of transactions made by others.    

2. SCOPE OF WORK 

2.1 Scope of Work 

 The County maintains a network of civil infrastructure.  The infrastructure includes, but not limited to, paved streets, dirt roads, 
trails, multi-use paths, park pavements, and parking lots.  This JOC will be focused but not limited to, supplying all labor, 
material, and equipment for asphalt maintenance and repairs.  Work assignments may include but not limited to, and the 
successful contractors shall have experience, knowledge and ability to accomplish the following tasks: 

2.1.1 Obtain all necessary permits, required to complete the job order assignment, including but not limited to; Engineering 
off-site, haul route, stockpile, SWPPP, dust control, traffic control plans, etc. 

2.1.2 Placing asphalt pavements including full depth sections, overlays, patches and repairs. 

2.1.3 Pavement maintenance and rehabilitation; including but not limited to; crack sealing and joint sealing, crack routing 
and large crack repair, applying various types of surface treatments including fog seal, scrub seal, chip seal, other 
asphalt rejuvenation methods, milling and/or roadway profiling, saw cutting and removing both asphalt and concrete 
pavements. 

2.1.4 Utility adjustments. 

2.1.5 Minor subgrade preparation including compacting native soil, placing and compacting ABC, millings, soil stabilization 
and grading. 

2.1.6 Minor earthwork: site rough and finishing grade. 

2.1.7 Signing and striping including, survey of existing striping and signing, providing and installing project signs, 
obliteration of striping, layout and installing striping, symbols, raised pavement markers and signage. 

2.1.8 Preparing traffic control plans, providing traffic set-up in accordance with the approved traffic control plans and 
barricading work areas. 

2.1.9 Shoulder maintenance including grading, build-up, placement of surface treatment and sealing. 



 

 

 
Statement of Work 

 
Pinal County 

Finance Department 
31 N. Pinal St. 

Bldg. A 
P.O. Box 1348 

Florence, AZ 85132 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 4 of 37 

 

 
 

 

2.2 Project Information 

 The successful JOC contractors will have documented established successful work relationships with various qualified 
subcontractors and knowledge of JOC project delivery methods.  The specific work associated with each job order assignment 
shall be mutually agreed upon and issued by the County. 

 For any project determined by the County to be appropriate for this Job Order Contract, the County will request that the 
contractor prepare a scope of work, cost proposal, project schedule and back-up supporting documentation.    If acceptable, 
the County will issue a Purchas Order, at which time the parties will execute an individual job order assignment specifying the 
cost and completion schedule for that project.  Although the County anticipates that the JOC Contractor will be issued work, 
the Contractor is neither guaranteed a minimum amount of work nor any jobs at all.  The County reserves the right and will 
issue job order assignments based on ability of the contractor to meet the County’s work schedule and the availability of trades 
and expertise in relation to each project. 

 All construction shall conform to the latest version of the Uniform Standard Specifications and Details for Public Works 
Construction published by the Maricopa Associate of Governments (MAG), Standard Specifications and Details for Road and 
Bridge Construction published by Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT), Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices 
(MUTCD) published by Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), , and the construction documents (plans and specifications) 
associated with each Job Order assignment. 

 
2.3 Work Authorization 
 

Any Work required under this Contract shall be authorized by issuance of formal, written Job Order Purchase Orders as 
follows: 
 
2.3.1 As the need exists (as determined by the County) for performance under the terms of this Contract, the County will 

notify the Contractor of an existing requirement. 
 
2.3.2 Upon the receipt of this notification, Contractor shall respond within two (2) working days, or as otherwise agreed, by: 
 
 2.3.2.1 Visiting the proposed site in the company of County staff, or; 
 
 2.3.2.2 Establishing contact with the County to further define the scope of the requirement. 
 
2.3.3 After mutual agreement on the scope of the individual requirement, Contractor shall then prepare a proposal for 

accomplishment of the task unless Contractor, in its sole discretion, elects not to undertake the Work.  If the Work is 
declined, Contractor will so notify the County in a timely manner. 

 
2.3.4 The price matrix shall serve as the basis for establishing the value of the Work to be performed. 
 
2.3.5 Contractor’s proposal shall be submitted within ten (10) working days unless otherwise agreed. 
 
2.3.6 Upon receipt of the Contractor’s proposal, the County will review the proposal for completeness and will reach 

agreement with Contractor on pricing, schedule and all other terms, prior to issuance of a Job Order Purchase Order. 
 
2.3.7 In the event the County does not issue a Job Order Purchase Order after receipt of the Contractor’s proposal, the 

County is not obligated to reimburse the Contractor for any costs incurred in the preparation of the proposal, except as 
noted in §2.4.3 

 
2.4 Scheduling of Work 
 

2.4.1 For each Job Order Purchase Order, the County will issue a Notice to Proceed.  The first day of performance under a 
Job Order shall be the effective date in the Notice to Proceed.  Any preliminary work started or material ordered or 
purchased before receipt of the Notice to Proceed shall be at the risk and expense of the Contractor.  Contractor shall 
diligently prosecute the Work to completion within the time set forth in the Job Order Purchase Order.  The period of 
performance includes allowances for mobilization, holidays, weekend days, normal inclement weather, and cleanup.  
Therefore, claims for delay based on these elements will not be allowed.  When Contractor considers the Work 
complete and ready for its intended use, Contractor shall request the County to inspect the Work to determine the 



 

 

 
Statement of Work 

 
Pinal County 

Finance Department 
31 N. Pinal St. 

Bldg. A 
P.O. Box 1348 

Florence, AZ 85132 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 5 of 37 

 

 
 

status of completion.  A minimum of 30 days prior to Final Completion the Contractor, in conjunction with the County, 
shall prepare a comprehensive list of Punch list items, which the County may edit and supplement.  The Contractor 
shall proceed promptly to complete and correct Punch list items.  Failure to include an item on the Punch list does not 
alter the responsibility of the Contractor to complete all Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.  Items on 
the Punch list must be completed or corrected prior to final payment for the Job Order.  Contractor shall proceed 
promptly to complete and correct items on the list.  Two year warranties required by the Contract Documents shall not 
commence until the date of Final Completion unless otherwise provided in the Contract. 

 
2.4.2 Job placement of materials and equipment shall be made with a minimum of interference to County operations and 

personnel. 
 
2.4.3 Furniture and portable office equipment in the immediate work area will be moved by Contractor and replaced to its 

original location.  If the furniture and portable office equipment cannot be replaced to its original location, the County 
will designate new locations.  If furniture and portable office equipment (or other items) must be moved and/or stored 
outside the immediate area, the County will compensate the Contractor for any such transportation and storage costs 
incurred. 

 
2.4.4 Contractor shall take all precautions to ensure that no damage will result from its operations to private or public 

property.  All damages shall be repaired or replaced by Contractor at no cost to the Owner. 
 
2.4.5 Contractor shall be responsible for providing all necessary traffic control, such as street blockages, traffic cones, 

flagmen, etc., as required for each Job Order Purchase Order.  Proposed traffic control methods shall be submitted to 
the County for approval. 

 
2.5 Quality Assurance/Quality Control Program 
 

2.5.1 Contractor shall submit, for County approval, a Quality Assurance/Quality Control Plan within fifteen (15) calendar 
days after issuance of the initial Job Order Purchase Order.  This plan should address all aspects of quality control 
including responsibility for surveillance of work, documentation, trend analysis, corrective action and interface with 
County inspectors. 

 
2.6 Utility Company Coordination 
  

2.6.1 Unless specifically excluded by the individual Job Order Agreement, the Contractor will be responsible for 
coordinating with utility design work for permanent service to the project and will ensure that the work takes place in a 
timely manner and does not impact the project schedule.  Any utility design fees for permanent services to a project 
will be paid by the County. 

 
2.7 Temporary Sanitation Facilities 
 

2.7.1 The Contractor shall provide ample toilet facilities with proper enclosures for the use of workmen employed on the 
work site.  Toilet facilities shall be installed and maintained in conformity with all applicable state and local laws, 
codes, regulations and ordinances.  They shall be properly lit and ventilated and kept clean at all times. 

 
2.7.2 Adequate and satisfactory drinking water shall be provided at all times and under no circumstances and under no 

conditions will the use of common cups be permitted.  The Contractor must supply sanitary drinking cups for the 
benefit of all employees. 

 
2.8 Dust Control and Water 
  

2.8.1 The dust control measures shall be in accordance with the requirements of the Pinal County Air Quality Control 
District Code of Regulations.  Water or other approved dust palliative in sufficient quantities shall be applied during all 
phases of construction involving open earthwork to prevent unnecessary discharge of dust and dirt into the air.  The 
Contractor shall be responsible for compliance with these regulations.  A Notice to Proceed will not be issued until the 
County has received a copy of the Contractor’s Dust Control Permit and Plan. 

 
2.8.2 The Contractor shall be required to obtain the necessary permit and all pertinent information from the Pinal County Air 

Quality Department 31 N Pinal St, Bldg. F, Florence, AZ  85132 520-866-6929. 



 

 

 
Statement of Work 

 
Pinal County 

Finance Department 
31 N. Pinal St. 

Bldg. A 
P.O. Box 1348 

Florence, AZ 85132 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 6 of 37 

 

 
 

 
2.8.3 The Contractor shall keep suitable equipment on hand at the job site for maintaining dust control on the project 

streets, and shall employ sufficient labor, materials and equipment for that purpose at all times during the project to 
the satisfaction of the County. 

 
2.8.4 Watering shall conform to the provisions of Section 225 of the MAG Standard Specifications.  The cost of watering will 

be included in the price bid for the construction operation to which such watering is incidental or appurtenant. 
 

2.9 Work by Owner 
 

2.9.1 The County reserves the right to undertake or award Contracts for the performance of the same or similar type work 
contemplated herein, and to do so will not breach or otherwise violate the contract. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
Definitions 

 
Pinal County 

Finance Department 
31 N. Pinal St. 

Bldg. A 
P.O. Box 1348 

Florence, AZ 85132 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 7 of 37 

 

 
 

1. DEFINITIONS.  For this Contract certain words, phrases and terms shall have special meaning as defined herein.  Furthermore, 
words used in the present tense shall include the future; words used in the singular shall include the plural; words in the plural 
shall include the singular; and words in the neutral or masculine gender are inclusive and do not in any way connote a specific 
gender. 

 
1.1 Bid Documents:  The whole of the Invitation for Bid packet, which consists of all documents listed in the index of said bid packet 

and all Addenda thereto. 
 
1.2 Bid Price:  Total amount quoted by bidder for performing the Scope of Work described in the Bid Documents  
 
1.3 Bid Form:  The approved County form on which the bidder affixes an authorized signature certifying that the bidder has carefully 

reviewed the Scope of Work and is willing to perform said Scope of Work and furnish all labor, equipment and materials 
necessary to complete said Work for an amount not to exceed the bid price quoted. 

 
1.4 Bid Security:  A cashier’s check, certified check, or surety bond written by a surety holding a certificate of authority to transact 

surety business in Arizona, in the amount of ten percent (10%) of the total bid price to guarantee the bidder will enter into the 
contract if the bid is accepted and which is the agreed amount of liquidated damages in case of failure to enter into Contract or 
provide contract security. 

 
1.5 Bidder:  An individual, partnership, firm, corporation, or any acceptable combination thereof, or joint venture responding to an 

Invitation to Bid by submitting a signed Bid. 
 
1.6 Board:  Pinal County Board of Supervisors. 
 
1.7 Calendar Days:  A period of time meaning consecutive days including Saturdays, Sundays and holidays. 
 
1.8 Change Order:  Amendment of the Contract, Contract Documents or both, which is not effective until after approval by the 

Contractor and the Pinal County Board of Supervisors.  Approval by the Board of Supervisors shall be in accordance with the 
provisions of paragraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract.  These changes include but are not limited to adding 
additional streets or roadway segments to the Scope of Work. 

 
1.9 Channel:  A natural or artificial watercourse. 
 
1.10 Contract Administrator:  Director of the Pinal County Department of Public Works, who reviews and approves recommendations 

for all contracts, change orders and pay estimates to the Board of Supervisors. 
 
1.11 Contract Bonds/Contract Security (Performance Bond and Labor and Material Payment Bond):  The approved forms of security, 

furnished by the successful bidder/contractor the Contractors surety or sureties, guaranteeing the full and complete performance 
of the contract and all supplemental agreements pertaining thereto and the payment of all legal debts including the payment of 
all taxes pertaining to the Scope of Work. 

 
1.12 Contract/Contract Documents:  The written instrument between Pinal and the contractor entitled “Contract Agreement” and the 

Bid Documents, as defined above, constitute the entire Contract/Contract Documents after (a) award of the Contract; (b) the 
successful bidder has furnished the required security and insurance and executed the Contract Agreement; (c) Pinal has 
accepted and approved the security; and (d) execution of the Contract Agreement by Pinal. 

 
1.13 Contract Time:  The number of calendar days allowed for completion of the Contract, including authorized time extensions.  If a 

specified completion date is shown in lieu of the number of working or calendar days, the contract time expires on that date and 
the Contract shall be completed on or before that date or the date of any authorized extension. 

 
1.14 Contractor:  A bidder in whose favor the Pinal County Board of Supervisors has awarded the Contract and who has provided 

the necessary Contract security, met the required insurance requirements and entered into a contract agreement with Pinal. 
1.15 County Engineer or Engineer:  The Pinal County Engineer, acting by and under authority of the laws of the State of Arizona, or 

the County Engineer’s designee acting under the County Engineer’s supervision, on behalf of the Pinal county Board of 
Supervisors. 

 
1.16 Culvert:  Any structure not classified as a bridge which provides an opening under the roadway. 
 



 

 

 
Definitions 

 
Pinal County 

Finance Department 
31 N. Pinal St. 

Bldg. A 
P.O. Box 1348 

Florence, AZ 85132 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 8 of 37 

 

 
 

1.17 Days: Calendar days (see above). 
 
1.18 Department: The Pinal County Department of Public Works. 
 
1.19 Director:  The Pinal County Department of Public Works, acting in the official capacity as said Director. 
 
1.20 Equipment:  All machinery and equipment, together with the necessary supplies for upkeep and maintenance and also tools and 

apparatus necessary for acceptable completion of the Scope of Work. 
 
1.21 Holidays:  The legal holidays as defined in the latest revisions at the time of bidding, of the Arizona Revised Statutes, Title 1, 

Chapter 3, §1-301. 
 
1.22 Laboratory:  A testing laboratory that has been approved by Pinal to perform testing and that has been determined by Pinal to 

be free from any conflict of interest. 
 
1.23 Labor and Material Payment Bond:  A payment bond furnished by Contractor and Contractor’s surety or sureties for the full 

amount of the Bid Price to guarantee payment to laborers and material supplies. 
 
1.24 Materials:  Any substances specified for use in the construction of the Project. 
 
1.25 Material Supplier:  One who fabricates, or processes an item off the Project Site, and who may or may not delivery this to the 

Project Site.  For purposes of this definition, a supplier shall not include one how establishes a fabricating process or facility 
expressly for use of the Project, whether on or off the Project Site; or one who performs work on the Project Site that is 
incorporated into the Project. 

 
1.26 Notice of Award:  Written notice to the successful bidder notifying that the bid has been accepted by the Pinal County Board of 

Supervisors. 
 
1.27 Performance Bond:  A bond in the full amount of the total Bid Price furnished by Contractor and Contractor’s surety sureties to 

protect Pinal by conditioning release of the bond sum upon Contractors full and complete performance of the Contract and all 
supplemental agreements thereto. 

 
1.28 Plans:  The project plans, standard drawings, working drawings and supplemental drawings, or reproductions thereof, approved 

by the Engineer, which show the location, character, dimensions and details of the Work to be performed.  All such documents 
are to be considered as a part of the plans whether or not they are reproduced in the Invitation for Bid packet. 

 
1.29 Progress Payment:  Monthly draw against the contract price based on work completed and determined by the Schedule of 

Values and approved by the Engineer. 
 
1.30 Project Plans:  Specific details and dimensions peculiar to the Work which are supplemented by the Standard Drawings insofar 

as they may apply. 
 
1.31 Purchase Order:  A document which specifies, identifies and/or describes an item, service or supply delivery and/or 

transportation purchased by Pinal and includes a written note from Pinal to nay contractor or vendor of the start date and the 
Scope of Work. 

 
1.32 Quality Assurance Inspector/QA Inspectors:  The Engineer’s authorized representative assigned to make detailed inspections 

of contract performance. 
 
1.33 Repetition of Expressions:  In order to avoid cumbersome and needless repetition, such phrases as “to the Engineer” and “by 

the Engineer” shall be understood to mean that when an order, instruction, decision, exercise of judgement or other similar 
action is indicated, such order, instruction, decision, exercise of judgement or other similar action shall be issued, given, made 
by or reserved to the County Engineer. 

 
1.34 Responsible Bidder:  A person who has the capability to perform the contract requirements and the integrity and reliability which 

will assure good faith performance. 
 
1.35 Responsive Bid:  A bid which conforms to all material respects to the invitation for bid. 



 

 

 
Definitions 

 
Pinal County 

Finance Department 
31 N. Pinal St. 

Bldg. A 
P.O. Box 1348 

Florence, AZ 85132 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 9 of 37 

 

 
 

 
1.36 Schedule of Performance:  A timetable prepared by a bidder given a Notice of Award, to commence running upon Pinal’s 

issuance of a Notice to Proceed, defining the Bidder’s projection of significant milestones in the course of the performance of 
the Contract, as well as the number of days elapsed from the issuance of the Notice to Proceed to each such milestone. 

 
1.37 Schedule of Values:  Prices set by the Contractor for specified divisions of the Work.  These prices shall be used to arrive at the 

amounts due under the contract on the progress payments.  They shall include everything for that particular quantity of work 
which the Contractor expects to be paid, e.g. labor, material, overhead, profit. Equipment costs or rental, transportation. 

 
1.38 Special Detour:  A detour, which requires the contraction of a paved surface and generally does not include any portion of a 

route utilizing an existing roadway. 
 
1.39 Shop Drawings:  Drawings approved for repetitive use, showing details to be used where appropriate. 
 
1.40 Specifications:  The compilation of provisions and requirements for the performance of the prescribed Scope of Work, which 

include general, special and technical specifications. 
 
1.41 Subcontractor:  An individual, partnership, firm or corporation or any acceptable combination thereof, or joint venture, which 

performs any of the prescribed Scope of Work, directly or indirectly for or on behalf of Contractor whether or not in privity of 
contract with Contractor. 

 
1.42 Superintendent:  Contractor’s authorized representative in responsible charge of the Work. 
 
1.43 Surety:  The corporate body bound with and for Contractor, for the full and complete performance of the Contract and for payment 

of all debts pertaining to the Work. 
 
1.44 Working Day:  A calendar day, exclusive of Saturdays, Sundays, and County recognized holidays, on which weather and other 

conditions not under the control of Contractor shall permit Contractor’s operation to proceed for the major part of the day with 
the normal working force engaged in performing the controlling item or items of work which would be in progress at that time. 

 
1.45 Working and Supplemental Drawings:  Supplemental design sheets, shop drawings or similar data which Contractor is required 

to submit to Pinal. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
Special Instructions 

 
Pinal County 

Finance Department 
31 N. Pinal St. 

Bldg. A 
P.O. Box 1348 

Florence, AZ 85132 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 10 of 37 

 

 
 

1 INQUIRIES 

1.1 All questions related to this Request for Proposal shall be directed to the Procurement Officer, Lorina Gillette, CPPB at 
lorina.gillette@pinalcountyaz.gov. Questions should be submitted in writing when time permits.  Any correspondence related 
to a solicitation should refer to the appropriate solicitation number, page and paragraph number. 

 
1.2 Responders may not contact any County employees other than the Procurement Officer concerning this procurement while 

the Solicitation and evaluation are in process. 

 

2 OFFER PREPARATION 

2.1 Contract.  Offers shall include a signed Contract form. 

The Contract Form shall be signed with an original signature by the person signing the Offer, and shall be submitted no later 
than the Offer due date and time.  Failure to return the Contract Form may result in rejection of the Offer. 

2.2 Acknowledgement of Solicitation Addendums.  Offers shall include any/all signed Solicitation Addendum(s), as described in 
section 2.7 of the Uniform Instructions. 

Solicitation Addendums are posted on the Pinal County website at the following address: 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx.  It is the responsibility of the Responder to periodically 
check this website for any Solicitation Addendum.  Solicitation Addendums shall be signed with an original signature by the 
person signing the Offer, and shall be submitted no later than the Offer due date and time.  Failure to return a signed (or 
acknowledgment for electronic submission, when authorized) copy of a Solicitation Addendum may result in rejection of the 
Offer. 

2.3 Estimated Quantities.  The County does not anticipate considerable activity under contract(s) awarded as a result of this 
solicitation, therefore, no commitment of any kind is made concerning quantities actually acquired. The quantities that may 
be reflected in the solicitation are estimates only. 

 
2.4 Offer Format.  Offers shall follow the following format:  The original copy of the Offer shall be clearly labeled “ORIGINAL” 

and shall contain a Title Page that identifies the solicitation number and provides the Responder Name, Address, 
Telephone Number as well as the Name and Title of the Solicitation Contact Person.  The Offer shall be organized into two 
(2) sections as follows: 

 
2.4.1 Requested Documents.   

2.4.1.1 Section One: shall contain the Title Page as well as the following forms:  Statement of Bonding Capacity, 
Addendum Acknowledgement Form, W9 form and signed Offer and Acceptance Form 

 
2.4.1.2 Section Two: shall contain the Subcontractor Selection Plan 
 
2.4.1.3 Section Three: shall contain scanned copies of the Arizona Registrar of Contractors License Identification 

Card(s).  Multiple ID cards by be placed on the same page. 
 
2.4.1.4 Section Four: shall contain the Pricing Matrix. 

  
2.4.2 Requested Questionnaires.   

2.4.2.1 Shall contain the completed questionnaire titled JOC Civil Construction Services. 
 

2.6 Additional Special Instructions.   Responders shall see the attachments within the Solicitation for Additional Special 
Instructions associated with this Solicitation. 

2.7 Additional Terms and Conditions.   Responders shall see the attachments within the Solicitation for Additional Terms and 
Conditions. 

 

3 SUBMISSION OF OFFER 

http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx


 

 

 
Special Instructions 

 
Pinal County 

Finance Department 
31 N. Pinal St. 

Bldg. A 
P.O. Box 1348 

Florence, AZ 85132 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 11 of 37 

 

 
 

3.1 Electronic Documents.  The Solicitation document is provided in an electronic format.  Any unidentified alteration or 
modification to any Solicitation documents, to any attachments, exhibits, forms, charts or illustrations contained herein shall be 
null and void. In those instances where modifications are identified, the original document published by the County shall take 
precedence. As provided in the Solicitation Instructions, Responders are responsible for clearly identifying any and all changes 
or modifications to any Solicitation documents upon submission to the County. 

 

4 EVALUATION 

4.1 Evaluation. In accordance with the Pinal County Procurement Code, awards shall be made to the responsible responder(s) 
whose proposal is determined in writing to be the most advantageous to the County based upon the evaluation criteria listed 
below. The evaluation factors are listed in their relative order of importance. 

1.  Method of Approach 

2.  Experience and Qualifications of the Contractor 

3.  Experience and Qualifications of Key Personnel 

4.  Conformance to Terms and Conditions 

4.2 Clarifications.   Upon receipt and opening of proposals submitted in response to this solicitation, the County may request oral 
or written clarifications, including demonstrations or questions and answers, for the sole purpose of information gathering or of 
eliminating minor informalities or correcting nonjudgmental mistakes in proposals.  Clarifications shall not otherwise afford the 
Responders the opportunity to alter or change its proposal. 

4.3 Negotiations.  County may conduct negotiations with those Responders who’s Offers are determined by the County to be 
reasonably susceptible of being selected for award.  Negotiations may be in writing or in person and may include 
presentations, site visits or demonstrations. 

4.4 Responsibility, Responsiveness and Acceptability.  In accordance with Pinal County Procurement Code PC1-328(H), County 
shall consider the following in determining Responder responsibility as well as the responsiveness and acceptability of their 
Offer.  

Responders may not be considered responsible if they have been debarred from the practice of their profession that would 
otherwise be necessary in the provision of goods and services under any resulting contract. Responders may not be 
considered responsible if they have had a contract with the County, within the last three-years, that was terminated for 
cause, due to breach or similar failure to comply with the terms of any such contract. Responders may also not be 
considered responsible if there is factual evidence of their frequent and reoccurring failure to satisfy the terms of their 
agreements and contractual relationships, both with the County or other government entities. Factual evidence shall consist 
of any documented vendor performance reports, customer complaints and/or negative references (including those found 
outside of the submittal).  Other factors that the County may evaluate to determine responsibility include, but are not limited 
to excessively high or low pricing, compliance with applicable laws, and financial capacity to perform as specified.  The 
County reserves the right to review the qualifications of any key personnel to be assigned to provide services. 

Offers may not be considered responsive and/or acceptable if they do not contain information sufficient to evaluate the Offer in 
accordance with the evaluation criteria identified in the Solicitation including (i) a completed Offer and Acceptance Form; (ii) 
completed Solicitation Addendums acknowledging any/all changes to the Solicitation; (iii) a response to the County’s 
Statement of Work, (iv) a price proposal; or (iv) other certifications or bond sureties required in the Solicitation. 

4.5 Best and Final Offers.  If negotiations are conducted, the County shall issue a written request for a Best and Final Offer. The 
request shall set forth the date, time and place for the submission of the Best and Final Offer.  Best and Final Offers shall be 
requested only once, unless the County makes a determination that it is advantageous to conduct further negotiations or 
change the solicitation requirements. 

 

5 AWARD 

5.1 Contract Document Consolidation.  At its sole option, following any contract award(s) the County may consolidate the resulting 
contract documents.  Examples of such consolidation would include (i) reorganizing solicitation documents and components of 
the Contractor’s Offer only pertaining to the Solicitation; (ii) revising the Statement of Work to incorporate the Contractor’s 
response, (iii) revising any terms and conditions to incorporate any changes in the Contractor’s Offer; (iv) excluding any 



 

 

 
Special Instructions 

 
Pinal County 

Finance Department 
31 N. Pinal St. 

Bldg. A 
P.O. Box 1348 

Florence, AZ 85132 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 12 of 37 

 

 
 

components of the Contractor’s Offer that were not awarded.  Contract document consolidation shall not materially change the 
Contract. 

5.2 Post Award Meeting.  The Contractor may be required to attend a post-award meeting with the Using Agency to discuss the 
terms and conditions of this Contract. This meeting will be coordinated by the Procurement Officer of the Contract.  

 
 



 

 
Uniform Instructions 

 

 
Pinal County 

Finance Department 
31 N. Pinal St. 

Bldg. A 
P.O. Box 1348 

Florence, AZ 85132 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 13 of 37 

 

 
 

1 INQUIRIES 

1.1 Duty to Examine.  It is the responsibility of each Responder to examine the entire Solicitation, seek clarification in writing 
(inquiries), and examine its’ Offer for accuracy before submitting the Offer. Lack of care in preparing an Offer shall not be 
grounds for modifying or withdrawing the Offer after the Offer due date and time, nor shall it give rise to any Contract claim. 

1.2 Solicitation Contact Person.  Any inquiry related to a Solicitation, including any requests for or inquiries regarding standards 
referenced in the Solicitation shall be directed solely to the Solicitation contact person. The Responder shall not contact or 
direct inquiries concerning this Solicitation to any other County employee unless the Solicitation specifically identifies a person 
other than the Solicitation contact person as a contact. 

1.3 Submission of Inquiries.  The Procurement Officer or the person identified in the Solicitation as the contact for inquiries except 
at the Pre-Offer Conference, require that an inquiry be submitted in writing. Any inquiry related to a Solicitation shall refer to 
the appropriate Solicitation number, page and paragraph. Do not place the Solicitation number on the outside of the envelope 
containing that inquiry, since it may then be identified as an Offer and not be opened until after the Offer due date and time. 
The County shall consider the relevancy of the inquiry but is not required to respond in writing. 

1.4 Timeliness.  Any inquiry or exception to the solicitation shall be submitted as soon as possible and should be submitted at 
least seven days before the Offer due date and time for review and determination by the County. Failure to do so may result in 
the inquiry not being considered for a Solicitation Addendum. 

1.5 No Right to Rely on Verbal Responses.  A responder shall not rely on verbal responses to inquiries. A verbal reply to an 
inquiry does not constitute a modification of the solicitation. 

1.6 Solicitation Addendum.  The Solicitation shall only be modified by a Solicitation Addendum. 

1.7 Pre-Offer Conference.  If a pre-Offer conference has been scheduled under this Solicitation, the date, time and location shall 
appear on the Solicitation cover sheet or elsewhere in the Solicitation. Responders should raise any questions about the 
Solicitation or the procurement at that time. A Responder may not rely on any verbal responses to questions at the 
conference. Material issues raised at the conference that result in changes to the Solicitation shall be answered solely through 
a written Solicitation Addendum. 

1.8 Persons with Disabilities.  Persons with a disability may request a reasonable accommodation, such as a sign language 
interpreter, by contacting the Solicitation contact person. Requests shall be made as early as possible to allow time to arrange 
the accommodation. 

 

2 OFFER PREPARATION 

2.1 Forms: No Facsimile, Telegraphic or Electronic Mail Offers.  An Offer shall only be submitted through Pinal County’s web 
portal, Bonfire. Any substitute document for the forms provided in this Solicitation must be legible and contain the same 
information requested on the forms, unless the solicitation indicates otherwise. A facsimile or electronic mail (e-mail) Offer 
shall be rejected if submitted in response to requests for proposals or invitations for bids. 

2.2 Typed or Ink; Corrections.  The Offer shall be typed or in ink. Erasures, interlineations or other modifications in the Offer shall 
be initialed in ink by the person signing the Offer. Modifications shall not be permitted after Offers have been opened except 
as otherwise provided under applicable law. 

2.3 Evidence of Intent to be Bound.  The Offer and Acceptance form within the Solicitation shall be submitted with the Offer and 
shall include a signature (or acknowledgement for electronic submissions, when authorized) by a person authorized to sign the 
Offer. The signature shall signify the Responder’s intent to be bound by the Offer and the terms of the Solicitation and that the 
information provided is true, accurate and complete. Failure to submit verifiable evidence of an intent to be bound, such as an 
original signature, shall result in rejection of the Offer. 

2.4 Exceptions to Terms and Conditions.  All exceptions included with the Offer shall be submitted in a clearly identified separate 
section of the Offer in which the Responder clearly identifies the specific paragraphs of the Solicitation where the exceptions 
occur.  Any exceptions not included in such a section shall be without force and effect in any resulting Contract unless such 
exception is specifically accepted by the Procurement Officer in a written statement. The Responder’s preprinted or standard 
terms will not be considered by the County as a part of any resulting Contract.   

2.4.1 Invitation for Bids.  An Offer that takes exception to a material requirement of any part of the Solicitation, including 
terms and conditions, shall be rejected.   



 

 
Uniform Instructions 

 

 
Pinal County 

Finance Department 
31 N. Pinal St. 

Bldg. A 
P.O. Box 1348 

Florence, AZ 85132 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 14 of 37 

 

 
 

2.4.2 Request for Proposals.  All exceptions that are contained in the Offer may negatively affect the County’s proposal 
evaluation based on the evaluation criteria stated in the Solicitation or result in rejection of the Offer. An offer that 
takes exception to any material requirement of the solicitation may be rejected. 

2.5 Subcontracts.  Responder shall clearly list any proposed subcontractors and the subcontractor’s proposed responsibilities in 
the Offer. 

2.6 Cost of Offer Preparation.  The County will not reimburse any Responder the cost of responding to a Solicitation. 

2.7 Solicitation Addendum.  Each Solicitation Addendum shall be signed with an original signature by the person signing the Offer, 
and shall be submitted no later than the Offer due date and time. Failure to return a signed copy of a Solicitation Addendum 
may result in rejection of the Offer. 

2.8 Federal Excise Tax.  The County is exempt from certain Federal Excise Tax on manufactured goods. Exemption Certificates 
will be provided by the County. 

2.9 Provision of Tax Identification Numbers.  Responders are required to provide their Arizona Transaction Privilege Tax Number 
and/or Federal Tax Identification number by attaching a current W-9 Form.  

2.9.1 Employee Identification.  Responder agrees to provide an employee identification number or social security number 
to the County for the purposes of reporting to appropriate taxing authorities, monies paid by the Department under 
this contract. If the federal identifier of the responder is a social security number, this number is being requested 
solely for tax reporting purposes and will be shared only with appropriate County and federal officials. This 
submission is mandatory under 26 U.S.C. § 6041A. 

2.10 Identification of Taxes in Offer.  The County is subject to all applicable state and local transaction privilege taxes. All applicable 
taxes shall be included in the pricing offered in the solicitation. At all times, payment of taxes and the determination of 
applicable taxes are the sole responsibility of the contractor. 

2.11 Disclosure.  If the firm, business or person submitting this Offer has been debarred, suspended or otherwise lawfully precluded 
from participating in any public procurement activity, including being disapproved as a subcontractor with any Federal, state or 
local government, or if any such preclusion from participation from any public procurement activity is currently pending, the 
Responder shall fully explain the circumstances relating to the preclusion or proposed preclusion in the Offer. The Responder 
shall include a letter with its Offer setting forth the name and address of the governmental unit, the effective date of this 
suspension or debarment, the duration of the suspension or debarment, and the relevant circumstances relating to the 
suspension or debarment. If suspension or debarment is currently pending, a detailed description of all relevant circumstances 
including the details enumerated above shall be provided. 

2.12 Solicitation Order of Precedence.  In the event of a conflict in the provisions of this Solicitation, the following shall prevail in the 
order set forth below: 

2.12.1 Terms and Conditions;  

2.12.2 Statement or Scope of Work;  

2.12.3 Specifications;  

2.12.4 Attachments;  

2.12.5 Exhibits;  

2.12.6 Special Instructions to Responders;  

2.12.7 Uniform Instructions to Responders;   

2.12.8 Other documents referenced or included in the Solicitation; and 

2.12.9 Individual Job Order Assignment 

2.13 Delivery.  Unless stated otherwise in the Solicitation, all prices shall be F.O.B. Destination and shall include all freight, delivery 
and unloading at the destination(s). 

2.14. Federal Immigration and Nationality Act.  By signing of the Offer, the Responder warrants that both it and all proposed 
subcontractors are in compliance with federal immigration laws and regulations (FINA) relating to the immigration status of 
their employees. The State may, at its sole discretion require evidence of compliance during the evaluation process. Should 
the State request evidence of compliance, the Responder shall have 5 days from receipt of the request to supply adequate 



 

 
Uniform Instructions 

 

 
Pinal County 

Finance Department 
31 N. Pinal St. 

Bldg. A 
P.O. Box 1348 

Florence, AZ 85132 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 15 of 37 

 

 
 

information. Failure to comply with this instruction or failure to supply requested information within the timeframe specified 
shall result in the offer not being considered for contract award. 

 
2.15. Offshore Performance of Work Prohibited 

Any services that are described in the specifications or scope of work that directly serve the State of Arizona or its clients and 
involve access to secure or sensitive data or personal client data shall be performed within the defined territories of the United 
States. Unless specifically stated otherwise in the specifications, this paragraph does not apply to indirect or 'overhead' 
services, redundant back-up services or services that are incidental to the performance of the contract.  This provision applies 
to work performed by subcontractors at all tiers.  Responders shall declare all anticipated offshore services in the proposal. 

 

3 SUBMISSION OF OFFER 

3.1 Online Offer Submission.   Each offer shall be submitted through Pinal County’s web portal, Bonfire.  

  Requested Information 

 

Name Type # Files Requirement Instructions 

Section 1: Cover 
Sheet, Statement of 
Bonding Capacity, 
Addendum 
Acknowledgement 
Form, W9, Offer & 
Acceptance Form 

File Type: Any Multiple Required  

Section 2: 
Subcontractor 
Selection Plan 

File Type: Any Multiple Required  

Section 3: Scanned 
copies of Arizona 
Registrar of 
Contractors License 
Identification Card(s) 

File Type: Any Multiple Required  

JOC Asphalt 
Maintenance & Repair 
Services (Q-13MO) 

Questionnaire: 
Excel (.xlsx) 

1 Required You will need to fill out the provided 
Response Template for this 
Questionnaire. The Response 
Template can be downloaded from 
the project listing on the Bonfire 
portal. 

Asphalt Maintenance 
& Repair Services 
(BT-05AQ) 

BidTable: Excel 
(.xlsx) 

1 Required You will need to fill out the provided 
Response Template for this 
BidTable. The Response Template 
can be downloaded from the project 
listing on the Bonfire portal. 

 

 Upload your submission at:  

 https://pinalcountyaz.bonfirehub.com/opportunities/7907   
 

https://pinalcountyaz.bonfirehub.com/opportunities/7907


 

 
Uniform Instructions 

 

 
Pinal County 

Finance Department 
31 N. Pinal St. 

Bldg. A 
P.O. Box 1348 

Florence, AZ 85132 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 16 of 37 

 

 
 

3.2 Offer Due Date.  The exact due date and time that offers are due as stated on the Solicitation cover page. 

3.3 Offer Amendment or Withdrawal.  An Offer may not be amended or withdrawn after the Offer due date and time except as 
otherwise provided under applicable law. 

3.4 Public Record.  All Offers submitted and opened are public records and must be retained by the County. Offers shall be open 
to public inspection after Contract award, except for such Offers deemed to be confidential by the County. If a Responder 
believes that information in its Offer should remain confidential, it shall indicate as confidential the specific information and 
submit a statement with its Offer detailing the reasons that the information should not be disclosed. Such reasons shall include 
the specific harm or prejudice which may arise. The County shall determine whether the identified information is confidential 
pursuant to the Pinal County Procurement Code. 

3.5 Non-collusion, Employment, and Services (Certification).  By signing the Offer and Acceptance Form or other official contract 
form, the Responder certifies that: 

3.5.1 The Responder did not engage in collusion or other anti-competitive practices in connection with the preparation or 
submission of its Offer; and  

3.5.2 The Responder does not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment or person to whom it 
provides services because of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, or disability, and that it complies with all 
applicable Federal, state and local laws and executive orders regarding employment. 

3.6 Gratuities Prohibited/Integrity of Offers.  The Responder affirms they have not given, nor intend to give at any time hereafter 
any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan gratuity, special discount, trip, favor or service to any employee of 
Pinal County in connection with the submitted Bid or Proposal.  After award, the County may cancel this contract by giving 
written notice to the Contractor if it is found that any gratuity, gift or other prohibited item were offered or given to any County 
officer or employee.  In the event the County cancels this contract pursuant to this provision, they shall be entitled, in addition 
to any other rights and remedies, to recover or withhold from the Responder the amount of the gratuity.   

 
3.7 Lobbying Prohibited.  Responders are hereby advised that lobbying is not permitted with any County personnel or members 

of the Board of Supervisors related to or involved with this Solicitation until the recommendation for award has been posted in 
the Procurement Office.   

 

4 EVALUATION 

4.1 Unit Price Prevails.  In the case of discrepancy between the unit price or rate and the extension of that unit price or rate, the 
unit price or rate shall govern. 

4.2 Taxes.  If the products and/or services specified require transaction privilege or use taxes, they shall be described and 
itemized separately on the offer.  Arizona transaction privilege and use taxes shall not be considered for evaluation. 

4.3 Prompt Payment Discount.  Prompt payment discounts of thirty (30) days or more set forth in an Offer shall be deducted from 
the offer for the purposes of evaluating that price. 

4.4 Late Offers.  An Offer submitted after the exact Offer due date and time shall be rejected. 

4.5 Disqualification.  A Responder (including each of it’s’ principals) who is currently debarred, suspended or otherwise lawfully 
prohibited from any public procurement activity shall have its offer rejected. 

4.6 Offer Acceptance Period.  A Responder submitting an Offer under this Solicitation shall hold its Offer open for the number of 
days from the Offer due date that is stated in the Solicitation. If the Solicitation does not specifically state a number of days for 
Offer acceptance, the number of days shall be one hundred-twenty (120). If a Best and Final Offer is requested pursuant to a 
Request for Proposals, a Responder shall hold its Offer open for one hundred twenty (120) days from the Best and Final Offer 
due date. 

4.7 Waiver and Rejection Rights.  Notwithstanding any other provision of the Solicitation, the County reserves the right to:  

4.7.1 Waive any minor informality;  

4.7.2 Reject any and all Offers or portions thereof; or  

4.7.3 Cancel the Solicitation. 

 



 

 
Uniform Instructions 

 

 
Pinal County 

Finance Department 
31 N. Pinal St. 

Bldg. A 
P.O. Box 1348 

Florence, AZ 85132 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 17 of 37 

 

 
 

5 AWARD 

5.1 Number or Types of Awards.  The County reserves the right to make multiple awards or to award a Contract by individual line 
items or alternatives, by group of line items or alternatives, or to make an aggregate award, or regional awards, whichever is 
most advantageous to the County. If the Procurement Officer determines that an aggregate award to one Responder is not in 
the County’s best interest, “all or none” Offers shall be rejected. 

5.2 Contract Inception.  An Offer does not constitute a Contract nor does it confer any rights on the Responder to the award of a 
Contract. A Contract is not created until the Offer is accepted in writing by the Board of Supervisors, County Manager, Chief 
Financial Officer, or their designee’s signature on the Offer and Acceptance Form. A notice of award or of the intent to award 
shall not constitute acceptance of the Offer. 

5.3 Effective Date.  The effective date of this Contract shall be the date that the Board of Supervisors, County Manager, Chief 
Financial Officer, or their designee signs the Offer and Acceptance form or other official contract form, unless another date is 
specifically stated in the Contract or Contract Award. 

 

6. Protests 

6.1 Protests.  A protest shall comply with and be resolved according to the Pinal County Procurement Code Article 9 and rules 
adopted thereunder. Protests shall be in writing and be filed with both the Procurement Officer of the purchasing agency and 
with the Finance Director. A protest of a Solicitation shall be received by the Procurement Officer before the Offer due date. A 
protest of a proposed award or of an award shall be filed within ten (10) days after contract award.   A protest shall include:  

6.1.1 The name, address and telephone number of the protester;  

6.1.2 The signature of the protester or its representative;  

6.1.3 Identification of the purchasing agency and the Solicitation or Contract number;  

6.1.4 A detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds of the protest including copies of relevant documents; and 

6.1.5 The form of relief requested. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 



 

 

Terms & Conditions 
 

Pinal County 
Finance Department 

31 N. Pinal St. 
Bldg. A 

P.O. Box 1348 
Florence, AZ 85132 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 18 of 37 

 

 
 

1. Statement of Work 
 

The Contractor, under the general supervision of the County, shall perform services as are necessary for the Work Assignment 
and according to the directions and designated standards of the County, and in accordance with the Statement of Work.  It is 
understood and agreed that the County’s authorized representative shall be the Department of Public Works Director or his/her 
duly authorized representative, hereinafter called the “Agent”.  For purposes of this contract, the Agent’s duly authorized 
representative shall be the Project Manager and he/she shall be the sole contact for administering this contract. 

 
Contractor shall provide services, and complete in a workmanlike and substantial manner and to the satisfaction of the 
Department of Public Works Director, Job Order assignments for the County, and furnish at its own cost and expense all 
necessary machinery, equipment, tools, apparatus, and labor to complete the work in the most substantial and workmanlike 
manner according to the Specifications and Work Assignment on file with the County and such modifications of the same and 
other directions that may be made by the County as provided herein.  The Contractor shall meet periodically with the County 
Agent so as to keep the County informed of the progress of the work in accordance with each work assignment. 

 
2. Contract Documents:   
 
2.1 The Contract Documents. (Plans, Specifications, Addenda, if any, Affidavits, Performance Bond, Payment Bond, Certificates of 

Insurance and Change Orders, if any) are by this reference made a part of this Contract and shall have the same effect as 
though all of the same were fully inserted herein. 

 
2.2 Contract Document Consolidation.  At its sole option, following any contract award(s) the County may consolidate the resulting 

contract documents.  Examples of such consolidation would include (i) reorganizing solicitation documents and components of 
the Contractor’s Offer only pertaining to the Solicitation; (ii) revising the Statement of Work to incorporate the Contractor’s 
response, (iii) revising any terms and conditions to incorporate any changes in the Contractor’s Offer; (iv) excluding any 
components of the Contractor’s Offer that were not awarded.  Contract document consolidation shall not materially change the 
Contract. 

 
3. Time of Completion:   
 

Contractor further covenants and agrees at its own proper cost and expense, to complete all work for the construction of assigned 
Job Orders and to completely construct the same and provide the services therein, as called for by this agreement free and clear 
of all claims, liens, and charges whatsoever, in the manner and under the conditions specified within the time, or times, stated 
in the Work Assignment. 

 
4. Contract Term, Extension, Price Adjustment:   
 

The term of any resultant contract will commence on the date of award and will continue for one year unless canceled, terminated 
or extended as otherwise provided herein.  The contract shall no bind nor purport to bind, the County for any contractual 
commitment in excess of the original contract period.  The County shall have the sole option to extend the contract for four (4) 
additional one (1) year periods or a portion thereof.  If the County exercises such rights, all terms, conditions and provisions of 
the original contract shall remain in the same and apply during the extension period. 

 
The Procurement Officer may review a fully documented request for a price increase only after the Contract has been in effect 
for two years.  Any requested increase(s) shall be based on an unmitigateble cost increase to the Contractor that was clearly 
unpredictable at the time of the Offer and is directly correlated the cost of the goods or services contractually covered.  A price 
increase adjustment shall only be considered at the time of a contract extension and shall be a factor in the extension review 
process. Requests for adjustment must be received by the Procurement Officer 120 days prior to contract renewal.  The County 
shall have the right to request and receive additional information, statistics, financial records etc., and to direct the content, form 
and format of the presentation as it deems necessary to validate the Contractor’s request for a price adjustment.  Failure to 
respond to the County’s request within the time frame specified shall nullify the Contractor’s request.  The County shall determine 
whether the requested price increase is in its best interest and adjustments shall be subject to availability of monies appropriated. 

 
Price reductions may be submitted to or requested by the County for consideration at any time during the Contract period.  The 
County, at its own discretion may accept a price reduction.  Price reductions will become effective upon acceptance by the 
Department. 

 



 

 

Terms & Conditions 
 

Pinal County 
Finance Department 

31 N. Pinal St. 
Bldg. A 

P.O. Box 1348 
Florence, AZ 85132 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 19 of 37 

 

 
 

The price increase adjustment, if approved, will be effective upon the date of the contract extension.  Price reductions will become 
effective upon acceptance by the County. 

 
5. Eligible Agencies (Cooperative Usage): 
 

This contract shall be for the permissive use by Pinal County.  The County has entered into various purchasing agreements with 
other Arizona government entities in order to conserve resources, reduce overhead and purchase costs and improve delivery 
time.  The contract resulting from this Solicitation may be extended for use by other municipalities, school districts and 
government agencies in the State of Arizona with the approval of the Contractor.  Orders placed by other agencies and payment 
thereof will be the sole responsibility of that agency.  The County shall not be responsible for any disputes arising out of 
transactions made by others. 

 
6. Payments:   
 
6.1 Compensation.  As full consideration for the satisfactory performance by the Contractor of Work prescribed under the Contract, 

the County shall pay Contractor the amounts specified in the individual Job Orders. 
 
6.2 Invoices.  Contractor shall submit invoices to: 
    
   Pinal County Finance Department 
   PO Box 1348    OR FinanceInvoices@pinalcountyaz.gov  
   Florence, AZ  85132 
 
6.3 Job Order Cost Proposal Structure.  For each Job Order, the Contractor shall prepare a Job Order Cost Proposal with the 

sufficient level of cost detail as required by the County.  Cost detail may include, but is not limited to: schedule of values, work 
schedule, direct labor cost and fringe benefits, direct material costs (supported by quotes), direct equipment costs (supported 
by quotes), cost of subcontractors (supported by quotes), and allowable indirect costs (includes insurance).  The Contractor 
shall utilize the markups established in the JOC Bid Table to calculate the overhead and profit for all Job Order Cost Proposals, 
unless otherwise requested by the County.  Profit on subcontractors/subconsultants shall not exceed 5 percent. 

 
6.4 Progress Payments.  Should an individual Job Order require more than thirty (30) days to complete, The County shall make 

progress payments monthly as the Work proceeds, or at more frequent intervals as determined by the County, on estimates of 
Work completed submitted by the Contractor and approved by the County.  Contractor shall use an acceptable invoice from and 
shall include supporting documents to reflect a breakdown of the total price showing the amount included therein for each 
principal category of the Work, in such detail as requested, to provide a basis for determining progress payments.  In the 
estimation of Work completed, the County will authorize payment for material delivered on the site and preparatory work done if 
Contractor furnishes satisfactory evidence that it has acquired title to such material and that the material will be used to perform 
the Work. 

 
6.5 Owner’s Property.  All material and work covered by progress payments made shall, at the time of payment, become the sole 

property of the County.  But this provision shall not be construed as: 
 
 6.5.1 Relieving the Contractor from the sole responsibility for all material and Work upon which payments have been made 

or the restoration of any damaged Work; or 
 
 6.5.2 Waiving the right of the County to require the fulfillment of all the terms of the Contract. 
 
6.6 Approval and Certification.  An estimate of the Work submitted shall be deemed approved and certified for payment after seven 

days from the date of submission unless before that time the County or the County’s agent prepares and issues a specific written 
finding setting forth those items in detail in the estimate of the Work that are not approved for payment under this contract.  The 
County may withhold an amount from the progress payment sufficient to pay the expenses the County reasonably expects to 
incur in correcting the deficiency set forth in the written finding.  The progress payment shall be paid on or before thirty days 
after the estimate of the Work is certified and approved.  The estimate of the Work shall be deemed received by the County on 
submission to any person designated by the County for the submission, review or approval of the estimate of the Work. 

 
6.7 Unpaid Amounts.  The County shall pay all unpaid amounts due the Contractor under this Contract within thirty (30) days, after: 
  
 6.7.1 Completion and acceptance of the Work; 

mailto:FinanceInvoices@pinalcountyaz.gov


 

 

Terms & Conditions 
 

Pinal County 
Finance Department 

31 N. Pinal St. 
Bldg. A 

P.O. Box 1348 
Florence, AZ 85132 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 20 of 37 

 

 
 

 6.7.2 Presentation of a properly executed invoice; 
 6.7.3 Presentation of a fully executed Certificate of Performance provided by the County; or 
 6.7.4 Consent of Contractor’s surety, if any. 
 
7. Termination: 
   

The County hereby gives notice that pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-511 A, this contract may be canceled without penalty or further 
obligation within three years after execution if any person significantly involved in initiation, negotiation, securing, drafting or 
creating the contract on behalf of the County is, at any time while the contract or any extension of the contract is in effect, an 
employee or agent of any other party to the contract in any capacity or a Contractor to any other party of the contract with respect 
to the subject matter of the contract.  Cancellation under this section shall be effective when written notice from the Public Works 
Director of the County is received by all of the parties to the contract.  In addition, the County may recoup any fee or commission 
paid or due to any person significantly involved in initiation, negotiation, securing, drafting or creating the contract on behalf of 
the County from any other party to the contract arising as a result of the contract. 

 
8. Negotiation Clause:   
 

Recovery of damages related to expenses incurred by Contractor for a delay for which the County is responsible, which is 
unreasonable under the circumstances and which was not within the contemplation of the parties to the contract, shall be 
negotiated between Contractor and the County.  This provision shall be construed so as to give full effect to any provision in the 
contract, which requires notice of delays, provides for arbitration or other procedure for settlement or provides for liquidated 
damages. 

 
9. Compliance with Laws:   
 

Contractor is required to comply with all Federal, State and local ordinances and regulations.  Contractor’s signature on this 
contract certifies compliance with the provisions of the I-9 requirements of the Immigration Reform Control Act of 1986 for all 
personnel that Contractor and any subcontractors employ to complete this project.  It is understood that the County shall conduct 
itself in accordance with the provisions of the Pinal County Procurement Code. 

 
10.  Anti-Discrimination Provision:   
 

The Contractor shall comply with State of Arizona Executive Order No. 2009-9 and all other applicable Federal and State laws, 
rules and regulations, including the Americans with Disabilities Act. 

 
11. Indemnification:   
 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless Pinal, its agents, representatives, officers, 
directors, officials and employees, from any and all liability, demands, proceedings, suits, actions, claims, losses, costs and 
damages of every kind and description, arising out of, resulting from or alleged to have resulted from the performance of the 
Work.  Contractor’s duty to indemnify and hold harmless Pinal, its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials and 
employees shall arise in connection with all demands, proceedings, suits, actions, claims, workers’ compensation claims, 
unemployment claims or employee’s liability claims, damages, losses or expenses (including but not limited to attorney’s fees, 
court costs and/or arbitration costs and the cost of appellate proceedings) that are attributable to personal or bodily injury, 
sickness, disease, death or injury to, impairment or destruction of property including loss of use resulting there from, caused by 
or contributed to, in whole or in part, by any negligence, recklessness or intentional wrongful conduct, whether active or passive, 
of Contractor, its employees, agents, representatives, any tier of Contractor’s subcontractors, their employees, agents or 
representatives or anyone directly or indirectly employed by Contractor or its subcontractors or anyone for whose acts Contractor 
or its subcontractor’s may be liable.  The amount and type of insurance coverage requirements set forth in the Contract 
Documents or remuneration of any insurance coverage herein provided shall in no way be construed as limiting the scope of 
the indemnity in this paragraph.  Such indemnity shall be required by Contractor from its subcontractors on behalf of Pinal. 

 
12.  Insurance Requirements:  
 

Contractor, at Contractor’s own expense, shall purchase and maintain the herein stipulated minimum insurance from a company 
or companies duly licensed by the State of Arizona and possessing a current A.M. Best, Inc. rating of B++6.  In lieu of State of 
Arizona licensing, the stipulated insurance may be purchased from a company or companies, which are authorized to do 



 

 

Terms & Conditions 
 

Pinal County 
Finance Department 

31 N. Pinal St. 
Bldg. A 

P.O. Box 1348 
Florence, AZ 85132 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 21 of 37 

 

 
 

business in the State of Arizona, provided that said insurance companies meet the approval of County.  The form of any 
insurance policies and forms must be acceptable to County. 
 
All insurance required herein shall be maintained in full force and effect until all work or service required to be performed under 
the terms of the Contract is satisfactorily completed and formally accepted.  Failure to do so may, at the sole discretion of County, 
constitute a material breach of this Contract. 

 
Contractor’s insurance shall be primary insurance as respects County, and any insurance or self-insurance maintained by 
County shall not contribute to it. 

 
Any failure to comply with the claim reporting provisions of the insurance policies or any breach of an insurance policy warranty 
shall not affect the County’s right to coverage afforded under the insurance policies. 

 
The insurance policies may provide coverage that contains deductibles or self-insured retentions.  Such deductible and/or self-
insured retentions shall not be applicable with respect to the coverage provided to County under such policies.  Contractor shall 
be solely responsible for the deductible and/or self-insured retention and County, at its option, may require Contractor to secure 
payment of such deductibles or self-insured retentions by a surety bond or an irrevocable and unconditional letter of credit. 

 
County reserves the right to request and to receive, within 10 working days, certified copies of any or all of the herein required 
insurance policies and/or endorsements.  County shall not be obligated, however, to review such policies and/or endorsements 
or to advise Contractor of any deficiencies in such policies and endorsements, and such receipt shall not relieve Contractor from, 
or be deemed a waiver of County’s right to insist on strict fulfillment of Contractor’s obligations under this Contract. 

 
The insurance policies required by this Contract, except Worker’s Compensation, and Errors and Omissions, shall name County, 
its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials and employees as Additional Insureds. 

 
The policies required hereunder, except Workers’ Compensation, and Errors and Omissions, shall contain a waiver of transfer 
of rights of recovery (subrogation) against County, its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials, and employees for 
any claims arising out of Contractor’s work or service. 

 
 Contractor is required to procure and maintain the following coverages indicated by a checkmark: 
 
 Commercial General Liability 

Commercial General Liability insurance and, if necessary, Commercial Umbrella insurance with a limit of not less than 
$1,000,000 for each occurrence, $2,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate and $2,000,000 General Aggregate 
Limit.  The policy shall include coverage for bodily injury, broad form property damage, personal injury, products and completed 
operations and blanket contractual coverage, and shall not contain any provision which would serve to limit third party action 
over claims.  There shall be no endorsement or modification of the CGL limiting the scope of coverage for liability arising from 
explosion, collapse or underground property damage. 

 
 Automobile Liability 

Commercial/Business Automobile Liability insurance and, if necessary, Commercial Umbrella insurance with a combined single 
limit for bodily injury and property damage of not less than $1,000,000 each occurrence with respect to any of the Contractor’s 
owned, hired and non-owned vehicles assigned to or used in performance of the Contractor’s work or services under this 
Contract. 

 
 Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation insurance to cover obligations imposed by federal and state statutes having jurisdiction of Contractor’s 
employees engaged in the performance of the work or services under this Contract; and Employer’s Liability insurance of not 
less than $1,000,000 for each accident, $1,000,000 disease for each employee, and $1,000,000 disease policy limit. 

 
Contractor waives all rights against County and its agents, officers, directors and employees for recovery of damages to the 
extent these damages are covered by the Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability or commercial umbrella liability 
insurance obtained by Contractor pursuant to this agreement. 

 
 Certificates of Insurance 

Prior to commencing work or services under this Contract, Contractor shall furnish County with Certificates of Insurance in a 
form acceptable to County, or formal endorsements as required by the Contract in the form provided by the County, issued by 



 

 

Terms & Conditions 
 

Pinal County 
Finance Department 

31 N. Pinal St. 
Bldg. A 

P.O. Box 1348 
Florence, AZ 85132 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 22 of 37 

 

 
 

Contractor’s insurer(s), as evidence that policies providing the required coverages, conditions and limits required by this Contract 
are in full force and effect.  Such certificates shall identify this contract number and title. 

 
In the event any insurance policy(ies) required by this contract is(are) written on a “claims made” basis, coverage shall extend 
for two years past completion and acceptance of Contractor’s work or services and as evidenced by annual Certificates of 
Insurance. 

 
If a policy does expire during the life of the Contract, a renewal certificate must be sent to County fifteen (15) days prior to the 
expiration date. 

 
 Cancellation and Expiration Notice 

Insurance required herein shall not expire, be canceled, or materially changed without thirty (30) days prior written notice to 
County. 

 
13. Israel Boycott Prohibited: 
 

Contractor hereby certifies to Pinal County as follows:  that it is not currently engaged in, and agrees for the duration of this 
Contract to not engage in, a boycott of Israel pursuant to A.R.S. § 35-393.01(A).  Further that a breach of this Certification shall 
constitute a material breach of this Contract that is subject to penalties up to and including termination of this Contract and that 
Pinal County retains the legal right to inspect the records of Contractor to ensure compliance with this Certification. 

 
14. Performance of Work: 
 
14.1 Job Order Agreement.  Performance of the Work shall be undertaken only upon the issuance of written Job Order 

Purchas Orders by the County.  Job Orders shall be in accordance with the requirements specified in the Statement 
of Work and shall set forth, with the necessary particularity, the following: 

 
 14.1.1 Contract number along with the Job Order Contractor’s name; 
 14.1.2 Job Order number and date; 
 14.1.3 The agreed Work and applicable technical specifications and drawings; 
 14.1.4 The agreed period of performance and, if required by the County, a work schedule; 
 14.1.5 The place of performance; 
 14.1.6 The agreed total price for the Work to be performed; 
 14.1.7 Submittal requirements; 
 14.1.8 The County’s authorized representative who will accept the completed Work; 
 14.1.9 Signatures by parties hereto signifying agreement with the specific terms of the Job Order; and 
 14.1.10 Such other information as may be necessary to perform the Work. 
 
14.2 Job Order Contractor Duties and Obligations. 
 
 14.2.1 Permits & Responsibilities.  Job Order Contractor shall be responsible for processing of drawings for 

approval by appropriate oversight bodies; for obtaining any necessary licenses and permits; and for 
complying with any Federal, State and municipal laws, codes and regulations applicable to the 
performance of the Work. The County will reimburse Contractor for the actual, documented costs of 
construction permits required for the performance of the Work.  Contractor shall also be responsible for 
all damages to persons or property that occur as a result of Contractor’s fault or negligence, and shall 
take proper safety and health precautions to protect the Work, the workers, the public, and the property 
of others.  Contractor shall also be responsible for all materials delivered and work performed until 
completion and acceptance of the entire Work, except for any completed unit of Work which may have 
been accepted under the Contract. 

 
 14.2.2 Self-Performance by the Job Order Contractor.  The Job Order Contractor shall be allowed to bid as a 

subcontractor for work over $50,000 and if it is the lowest acceptable bidder.  Any change orders for 
self-performed work shall require pre-approval by the County. 

 
 14.2.3 Jobsite Superintendent.  During performance of a Job Order and until the Work is completed and 

accepted, Contractor shall directly superintend the Work or assign a competent superintendent who will 



 

 

Terms & Conditions 
 

Pinal County 
Finance Department 

31 N. Pinal St. 
Bldg. A 

P.O. Box 1348 
Florence, AZ 85132 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 23 of 37 

 

 
 

supervise the performance of Work and is satisfactory to the County and has authority to act for 
Contractor. 

 
  Contractor will ensure that the site supervisor for the project is English proficient and that there is at 

least one English proficient person at the construction site at all times work is being performed in order 
to communicate with the County’s project manager. 

 
 14.2.4 Construction Layout.  Contractor shall lay out its work in accordance with the Contract plans and 

specifications and shall be responsible for all measurements in connection with the layout of the Work.  
Contractor shall furnish, at its own expense, all stakes, templates, platforms, equipment, tools, 
materials, and labor required to layout any part of the Work.  Contractor shall also be responsible for 
maintaining and preserving all control points established by the County. 

 
 14.2.5 Survey Control Points.  Existing survey markers (either brass caps or iron pipes) shall be protected by 

the Contractor or removed and replaced under direct supervision of the County Engineer or his 
designee.  Survey monuments shall be constructed to the requirements of MAG Specifications, Section 
405 and Standard Details.  Lot corners shall not be disturbed without knowledge and consent of the 
property owner.  The Contractor shall replace benchmarks, monuments or lot corners moved or 
destroyed during construction at no cost to the County.  Contractor and his sureties shall be liable for 
correct replacement of disturbed survey benchmarks except where the County elects to replace survey 
benchmarks using their own forces. 

 
 14.2.6 Traffic Regulations.  All traffic affected by this construction shall be regulated in accordance with City of 

Phoenix – Traffic Barricade manual, latest edition.   
 
  At the time of the pre-construction meeting, the Contractor shall designate an employee who is well 

qualified and experienced in construction traffic control and safety to be responsible for implementing, 
monitoring and altering traffic control measures as necessary.  At the same time the County will 
designate a representative who will be responsible to see that all traffic control and any alterations are 
implemented and monitored to the extent that traffic is carried throughout the work area in an effective 
manner and that motorists, pedestrians, bicyclists and workers are protected from hazards and 
accidents. 

 
  All traffic control devices required for this project shall be the responsibility of the Contractor.  The 

Contractor shall place advance warnings; REDUCE SPEED, LOOSE GRAVEL, 25 MPH SPEED LIMIT 
and DO NOT PASS signs in accordance with the Traffic Barricade Manual. 

 
  The Contractor shall provide, erect and maintain all necessary flashing arrow boards, barricades, 

suitable and sufficient warning lights signals and signs, and shall take all necessary precautions for the 
protection of the work and safety of the public.  The Contractor shall provide, erect and maintain 
acceptable and adequate detour signs at all closures and along detour routes. 

 
  All barricades and obstructions shall be illuminated at night and all safety lights shall be kept burning 

from sunset until sunrise.  All barricades and signs used by the Contractor shall conform to the standard 
design, generally accepted for such purposes. 

 
  The Contractor shall insure that all existing traffic signs are erect, clean and in full view of the intended 

traffic at all times.  Street name signs at major street intersections shall be maintained erect at all times.  
If these signs should interfere with construction, the Contractor shall notify the County at lease forty 
eight (48) hours in advance for County personnel to temporarily relocate said signs.  The County 
Engineer or designee will re-set all traffic and street name signs to permanent locations when notified 
by the Engineer that construction is complete unless otherwise stated in the specifications.  Payment 
for this item shall be made at the agreed upon contract allowance price for Traffic Control. 

 
  When determined necessary by the Contractor, an off-duty Pinal County Sherriff Officer shall be used 

for traffic control.  Contact shall be made through the Pinal County Sherriff’s Officer Representative, 
Malita Arellano, 520-866-5109.  Deputy time, including vehicle and equipment shall be measured by 



 

 

Terms & Conditions 
 

Pinal County 
Finance Department 

31 N. Pinal St. 
Bldg. A 

P.O. Box 1348 
Florence, AZ 85132 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 24 of 37 

 

 
 

the hour for each hour required to perform traffic control duties.  Any time over three (3) hours shall be 
measured by the hour.   

 
  The assembly and turnarounds of the Contractor’s equipment shall be accomplished using adjacent 

local streets when possible. 
 
  Equipment used and/or directed by the Contractor shall travel with traffic at all times.  Supply trucks 

shall travel with traffic except when being spotted.  Provide a flagman or officer to assist with this 
operation. 

 
  During construction it may be necessary to alter traffic control.  Alterations shall be in accordance with 

the Traffic Barricade Manual. 
 
  No street within the project may be closed to through traffic or to local emergency traffic without prior 

written approval of the County Engineer.  Written approval may be given if sufficient time exists to allow 
for notification of the public at least two (2) days in advance of such closing.  Partial closure of streets 
within the project shall be done in strict conformity with written directions to be obtained from the County 
Engineer. 

 
  Caution should be used when excavating near intersections with traffic signal underground cable.  Notify 

the County Engineer twenty four (24) hours in advance of any work at such intersections.  The 
Contractor shall install and maintain temporary overhead traffic signal cable as specified by the County 
Engineer when underground conduit is to be severed by excavations at intersections.  The Contractor 
shall provide an off-duty uniformed Sheriffs Deputy to direct traffic while the traffic signal is turned off 
and the wiring is transferred.  All damaged or modified traffic signal overhead and underground items 
shall be repaired and restored to the County Engineers satisfaction.  Magnetic detector loops shall 
under no circumstances be spliced. 

 
  The Contractor shall address how local access to adjacent properties will be handled in accordance 

with the specifications herein. 
 
  Where crossings of existing pavement occur, no open trenches shall be permitted overnight, but plating 

may be permitted if conditions allow as determined by the County Engineer or his designee.  If plates 
cannot be used, crossings shall be back-filled or the Contractor shall provide a detour. 

 
 14.2.7 Operations & Storage.  Contractor shall confine all operations (including storage of materials) to areas 

authorized by the County. 
 
 14.2.8 Cleaning Up & Refuse Disposal.  Contractor shall at all times keep the site, including storage areas, 

free from accumulations of waste materials.  Before completing the Work, Contractor shall remove from 
the premises any rubbish, tools, scaffolding, equipment and materials that are not the property of the 
County.  Upon completing the Work, Contractor shall leave the site in a clean and orderly condition 
satisfactory to the County. 

 
  Final cleanup of the premises shall be included in the period of performance of the Job Order. 
 
  Contractor shall be responsible for all construction refuse disposal containers and their removal from 

the site. 
 
  Disposal of any hazardous materials not addressed and priced in the Job Order will be segregated for 

disposal by the County unless the County requires the Contractor to dispose of the materials, in which 
case, an equitable adjustment in the price will be negotiated and agreed. 

 
 14.2.9 Existing Improvements and Utilities.  Contractor shall protect from damage all existing improvements 

and utilities to or near the site and on adjacent property of third parties, the locations of which are made 
known to or should be known by the Contractor.  Contractor shall repair any damage to those facilities, 
including those that are the property of third parties, resulting from failure to comply with the 
requirements of the Job Order or failure to exercise reasonable care in performing the Work.  If 



 

 

Terms & Conditions 
 

Pinal County 
Finance Department 

31 N. Pinal St. 
Bldg. A 

P.O. Box 1348 
Florence, AZ 85132 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 25 of 37 

 

 
 

Contractor fails or refuses to repair the damage promptly, the County may have necessary repair work 
performed and charge the cost to the Contractor. 

 
 14.2.10 Safety.  Contractor shall be responsible for compliance with all safety rules and regulations of the 

Federal Occupational Safety and Health Act 1970 (OSHA), all applicable state and local laws, 
ordinances, and regulations during the performance of the Work.  Contractor shall indemnify the County 
for fines, penalties, and corrective measures that result from the acts of commission or omission of 
Contractor, its subcontractors, if any, agents, employees and assigns and its failure to comply with such 
safety rules and regulations. 

 
  The County reserves the right to approve and monitor the Contractor’s safety policies and program 

procedures as applied during performance of the Work.  Failure to comply with safety policies and 
program procedures, once approved by Owner, shall be cause for the termination of the Job Order. 

 
14.3 Owner Rights and Obligations.   
 
 14.3.1 Suspension of Work.  Owner may order Contractor, in writing, to suspend, delay, or interrupt all or any 

part of the Work for a period of time that the County determines reasonably appropriate. 
 
  If the performance of all or any part of the Work is suspended, delayed, or interrupted by an act of the 

County in the administration of a Job Order or by the County’s failure to act within the time specified in 
the Job Order, an adjustment shall be made for any increase in the cost of performance of the Job 
Order necessarily caused by the suspension, delay or interruption, and the Job Order will be modified 
in writing accordingly. 

 
  A claim under this subparagraph 13.3.1 shall not be allowed for any costs incurred more than thirty (30) 

calendar days before Contractor shall have notified the County in writing of the act or failure to act (but 
this requirement shall not apply as to a claim resulting from a suspension order), and unless the claim, 
in an amount stated, is asserted in writing as soon as practicable after the termination of such 
suspension, delay or interruption, but not later than the date of final payment under the Job Order. 

 
 14.3.2 County’s Right to Possession.  The County shall have the right to take possession of or use any 

complete or partially completed part of the Work.  Before taking possession of or using any Work, the 
County shall furnish the Contractor a list of items of work remaining to be performed or corrected on 
those portions of the Work that the County intends to take possession of or use.  However, failure of 
the County to list any item of Work shall not relive the Contractor of responsibility for complying with the 
terms of this Contract.  County possession or use shall not be deemed an acceptance of any Work 
under this contract. 

 
  While the County has such possession or use, Contractor shall be relieved of the responsibility for the 

loss of or damage of the Work resulting from the County’s possession or use.  Notwithstanding the 
terms of subparagraph 14.2.1.  If prior possession or use by the County delays the progress of the Work 
or causes additional expense to the Contractor, an equitable adjustment shall be made in the Job Order 
price or the period of performance, and the Job Order shall be modified in writing accordingly. 

 
 14.3.3 Other Contracts.  The County may undertake or award other Contracts for additional work at or near 

the site of Work under this contract.  Contractor shall fully cooperate with the other Contractors and with 
the County’s employees and shall carefully adapt scheduling and performing the Work under this 
contract to accommodate the additional work, heeding any direction that may be provided by the 
County.  Contractor shall not commit or permit any act that will interfere with the performance of its Work 
by any other contractor or by County employees. 

 
 14.3.4 Job Order Amendment.  Job Orders may be amended by the County in the same manner as they are 

issued. 
 
 14.3.5 Job Order Value.  The maximum Job Order value is One Million Dollars ($1,000,000), except as 

provided by §17.1. 
 



 

 

Terms & Conditions 
 

Pinal County 
Finance Department 

31 N. Pinal St. 
Bldg. A 

P.O. Box 1348 
Florence, AZ 85132 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 26 of 37 

 

 
 

15. Job Order Documents: 
 
15.1 Specifications and Drawings.  Anything mentioned in the specifications and not shown in the drawings or shown 

on the drawings and not mentioned in the specifications, shall be of like effect as if shown or mentioned in both.  In 
case of differences between drawings and specifications, the drawings shall govern.  In case of discrepancy either 
in the figures, in the drawings, or in the specifications, the matter shall be promptly submitted to the County, who 
shall promptly make a determination in writing.  Any adjustment by Contractor without such a determination shall 
be at its own risk and expense.  The County shall furnish from time to time such detail drawings and other 
information as considered necessary, unless otherwise provided. 

 
15.2 Show Drawings.  Shop drawings include sketches, diagrams, layouts, schematics, descriptive literature, 

illustrations, schedules, performance and test data, and similar materials furnished by Contractor to explain in detail 
specific portions of the Work.  The County may duplicate, use, and disclose in any manner and for any purpose 
shop drawings delivered under the Contract.  Show drawings means drawings submitted to the County by the 
Contractor showing in detail: 

 
 15.2.1 The proposed fabrication and assembly of structural elements; 
 
 15.2.2 The installation (i.e. form, fit and attachment details) of materials or equipment, and 
 
 15.2.3 The construction and detailing of elements of the Work. 
 
15.3 Shop Drawing Coordination.  Contractor shall coordinate all shop drawings, and review them for accuracy, 

completeness and compliance with Contract requirements and shall indicate its approval thereon as evidence of 
such coordination and review.  Shop drawings submitted to the County without evidence of Contractor’s approval 
may be returned for resubmission.  The County will indicate its approval or disapproval of the shop drawings and 
if not approved as submitted shall indicate County’s reason therefore.  Any work done before such approval shall 
be at the Contractor’s risk.  Approval by the County shall not relieve Contractor from responsibility for any errors or 
omissions in such drawings, nor from responsibility for complying with the requirements of the Contract, except 
with respect to variations described and approved in accordance with §14.3 below. 

 
15.4 Shop Drawing Modification.  If shop drawings show variations from the Job Order requirements, Contractor shall 

describe such variations in writing, separate from the drawings, at the time of submission.  If Owner approves any 
such variation, Owner shall issue an appropriate Contract modification, except that, if the variation is minor and 
does not involve a change in price or in time of performance, a modification need not be issued. 

 
15.5 Shop Drawing Omissions.  Omissions from the drawings or specifications or the mis-description of details of work 

which are manifestly necessary to carry out the intent of the drawings and specifications, or which are customarily 
performed, shall not relieve Contractor from performing such omitted or mis-described details of the Work but they 
shall be performed as if fully and correctly set forth and described in the drawings and specifications. 

 
15.6 Owner Furnished Drawings. Contractor shall check all County furnished drawings immediately upon receipt and 

shall promptly notify the County of any discrepancies.  Any errors or omissions in the County furnished drawings 
are the responsibility of the County to rectify, including associated costs.  Figure marked on drawings shall be 
followed in preference to scale measurements.  Large scale drawings shall govern small scale drawings. Contractor 
shall compare all drawings and verify the figures before laying out the Work and will be responsible for any errors 
which might have been avoided thereby. 

 
15.7 Show Drawing Submittal.  Contractor shall submit to the County for approval an appropriate number of copies of 

all shop drawings as called for under the various headings of these specifications.  Sets of all shop drawings will 
be retained by the County and one set will be returned to the Contractor with annotation of approval or rejection 
within one (1) week after submission, unless a longer review period is necessary by mutual agreement between 
the County and the Contractor. 

 
15.8 Use of Job Order Documents.  All drawings (to include as-built drawings), sketches, designs, design data, 

specifications, note books, technical and scientific data provided to Contractor or developed by Contractor pursuant 
to the Contract and all photographs, negatives, reports, findings, recommendations, data and memoranda of every 
description relating thereto, as well as all copies of the foregoing relating to the Work or any part here of, shall be 



 

 

Terms & Conditions 
 

Pinal County 
Finance Department 

31 N. Pinal St. 
Bldg. A 

P.O. Box 1348 
Florence, AZ 85132 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 27 of 37 

 

 
 

the property of the County and may be used by the County without any claim by the Contractor for additional 
compensation, unless such material developed by Contractor does not result in an issued Job Order.  In such 
cases, Contractor will receive reasonable reimbursement for the development of such materials before the County 
uses them in any manner whatsoever.  In addition, the County agrees to hold the Contractor harmless to the extent 
permitted by law from any legal liability arising out of the County’s use of such material. 

 
16. Contract Changes: 
 
16.1 County Changes.  The County may, at any time, without notice to the sureties, if any, by written order designated 

or indicated to be a change order, make changes in the Work within the general scope of the Job Orders, including 
changes: 

  
 16.1.1 In the specifications (including drawings and designs); 
 16.1.2 In County furnished facilities, equipment, materials, services, or site; or 
 16.1.3 Directing acceleration in the performance of the Work, or otherwise altering the schedule for 

performance of the Work. 
 
16.2 County Change Orders.  Any other written order (which, as used in this paragraph, includes direction, instruction, 

interpretation, or determination) from the County that causes a change shall be treated as a change order under 
this section; provided, that the Contractor gives the County timely written notice stating the date, circumstances 
and source of the order that Contractor regards the order as a change order. 

 
16.3 Contract Adjustments.  Except as provided in this section, no order, statement or conduct of the County shall be 

treated as a change under this section or entitle Contractor to an equitable adjustment hereunder. 
 
16.4 Modification of the Job Order.  If any change under this section causes an increase or decrease in Contractor’s 

cost of, or the time required for, the performance of any part of the Work under a Job Order, whether or not changed 
by any such order, the County shall negotiate an equitable adjustment and modify the Job Order in writing. 

 
16.5 Contractor Proposals.  Contractor must submit any proposal under this section within thirty (30) calendar days after: 
 
 16.5.1 Receipt of a written change order under section 16.1 above; or 
 16.5.2 The furnishing of a written notice under section 16.2 above by submitting to the County a written 

statement describing the general nature and amount of the proposal, unless this period is extended by 
the County.  The statement of proposal for adjustment may be included in the notice under section 16.2 
above. 

 
16.6 Final Payment Limitation.  No proposal by the Contractor for an equitable adjustment shall be allowed if asserted 

after final payment under the Job Order. 
 
16.7 Contractor Extension Justification.  The Contractor shall furnish to the County a written proposal for any proposed 

extension in the period of performance.  The proposal shall contain a price breakdown and period of performance 
extension justification. 

 
16.8 Contractor Price Breakdown Structure.  Contractor, in connection with any proposal it makes for a Job Order 

change, shall furnish a price breakdown itemized as required by the County and the pricing matrix as required in 
the awarded contract. 

 
17. ARS Title 34 Provisions: 
 
17.1 The maximum dollar amount of an individual job order shall be One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) or such higher or 

lower amount prescribed by the County in an action notice pursuant to ARS Title 38, Chapter 3, Article 3.1 or a rule 
adopted by the County as the maximum amount of an individual job order.  Requirements shall not be artificially 
divided or fragmented in order to constitute a job order that satisfies this requirement. 

 
17.2 If the Contractor subcontracts or intends to subcontract part or all of the work under a job order and if this contract 

includes descriptions of standard individual tasks, standard unit prices for standard individual tasks and pricing of 
job orders based on the number of units of standard individual task in the job order, then: 



 

 

Terms & Conditions 
 

Pinal County 
Finance Department 

31 N. Pinal St. 
Bldg. A 

P.O. Box 1348 
Florence, AZ 85132 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 28 of 37 

 

 
 

 17.2.1 The Contractor has a duty to deliver promptly to each subcontractor invited to bid a coefficient to the 
Contractor to do all or part of the work under one or more job orders: 

 
  17.2.1.1 A copy of the description of all standard individual tasks on which the subcontractor is invited 
   to bid. 
 
  17.2.1.2 A copy of the standard unit prices for the individual tasks on which the subcontractor is invited 
   to bid. 
 
 17.2.2 If not previously delivered to the subcontractor, the Contractor has a duty to delivery promptly the 

following to each subcontractor invited to or that has agreed to do any of the work included in any job 
order: 

 
  17.2.2.1 A copy of the description of each standard individual task that is included in the job order and 
   that the subcontractor is invited to perform.  
 
  17.2.2.2 The number of units of each standard individual task that is included in the job order and that 
   the subcontractor is invited to perform. 
 
  17.2.2.3 The standard unit price for each standard individual task that is included in the job order and 
   that the subcontractor is invited to perform. 
  
 17.2.3 The County will include the full street or physical address of each separate location at which the 

construction will be performed for each individual Job Order.  The Contractor (and on behalf of each 
subcontractor at any level) hereby agrees to include in each of its subcontracts the same address 
information.  The Contractor and each subcontractor at any level shall include in each subcontract the 
full street or physical address of each separate location at which construction work will be performed. 

 
18. Contract Administration and Operation 
  
 To the extent applicable Contractor shall comply with the following provisions. 
 
18.1 Notice to Proceed/Ordering Authority.  The Contractor agrees to render goods or services promptly and diligently 

upon receipt of a written purchase order or notice to proceed.  Prior to receiving this notice, Contractors shall not 
commence any billable activities in the performance of the Contract.  Any attempt to represent any product not 
specifically awarded under this Contract is a violation of the contract. Any such action is subject to the legal and 
contractual remedies available to the County, inclusive of, but not limited to, contract termination, suspension and/or 
debarment of the Contractor.  A signed Contract and valid purchase order must be in place prior to the start of any 
work each year, including renewal periods.   

 
18.2 Records.  Under A.R.S. § 35-214 and § 35-215, the Contractor shall retain and shall contractually require each 

subcontractor to retain all data and other “records” relating to the acquisition and performance of the Contract for 
a period of five years after the completion of the Contract.  All records shall be subject to inspection and audit by 
the County at reasonable times.  Upon request, the Contractor shall produce a legible copy of any or all such 
records. 

 
18.3 Contractor Business Facilities and Business Practices. The Contractor’s personnel, facilities and equipment shall 

be in full compliance with all applicable federal, state and local health, environmental and safety laws, regulations, 
standards, ordinances, privilege license and permit requirements, whether or not they have been referenced by the 
County. 

 
 Employee compensation shall meet all applicable requirements of the Fair Labor Standards Act and Federal and 

Arizona minimum wage laws, in addition to all applicable OSHA regulations. The Contractor bears full responsibility 
for employee training, safety, and providing necessary equipment to achieve compliance with all such laws and 
regulations prior to the contract commencement date and to maintain compliance throughout the duration of the 
contract. 

 



 

 

Terms & Conditions 
 

Pinal County 
Finance Department 

31 N. Pinal St. 
Bldg. A 

P.O. Box 1348 
Florence, AZ 85132 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 29 of 37 

 

 
 

18.4 Affirmative Action.  Contractor agrees to abide by the provisions of the County Affirmative Action Program.  
Contractor, their subcontractor(s) and supplier(s) agree to adhere to a policy of equal employment opportunity 
and demonstrate an affirmative effort to recruit, hire, promote and upgrade the position of employees 
regardless of race, color, religion, ancestry, sex, age, disability, national origin, sexual orientation, gender 
identity, familial status, or marital status and who agree and are responsive to the County's goals.  Upon 
request, the Responder/Contractor agrees to submit the following reports to the County's Office of Equal 
Opportunity Programs: 

Part A  Employment Information Report 
Part B. Equal Employment Opportunity/Affirmative Action Policy Plan; 
Part C.  Employer Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) Workforce Profile. 

All such reports on file with the Equal Employment Opportunity Office will be updated at least annually. The 
Equal Employment Opportunity Office may for good cause recommend to the County's Chief Financial Officer 
that failure to comply with the requirements of this subsection be waived and that the submittal be accepted 
contingent upon receipt of the required reports before a notice to proceed is issued. 

18.5  Drug Free Workplace Program.  Contractors are hereby advised that Pinal County has adopted a policy 
establishing a drug free workplace for itself and as a requirement for Contractors doing business with the County, 
to ensure the safety and health of employees working on its contracts/projects.  The Contractor shall require a 
drug free workplace for all employees working under the contract.  Specifically, all Contractor employees who 
are working under this contract shall be notified in writing by the Contractor that they are prohibited from the 
manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or unlawful use of a controlled substance in the workplace. 
The Contractor agrees to prohibit the use of intoxicating substances by all employees and shall ensure that 
employees do not use or possess illegal drugs while in the course of performing their duties.  Failure to require 
a drug free workplace in accordance with the Policy may result in termination of the contract and possible 
debarment from bidding on future contracts/projects. 

 
18.6  Audit.  Pursuant to ARS § 35-214, at any time during the term of this Contract and six (6) years thereafter, the 

Contractor’s or any subcontractor’s books and records shall be subject to audit by the County and, where 
applicable, the Federal Government, to the extent that the books and records relate to the performance of the 
Contract or Subcontract. 

 
18.7  Facilities Inspection and Materials/Service Testing.  The Contractor agrees to permit access to its facilities, 

subcontractor facilities and the Contractor’s processes or services, at reasonable times for inspection of the 
facilities or materials covered under this Contract.  The County shall also have the right to test, at its own cost, 
the materials to be supplied under this Contract.  Neither inspection of the Contractor’s facilities nor materials 
testing shall constitute final acceptance of the materials or services.  If the County determines non-compliance 
of the materials, the Contractor shall be responsible for the payment of all costs incurred by the County for testing 
and inspection.  All material or service is subject to final inspection and acceptance by the County. Material or 
service failing to conform to the specifications of this contract shall be held at Contractor’s risk and may be returned. 
If defective goods are returned or services must be re-performed, all costs are the responsibility of the Contractor. 

 
18.8  Notices.  Notices to the Contractor required by this Contract shall be made by the County to the person indicated 

on the Offer and Acceptance form submitted by the Contractor unless otherwise stated in the Contract.  Notices 
to the County required by the Contract shall be made by the Contractor to the Solicitation Contact Person 
indicated on the Solicitation cover sheet, unless otherwise stated in the Contract.  An authorized Procurement 
Officer and an authorized Contractor representative may change their respective person to whom notice shall be 
given by written notice to the other and an amendment to the Contract shall not be necessary. 

 
18.9  Advertising, Publishing and Promotion of Contract.  The Contractor shall not use, advertise or promote 

information for commercial benefit concerning this Contract without the prior written approval of the Procurement 
Officer. 

 
18.10  Property of the County.  Any materials, including reports, computer programs and other deliverables, created 

under this Contract are the sole property of the County.  The Contractor is not entitled to a patent or copyright 
on those materials and may not transfer the patent or copyright to anyone else.  The Contractor shall not use or 
release these materials without the prior written consent of the County. 

 



 

 

Terms & Conditions 
 

Pinal County 
Finance Department 

31 N. Pinal St. 
Bldg. A 

P.O. Box 1348 
Florence, AZ 85132 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 30 of 37 

 

 
 

18.11  Offshore Performance of Work Prohibited.  Due to security and identity protection concerns, direct services under 
this contract shall be performed within the borders of the United States. Any services that are described in the 
specifications or scope of work that directly serve the Pinal County or its clients and may involve access to secure 
or sensitive data or personal client data or development or modification of software for the State shall be 
performed within the borders of the United States. Unless specifically stated otherwise in the specifications, this 
definition does not apply to indirect or 'overhead' services, redundant back-up services or services that are 
incidental to the performance of the contract. This provision applies to work performed by subcontractors at all 
tiers. 

 
18.12  Ownership of Intellectual Property.  Any and all intellectual property, including but not limited to copyright, 

invention, trademark, tradename, service mark, and/or trade secrets created or conceived pursuant to or as a 
result of this contract and any related subcontract (“Intellectual Property”), shall be work made for hire and the 
County shall be considered the creator of such Intellectual Property.  The Pinal County department requesting 
the issuance of this contract shall own (for and on behalf of the County) the entire right, title and interest to the 
Intellectual Property throughout the world.  Contractor shall notify the County, within thirty (30) days, of the 
creation of any Intellectual Property by it or its subcontractor(s). Contractor, on behalf of itself and any 
subcontractor (s), agrees to execute any and all document(s) necessary to assure ownership of the Intellectual 
Property vests in the County and shall take no affirmative actions that might have the effect of vesting all or part 
of the Intellectual Property in any entity other than the County. The Intellectual Property shall not be disclosed 
by contractor or its subcontractor(s) to any entity not the County without the express written authorization of the 
Pinal County department requesting the issuance of this contract. 

 
18.13  Confidentiality of Records. The Contractor shall maintain the confidentiality and privilege of any documents that 

the Contractor has access to which have been designated by the County as confidential or privileged.  The 
Contractor shall establish and maintain procedures and controls that are acceptable to the County for the purpose 
of assuring that no information contained in its records obtained from the County or from others in carrying out 
its functions under the contract shall be used by or disclosed by it, its agents, officers, or employees, except as 
required to efficiently perform duties under the contract. Persons requesting such information should be referred 
to the County. Contractor also agrees that any information pertaining to individual persons shall not be divulged 
other than to employees or officers of Contractor as needed for the performance of duties under the contract, 
unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the County. 

 
18.14  Federal Immigration and Nationality Act.  The contractor shall comply with all federal, state and local immigration 

laws and regulations relating to the immigration status of their employees during the term of the contract. Further, 
the contractor shall flow down this requirement to all subcontractors utilized during the term of the contract. The 
County shall retain the right to perform random audits of contractor and subcontractor records or to inspect 
papers of any employee thereof to ensure compliance. Should the County determine that the contractor and/or 
any subcontractors be found noncompliant, the County may pursue all remedies allowed by law, including, but 
not limited to; suspension of work, termination of the contract for default and suspension and/or debarment of 
the contractor. 

 
18.15  E-Verify Requirements.  In accordance with A.R.S. § 41-4401, Contractor warrants compliance with all Federal 

immigration laws and regulations relating to employees and warrants its compliance with Section A.R.S. § 23-
214, Subsection A. 

 
19. Price Adjustment for Bituminous Materials 
19.1 Description 

Price adjustment shall be calculated based on price changes of bituminous material occurring between the submittal 
deadline date for the JOC technical and price proposals and the date that the material is delivered or used. Price adjustment 
shall be bi-directional, potentially increasing or decreasing contract payments. 

 
The term "bituminous material" as used herein shall include asphalt cement, liquid asphalt and emulsified asphalt and shall 
apply only to specific pay items requiring these materials. 

 
The contract unit price for each item of bituminous material shall include all costs for furnishing, hauling, handling, 
spreading, and mixing of the material required, including the "initial cost" of bituminous material and all applicable taxes, 
bonds, and insurance premiums; but excluding any difference in the cost of bituminous material that occurs between the 



 

 

Terms & Conditions 
 

Pinal County 
Finance Department 

31 N. Pinal St. 
Bldg. A 

P.O. Box 1348 
Florence, AZ 85132 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 31 of 37 

 

 
 

submittal deadline date for the JOC price proposal and the date that the material is delivered or used and the cost of taxes, 
bonds and insurance directly attributed to the price adjustment amount for bituminous materials. 

 
19.2 Measurement Emulsified Asphalt 

The tons of emulsified products to which the adjustment will be applicable will be the tons of the bituminous material within 
the emulsion. The Contractor shall weigh or measure the truck or trailer tank prior to and after placing the emulsion and will 
be paid based upon the difference in the weight. 

 
19.3 Payment 

The "initial cost" of asphalt cement, liquid asphalt and emulsified asphalt will be the quarterly cost determined by the Arizona 
Department of Transportation (ADOT) based on selling prices of asphalt and all materials published by the ADOT. 

 
The bituminous material "initial cost" price is issued each month in memorandum form by ADOT's Contract and 
Specifications Section of the Intermodal Transportation Division under "Price Adjustment for Bituminous Material" title. The 
price is the arithmetic average of the high and low selling prices for asphalt cement shown for the previous quarter in the 
ADOT escalator. 

 
This price will be deemed to be the "initial cost" for bituminous material of all types, grades, etc., on projects on which bids 
are opened during the following month.   This price may be obtained from the ADOT website: 
http://www.azdot.gov/business/ContractsandSpecifications/PriceAdjustmentforBituminousMaterialandDieselFuel  
For each item of bituminous material for which there is a specific pay item, an adjustment in compensation will be made for 
either an increase or decrease in the price of asphalt cement as shown in the ADOT memorandum, current for the date of 
use of the material, as compared to the "initial cost". 

 
Adjustments in compensation for emulsified asphalt will be made for the bituminous material prior to dilution. 

 
The tons of bituminous materials which are paid for on an invoice basis to which the adjustment will be applicable are the 
tons which have been delivered to the project and subsequently incorporated into the work. The adjustment will be 
applicable on the date of use of the bituminous material. 

 
Price Adjustment for Bituminous Materials shall include an adjustment for the actual change in cost of premiums on required 
payment and performance  bonds, the actual change in cost of premiums for property damage and/or public liability 
insurance, and the change in sales tax (identified in Section 109.2.3) liability incurred as a result of the price adjustment for 
bituminous materials. The Contractor shall provide documentation to determine the adjustment for the actual change in cost 
of premiums on required payment and performance bonds, property damage and/or public liability insurance, and sales tax. 

 
No additional compensation will be made for any additional or increased charges, costs, expenses, etc., which the 
Contractor may have incurred since the time of the Price proposal submittal which may be the result of any increase in the 
"initial cost" of bituminous material. 

 
The Price Adjustment  for  Bituminous  Materials  will  be  made  in  the  next  regular  payment following actual use or 
application of the  bituminous  material  and  may  cause  an increase  or decrease in payments.  Quarterly billing shall be 
identified as: 
Quarter 1; July - September, released end of June 
Quarter 2; October -December, released end of September 
Quarter 3; January - March, released end of December 
Quarter 4; April - June, released end of March 

 
 

 

 
   

 

 

 

http://www.azdot.gov/business/ContractsandSpecifications/PriceAdjustmentforBituminousMaterialandDieselFuel


 

 
Addendum 

Acknowledgement Form 
 

 
Pinal County 

Finance Department 
31 N. Pinal St. 

Bldg. A 
P.O. Box 1348 

Florence, AZ 85132 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 32 of 37 

 

 
 

 

ADDENDUM ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM 

Solicitation Addendums are posted on the Pinal County website at the following address: 

http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx .  It is the responsibility of the Responder to periodically check this 

website for any Solicitation Addendum.  

This page is used to acknowledge any and all addendums that might be issued.  Any addendum issued within five days of the 

solicitation due date, will include a new due date to allow for addressing the addendum issues.  Your signature indicates that you took 

the information provided in the addendums into consideration when providing your complete response. 

 

Please sign and date: 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 Acknowledgement            

       Signature     Date  

 

ADDENDUM NO. 2 Acknowledgement            

       Signature     Date  

 

ADDENDUM NO. 3 Acknowledgement            

       Signature     Date  

 

 

If no addendums were issued, indicate below, sign the form and return with your response. 

 

         

Firm 

         

 

 

 

 

http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx


 

 
W-9 Form 

 

 
Pinal County 

Finance Department 
31 N. Pinal St. 

Bldg. A 
P.O. Box 1348 

Florence, AZ 85132 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 33 of 37 

 

 
 

W-9 FORM 

 
 
Download W-9 Form from http://www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/fw9.pdf 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/fw9.pdf


 

 
Responder’s Checklist 

 

 
Pinal County 

Finance Department 
31 N. Pinal St. 

Bldg. A 
P.O. Box 1348 

Florence, AZ 85132 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 34 of 37 

 

 
 

RESPONDERS CHECKLIST 
  
 
  

Yes/No 

Did you include your signed Offer sheet? 

See Page 34 & 35 of this solicitation. 

 

Did you acknowledge all addendums, if any? 

See page 31.  Any addendums would be uploaded in Bonfire. 

 

Did you complete and include all required Response Forms? 

Any Response forms would be available in Bonfire. 

 

Did you include your W-9 Form? 

See page 32 of this solicitation. 

 

Did you include any necessary attachments?  

Did you follow the order for submissions of documents? 

See Section 2.4 – Offer format in the Special Instructions of this solicitation. 

 

Did you include proof of insurance(s) if requested?  

 

 

 







 

                 End of Solicitation 

 

Solicitation No:  173923 Available online at 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Purchasing/Pages/CurrentSolicitations.aspx Page 37 of 37 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 



# Item Description Quantity 
Required

Unit of 
Measure  Unit Price 

#1-1 Crack Sealing 1/4 To 1" Width 1 LBS 1.27$         
#1-2 Crack Routing 1 LBS 0.24$         
#1-3 Crack Vacuum 1 LBS 0.15$         
#1-4 Traffic Control - Crack Sealing 1 LBS 0.47$         
#2-1 Crack Seal 1" To 2" Utilizing Crack Mastic 1 LBS 3.55$         
#2-2 Traffic Control - Crack Mastic 1 LBS 1.03$         
#3-1 Asphalt Emulsion Fog Seal SS 1:1 Or CSS 1:1, < 50 TONS 1 TON 325.00$     
#3-2 Asphalt Emulsion Fog Seal SS 1:1 Or CSS 1:1, > 50 TONS 1 TON 223.00$     
#3-3 Asphalt Emulsion Fog Seal TRMSS, < 50 TONS 1 TON 589.00$     
#3-4 Asphalt Emulsion Fog Seal TRMSS, > 50 TONS 1 TON 549.00$     
#3-5 Asphalt Emulsion Fog Seal PASS QB, < 50 TONS 1 TON 447.00$     
#3-6 Asphalt Emulsion Fog Seal PASS QB, > 50 TONS 1 TON 414.00$     
#3-7 Asphalt Emulsion Fog Seal CQS-TR, < 50 TONS 1 TON 591.00$     
#3-8 Asphalt Emulsion Fog Seal CQS-TR, > 50 TONS 1 TON 566.00$     
#3-9 Asphalt Emulsion Fog Seal CQS-LM, < 50 TONS 1 TON 609.00$     
#3-10 Asphalt Emulsion Fog Seal CQS-LM, > 50 TONS 1 TON 583.00$     
#3-11 Asphalt Emulsion Fog Seal TR-Fog, < 50 TONS 1 TON 457.00$     
#3-12 Asphalt Emulsion Fog Seal TR-Fog, > 50 TONS 1 TON 435.00$     
#3-13 Fog Seal Binder - Haul and Apply Services 1 TON 233.00$     
#3-14 Traffic Control - Fog Seal (Based on Binder TON) 1 TON 138.00$     
#3-15 PMM Seal Coat 1 SY 0.60$         
#3-16 MTR Seal Coat 1 SY 0.33$         
#3-17 Seal Coat Binder - Haul and Apply Services 1 TON 569.00$     
#3-18 Traffic Control - Seal Coat (Based on Binder TON) 1 TON 222.00$     
#4-1 Chip Seal Binder: AC15-5TR, < 100 TONS 1 TON 708.00$     
#4-2 Chip Seal Binder: AC15-5TR, > 100 TONS 1 TON 691.00$     
#4-3 Chip Seal Binder: MC-800 TR, < 100 TONS 1 TON 724.00$     
#4-4 Chip Seal Binder: MC-800 TR, > 100 TONS 1 TON 707.00$     
#4-5 Chip Seal Binder: Asphalt Rubber (PG 64-16, 18% Tire Rubber), < 100 TONS 1 TON 671.00$     
#4-6 Chip Seal Binder: Asphalt Rubber (PG 64-16, 18% Tire Rubber), > 100 TONS 1 TON 486.00$     
#4-7 Chip Seal Binder: Asphalt Rubber (PG 58-22, 18% Tire Rubber), < 100 TONS 1 TON 671.00$     
#4-8 Chip Seal Binder: Asphalt Rubber (PG 58-22, 18% Tire Rubber), > 100 TONS 1 TON 486.00$     
#4-9 Chip Seal Binder: RAB (Rubberized Asphalt Binder, Field Blend), < 100 TONS 1 TON 739.00$     
#4-10 Chip Seal Binder: RAB (Rubberized Asphalt Binder, Field Blend), > 100 TONS 1 TON 554.00$     
#4-11 Chip Seal Binder: Polymer Modified Asphalt Rubber (PG 64-16, 16% Tire Rubber, 3% SBS Polymer), < 100 TONS 1 TON 761.00$     
#4-12 Chip Seal Binder: Polymer Modified Asphalt Rubber (PG 64-16, 16% Tire Rubber, 3% SBS Polymer), > 100 TONS 1 TON 576.00$     
#4-13 Chip Seal Binder: Polymer Modified Asphalt Rubber (PG 58-22, 16% Tire Rubber, 3% SBS Polymer), < 100 TONS 1 TON 761.00$     
#4-14 Chip Seal Binder: Polymer Modified Asphalt Rubber (PG 58-22, 16% Tire Rubber, 3% SBS Polymer), > 100 TONS 1 TON 576.00$     
#4-15 Chip Seal Binder: CRS-TR, < 100 TONS 1 TON 579.00$     
#4-16 Chip Seal Binder: CRS-TR, > 100 TONS 1 TON 566.00$     
#4-17 Chip Seal Binder: CRS-2P, < 100 TONS 1 TON 513.00$     
#4-18 Chip Seal Binder: CRS-2P, > 100 TONS 1 TON 500.00$     
#4-19 Chip Seal Binder - Haul & Apply Services 1 TON 102.00$     
#4-20 Scrub Seal Binder: Rubberized Asphalt Scrub Seal Binder (Blended Base Asphalt, 10% Tire Rubber, 2% SBS Polymer), < 100 TONS1 TON 810.00$     
#4-21 Scrub Seal Binder: Rubberized Asphalt Scrub Seal Binder (Blended Base Asphalt, 10% Tire Rubber, 2% SBS Polymer), > 100 TONS1 TON 626.00$     
#4-22 Scrub Seal Binder - Haul & Apply Services 1 TON 269.00$     
#4-23 Chip Seal Aggregate - HVT Pre-Coated 1 TON 103.00$     
#4-24 Chip Seal Aggregate - LVT Pre-Coated 1 TON 103.00$     
#4-25 Chip Seal Aggregate - HVT Non-Coated 1 TON 83.50$       
#4-26 Chip Seal Aggregate - LVT Non-Coated 1 TON 83.50$       
#4-27 Scrub Seal Aggregate 1 TON 168.00$     
#4-28 Traffic Control - Chip and Scrub Seal (Based on Binder TON) 1 TON 40.00$       
#4-29 Chip Seal Binder: PASS CR, <100 Tons 1 TON 718.00$     
#4-30 Chip Seal Binder: PASS CR, >100 Tons 1 TON 702.00$     
#5-1 Micro Surface Binder:  LMCQSTR-MS, < 100 TONS 1 TON 1,155.00$  
#5-2 Micro Surface Binder:  LMCQSTR-MS, > 100 TONS 1 TON 1,050.00$  
#5-3 Micro Surface Binder:  MSE (MAG Spec.), < 100 TONS 1 TON 1,112.00$  
#5-4 Micro Surface Binder:  MSE (MAG Spec.), > 100 TONS 1 TON 958.00$     
#5-5 Micro Surface Binder:  CQSLM, < 100 TONS 1 TON 1,112.00$  
#5-6 Micro Surface Binder:  CQSLM, > 100 TONS 1 TON 958.00$     
#5-7 Micro Surface Binder:  CQSPM, < 100 TONS 1 TON 1,052.00$  
#5-8 Micro Surface Binder:  CQSPM, > 100 TONS 1 TON 1,015.00$  
#5-9 Micro Surface Binder:  CQSLM TR, < 100 TONS 1 TON 1,155.00$  
#5-10 Micro Surface Binder:  CQSLM TR, > 100 TONS 1 TON 1,049.00$  
#5-11 Slurry Seal Binder:  LMCQSTR, < 100 TONS 1 TON 1,167.00$  
#5-12 Slurry Seal Binder:  LMCQSTR, > 100 TONS 1 TON 1,044.00$  
#5-13 Slurry Seal Binder:  LMCQS, < 100 TONS 1 TON 981.00$     
#5-14 Slurry Seal Binder:  LMCQS, > 100 TONS 1 TON 843.00$     
#5-15 Slurry Seal Binder:  PMCQS (Solid Polymer SBS), < 100 TONS 1 TON 1,102.00$  
#5-16 Slurry Seal Binder:  PMCQS (Solid Polymer SBS), > 100 TONS 1 TON 883.00$     
#5-17 Slurry Seal Binder:  PMQS h, < 100 TONS 1 TON
#5-18 Slurry Seal Binder:  PMQS h, > 100 TONS 1 TON
#5-19 Slurry Seal Binder:  CQS, < 100 TONS 1 TON 863.00$     
#5-20 Slurry Seal Binder:  CQS, > 100 TONS 1 TON 790.00$     
#5-21 Slurry Seal Binder:  CQSLM, < 100 TONS 1 TON 982.00$     

Cactus Asphalt



#5-22 Slurry Seal Binder:  CQSLM, > 100 TONS 1 TON 843.00$     
#5-23 Slurry Seal Binder:  CQS TR, < 100 TONS 1 TON 1,068.00$  
#5-24 Slurry Seal Binder:  CQS TR, > 100 TONS 1 TON 941.00$     
#5-25 Slurry Seal Binder:  CQSLM TR, < 100 TONS 1 TON 1,167.00$  
#5-26 Slurry Seal Binder:  CQSLM TR, > 100 TONS 1 TON 1,044.00$  
#5-27 Slurry Seal Aggregate (Type I) Residential 1 TON 219.00$     
#5-28 Slurry Seal Aggregate (Type II) Residential 1 TON 122.00$     
#5-29 Slurry Seal Aggregate (Type II) Arterial 1 TON 124.00$     
#5-30 Slurry Seal Aggregate (Type III) Residential 1 TON 120.00$     
#5-31 Slurry Seal Aggregate (Type III) Arterial 1 TON 123.00$     
#5-32 Micro Surfacing Aggregate (Type II) 1 TON 154.00$     
#5-33 Micro Surfacing Aggregate (Type III) 1 TON 124.00$     
#5-34 Slurry Seal & Micro Seal Fiber Additive 1 LBS 8.00$         
#5-35 Traffic Control - Slurry and Micro Seal (Based on Binder TON) 1 TON 141.00$     
#6-1 Asphalt Concrete Pavement (Marshall 1/2" Mix Low Traffic), < 500 TONS 1 TON 123.75$     
#6-2 Asphalt Concrete Pavement (Marshall 1/2" Mix Low Traffic), > 500 TONS 1 TON 89.10$       
#6-3 Asphalt Concrete Pavement (Marshall 1/2" Mix High Traffic), < 500 TONS 1 TON 123.75$     
#6-4 Asphalt Concrete Pavement (Marshall 1/2" Mix High Traffic), > 500 TONS 1 TON 89.10$       
#6-5 Asphalt Concrete Pavement (Marshall 3/4" Mix Low Traffic), < 500 TONS 1 TON 123.75$     
#6-6 Asphalt Concrete Pavement (Marshall 3/4" Mix Low Traffic), > 500 TONS 1 TON 89.10$       
#6-7 Asphalt Concrete Pavement (Marshall 3/4" Mix High Traffic), < 500 TONS 1 TON 123.75$     
#6-8 Asphalt Concrete Pavement (Marshall 3/4" Mix High Traffic), > 500 TONS 1 TON 89.10$       
#6-9 Asphalt Concrete Pavement (Superpave 1/2" Mix), < 500 TONS 1 TON 123.75$     
#6-10 Asphalt Concrete Pavement (Superpave 1/2" Mix), > 500 TONS 1 TON 89.10$       
#6-11 Asphalt Concrete Pavement (Superpave 3/4" Mix), < 500 TONS 1 TON 123.75$     
#6-12 Asphalt Concrete Pavement (Superpave 3/4" Mix), > 500 TONS 1 TON 89.10$       
#6-13 Asphalt-Rubber Concrete Pavement, < 500 TONS 1 TON 158.50$     
#6-14 Asphalt-Rubber Concrete Pavement, > 500 TONS 1 TON 122.50$     
#6-15 Bituminous Tack Coat (CSS-1H, Diluted) 1 TON 686.00$     
#6-16 Asphaltic Concrete Patching (Remove And Replace) 1 TON 275.00$     
#6-17 Asphaltic Concrete Patching (Pothole Patching) 1 TON 1,400.00$  
#6-18 Recondition Shoulder 1 SY 2.00$         
#6-19 Shoulder Build-Up Material 1 TON 28.00$       
#6-20 Saw Cut Asphaltic Concrete Pavement (Per Inch Foot) 1 LF 0.35$         
#6-21 Asphaltic Concrete Pavement Milling (Edge Mill) (0-7') 1 SY 1.99$         
#6-22 Asphalt Profiling (Micro Milling 1 to 2,000 SY) 1 SY 6.40$         
#6-23 Asphalt Profiling (Micro Milling 2,001 to 4,000) 1 SY 4.21$         
#6-24 Asphalt Profiling (Micro Milling 4,001 to 16,000) 1 SY 2.89$         
#6-25 Asphalt Profiling (Micro Milling 16,001 to 32,000) 1 SY 2.20$         
#6-26 Asphalt Profiling (Micro Milling 32,001 to 64,000) 1 SY 2.02$         
#7-1 Remove Thermoplastic Stripe 1 LF 0.63$         
#7-2 Remove Thermoplastic Symbol Or Legend 1 EA 79.00$       
#7-3 Remove Raised Pavement Marker 1 EA 2.35$         
#7-4 15 MIL (4") White Traffic Paint Stripe 1 LF 0.16$         
#7-5 15 MIL (4") Yellow Traffic Paint Stripe 1 LF 0.16$         
#7-6 Paint Symbol Arrow 1 EA 79.00$       
#7-7 Paint Symbol (RR Crossing) 1 EA 150.00$     
#7-8 Paint Symbol (Bike Lane Marking Set) 1 EA 103.00$     
#7-9 Paint Legend "Only" 1 EA 79.00$       
#7-10 60 MIL (4") White Thermoplastic Traffic Stripe 1 LF 0.38$         
#7-11 60 MIL (4") Yellow Thermoplastic Traffic Stripe 1 LF 0.38$         
#7-12 Transverse Thermoplastic 4" Equivalent 1 LF 0.65$         
#7-13 Thermoplastic Pavement Arrow 90 MIL 1 EA 158.00$     
#7-14 Thermoplastic Symbol, RR Crossing 90 MIL 1 EA 307.00$     
#7-15 Thermoplastic Legend "Only" 90 MIL 1 EA 189.00$     
#7-16 25 MIL (4") White Dual Component Pavement Marking (Epoxy) 1 LF 0.41$         
#7-17 25 MIL (4") Yellow Dual Component Pavement Marking (Epoxy) 1 LF 0.41$         
#7-18 Transverse Dual Component Pavement Marking (Epoxy) 4" Equivalent 1 EA 0.75$         
#7-19 Dual Component Pavement Marking Symbol (Epoxy) 1 EA 354.00$     
#7-20 Dual Component Pavement Marking Legend (Epoxy) 1 EA 354.00$     
#7-21 Pre-Formed Tape Striping (3M 270 Series) 4" Equivalent 1 LF 2.75$         
#7-22 Pre-Formed Symbol (3M 270 Series) 1 EA 275.00$     
#7-23 Pre-Formed Legend (3M 270 Series) 1 EA 307.00$     
#7-24 Reflectorized Raised Pavement Marker (Type D, Yellow 2-Way) 1 EA 3.95$         
#7-25 Reflectorized Raised Pavement Marker (Type G, Clear, 1 Way) 1 EA 3.95$         
#7-26 Reflectorized Riased Pavement Marker (Type H, Yellow 1-Way) 1 EA 3.95$         
#7-27 Reflectorized Raised Pavement Marker (Type 911-A, Blue 2-Way) 1 EA 3.95$         
#7-28 Chip Seal Marker, ADOT Std M-20 1 EA 2.15$         
#8-1 Adjust Round Frame & Cover To Grade, MAG Det. 270 1 EA 665.00$     
#8-2 Adjust Valve Box & Cover To Grade, MAG Det. 391-1-A 1 EA 641.00$     
#8-3 Adjust Valve Box & Cover To Grade, MAG Det. 391-1-B 1 EA 641.00$     
#8-4 Adjust Valve Box & Cover To Grader, MAG Det. 391-1-C 1 EA 641.00$     
#8-5 Adjust Manhole Frame & Cover To Grade, MAG Det. 422 1 EA 926.00$     
#9-1 Traffic Control (Not for Items No. 1-5) 1 LS -$           
#9-2 Message Board (Per Unit Per Day) 1 DY 75.00$       
#9-3 Uniformed Off-Duty Pinal County Sheriff Deputy & Official Vehicle 1 HR 45.00$       
#9-4 Flagging Services (Hours Vary By Job) 1 HR 35.00$       
#9-5 Pilot Car And Driver (Hours Vary By Job) 1 HR 65.00$       



#9-6 Document Existing Pavement Markings 1 LS -$           
#9-7 Miscellaneous Removals And Other Work 1 LS -$           
#9-8 Paved Surface Cleaning 1 MILE 1,050.00$  
#9-9 Community Relations 1 LS -$           





1 
 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA 
CONTRACT FOR COOPERATIVE USE OF PINAL COUNTY SOLICITATION AND 
CONTRACT NO 173923 FOR ASPHALT MAINTENANCE & REPAIR SERVICES. 

 
THIS CONTRACT (the “Contract”) is made and entered into effective as of the 20th day 
of August, 2018 (“Effective Date”), by and between the Town of Florence, Arizona (the 
“Town”), and Cactus Transportation dba Cactus Asphalt (the “Contractor”) and together 
with the Contract Documents referred to and incorporated herein, is the “resultant 
contract” contemplated in Pinal County Solicitation and Contract No. 173923, to provide 
asphalt maintenance and repair services. The Town and the Contractor are sometimes 
referred to in this Contract collectively as the “Parties” and each individually as a “Party”.  
 

1. SCOPE OF WORK: The Contractor shall provide the Town all necessary labor, 
material, transportation services and equipment to provide polymer modified 
asphalt paving, per contract specifications described in the attached scope of 
materials and services set forth in Exhibit “A” (the “Goods” or “Services”). The 
Contractor shall provide the Goods in accordance with the schedule attached in 
Exhibit “A”, and the Contract Documents, including all exhibits to the Master 
Contract including but not limited to any Instructions, Standard Terms and 
Conditions, Special Terms and Conditions, Specifications, Scope of Work, 
Submittals and Attachments.  Contractor agrees, at its own cost and expense, to 
do all of the work and furnish all of the equipment, personnel and materials 
necessary to provide in a good and substantial manner, and to the satisfaction of 
the Town, the Goods. 
 

2. PRIORITY OF DOCUMENTS. It is further expressly agreed by and between the 
Parties that should there be any conflict between the terms of this Contract, the 
Master Contract, or the Contractor’s Proposal, then this Contract and the 
provisions of the Contract Documents shall control and nothing herein shall be 
considered as an acceptance of the terms of the said Proposal conflicting herewith 
or with the Master Contract, unless expressly stated herein. 

 
3. INCORPORATION: For and in consideration of this Contract and other good and 

valuable consideration, the Contractor agrees that the master cooperative 
solicitation/contract Pinal County Contract 173923 to provide JOC Asphalt 
Maintenance & Repair Services. Requirements Contract and Contract Amendment 
dated May 22, 2018) is in full force and effect, and all terms and conditions of the 
Master Contract are incorporated by reference into this Contract, creating an 
agreement identical in terms between the Town and Contractor.  In the Master 
Contract, the terms: “Pinal County”, “Buyer” and “City” shall be deemed to be and 
refer to the Town of Florence; the terms: “Deputy Finance Director” shall be 
deemed to be and refer to the Town of Florence Town Manager; and the terms: 
“Assignee”, “Offeror”, “Contractor”, “Seller”, “Supplier”, and “Vendor” shall be 
deemed to be and refer to the Contractor under this Contract.  
 



2 
 

4. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: This Contract consists of the following contract 
documents, which by reference are incorporated herein: 
 This signed Professional Services Contract 
 Exhibit A – Scope of Work 
 Executed Pinal County Solicitation and Contract No. 173923 

 
5. CONTRACT PRICING: Contract pricing shall be consistent with the Contract 

Documents and Contractor’s Proposal and is listed in Exhibit “A” (Price Sheet), 
and shall not exceed $364,018.24 (Quote $316,537.60 and a 15% Contingency 
$47,480.64). 
 

6. TERM OF CONTRACT: The term of this Contract shall be from the Effective Date 
through satisfactory completion of the Services or delivery of Goods and 
acceptance of the Services and/or Goods by the Town. Time is of the essence to 
the terms of this Contract. 
 

7. COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL AND STATE LAWS. 
A. The Contractor understands and acknowledges the applicability to it of the 

American with Disabilities Act, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 
and the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1989.  

 
B. Under the provisions of A. R. S. § 41-4401, Contractor hereby warrants to the 

Town  that the Contractor and each of its subcontractors will comply with, and 
are contractually obligated to comply with, all Federal Immigration laws and 
regulations that relate to their employees and A. R. S. § 23-214 (A) (hereinafter 
“Contractor Immigration Warranty”). 

 
C. A breach of the Contractor Immigration Warranty shall constitute a material 

breach of this Contract and shall subject the Contractor to penalties up to and 
including termination of this Contract at the sole discretion of the Town. 

 
D. The Town retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any Contractor or 

Subcontractor’s employee who works on this Contract to ensure that the 
Contractor or Subcontractor is complying with the Contractor Immigration 
Warranty.  Contractor agrees to assist the Town in regard to any such 
inspections. 

 
E. The Town may, at is sole discretion, conduct random verification of the 

employment records of the Contractor and any subcontractors to ensure 
compliance with Contractor’s Immigration Warranty.  Contractor agrees to 
assist the Town in regard to any random verification performed. 

 
F. Neither the Contractor nor any subcontractor shall be deemed to have 

materially breached the Contractor Immigration Warranty if the Contractor or 
subcontractor establishes that it has complied with the employment verification 
provisions prescribed by section 274A and 274B of the Federal Immigration 



3 
 

and Nationality Act and the E-Verify requirements prescribed by A. R. S. § 23-
214, Subsection A. 

 
G. The provisions of this Section must be included in any contract the Contractor 

enters into with any and all of its subcontractors who provide Services under 
this Contract or any subcontract.  “Services” are defined as furnishing labor, 
time or effort in the State of Arizona by a contractor or subcontractor.  Services 
include construction or maintenance of any structure, building or transportation 
facility or improvement to real property. 

 
8. METHOD OF PAYMENT.  Method of payment shall be set forth in Exhibit “A”.  If 

payment is to be made monthly, Contractor shall prepare monthly invoices and 
progress reports which clearly indicate the progress to date and the amount of 
compensation due by virtue of that progress.  All invoices shall be for Services 
completed or Goods accepted by the Town. 
 

9. TERMINATION.  Town, at any time and for any reason and without cause, may 
terminate, suspend or abandon any portion, or all, of this Contract at Town’s 
convenience without penalty or recourse.  Contractor shall receive payment for 
Services or Goods satisfactorily completed and accepted by Town, as determined 
by Town in its reasonable discretion, based on the Goods and/or Services 
requirements and schedule for payment. 
 

10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  It is understood that Contractor shall be an 
independent contractor with respect to Services and/or Goods provided under this 
Contract, and shall not be deemed to be a partner, employee, joint venture, agent, 
or to have any other legal relationship with Town. 
 

11. Notices.  Any notice to be given under this Contract shall be in writing, shall be 
deemed to have been given when personally served or when mailed by certified 
or registered mail, addressed as follows:  Town: Town of Florence, Town Clerk, 
775 N. Main Street, PO Box 2670, Florence, AZ 85132; and Contractor: Cactus 
Asphalt, A Division of Cactus Transport, Inc, Bryan Glazer, 8211 W. Sherman 
Street, Tolleson, AZ 85353. 

 
12.  INDEMNIFICATION.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor, its 

successors, assigns and guarantors, shall pay, defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless the Town of Florence, its Mayor and Council members, its agents, 
officers, officials, representatives and employees, from and against all demands, 
claims proceedings, suits, damages, losses and expenses (including but not 
limited to attorney’s fees, court costs, and the costs of appellate proceedings), and 
all claim adjustment and handling expenses, relating to, arising out of, or alleged 
to have resulted from the acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods or Services of 
the Contractor, its agents, employees or any tier of Contractor’s subcontractors 
related to the Goods or Services in the performance of this Contract.  Contractor’s 
duty to defend, hold harmless and indemnify Town of Florence, its Mayor and  



4 
 

Council members, its agents, officers, officials, representatives and employees 
shall arise in connection with any claim, damage, loss or expense that is 
attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, death, or injury to, impairment, or 
destruction of property including loss of use of resulting therefrom, caused by 
Contractor’s acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods, Services in the 
performance of this Contract including any employee of the Contractor, any tier of 
Contractor’s subcontractors or any other person for whose acts, errors, mistakes, 
omissions, Goods, Services the Contractor may be legally liable. In consideration 
of the award of this Contract, the Contractor agrees to waive all rights of 
subrogation against the Town, its officers, officials, agents and employees for 
losses arising from the Goods or Services provided by the Contractor for the Town. 
 

13. WARRANTY.  Contractor warrants that the Goods and Services will conform to 
the requirements of this Contract.  Additionally, Contractor warrants that all 
Services will be performed in a good, workman-like and professional manner.  The 
Town’s acceptance of Goods or Services provided by Contractor shall not relieve 
Contractor from its obligations under this warranty.  If any Goods or Services are 
of a substandard or unsatisfactory manner as determined by the Town, Contractor, 
at no additional charge to the Town, will provide Goods or redo such Services until 
they are in accordance with this Contract and to the Town’s reasonable 
satisfaction.  Unless otherwise agreed, Contractor, warrants that Goods will be 
new, unused, of most current manufacture and not discontinued, will be free of 
defects in materials and workmanship, will be provided in accordance with 
manufacturer’s standard warranty for at least one (1) year, unless otherwise 
specified, and will perform in accordance with manufacturer’s published 
specifications. 
 

14. PURCHASING POLICY.  The Town of Florence Town Code and Purchasing 
Policy (the “Policy”) govern this procurement and are incorporated as part of this 
Contract by this reference. Contractor agrees and warrants that it is in compliance 
with the Policy, including demonstrating its lawful presence in the United States. 

 
15. GOVERNING LAW.  This Contract shall be deemed to be made under, shall be 

construed in accordance with, and shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
Arizona, without reference to choice of law or conflicts of laws principles thereof. 
The exclusive forum selected for any proceeding or suit in law or equity arising 
from or incident to this Contract shall be Pinal County, Arizona. 
 

16. PROHIBITED BOYCOTT.  Pursuant to A.R.S. section 35-393.01, the Contractor, 
by execution of this Contract, certifies that it is not currently engaged in, and agrees 
for the duration of this Contract to not engage in, a boycott of Israel. 

 
 
 
 



5 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Contract effective as of the 
Effective Date set forth above. 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, A municipal corporation 

By: __________________________ Date:_________________________ 
       Tara Walter, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk  

Approved as to Form 

______________________________ 

Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 

CONTRACTOR 

By: ___________________________ Date:__________________________ 

Its: __________________________ 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
9c.  

MEETING DATE:   August 20, 2018 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Fire Department 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:   David Strayer, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT:  Agreement for Temporary Housing at Florence Fire 
Station 542 by American Medical Response

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject: Temp Housing at Florence Fire Station 542 by American Medical Response  Meeting Date: August 20, 2018   
Page 1 of 2 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  Community Vitality       Economic Property    

 Leadership and Governance     Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:  
 
It is recommended that the Town Council approve the 2018 American Medical 
Response (AMR) Non-Exclusive Revocable License Agreement for temporary housing 
at Florence Fire Station 542.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
 
The Town of Florence Fire Department serves as the first responder for the emergency 
needs of the Town.  American Medical Response (AMR) serves as a second-responder 
transport unit that provides assistance to the Town’s Fire Department paramedic staff 
on-scene of an incident as well as transportation to the nearest, most appropriate 
medical facility.   
 
AMR is currently authorized by the Arizona Department of Health Services (DHS) to 
provide emergency medical transportation services within the service area described in 
Certificate of Necessity Number 85, which includes the Town of Florence.  All 
ambulances are equipped, maintained, and operated in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Arizona, and the rules and regulations of DHS.   
 
The purpose of this agreement is to provide temporary housing and storage of 
emergency services personnel and equipment at Florence Fire Station 542.  This need 
has surfaced due to the recent closing of the Florence Anthem Hospital and is 
necessary to maintain the current level of emergency medical services for the citizens of 
the Town of Florence until a permanent solution is reached.  The contract period for this 
temporary agreement is up 12 months.  
 
 



Subject: Temp Housing at Florence Fire Station 542 by American Medical Response  Meeting Date: August 20, 2018   
Page 2 of 2 

A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN:  
 
The Town would not allow AMR to temporarily share facilities at Fire Station 542. This 
could potentially result in longer response times for emergency medical service (EMS) 
transportation calls in the Sun City/Anthem area.  
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN:  
 
The Town would allow AMR to temporarily share facilities at Fire Station 542.  This 
would allow current levels of EMS service to continue.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
Under the terms of this agreement, the Town of Florence will collect a fee $1,423.82 per 
month from AMR.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Agreement 



 

Page 1 of 15 
 

AMERICAN MEDICAL RESPONSE NON-EXCLUSIVE, 
REVOCABLE LICENSE AGREEMENT  

 
1.  PARTIES: 

 
This Non-Exclusive, Revocable License Agreement (the “Agreement” or “License”), is 
entered into this _____ day of _____________, 2018 (the “Effective Date”), between the 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, an Arizona municipal corporation (the “Licensor” or “Town”), and 
the AMERICAN MEDICAL RESPONSE OF MARICOPA, L.L.C., a(n) Arizona limited 
liability company (the “Licensee”). The Town and Licensee are sometimes referred to in 
this License collectively as the “Parties” and each individually as a “Party”. 
 

2.  RECITALS: 
 

2.1. Town owns and operates Fire Station No. 2 (“Fire Station”, “Licensed 
Area”, or “Property”) in the Town of Florence and desires to make a portion of the real 
property and improvements available for use by the Licensee.  The Property is described 
in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein; and  

 
2.2. Town and Licensee have discussed the joint benefits to be derived 

by the Town permitting the Licensee to share in the use, maintenance and operation of 
the Fire Station, and the Parties agree that it is in their mutual best interest to enter into 
this Agreement outlining the terms and expectations for the use, maintenance and 
operation of the Station; and 

 
2.3. Licensor, as operator of the Fire Station, has control of the Property. 

Licensee desires to license from Licensor on a revocable, non-exclusive basis the 
Property depicted in Exhibit “A”; and 

 
2.4. It is in the best interests of the Town of Florence to grant a license 

for Licensee to use space temporarily for housing and storage of emergency services 
personnel and equipment; and 

 
2.5. Licensee understands and agrees that Licensor may also grant a 

non-exclusive, license of the Licensed Area to unrelated third parties for the same or 
different uses from the Use (as defined below) (the “Third Party Licenses”); and  

 
2.6.  Licensor is willing to grant Licensee and Licensee is willing to accept 

a revocable, non-exclusive, License to use the Licensed Area on the terms and subject 
to the conditions set forth below.  
 

3. AGREEMENTS: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and representations, covenants 
and mutual promises herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt 
and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 



 

Page 2 of 15 
 

3.1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS.  The foregoing Recitals are 
incorporated as agreements of the Parties. 

 
3.2.  GRANT OF NON-EXCLUSIVE LICENSE. Licensor hereby grants 

Licensee a revocable, non-exclusive license to use the Licensed Area subject to the terms 
and conditions of this License and solely to house an ambulance, necessary equipment 
and associated emergency medical personnel for the purpose of emergency services 
operations performed on a 24-hour, per-day basis. (the “Use”).   

 
3.3.  USE OF LICENSED AREA AND LICENSEE’S RESPONSIBILITIES. 

 
3.3.1. Licensed Area. The “Licensed Area” shall be an area located 

within the Town’s Fire Station No. 2 (See Exhibit “A”) and shall include:  a) one (1) 
parking bay to be used for the housing of an ambulance, b) sleeping quarters for an 
ambulance crew consisting of two (2) individuals, and c) space allocated at the Fire 
Station to store required medical equipment.   The exact location of the Licensed Area 
within the Fire Station shall be subject to the approval of the Florence Fire Chief, or his 
designee, in his sole and absolute discretion.  The Parties acknowledge and agree that 
by virtue of the physical layout of the Fire Station, the Licensee may be permitted to the 
non-exclusive use of various “Common Areas” of the Fire Station.  Common Areas shall 
not include any designated office space of the Fire Captains or any law enforcement 
personnel.  The designation and use of such Common Areas may be agreed upon by the 
Licensee and the Florence Fire Chief and the Florence Police Chief, if related to law 
enforcement operations.  The Licensee shall have no access to Licensor’s Emergency 
Medical Service (“EMS”) supply area(s). The Licensee shall use the Licensed Area only 
for the purpose of emergency services operations. 

 
3.3.2. Use.  Licensee shall use the Licensed Area solely for housing 

of an ambulance, associated crew, and necessary equipment, and for no other purpose 
without Licensor’s prior written consent, which consent may be withheld in Licensor’s sole 
and absolute discretion.  Licensee hereby accepts the Property in the condition existing 
as of the date of the execution hereof, subject to all applicable zoning, municipal, county, 
and state laws, ordinances and regulations governing and regulating the use of the 
Property and accepts this License subject thereto and to all matters disclosed thereby 
and by any exhibits attached hereto.  Licensee acknowledges that neither Licensor nor 
Licensor’s agents have made any representation or warranty as to the suitability of the 
Licensed Area for the conduct of Licensee’s business.  Licensee acknowledges that its 
use of the Licensed Area described herein is revocable and non-exclusive, and that the 
Licensed Area will also be used by the Town as a fire station, and for other municipal and 
governmental purposes as determined by Town.   

 
3.3.3. Signs.  Licensee shall place no signs, flags, or posters or other 

advertising or promotional materials on the Property, on the exterior of the building in 
which the Licensed Area are located, or in the windows of the Licensed Area without 
having obtained Licensor’s prior written consent, which consent may be withheld at the 
sole discretion of the Licensor. 



 

Page 3 of 15 
 

3.3.4. Repairs.  Any repairs which are required to be done to the 
Licensed Area which are necessitated by the negligence or acts of the Licensee, its 
employees or agents, shall be repaired as determined by the Licensor, the cost of which 
shall be borne by the Licensee. 

 
3.3.5. Keeping Premises Clean.  Licensee agrees to assist in 

keeping the Licensed Area inside and outside clean and neat at all times, including 
sidewalks, parking areas and front and rear yards.  Licensee is responsible for keeping 
their designated sleeping quarters and ambulance parking bay clean and free of debris. 

 
3.3.6.  Alterations and Additions.  Alterations and additions may not 

be made to the Licensed Area without the prior written consent of the Licensor, which 
consent may be withheld in Licensor’s sole and absolute discretion.  Any alteration of or 
addition to the Licensed Area shall become part of the realty and shall belong to the Town 
upon termination or expiration of this License.  Storage of equipment that is freestanding 
and not mounted to any wall shall remain the property of the Licensee and shall be 
removed upon expiration of this License or earlier termination thereof. 

 
3.3.7. Liens Created by Licensee.  Licensee shall have no power to 

do any act or to make any contract that may create or be the foundation for any lien upon 
the property on which the Licensed Area are located or other  estate or reversion of the 
Licensor in the Licensed Area or upon any building or improvement thereon, and should 
any such lien be filed, the Licensee, at its sole cost and expense, shall bond or otherwise 
discharge the same within ten (10) calendar days after the filing thereof. 

 
3.3.8.  Prohibition Against Licensee.  Licensee shall not, at any time, 

without first obtaining the Licensor’s express written consent, which consent may be 
withheld in Licensor’s sole and absolute discretion: a) Perform any act or carry on any 
practice which may damage, mar or deface the Licensed Area, the building in which the 
Licensed Area is located, or the property on which the Licensed Area is located; b) Install, 
operate or maintain in the Licensed Area any electrical equipment which will overload the 
electrical system therein or any part thereof, beyond its reasonable capacity  for proper 
and safe operation ad determined by Licensor, in Licensor’s sole and absolute discretion. 

 
3.3.9. Compliance with Laws. Licensee, at Licensee’s sole cost, 

shall comply with all laws, ordinances, orders and regulations of any governmental 
authority, including those adopted by the Florence Fire Chief, whether now or hereafter 
in effect, with respect to the use of the Licensed Area for the Use. 
   

 
3.4. TERM. 

 
3.4.1. Term. Except as provided in this License, the “Term” of this 

License shall commence on the Effective Date and shall automatically terminate on June 
30, 2019, unless earlier terminated.  

 



 

Page 4 of 15 
 

3.4.2. Early Termination by Licensee or Licensor. Any provision of 
Subparagraph 3.4.1. to the contrary notwithstanding, Licensor has the right to terminate, 
suspend or abandon this Agreement for cause or convenience.  Licensor may terminate 
this Agreement, or any part thereof for its sole convenience, at any time without penalty 
or recourse.   
 

3.5 FEE. In consideration for this License, the Licensee shall pay to 
Licensor on a monthly basis (or pro-rated amount based on the occupied use by the 
Licensee) One Thousand Four Hundred Twenty-Three and 82/100 ($1,423.82) on the 
first day of each month during the Term as a fee for use of the Licensed Area (the “Monthly 
Fee”). Monthly license payments due herein are due and payable on the first day of each 
month without setoff or deduction, notice or demand.  A late charge of Three Hundred 
Dollars ($300.00) shall be added to each payment received by Licensor ten (10) calendar 
days after said payment becomes due and payable.  Additionally, an additional Two 
Hundred Dollars ($200.00) shall be due and payable every fifth (5th) day thereafter until 
thirty (30) days have elapsed.  Thereafter, interest shall accrue on the outstanding 
balance as set forth herein. If the Licensed Area is occupied and used to house a “day-
car” for portions of a day (minimum twelve-hour periods), the fee charged will be a pro-
rated amount based on the occupied use by the Licensee.  For example, if Licensee 
occupies for twelve hours a day the fee charged will be one-half the Monthly Fee.  Any 
changes to the occupancy period (i.e. 12-hour or 24-hour use) of the Licensed Area or to 
the applicable Monthly Fee shall be by written amendment to this License signed by both 
Parties. 
 

3.6. RULES AND REGULATIONS. Licensee shall use and maintain the 
Licensed Area in accordance with Licensor’s rules and regulations. 

 
3.7. SALES/USE TAXES. Licensee shall pay all privilege, use, sales, 

gross proceeds, government property lease excise taxes or like taxes, now or hereafter 
levied, assessed or imposed by any governmental authority upon any fee, use or other 
payments required to be paid by Licensee hereunder.  Licensee shall be responsible for 
any and all property taxes and all government property lease excise taxes described in 
A.R.S. section 42-6201 et. seq. or similar laws in force from time to time and the Town of 
Florence shall have no responsibility whatsoever for such excise taxes.  Pursuant to 
A.R.S. section 42-6206 failure by Licensee to pay any such tax after notice and 
opportunity to cure is an event of default that may result in divesting the Licensee of any 
interest in or right of occupancy of the Licensed Area. 

 
3.8.  INSURANCE.  

 
3.8.1. General.  Licensee agrees to comply with all Town ordinances 

and state and federal laws and regulations.  Without limiting any obligations or liabilities 
of Licensee, Licensee shall purchase and maintain, at its own expense, hereinafter 
stipulated minimum insurance with insurance companies duly licensed by the State of 
Arizona (admitted insurer) with an AM Best, Inc. rating of B ++6 or above or an equivalent 
qualified unlicensed insurer by the State of Arizona (non-admitted insurer) with policies 



 

Page 5 of 15 
 

and forms satisfactory to the Town of Florence.  Failure to maintain insurance as specified 
may result in termination of this Agreement at Town of Florence’s sole option.  The 
Licensee is primarily responsible for the risk management of its Use under this 
Agreement, including but not limited to obtaining and maintaining the required insurance 
and establishing and maintaining reasonable risk control and safety program.  Town 
reserves the right to amend the requirements herein at any time during the Agreement.  
The Licensee shall require any and all subcontractors to maintain insurance as required 
herein naming the Town and Licensee as “Additional Insured” on all insurance policies, 
except Worker’s Compensation and Errors & Omissions, and this shall be primary 
insurance with respect to all available sources.  Coverage provided by the Licensee shall 
not be limited to the liability assumed under the Indemnification provision of this 
Agreement.  To the extent permitted by law, Licensee waives all rights of subrogation or 
similar rights against the Town, its Mayor, councilmembers, officials, representatives, 
agents, and employees.  All insurance policies, except Workers’ Compensation and 
Errors & Omissions, required by this Agreement, and self-insured retention or deductible 
portions, shall name, to the fullest extent permitted by law for claims arising out of 
performance of this Agreement, Town of Florence, its Mayor and councilmembers, 
agents, representatives, officers, officials and employees as Additional Insureds.  The 
Town reserves the right to require complete copies of all insurance policies and 
endorsements required by this Agreement at any time.  Failure to maintain the insurance 
policies as required by this Agreement, or to provide evidence of renewal, is a material 
breach of this Agreement.  All Risk Insurance. Licensee shall not commit or permit any 
acts on or about the Licensed Area which may in any way impair or invalidate any All Risk 
Insurance. 

 
3.8.2. Personal Property Insurance. During the Term, Licensee, at 

Licensee’s sole cost, shall obtain extended coverage insurance for Licensee’s personal 
property, if any, brought by or used by Licensee on or about the Licensed Area during the 
Term.  

 
3.8.3. Liability Insurance. Licensee shall provide coverage with limits 

of liability not less than those stated below: 
 

Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance:  Licensee shall provide coverage with limits 
of liability not less than those stated below. 
 
Commercial General Liability – Occurrence Form 
 
Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage, personal injury and broad form 
contractual liability. 
General Aggregate       $2,000,000 
Products – Completed Operations Aggregate  $1,000,000 

 
Personal and Adverting Injury    $1,000,000 
Blanket Contractual Liability – Written and Oral   $1,000,000 
Fire Legal Liability      $     50,000 



 

Page 6 of 15 
 

Each Occurrence      $1,000,000 
 
The Policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: 
“The Town of Florence, its Mayor and council members, agents, volunteers, 
representatives, officers, officials and employees shall be named as additional insureds 
with respect to liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of the Licensee”.    
 
Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the Town of Florence, its 
departments, agencies, boards, commissions, and its officers, officials, representatives, 
volunteers, agents and employees for losses arising from work performed by or on behalf 
of the Licensee. 
 
Business Automobile Liability     
Bodily Injury and Property Damage for any owned, hired, and/or non-owned vehicles used 
in the performance of this Agreement. 
 
Combined Single Limit (CSL)   $1,000,000 
 
The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: “The 
Town of Florence, its Mayor and council members, agents, volunteers, representatives, 
officers, officials and employees shall be named as additional insureds with respect to 
liability arising out of the activities performed by or on behalf of the Licensee, involving 
automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the Licensee”     
  
Workers Compensation and Employer’s Liability  
Workers Compensation                          Statutory Employers’ Liability  
Each Accident         $1,000,000 
Disease – Each Employee        $   500,000 
Disease – Policy Limit               $1,000,000 
 
Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the Town of Florence, its 
departments, agencies, boards, commissions, and its officers, officials, volunteers, 
agents and employees for losses arising from work performed by or on behalf of the 
Licensee. 
 
This requirement shall not apply to: Separately, EACH contractor or subcontractor exempt 
under §A.R.S. 23-901, AND when such contractor or subcontractor executes the 
appropriate waiver (Sole Proprietor/Independent Contractor) form.  
 
Additional Insurance Requirements:  The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to 
contain, the following provisions:  
 
The Town of Florence, its department, agencies, boards, commissions, and its officers, 
officials, agents and employees and the other governmental entity wherever additional 
insured status is required. Such additional insured shall be covered to the full limits of 



 

Page 7 of 15 
 

liability purchased by the Licensee even if those limits of liability are in excess of those 
required by the Agreement. 
 
The Licensee’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance with respect to all other 
available sources. 
 
The Licensee’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is 
made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer’s liability. Coverage 
provided by the Licensee shall not be limited to the liability assumed under 
the indemnification provisions of this Agreement.   
 
Notice of Cancellation: Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this 
Agreement shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled, reduced in coverage or in limits 
except after 30-calendar days prior written notice has been given to the Town. 
 
Acceptability of Insurers:   Insurance is to be placed with duly licensed or approved non-
admitted insurers in the State of Arizona with “A.M. Best” rating of not less than A-VII. 
The Town in no way warrants that the above required minimum insurer rating is sufficient 
to protect the Licensee from potential insurer insolvency. 
 
Verification of Coverage:  Licensee shall furnish the Town with certificates of insurance 
(ACORD form or equivalent approved by the State of Arizona) as required by this 
Agreement.  The certificates for each insurance policy are to be signed by a person 
authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. All certificates and 
endorsements are to be received and approved by the Town before the Use commences. 
Each insurance policy required by this Agreement must be in effect at or prior to 
commencement of the Use under this Agreement and remain in effect for the duration of 
the Agreement. Failure to maintain the insurance policies as required by this Agreement 
or to provide evidence of renewal, is a material breach of contract. 
 
The Town reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all insurance policies 
required by this Agreement at any time.  
 
Subcontractors: Licensee’s certificate(s) shall include all subcontractors as insureds 
under its policies or Licensee shall furnish to the Town separate certificates for each 
subcontractor.  All coverages for subcontractors shall be subject to the minimum 
requirements identified above. 
 
Approval: Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements in this 
Agreement must have prior approval from the Town, whose decision shall be final. Such 
action will not require a formal contract amendment, but may be made by administrative 
action. 
 
Town reserves the right to amend the requirements herein at any time during the 
Agreement subject to at least (5) days written notice. The Licensee shall require any and 
all subcontractors to maintain insurance as required herein naming Town and Licensee 



 

Page 8 of 15 
 

as "Additional Insured" on all insurance policies, except Worker's Compensation and 
Errors & Omissions, and this shall be reflected on the Certificate of Insurance and 
Endorsements. The Licensee’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance with 
respect to all other available sources. Coverage provided by the Licensee shall not be 
limited to the liability assumed under the Indemnification provision of this Agreement. To 
the extent permitted by law, License waives all rights of subrogation or similar rights 
against Town, its Mayor and council members, officials, agents, representatives, officers, 
volunteers and employees. All insurance policies, except Workers' Compensation and 
Errors & Omissions required by this Agreement, and self-insured retention or deductible 
portions, shall name, to the fullest extent permitted by law for claims arising out of the 
performance of this Agreement, Town, its Mayor and council members, agents, 
representatives, officers, directors, officials, volunteers and employees as Additional 
Insureds. Town reserves the right to require complete copies of all insurance policies and 
endorsements required by this Agreement at any time. Failure to maintain the insurance 
policies as required by this Agreement, or to provide evidence of renewal, is a material 
breach of contract. 
 

3.9.  REPAIRS TO LICENSED AREA. 
 

3.9.1. Licensee’s Repairs. Licensee, at Licensee’s sole cost, shall 
promptly repair any damage to the Property, or the Licensed Area resulting from the Use. 

 
3.9.2. The Walk Through. At least 48 hours prior to the end of the 

Term, Licensor and Licensee shall conduct a joint “walk through” of the Property and the 
Licensed Area with the object of preparing a jointly prepared “punch list” of those items, 
if any, which are to be repaired by Licensee, at Licensee’s sole cost, resulting from the 
Use (the “Repair Items”). 

 
3.9.3. Survival. Licensee’s obligations under this Paragraph 3.9 shall 

survive the expiration or earlier termination of this License and, in this regard at a mutually 
agreed upon time not to exceed 5 calendar days after the termination or expiration of the 
Term, Licensee shall cause the Repair Items to be completed to Licensor’s reasonable 
satisfaction by a contractor licensed in Arizona and acceptable to Licensor in Licensor’s 
reasonable discretion. 
 

3.10. INDEMNITY AND RELEASE. 
 

3.10.1. Licensee’s Indemnity of Licensor. Licensee shall and does 
hereby agree to indemnify, defend and hold Licensor and Licensor’s Mayor, officers, 
council members, representatives, volunteers, agents and employees (collectively the 
“Indemnitees”) harmless from and against all liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, 
actions, fines, penalties, claims, suits, costs, charges and expenses, including but not 
limited to reasonable attorneys’ fees and professional, expert or consultant fees (including 
such expenses incurred in any attempt to enforce this indemnification provision), which 
may arise out of, in connection with, resulting from or related to in any manner, directly or 
indirectly with: (i) this License; (ii) Licensee’s failure to comply with the provisions of any 



 

Page 9 of 15 
 

federal, state, or local statute, ordinance, or regulation; or (iii) any use of the Property and 
Licensed Area by Licensee, Licensee’s participants, employees, customers, agents, 
invitees, licensees, or guests. 

 
3.10.2. Licensee’s Defense of Licensor. In the event that any action 

or proceeding shall at any time be brought against any of the Indemnitees by reason of 
any claim referred to in Paragraph 3.10.1, Licensee, at Licensee’s sole cost and upon at 
least 10 calendar days’ written notice from Licensor, shall defend the same with counsel 
acceptable to Licensor, in Licensor’s sole discretion. It is agreed that the Licensee will be 
responsible for primary loss investigation, defense, and judgment costs where this 
indemnification applies. Insurance provisions set forth in this License are separate and 
independent from the indemnity provisions of this section and shall not be construed in 
any way to limit the scope and magnitude of the indemnity provisions. The indemnity 
provisions of this section 3.10 shall not be construed in any way to limit the scope and 
magnitude and applicability of the insurance provisions set forth in this License. The 
Licensee’s obligations and waivers under this section 3.10 shall survive the expiration or 
earlier termination of this License. 

 
3.10.3. Release of Licensor. Except for Licensor’s gross negligence, 

Licensee, on its own behalf and on behalf of its successor and assigns, shall and does 
hereby release Licensor and the Indemnitees for all liabilities and claims incurred by 
Licensee based on Licensee’s use of the Property and Licensed Area. 

 
3.10.4. Indemnity Against Licensee’s Breach. Licensee shall and 

does hereby agree to indemnify, defend and save the Indemnitees harmless against all 
claims arising from any breach or default on Licensee’s part in the performance of any 
covenant or agreement of Licensee under this License. 

 
3.10.5. Survival. Licensee’s obligations and waivers under this 

Paragraph 3.10 shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this License for a 
period of three years. 

 
3.11. ACCEPTANCE OF LICENSED AREA. Licensee has 

examined the Licensed Area, and Licensee hereby accepts the Licensed Area “as is” and 
“where is” and Licensee shall and does hereby waive all claims Licensee, now or 
hereafter may have, against Licensor arising out of or in any way attributable to the 
physical status or condition of the Licensed Area. Licensee acknowledges that Licensor 
has not made any representations or warranty, express or implied, as to the suitability of 
Licensed Area for the Use. 
 

3.12.  DEFAULTS/REMEDIES.   
 

3.12.1. Events of Default. An Event of Default by Licensee shall exist 
upon the occurrence of any of the following: (i) the nonpayment of any sums on its stated 
date due; or, (ii) the nonperformance by Licensee of any other covenant or condition set 



 

Page 10 of 15 
 

forth herein, which shall not be fully cured, within 3 days after Licensee’s receipt of written 
notice from Licensor of Licensee’s nonperformance. 

 
3.12.2. Remedies. Upon Licensee’s default, Licensor may, at 

Licensor’s option: 
 

3.12.2.1. immediately terminate this License; 
 
3.12.2.2. re-enter and take exclusive possession of Licensed 

Area by legal proceeding or otherwise; 
 
3.12.2.3. in the event of any re-entry, Licensor may remove 

all persons from Licensed Area and Licensor may remove all of Licensee’s property 
located on or about the Licensed Area; 

 
3.12.2.4. re-entry of the Licensed Area shall be construed as 

an election by Licensor to terminate this License; 
 
3.12.2.5. Licensee shall and does hereby waive all claims or 

demands that may be caused by Licensor on re-entering and retaking possession of the 
Licensed Area as hereinabove provided and all claims and demands for damages or loss 
of property belonging to Licensee or any other person that may be on or about the 
Licensed Area at the time of such re-entry; 

 
3.12.2.6. in addition to Licensor’s rights upon default specified 

herein, Licensor shall be entitled to all other rights provided in law or equity. The various 
rights, options or remedies of Licensor contained in this License shall be cumulative and 
no one of them shall be construed as exclusive of any of the others; and, 

 
3.12.2.7. all sums which are due and payable in accordance 

with this License and which are not paid in full on or before their due date shall thereupon 
bear interest at 10% per annum until paid in full. 
 

3.13. ENTRY RESERVED BY LICENSOR. Licensor and Licensor’s 
agents, at all reasonable times during the Term, may enter the Licensed Area. Licensor 
will attempt to minimize any interference with Licensee’s use of the Licensed Area. 
Licensee shall not interfere in any way with the Licensor’s entry on the Licensed Area. 
 

3.14. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 
 

3.14.1. Security Monitoring. Licensor shall pay for all security 
monitoring serving the Licensed Area during the Use Period. 

 
3.14.2. Surrender of Licensed Area. Upon the expiration or early 

termination of this License, Licensee, at Licensee’s sole cost, shall surrender the 
Licensed Area to Licensor in good condition, free and clear of all garbage and debris.  At 



 

Page 11 of 15 
 

the termination of this License, Licensee shall surrender the Licensed Area to Town in 
the same condition as received, ordinary wear and tear excepted.  If the Licensor should 
hold over the said term with the consent, express or implied of the Town, such holding 
over shall be construed as a tenancy only from month to month, and Licensee shall 
continue to pay the Monthly Fee for such term as Licensee holds same. 

 
3.14.3. Assignment. 

 
3.14.3.1. This License shall not assign, mortgage or 

encumber this License nor sublicense nor permit the Licensed Area or any part thereof 
to be used by others, without the prior written consent of the Licensor in each instance, 
which consent may be withheld in Licensor’s sole and absolute discretion. 

 
3.14.3.2. Licensor may assign any or all of Licensor’s rights or 

obligations under this License without seeking or obtaining Licensee’s consent hereto. 
 

3.14.4. Attorneys’ Fees. If there is any litigation between Licensor or 
Licensee to enforce or interpret any provisions or rights arising under this License, the 
unsuccessful party in such litigation, as determined by the Court (as defined below), 
agrees to pay the successful party, as determined by the Court, all costs and expenses, 
including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred by the successful party, 
such fees to be determined by the Court and not a jury. 

 
3.14.5. Notices. Except as otherwise required by law, all notices to 

be given or required under this License shall be in writing and shall be given by personal 
delivery, or e-mail or by deposit in the United States mail, certified or registered, return 
receipt requested, postage prepaid, or any express or overnight delivery service e.g., 
Federal Express service the locality to which addressed, delivery charges prepaid 
addressed to the Parties at the addresses set forth below, or at such other address as a 
Party may designate in writing pursuant hereto. Notice shall be deemed to have been 
given on the date on which notice is delivered, if notice is given by personal delivery or e-
mail, and on the date of deposit in the mail, if mailed or deposited with the overnight 
carrier, if used. Notice shall be deemed to have been received on the date on which the 
notice is received, if notice is given by personal delivery or e-mail or overnight courier, 
and on the 2nd day following deposit in the mail, if notice is mailed: 
 
If to Licensor:    Town of Florence 
      Attn: Town Manager 
      P. O. Box 2670 
      775 N. Main Street 
      Florence, AZ 85132 
      
If to Licensee:    American Medical Response of Maricopa, LLC 
      Attn: ____________________________ 
      Address:_________________________ 
      ________________________________ 



 

Page 12 of 15 
 

 3.14.6. Additional Acts. The Parties agree to execute promptly such 
other documents and to perform such other acts as may be reasonably necessary to carry 
out the purpose and intent of this License. 

 
3.14.7. Governing Law/Jurisdiction/Venue. This License shall be 

governed by and construed in accordance with the substantive laws of the State of 
Arizona, without reference to conflict of laws and principles. Any action brought to 
interpret, enforce, or construe any provision of this License shall be commenced and 
maintained in the Superior Court of the State of Arizona in and for County of Pinal (or, as 
may be appropriate, in the Justice Courts of Pinal County, Arizona or in the United States 
District Court for the District of Arizona, if but only if, the Superior Court lacks or declines 
jurisdiction over such action). The Parties irrevocably consent to jurisdiction and venue in 
such courts for such purposes and agree not to seek transfer or removal of any action 
commenced in accordance with the terms of this paragraph. Should any dispute, 
misunderstanding, or conflict arise as to the terms or provisions contained in this 
Agreement, the matter shall first be referred to the Town, and Town shall determine the 
term or provision’s true intent and meaning. 

 
3.14.8. No Liens. Licensee shall not create or permit any liens to be 

placed of record against the Property. 
 
3.14.9. Time of Essence. Time is of the essence of this License. The 

time within which an act must be accomplished, shall be calculated by excluding the first 
day and including the last day. However, if this License requires any act to be done or 
action to be taken on a date which is a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday, such act or 
action shall be deemed to have been validly done or taken if done or taken on the next 
succeeding day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday. 

 
3.14.10. Incorporation by Reference. All Exhibits to this License are 

fully incorporated herein as though set forth at length herein. 
 
3.14.11. Severability. If any provision of this License is determined 

to be unenforceable based on a final, non-appealable order of the Court, the remaining 
provisions shall nevertheless be kept in effect.  

 
3.14.12. No Conflicts of Interest. Licensee understands and agrees 

that pursuant to the provisions of A.R.S. 38-511, Licensor may terminate this License 
within 3 years after execution of the License without penalty or further obligation if any 
person significantly involved in initiating, negotiating, securing, draft or creating the 
License on behalf of the Licensor is or becomes, at any time while the License or an 
extension of the License is in effect, an employee of or a consultant to any other party to 
this License with respect to the subject matter of the License. 

 
3.14.13. Construction. The terms and provisions of this License 

represent the results of negotiations between the Parties, each of which has been, or has 
had the opportunity to be, represented by counsel of its own choosing, and neither of 



 

Page 13 of 15 
 

which has acted under any duress or compulsion, whether legal, economic, or otherwise. 
Consequently, the terms and provisions of this License shall be incorporated and 
construed in accordance with their usual and customary meanings. The Parties each 
hereby waive the application of any rule of law which would otherwise be applicable in 
connection with the interpretation and construction of this License and that ambiguities or 
conflicting terms or provisions contained in this License shall be interpreted or construed 
against the Party whose attorney prepared or drafted the executed License or any earlier 
draft of the same or any of its exhibits. 

 
3.14.14. Waiver. None of the provisions of this Agreement shall be 

deemed to have been waived by any act or knowledge of any party or its agents or 
employees, but only by a specific written waiver signed by an authorized officer of such 
party and delivered to the other party. One or more waivers by either Party of any 
provisions, terms, conditions, or covenants of this Agreement shall not be construed as a 
subsequent breach of same by the other Party. 

 
3.14.15. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or 

more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together 
shall constitute one and the same instrument, binding on all of the Parties. The Parties 
agree that this Agreement may be transmitted between them via facsimile. The Parties 
intend that the faxed signatures constitute original signatures and that a faxed contract 
containing the signatures (original or faxed) of all the Parties is binding upon the Parties. 

 
3.14.15. Licenses.  Licensee shall maintain in current status all 

Federal, State and local licenses and permits required for the Use during the Use Period. 
3.14.16. Non-exclusive Remedies.  The rights and remedies of 

Licensor under this Agreement are not exclusive. 
 
3.14.17. Survival.  All warranties, representations and 

indemnification by Licensee shall survive the completion, expiration, cancellation, 
abandonment or termination of this Agreement for a period of three years. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this License as of the 
Effective Date. 
 
LICENSOR:   TOWN OF FLORENCE, an Arizona municipal corporation 
 
 
    By: __________________________________________ 
    Its: Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 14 of 15 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 
 
 
 
 
LICENSEE:   ___________________________________________, an 
     Arizona limited liability corporation 
     
 
 
    By: ___________________________________________ 
    Its: President 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 15 of 15 
 

Exhibit “A”  
to Non-Exclusive, Revocable License Agreement 

 
DESCRIPTION OF LICENSED AREA and IGA 

 
The Licensed Area shall include only the portion of the Property described herein, and 
such areas delineated in the sole discretion of the Town. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	August 20, 2018 Agenda
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4

	6. PRESENTTIONS
	6a. Safe Routes to Schools Presentation
	6b. Active Transportatin Plan Presentation

	7. CONSENT
	7a. Safe Routes to Schools Studues for FK8 and Anthem K8
	7b. Rotweller Controls LLC SCADA Repairs
	7c. Hydra-Stop for Insertion Valves
	7d. Pro-Tec Environmental Sewer Line Cleaning
	7e. July 3, 2018 Council Minutes
	7e. July 16, 2018 Council Minutes
	7e. July 18, 2018 Council Minutes
	7e. July 20, 2018 Council MInutes
	7e. July 30, 2018 Council MInutes

	7f i. April 25, 2018 HDAC Minutes
	7f ii. May 3, 2018 PR Advisory Board Minutes


	8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	8a. Resolution No. 1675-18 SWF Terms  Conditions
	8b. Ordinance No. 662-18  SWF TAs
	8c. Ordinance No. 663-18 SWF Rates and Fees
	8d. Ordinance No. 664-18 Youth Commission

	9. NEW BUSINESS
	9a. Cemetery Agreement with Tohono Oodham Nation
	9b. Cactus Asphalt for rPavement Preservation
	9c. American Medical Response Temp Housing FS 542




